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Regular Meeting of the Madera Gity Gouncil
and

Special Meeting of the Madera City Gouncil as the
G rou ndwater Sustai nabi I ity Agency

205 W. 4th Street, Madera, Galifornia 93637

JOINT MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

Wednesday,May 2,2O18
6:00 p.m.

GouncilChamberc
Gity Hall

CALL ORDER

ROLL GALL: Mayor Andrew J. Medellin
Mayor Pro Tem Jose Rodriguez, District 2
Gouncil Member Gece Foley Gallegos, District t
Council Member William Oliver, District 3
Council Member Derek O. Robinson Sr., District 4
Council Member Gharles F. Rigby, District 5
Council Member Donald E. Holley, District 6

INVOGATION: Pastor Eddie Gallegos, Good News Fellowship

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANGE:

PUBLIC GOMMENT:

The first fifteen minutes of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address the Council on
items which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. Speakers shall be limited to three
minutes. Speakers will be asked to identify themselves and state the subject of their comment. lf the
subject is an item on the Agenda, the Mayor has the option of asking the speaker to hold the comment until
that item is called. Comments on items listed as a Public Hearing on the Agenda should be held until the
hearing is opened. The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are
not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council does not respond to public
comment at this time.

PRESENTATIONS

1. Proclamation Recognizing Week of Maternal Mental Health

2. Presentation by Madera County Mosquito & Vector Control District (Trinidad Reyes)

INTRODUCTIONS There are no introductions.

2O5 W. Fourth Street . Maderar GA 93637 . TEL (559) 66{-5400 . FAX (559) 674-2972
www.c ityof madera. ca. gov



A.

B

WORKSHOP

There are no items for this section.

CONSENT CALENDAR

B-1 Minutes - 6119117

B-2 Warrant Disbursement Report 4110118 - 4123118 (Report by Tim Pzybyla)

B-3 Water Conservation Report for 3126118 - 4122118 (Report by John Scarborough)

B-4 Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Amendments to the FY 2017-2018 Budget
Appropriating $35,135.09 from the Funds Designated for Golf Course Emergency Repair
Account to Capital Outlay Equipment Replacement in the Golf Course Fund for Repairs to
the Golf Course Water Well (Report by Mary Anne Seay)

B-5 Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Facility Use Agreement with Fresno County
Office of Education (FCOE) for Use of Scout lsland Outdoor Education Center and
Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the Agreement on Behalf of the City (Report by Mary
Anne Seay)

8-6 Consideration of a Minute Order Approving Settlement of a Claim with Progressive
Casualty lnsurance Company for Property Damage (Report by Wendy Silva)

B-7 Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Madera Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee Charter (GSA - Report by David
Merchen)

B-8 Consideration of a Minute Order Rejecting all Bids for Project No. R-74: Reclamite
Application on Various City Streets (Report by Frank Holguin)

B-9 lnformational Report on Personnel Activity (Report by Wendy Silva)

B-10 Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Rate of Compensation for the Legal Assistant
Classification (Report by Wendy Silva)

HEARINGS. PETITIONS. BIDS. RESOLUTIONS. ORDINANCES. AND AGREEMENTS

C-1 Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Rental Agreement with the 21-A District
Agricultural Association for the Collaborative Use of the Madera Fairgrounds and
Associated Facilities for Three One-Week Summer Day Camp Programs and Authorizing
the Mayor to Execute the Agreement on Behalf of the City (Report by Mary Anne Seay)

C-2 Consideration of a Resolution Supporting the Reducing Crime and Keeping California Safe
Act of 2018 (Report by Dino Lawson)

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There are no items for this section.

Joint Meeting Notice and Agenda 5l02l18
Madera City Council

Madera City Council as the Groundwater Sustainability Agency

c

D

Update 4126118 3:54 p.m. Page 2 of 4



E

F

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

E-1 Presentation and Acceptance of the Audited Financial Statements and Single Audit Report
(Federal Grants) for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 (Report by Tim Pzybyla)

E-2 Discussion and Direction to Staff Regarding Consolidating and Outsourcing Solid Waste
Activities under the Existing Mid Valley Disposal Contract (Report by John Scarborough)

COUNCIL REPORTS

Request for Letter in Support of AB 3218 Millerton Lake State Recreation Area: Expansion
Acquisition of Land. (Report by Council Member Oliver)

G. GLOSED SESSION

G-1 Closed Session Announcement - City Attorney

G-2 Conference with Labor Negotiators Pursuant to Government Code 554957.6

Agency Designated Representatives: Steve Frazier & Wendy Silva

Employee Organ izations: General Bargaining Unit
Madera Police Otficers' Association
Mid-Management Employee Group
Law Enforcement Mid-Management Group
Management Employees

G-3 Conference with Real Property Negotiators - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.8

F-1

Property:
905 S. Gateway Dr.
Agency Negotiators:
Negotiating Parties:
Under Negotiations:

1 Parcel
APN: 011-182-002
David Merchen, Les Jorgensen
Stephen J. Allen
Price and Terms
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G-4 Closed Session Report - City Attorney

ADJOURNMENT - Next regular meeting May 16, 2018

[continued on next page]
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Please silence or turn otf cell phones and electronic devices while the meeting is in session.

Regular meetings of the Madera City Council are held the 1st and 3d Wednesday of each month at 6:00
p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the City Council
less than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at the City of Madera Office of the City
Clerk, 205 W. 4th Street, Madera, California 93637 during normal business hours.

The meeting room is accessible to the physically disabled, and the services of a translator can be made
available. Request for additional accommodations for the disabled, signers, assistive listening devices,
or translators needed to assist participation in this public meeting should be made at least seventy two
(72)hourspriortothemeeting. PleasecalltheHumanResourcesOfficeat(559)661-5401. Those
who are hearing impaired may call 711 or 1-800-735-2929 for TTY Relay Service.

Questions regarding the meeting agenda or conduct of the meeting, please contact the City Clerk's
office at (559) 661-5405.

Para asistencia en Espaffol sobre este aviso, por favor llame al (559) 661-5405

l, Sonia Alvarez, City Clerk for the City of Madera, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the above
joint meeting notice and agenda forthe Regular Meeting of the Madera City Council and the Special Meeting
of the Madera City Council as the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for May 2, 2018, near the front
entrances of City Hall at 5:00 p.m. on April 26,2018.

Alvarez, City
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MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE MADERA CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF MADERA, CALIFORNIA 

June 19, 2017 Council Chambers 
4:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting for 06/19/17 was called to order by Mayor Medellin at 4:04 p.m. 

ROLL CALL: 
Present: Mayor Andrew J. Medellin 

Mayor Pro Tem Cece Foley Gallegos, District 1 
Council Member Jose Rodriguez, District 2 (Arrived at 4:06 p.m.) 
Council Member Donald E. Holley, District 6 
Council Member Derek O. Robinson Sr., District 4 
Council Member William Oliver, District 3 (Arrived at 4:06 p.m.) 
Council Member Charles F. Rigby, District 5 (Arrived at 4:07 p.m.) 

Others present were City Administrator David Tooley, City Attorney Brent Richardson, City Clerk Sonia 
Alvarez, City Engineer Keith Helmuth, Director of Human Resources Wendy Silva, Planning Manager Chris 
Boyle, Director of Financial Services Tim Przybyla, Director of Parks and Community Services Mary Anne 
Seay, Public Works Operations Director David Randall, Director of Community Development David 
Merchen, Grants Administrator Ivette Iraheta, Chief Building Official Steve Woodworth, Battalion Chief Jim 
Forga, Division Chief David Allen, Chief of Police Steve Frazier, Information Services Manager Mark 
Souders, Tyler Munis Implementation Project Manager Becky McCurdy, Neighborhood Preservation 
Supervisor Viola Rodriguez, Redevelopment Manager Bob Wilson, Fleet Operations Manager Randy 
Collin. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

The first fifteen minutes of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address the Council on 
items which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  Speakers shall be limited to three 
minutes.  Speakers will be asked to identify themselves and state the subject of their comment. If the subject 
is an item on the Agenda, the Mayor has the option of asking the speaker to hold the comment until that 
item is called.  Comments on items listed as a Public Hearing on the Agenda should be held until the hearing 
is opened.  The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on 
the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council does not respond to public 
comment at this time.  

No comments were offered. 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Workshop on the City of Madera FY 2017/2018 Proposed Budget (Report by David Tooley and Tim
Przybyla)

Item: B-1 
Minutes for: 06/19/17 
Adopted: 05/02/18 

Return to Agenda
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Mayor Medellin stated that he was hoping to have at least three other members by this time.  He stated he 
knows Council Member Oliver said he will be a few minutes behind and he did speak to Council Member 
Rigby who he believes is in the building just not at his seat.  He stated that this was too important to get 
started so if the audience does not mind they would wait a few minutes for his colleagues to be there. 
 
Mayor Medellin welcomed Council Member Rodriguez. 
 
Council Member Oliver apologized. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated it was ok.  He stated he understood Council Member Oliver had a little bit of a trek 
to get there.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated he would like the record to reflect that Council Member Rodriguez and Council 
Member Oliver have joined them. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that Council Member Rigby is the Chairperson of the Housing Authority and over the 
weekend a pipe burst at that site which put about three inches of water in the entire building and he’s been 
on the phone trying to work a little magic to help out as best as he can for a temporary building.  He stated 
that he is sure that is what Council Member Rigby is trying to do. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they are rejoined by Council Member Rigby. 
 
Council Member Rigby apologized and stated he is just trying to help out Linda Shaw. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated let the record reflect that Council Member Rigby had now joined them.  They have 
all seven members there.   
 
The workshop started at 4:08 p.m. 
 
David Tooley, City Administrator stated they would begin with a moment of full disclosure.  He stated that 
the budget they had in front of them does not include a new HVAC system for City Hall and while that is 
funny in a moment it also says something about where they are as an organization.  They have limitations 
on what they can do and their inability to replace an HVAC system which has needed to be replaced for 
eight or nine years is symptomatic of the fact that they have a lot of deferred maintenance and they as the 
Council will have to make some difficult choices about what they spend their money on in the next year and 
in the next five years as well. 
 
Council Member Holley stated he couldn’t hear Mr. Tooley and Mayor Medellin stated he didn’t know if the 
audience could hear but it did sound a little low and asked Mr. Tooley to get closer to the microphone. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they would start by taking a very brief trip down memory lane.  Two years ago Love’s 
[Travel Center] fuel station was on the fast track to open.  Love’s [Travel Center] represents 80 to 100 new 
jobs for their community and would add several hundred dollars to their Operating Budget in terms of new 
revenues.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that two years ago the inside word on the casino was that they were about to break 
ground and a $250 million project pumps a lot of money into their community and 11 to 1,500 new jobs is 
a game changer by any definition. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that two years ago they could close their budget process.  They could close an operating 
loss in excess of $1 million because they were very good at conservative financial principals. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that today Love’s [Travel Center] is still on what they characterize as a fast track.  He 
stated that best case they begin construction in November or January.  Going forward they won’t see the 
first dollars from Love’s [Travel Center] for a minimum of 18 months. 
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Mr. Tooley stated the casino is probably in litigation for another two years.  Once out of litigation the project 
will be built in phases.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that as seen in the material provided to Council they are now generating an operating 
loss in the General Fund.  They have progressively cut the flexibility out of their budgets as a matter of 
necessity.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that in a recent presentation they also described to Council what he is going to 
characterize as a [Cal]PERS crises in the state of California.  Between now and 2022 they will see their 
[Cal]PERS contributions increase from $3.8 million to $6.5 million or more depending on how [Cal]PERS 
changes their underlying assumptions. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that Measure K is going to help them but is limited based on the promises they made 
with regard to Public Safety.  Mr. Tooley stated that the first order of business is to fulfill the promises they 
made on Public Safety. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that it is his personal opinion that cities and counties are not going to solve the [Cal]PERS 
crisis without intervention by the courts and the legislature.  He is comfortable predicting some cities and 
counties are going to declare bankruptcy over the next five years.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that even if they lose $1 million next year and $2 million a year after that they are not 
going to be in danger of going bankrupt however they need to be worried that the gap between revenues 
and expenditures is not just growing the gap is accelerating in size. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that for the foreseeable future they need to be focused on building their revenue, creating 
more wealth in the community and limiting expenditure growth.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated the recommendation they have in front of them provides them a number of cost reduction 
alternatives including reductions in the workforce notwithstanding the fact that they are already within this 
budget adding positions to the City’s General Fund.  Some of those will be as a result of Measure K but 
some of them in Code Enforcement are as a result of their new Rental Inspection Ordinance and will directly 
impact their General Fund.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that today he is suggesting to them that their financial landscape has changed and it 
seems they must change as well. 
 
Mr. Tooley addressed Tim Przybyla, Director of Financial Services and stated that it was up to him to begin 
the presentation to Council on the specifics and that when they get back to the point where they are ready 
to talk about alternatives he’ll be back in front of the microphone. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they have a unified slideshow that all departments will be using for the presentation this 
evening and they will start that at this time. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated this is the Budget Workshop for the 17/18 budget.  He stated they will have the General 
Fund discussion and summary then they’ll have General Fund highlights by department then they’ll have 
the Enterprise fund summary and discussion, and the Enterprise fund highlights by department, then they’ll 
have the Internal Service fund summary and discussion and the Internal Service fund highlights by 
department.  Mr. Przybyla stated that those by department times is when the departments get up and share 
their budget highlights with Council.  He stated they will then hit the Special Revenue fund summary and 
discussion.  He stated those are non-operational in nature.  He stated they would then wrap it up. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the question is if they are still crying wolf.  He stated they’ve had some criticism about 
the way that they do budgeting and he looked way back to 01/02 and saw that way back then there was a 
$830,000 deficit budgeted and sure enough they turned around and had a $26,000 surplus for that year.  
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In 16/17 Madera budgeted a $1.4 million deficit and they are estimating a $900,000 actual deficit at this 
point so their actual and their budget are getting closer together even though it is still a pretty big 
swing….$500,000.  They are getting closer. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that in 01/02 the fund balance was $2 million basically which meant that $829,000 
deficit was 38% of the fund balance.  In the 16/17 budget they have a $14.4 million fund balance of that 
$12.9 million is unassigned so that reflects a 10% of the fund balance deficit.  They are getting closer. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they have been tightening the budget over the past two years specifically.  The City 
Administrator specifically told him that they didn’t want to paint the picture that they are crying wolf and then 
have a big surplus at the end of the year so they have been tightening those budgets.  In FY 15/16 they 
basically hit the bullseye.  They were right at 100% of budget.  They were within less than 1% of budget for 
the revenues and within 1% of budget on the expenditures.  What really prevented them from actually 
realizing a deficit in 15/16 was the $1.5 million capital lease financing that they had to recognize.  Now that 
they recognized that in 15/16 they have to expend those dollars and recognize the expense so it takes the 
picture and makes it more difficult for them to bridge that gap.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that as they can see in the example with the exception of 2015, departments have really 
been tightening up their budgets over the past several years.  He added up those percentages from 2010 
to 2015 and it averaged out about 94.5%.  If they had a 5.5% cushion in the budget this would be an easy 
meeting tonight but they don’t have that 5.5% cushion any more.  They are right at 100%.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they are crying wolf and meaning that there’s wolves at this point. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they need to decide what level of service is sustainable.  He stated the numbers 
changed.  They are at a little over $2 million now at this time.  When he ran the report they were at about 
$2.5 million so they have been cutting expenses and trying to find additional revenues.  The picture has 
improved from this point but if FY 18 was a $2.5 million deficit, they roll forward to next fiscal year 2019 
that’s nearly $4 million and each year they can see how those deficits continue to expand or accelerate as 
the City Administrator said. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated some of the assumptions show a 4% sales tax increase, 2% property tax and overall 
it’s basically a 2% increase in revenues and he used the same 2% increase in personnel costs with the 
exception of CalPERS so it’s really comparative as far as coming up with the forecast.  The bottom line is 
they are looking at $2 million now instead of 2.5 but they have so many people with the benefits and the 
benefits are increasing with healthcare costs and CalPERS and if they have a deficit now the deficit is just 
going to get worse and worse as time goes on. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they had a workshop regarding the CalPERS increases and those figures were factored 
into this five year forecast.  These forecasts do not include a further change from the 7% discount rate so 
they are already talking about possibly changing it to 6.5% for the CalPERS rate and every time that they 
decrease that discount rate up goes their unfunded liability and up goes the contribution they have to make 
to try to keep up with that every year. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked how they balance the FY 17/18 budget.  They need to bridge a $1.6 million gap in FY 
17/18.  Some recommended steps are to implement a soft hiring freeze, implement a 3% across the board 
savings on Maintenance and Operations for approximately $300,000 and then implement an additional cost 
reduction plan on top of that.  They have collective bargaining coming up and if there’s any savings to be 
had from that or losses to be had from that is totally unknown at this time.  If they use the FY 16/17 Measure 
K funds they could potentially use $400,000 of the estimated $800,000 from the current fiscal year to 
somehow bridge part of that gap for the FY 17/18 budget and of course the other consideration is the 
cutback on programs and reduce staff. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked if Mr. Tooley wanted to return to discuss those options. 
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Mr. Tooley suggested to Council that they take them through the remainder of the budget and he thinks 
that at the end of the presentation that is the time to start talking about what Council would like to do but 
until they see the budget as a whole he thinks it’s too early. 
 
Mayor Medellin agreed. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they would look as the summary of the General Fund Expenditures and the Revenues 
are included there.  These same figures were included in the staff report and they can see that some of the 
departments have decreased since last year and some have increased.  There will be discussion from the 
different departments that explain why there is an increase or decrease in their various departments. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that the bottom line is on the second page of Exhibit 1.  Right there is what they are 
most concerned about.  There is the deficit.  If they take the regular Fund 1020 plus the Code Enforcement 
1020 budgets they are looking at a $2 million deficit and 1.4 of that comes from all the departments in the 
General Fund 1020 other than Code Enforcement.  Code Enforcement’s deficit for the year is $641,000 for 
a total of $2,036,000 deficit.  That is just in Fund 1020.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the other funds typically should balance themselves out.   
 
CDBG [Community Development Block Grant] fund is money in money out or it should be.  There are some 
timing differences there that can really throw things off.   
 
The Insurance Reserve fund can really go up and down depending on the retrospective adjustments that 
have to be made to make up for prior year’s losses that are catching up to them related to Worker’s 
Compensation and liability insurance.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the Measure K fund is the very good news of the day.  They are estimating $3,645,000 
for next year’s Measure K funds that will be used to fund the Police and Fire additional positions.  In Fire 
they are setting aside $1.75 million for the future building of the fire station.  It looks like that may be at least 
two years out at this point so setting aside that money should be very helpful in keeping down the loan 
payments that they will have to make once they build the fire station and have to pay the debt service on 
that. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there is not much change from Fund 1020 down to the bottom line.  There’s like a 
$3,000 difference.  Not much difference there.  It is really the Fund 1020 that is their main point of concern.  
They are not concerned about Measure K because that money is designed for a certain purpose.  They 
cannot use that to balance the rest of the General Fund. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they are looking at $2,033,000 and of that they can add back one-time expenses so 
included in the budget figures is $400,000 of Capital Outlay related primarily to the Tyler Munis 
implementation.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated it’s a one-time thing.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated it’s a one-time thing.  Once implemented they will have the on-going maintenance 
contract cost but this is a Capital Outlay.  He stated it’s a plan draw down of funds and that is part of the 
$1.5 million they recognized in 15/16 so now they are going to draw that down and recognize the expense. 
 
Mr. Tooley asked if to be clear they have a couple of more years of payments on the Tyler Munis system. 
 
Mr. Przybyla reiterated a couple of more years of payments on….  He stated until they completed it, yes. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they will see this as a recurring cost in future budgets until it’s paid off. 
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Mr. Przybyla stated it’s not so much a matter of being paid off.  It’s a matter of when the services are 
incurred so as they do the training that’s when they pay for the training and that’s the biggest part.  They’ve 
paid the rest of it at this point.  He believes it is $365,000 that’s budgeted for the Capital Outlay related to 
that as they draw down the funds from the lease and pay the vendor.  That 365 is all budgeted in next year’s 
budget.  It could be that they only spend 200,000 of that and finish off the rest in the next year to implement 
the Tyler [Munis] system.  He is not certain when those services will be completed but they budgeted the 
remaining 365 in the current fiscal year of 17/18.  Because it is a one-time expense it’s ok to back that 
number out and say that operationally they are looking at a $1.633 million deficit.  That is what they need 
to look at bridging the gap in.  
 
Operational Revenues each year should fund operational expenditures in each year.  They shouldn’t have 
to draw down on the General Fund, fund balance to fund on-going operations. 
 
Mr. Przybyla referred them to a graph that shows the breakdown of the General Fund expenditures and it 
includes Measure K so Public Safety represents 49%, Public Works 8.6%, Community Development 8.2%, 
Parks and Community Services 12.3% and Administrative Services, which is a combination of various 
departments like the City Clerk, City Administrator, City Attorney is lumped into that 8.1% of the budget.  
Mr. Przybyla stated this exact slide updated will be included in the Final Budget and he thinks it’s very 
informational and helpful to the reader. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that every year they include Exhibit A which shows how much revenues each 
department brings in, their expenditures, and what the contribution to or appropriation from the fund 
balances results in.  He stated he doesn’t really pay much attention to this as far as how much each 
department costs because in his opinion the taxes are really what fund most of the departments.  The $19.1 
million covers a big part of the $27.5 million of revenue but they do have the various revenues that help 
offset the expenses.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked how they generate those revenues. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated if they are not taxes they are typically fees for services or admin and overhead charges.  
For the City Administrator and others that are able to allocate costs across to the non-General Fund 
departments they bring in revenues for that.  The Finance Department services all the departments.  Those 
are the primary revenues either fees for services, grant funding that may come into a specific department, 
or Interfund charges for services that are provided to the rest of the City. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked that he highlight City Council $40,000. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the City Council is not raising funds for them per se but because there is a charge for 
City Council they can allocate their cost.  The total cost to fund the City Council is $153,000 and of that a 
percentage of their services go to a non-General Fund such as the Enterprise funds and other funds and 
they can charge them an overhead and administrative charge so that is what comes back to partially fund 
the City Council Department. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that in other words he’s bringing it from a different fund and Mr. Przybyla 
replied affirmatively that it was a non-General Fund. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they could charge each other but it doesn’t make sense if they are all in the General 
Fund so they limit it to the portion of the City’s services that are outside of the General Fund. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that the order that they will begin going over the department budgets will be the City 
Administrator, City Clerk, City Attorney and then Finance.  They will walk through those slideshows.  
They’ve asked each of the departments to present specific information.  Their formats may vary slightly but 
they are going to hit the highlights and they are not going page by page line item by line item tonight. 
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City Administrator 
Mr. Tooley stated he is responsible for three budgets: City Administrator’s Office, Central Administration 
and Community Promotions.  There is an increase in personnel costs due to an addition of a temporary 
position that is Becky McCurdy.  She runs the Purchasing operation but on a temporary basis she is the 
Tyler Munis Implementation Manager.  She anticipates that position will go about another 18 months.  The 
other person is Joseph [Carrello] who does all of their social media activities. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they have a limited amount of new Capital Outlay for furniture equipment and equipment 
that is related to Mr. Carrello’s activities.  One of the options they have in front of them is to reduce M&O 
[Maintenance & Operations] in Capital by three percent.  Should they choose that option, he will be making 
some reductions in those planned purchases. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that most of the M&O items in Central Administration remain status quo.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated there’s a $400,000 decrease of operating transfer to other funds.  Senior Citizens’ 
Services and Code Enforcement are now part of the General Fund.  There’s a $300,000 increase transfer 
to the Insurance Reserve fund.  There’s a slight increase from the prior year’s Community Promotions 
adopted amount.  There’s a $155,000 in the Contract that goes to EDC [Economic Development 
Commission], 32 to LAFCO [Local Agency Formation Commission].  There is a small increase there.  
$28,000 to Other and $5,000 to the Arts Council.  They also have an “ask” this year from the Friends of the 
Madera Animal Shelter.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated if they don’t have questions on the balance of his budget he’d like to give the Friends an 
opportunity to make their “ask” of them. 
 
Mr. Tooley asked if there were any questions for him. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Mr. Tooley. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked him to elaborate on what the Senior Services encompasses. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there was a decrease of operating transfers to other funds.  In the past they had set up 
another fund because it was originally thought to be funded by FMAAA [Fresno Madera Area Agency on 
Aging] which is grant funding.  That funding has decreased over the years and most of it is funded now by 
the General Fund.  Mary Anne Seay, Parks and Recreation Director asked to have it made part of the 
General Fund to recognize that it is actually a General Fund expense and any monies that come in from 
the FMAAA, other grants or other sources are recognized as revenue to the General Fund.  So rather than 
taking General Fund money and transferring it out to the Senior Citizen’s programs which were not General 
Fund it’s been incorporated into the General Fund so it’s a direct expense rather than a transfer. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated it is just a change in presentation. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated it is the same for Code Enforcement. 
 
Mr. Tooley asked if they could invite Ms. [Velvet] Rhodes to make her presentation to the Council. 
 
Ms. Rhodes stated she is requesting $100,000 from the City.  The money would be spent from July 2017 
through June 2018 solely on City generated animals.  $80,000 of it would be spent on spaying and neutering 
over 1,000 animals.  The balance would be for transportation, medicines and emergency surgeries that 
come up regularly.  Ms. Rhodes stated the Friends [of Madera Animal Shelter] pay for these funds and they 
also have employees.   
 
Ms. Rhodes stated she’s come and presented to them before so they are aware of the over $3 million that 
the Friends [of Madera Animal Shelter] have given to the City and the County animals over the last 15 
years.   
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She stated that in those 15 years unfortunately they haven’t received $1 from the City of Madera.   
 
Ms. Rhodes stated that in three different givings from the County they have received a total of $300,000.  
$100,000 in 2002, $100,000 in 2010 and $100,000 in 2017.   
 
Ms. Rhodes stated that in the five years between 2010 and 2017 they were given $1.5 million from the Red 
and Nancy Arnold [Foundation] so with that money they didn’t have to go to the City or the County for 
money but now they are really in need of help.  They have a $22,000 to $25,000 veterinarian bill every 
month for spaying and neutering.  She stated Council could do the math.  It’s going to go very quickly.  She 
stated Council doesn’t need to know any more than that they desperately need their help.  They are all in 
it for their own community and they spay and neuter 3,600 animals every year and at least 40% of those 
are from the City and the rest are from Chowchilla, the mountain communities and Madera County areas. 
 
Ms. Rhodes thanked them for the opportunity to be heard.  She appreciates it.  She asked that they consider 
them on their budget this year.  She thanked Mr. Tooley. 
 
Mayor Medellin thanked her for being there. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that if there were no other questions under City Administrator they would continue 
on. 
 
City Council 
Sonia Alvarez, City Clerk stated that the budget shows a little bit of an overall decrease and that is mainly 
due to the Section 125 Benefit Allowance dollars.  Those are the dollars that the City provides to the City 
Council and staff for insurance coverage and it depends on the level of coverage that they select.  The 
reason it is a reduction because for the last fiscal year they allocated full dollars for the four Council seats 
that were on the election ballot.  Ms. Alvarez stated they don’t have an election scheduled in this upcoming 
fiscal year so it’s not necessary to include a full allocation on that. 
 
Ms. Alvarez stated that the Facilities Maintenance fund has an increase.  That is one of internal service 
funds that Mr. Przybyla talked about a little while ago.  It is the services provided as far as the building/the 
Council Chambers are concerned. 
 
Ms. Alvarez stated that is all she has for the City Council budget unless they have questions.  No questions 
were asked. 
 
City Clerk’s Office 
Ms. Alvarez stated they have an overall decrease as well.  She stated there are no new positions in 
Personnel costs but there is an allocation for the Cost of Living increase per the MOU and employment 
agreements.  
 
Ms. Alvarez stated that for the Maintenance and Operations, as she’d mentioned it’s a non-election year so 
they didn’t have to budget any dollars for that. 
 
Ms. Alvarez stated there are other minor line item adjustments. 
 
Ms. Alvarez stated she’d answer any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions for Ms. Alvarez.  No questions were asked. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated he hoped this format was working for the Council.  He stated the detail was included in 
their staff reports and he would be happy to answer any specific detail questions they may have. 
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City Attorney 
Brent Richardson, City Attorney stated their budget remains largely unchanged from 16/17.  He stated there 
are some basic adjustments with Janitorial and that type of thing but it is largely unchanged.   
 
Mr. Richardson stated that one of the things that is not in the budget and he doesn’t believe they included 
it in the numbers yet but they did evaluate the fully loaded cost of providing service to the Housing Authority 
and right now they charge the Housing Authority about $100 an hour for City Attorney time since they are 
a fully separate entity. 
 
Mr. Richardson stated that the $100 is substantially light.  The fully loaded cost should be more in the 
neighborhood of about $193 an hour for City Attorney time and about $60 for paralegal time.  He stated 
they would like to implement a change there.  It would not represent a significant increase in revenues 
because of the limited amount of hours that they do for the Housing Authority.  It will be less than a couple 
of thousand dollars a year at the most.  They need to implement that for the coming budget. 
 
Mr. Richardson stated the Personnel costs are unchanged other than the COLA [Cost of Living Adjustment] 
that the City Clerk already spoken about. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated he is glad that Mr. Richardson brought that up.  He stated that the City Administrator 
met with all of the departments and he was there and all of them were asked how they could increase their 
revenues.  They were asked what they could do to cut back on expenses. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Mr. Richardson evaluating the cost for the Housing Authority is just one example 
of how all of the departments have gone through and looked at how they might be able to enhance revenues 
to help balance the budget. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked if Council had any questions for Mr. Richardson. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he saw that the allocation is $5,000 and asked if it was roughly 50 hours for Housing 
Authority or an hour a week.  He asked if that was a fair assessment. 
 
Mr. Richardson responded affirmatively and stated that it is pretty light.  He stated some weeks there are 
none and some weeks there are a few but that is roughly….  Mr. Richardson stated that for whatever reason 
they have been more lightly utilized in recent years.  He stated that probably five years ago that number 
might have been double that because they were used all the time.  The communication was a lot tighter. 
 
Finance 
Mr. Przybyla stated that the overall status of the budgets for Finance increased 47% and there is a 12% 
savings in Purchasing.  He stated that the reason for the 47% increase is primarily related to the Capital 
Outlay cost related to the Tyler Munis System.  Mr. Przybyla stated they’ve incorporated that and the debt 
service into their budget.  He stated there is no increase to Personnel.  They are roughly status quo on all 
the other budgets.  Those others bumped up the budget because they thought they would service the debt 
through the Finance Department. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there was a savings in Purchasing basically because Becky McCurdy who was at a 
higher step has gone temporarily to be the Tyler Munis Implementation [Project] Manager and Rosa 
Hernandez is stepping in for her temporarily out of class at the bottom level so there is some savings there 
in the General Fund. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that significant cuts or increases in the Maintenance and Operations is $180,000 for 
the lease and 365 for the draw-down of the Capital Outlay for the Tyler Munis.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there is a slight revenue increase for the Lease Allocation because they are servicing 
the lease and charging it out to the various departments.   
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Mr. Przybyla stated that as far as the Capital Outlay costs there is the Tyler Munis and there is also a 
change to debt service which is also related to Tyler Munis. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked if Council had any questions on the Finance budgets. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked about Vehicles and Equipment. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Vehicles and Equipment is an internal service fund charge.  He asked if he was 
referring to a specific line item. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he is asking about the $365,000 that is on the bottom.  It is a little vague. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated it is.  He stated that when they went to the Tyler Munis system they decided that they 
would have vague or basic descriptions for the accounts and they can set up those accounts by projects 
so they have something called project accounting.  Mr. Przybyla stated that Vehicles and Equipment is the 
Capital Outlay line item which is for Tyler Munis. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if all of the $365,000 was for that. 
 
Mr. Przybyla responded affirmatively and stated there is no other Capital Outlay in that dollar amount.  It is 
all Tyler Munis. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked what the Contracted Services are in Maintenance and Operations. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Contracted Services are services that are provided by outside agencies.  In their 
case, it would be things such as fees to the auditors, fees for investment programs, the maintenance 
contract and anything they would need to get a contract for in order for someone to come in and provide 
outside services. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked for an example of outside services. He asked if it was software. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated it could be anything from a copier lease contract to the auditors who go in and audit 
their financial statements each year to somebody who is performing an evaluation for other post-
employment benefit factors.  
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated it was more like evaluations. 
 
Mr. Przybyla agreed and stated that it is typically professional services.  People that come in and provide 
services for them.  Contracted Services is a pretty general area that could encompass anything where there 
is an outside business doing something for them. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked if there were any questions.  No questions were asked. 
 
Human Resources (HR) 
Wendy Silva, Human Resources Director stated their budget is mostly status quo.  There were a few 
changes under Maintenance and Operations.  The biggest change was to Conference and Training of 
$1,800 because she has a new employee completing a degree at Fresno State and they are eligible for 
education reimbursement under their Memorandum of Understanding with the bargaining unit.  Ms. Silva 
stated they will owe them money so they need to put it in the budget.  They know that going forward.  She 
stated that other than that there is not much change in the HR and Risk Management budget. 
 
Ms. Silva stated that at the bottom of that same page, they’ll see the Insurance/Risk Management.  She 
stated that is the Insurance Reserve fund.  There are two main pieces that she would call the big pieces in 
that fund.  One is Contract Legal Services.  This is where they pay for legal services that are not covered 
under one of their insurance programs.  If they have a matter such as the current Lateef matter, they are 
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paying that out of pocket because of the nature of the type of claim that it was.  That goes through that line 
item.  Ms. Silva stated if they need legal services for an employment law type matter, they use outside legal 
counsel because Mr. Richardson is the advisor to the City Council so he cannot also advise the City on 
how to act because he will later be advising the Council on what to do on the matter so they have to separate 
those two.   
 
Ms. Silva stated that some years they spend $100,000.  This year they are going to come close because 
of various issues they had going on.  Some years they might not go past 20 but they budget the full 100 so 
that the money is there if they need to bring in those services.  She stated that usually it is a quick turn 
around when they need to do something of a legal nature. 
 
Ms. Silva stated that the other piece that they have is the Retrospective Adjustments for the Risk 
Management Authority.  Sometimes they get big checks back and sometimes they are writing big checks.  
Every year is a little different.   
 
Ms. Silva stated that two to three years ago they did a workshop for Council on the upcoming Retrospective 
Adjustments and they had some bad years that were coming up.  17/18 is one of those.  They were able to 
make it a little bit less bad.  They were going to owe 650.  She stated that the budget line item is 450.  They 
were supposed to owe about 100,000 in the current year and when the actuaries went in and did their study, 
they had closed some claims, they had some favorable development and they actually got a check back 
for 200,000.  They applied that to this next year that’s going to come online for adjustment to bring the 
liability down so they brought it down from the 650 to the 450 but they will still be on the hook for the 450 
as it stands.  Ms. Silva stated the studies get done late fall.  They can always hope that they have some 
more favorable development.  Those compromises and releases really help and that is why they push for 
those when they talk about these claims in Closed Session. 
 
Ms. Silva asked if there were any questions on the HR Department or the Risk Management fund. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked Council if they had any questions.  No questions were asked. 
 
Police Department 
Steve Frazier, Police Chief stated they are responsible for AB109 which is the 2011 Assembly Bill that 
reduced misdemeanors to felonies and caused people that should be in jail to be released to jail.  Basically, 
they’ve had 40 million funding going back four years reduced to 20 million this year.  Their portion of that 
20 million was $60,000.  Last year, their portion was 62,000 so really there is just a reduction of $2,000.  
That funds a fraction of a position in their SIU. 
 
Chief Frazier stated the CCP funds are another component of AB109 which is funded through Madera 
County Probation and that funds one FTE 100%. 
 
Chief Frazier stated their Schools are two contract employees and two FTEs at 100%. 
 
Chief Frazier stated Housing Authority is one FTE at 100%. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that in PD [Police Department] Admin, they have an overall budget of 263,000 over 
last year’s adopted budget.  They saw some M&O (Maintenance and Operation) increases between PG&E, 
Mail and Professional Dues of about $38,000.   
 
Chief Frazier stated that Salary and Interfund: 225.  He stated 160 of that are vehicles that were held in 
abeyance last year and that bill is coming due this year. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that through their COPS grant which was originally $500,000 funded four officers fully 
for a period has decreased 131,000 over last year.  Chief Frazier stated there is 92 that will be funded this 
year which funds a portion of one officer. 
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Chief Frazier stated that in Animal Control, they reduced $89,000. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that through Measure K they are fully funding 14 positions: one Lieutenant, two 
Sergeants, eight Officers, one Records Clerk, Public Safety Dispatcher, Network Administrator, six police 
vehicles and safety equipment.  He stated that if Council is asked by the community, they are clearly and 
then some funding Measure K.  
  
Chief Frazier asked if they had any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if anyone had questions. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he had a question in regards to the first slide:  Police Services.  He asked 
when it says Salaries/Full Time, is that for an Officer. 
 
Chief Frazier asked which item. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he was looking at a slide that indicates Police Services 10202010.  He 
wasn’t sure if he got that clear.  He asked if that was a salary for every Officer.  The $37,858.  He asked 
what it was he was looking at. 
 
Chief Frazier asked what the dollar figure was.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated $61,803. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that would be the General Fund main PD Admin budget Salaries. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked if that was per Officer and Chief Frazier responded affirmatively.  Council 
Member Rodriguez stated he just wanted to clarify that. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked if one of the eight officers that is going to be funded by Measure K 
is Animal Control. 
 
Chief Frazier responded it was not. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked if they were funding the second Animal Control off the regular 
General budget. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that both Animal Control positions have been a General Fund liability all the way back.  
As it stands right now, that will remain a General Fund liability.  There will be two positions.  They are 
presently trying to identify a viable candidate to hire. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that what they see listed in 17/18 will exhaust all of their Measure K money in 17/18. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated “easily”. 
 
Chief Frazier asked if there was anything else. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if they had any further questions of Chief Frazier.  No questions were asked. 
 
Fire Services 
Jim Forga, Battalion Chief stated that the overall status of the Fire Department budget is relatively 
unchanged. 
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Battalion Chief Forga stated they’ve noted a slight increase of $56,000 in MOU agreement due to the 
increases in salaries and benefit rates.  There was a decrease in the Admin.  It went down 5 9 to 12.01 so 
a little savings there.   
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated they are going to attempt a $250,000 savings for the next fiscal year.  Basically, 
they are able to have salary savings and save a little bit of money because of their hiring practices like PD 
but they do not lower their level of service on the fire engines so they are able to still save that money.   
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated that this year they did pretty well.  They are estimating a $364,000 savings.  
That was due to a number of factors.  The same kind of things.  Salary savings and such. 
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated there were a couple of increases in their Vehicle Maintenance and the Tool 
Replacement funds.  Basically, they are just putting them back to the levels they had in the years past.  
They are adding another fire engine to their fleet and then a new ladder truck is coming next fiscal year so 
they’ll need to budget for the maintenance of those. 
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated the Revenues, the Impact Fees for the Lease and Special Service Fees that 
pay for the new fire truck that they paid on the lease $454,000.  That’s for the new fire truck and then the 
1.3 million that they’ve ordered for the ladder truck in this fiscal year from the Impact Fees also.   
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated that one other place that they are able to do a little bit of revenue is when they 
go out to Federal and State fires.  They charge them the services for their fire trucks and himself going up 
to fires up in the hills.  To date, they’ve made about $39,000 for this fiscal year and possibly $22,000 that 
they’re waiting on. 
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated that overall it’s kind of the same as it was in past years.   
 
Battalion Chief Forga asked if anybody had any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if anyone had questions for Battalion Chief Forga. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that by way of just a brief addition, he is disappointed to report that based on the statement 
of qualifications he’s seen from the architects, it would appear that it is most likely that the new fire station 
will not go online until 2019.  That gives them some additional time to capitalize their financial plan which 
has some advantages.  Obviously, he wanted to see the fire station more quickly but Chief Allen assures 
him he’ll find a place for the ladder truck when it’s delivered. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he was going to ask where they were going to put that truck. 
 
Battalion Chief Forga stated that the one that he already bought for the County is sitting over at Station 6 
right now so theirs is the little brother of that one so they’ll find a slot for it and do a little training. 
 
Planning 
Chris Boyle, Planning Manager stated that the Planning Department budget is essentially unchanged from 
the prior year.  There’s about a $1,500 reduction in the overall department’s expected budget year over 
year although he would note that last year returned about $85,000 and a lot of those monies were related 
to the fact that the department didn’t add the position that was funded by the Council last year until later in 
the fiscal year. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated there are no new positions requested by the department and consequently, Salary remains 
largely unchanged.   
 
Mr. Boyle stated there are no substantive changes to M&O. 
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Mr. Boyle stated that in terms of revenue for the department, there is a proposed fee increase to better 
reflect the cost of services provided.  That would be an approximate 15% fee increase and ultimately, that 
fee increase would provide for an average cost recovery of about 75%.  That is cost recovery for the service 
rendered.  It doesn’t include the day-to-day operations of the department in terms of manning the counter 
and providing general services to the citizens that may call, email or come to the counter. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated that completed his presentation and asked if they had any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that Mr. Boyle said no new positions were requested and asked if that meant he 
didn’t need any new positions. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated that at this point in juncture, the Planning Department is prepared to function at its current 
staffing and do the all the responsibilities of the department over the next fiscal year. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he would add to the discussion.  He stated one of the primary purposes of the Tax Sharing 
Agreement was 1.) to get the new Sphere of Influence and 2.) to put themselves in a position to annex 
additional territory into the City.  Nothing so defines their service delivery plan and their revenue plan as 
land use and so one of the key missions they should be talking about this year once the County follows 
through on their commitment to include the new area in the sphere will be to how aggressively they pursue 
the annexation process. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that is a good point and kind of where he was going.  He thanked Mr. Tooley.  Mayor 
Medellin stated that with that and wanting to expedite and continue to be as efficient as they’ve been and 
he’s seen a lot of great things on the horizon so that is kind of why he was asking about Mr. Boyle’s 
department.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated that in regards to Cost Recovery, they are not at 75% now and asked if that was 
correct. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated they are not.  He stated that their current average cost of recovery for an entitlement is 
60%.  He stated that using the Fee Study that they did at their last Fee Schedule update, he asked his staff 
to give him a brief update and as he’s noted to Councilmen in various meetings, his position would be that 
the Development Services are always on sale in the City and they remain below the average and below the 
median for the 10 cities that they use in the County to look towards measuring their value to the citizen. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he definitely supports the increase as he supports the value. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Mr. Boyle. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if the 15% fee increase was across the board for each fee associated with 
the permit: Conditional Use Permit, Rezone.  He asked Mr. Boyle to elaborate. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated he would defer to the Community Development Director. 
 
Dave Merchen, Community Development Director stated that was a good question.  He stated that the last 
time they did a user fee study for Development Services was in FY 13/14 and it was early in calendar year 
2014 when that schedule was adopted.  They went back through the 17/18 costs and rolled them into the 
spreadsheet; essentially the calculation model that the consultant prepared for them back in 13/14 and that 
generated new cost of service.   
 
Mr. Merchen stated the difference between cost and fees are that the spreadsheet calculates what it costs 
them to provide a service.  So let’s say that a Site Plan Review costs $2,000 of time and materials to 
produce.  The permit fee is set at a percentage of that amount and the previous baseline number, the 
general number, of cost recovery that the Council set in 13/14 was 60%.   
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Mr. Merchen stated the level that is recommended now, the baseline, is 75% but there are a variety of other 
policies that the Council endorsed when they adopted a fee schedule previously and they haven’t changed 
those.  So things like corporate style/developer style permits are set at 90 or 100% of fee recovery.  Things 
like only a large developer is going to need.   
 
Mr. Merchen stated that the mom and pops style Conditional Use Permits [CUPs] are going to be at the 
lower end of those spectrums.   
 
Mr. Merchen stated that the way that they stack multiple permits together, so for instance whenever 
someone needs a Conditional Use Permit in the City they also need a Site Plan Review, they’ve varied 
over the years as to how that’s done.  The today policy is that they pay for the most expensive permit and 
charge 50% of the cost for the second.  They would propose to change that to 100% for the first permit and 
75% for the second which is a little more in line with what they think the consultant suggested that they do 
back in 13/14. 
 
Mr. Merchen stated it is not an across the board increase.  It is a calculated increase according to the time 
and materials expended on each kind of permit. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he raised an interesting point.  That it’s based on an average of time and materials.  
It does not necessarily mean that each permit is going take those same amount of hours.  Sometimes it’s 
increase 20, 30, 50% but they still stick to that same formula of $2,000 and then a portion of that so even if 
they’re getting 60% recovery, it could be as low as 40%. 
 
Mr. Merchen stated that Mayor Medellin as a former member of the Planning Commission knows these 
terms inside and out.   
 
Mr. Merchen stated that a Conditional Use Permit may be for a very large auto dealership or auto mall or it 
might be a Conditional Use Permit for alcohol sales at Applebee’s.  It’s easy to say it’s a CUP so it should 
be $2,000.  What they have identified is that they have tiers of CUPs.  They have easy ones which might 
be 50% of cost versus the larger more likely to be corporate style CUP which is going to be at the higher 
end of that range.  They are absolutely based on averages rather than trying to specifically calculate on an 
individual permit by permit basis what the cost is and required deposits and paybacks and those sorts of 
things. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that Mr. Boyle mentioned comparison to other cities and asked where 
the City stands as far as the rates for those fees. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated they are still much lower than many of the municipalities that they use as examples.  As 
an example and in support of the Community Development Director, the median for a Conditional Use 
Permit in the 10 cities they use as comparison was $4,638.  Mr. Boyle stated that with the fee schedule 
adjusted, their use permits will be 2,225 so they are talking half of the regular price.  Similarly with their fee 
adjusted, a Tentative Tract Map will be 4,550 and the average cost will be 8,789 for other municipalities.  
They do feel they have a more than competitive advantage over the competitor; the adjoining municipalities 
within their geographic range. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that also presents an interesting problem for them because every industrial project 
proponent who comes in wants a deal.  They want some reduction of the fee structure and if they are 
already at half the price of everyone else, where do they go.  He stated that a lot of times unless they get a 
deal, unless they can experience the win, they don’t want to play so he’s almost inclined to recommend to 
them that they go to full fee recovery and then they’ll institute a let’s make a deal system. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that maybe this is not an easy question to answer but asked if they are 
already at the very bottom of these fees then why aren’t businesses jumping at something like this especially 
in Industrial and Commercial zones. 
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Mr. Tooley stated he could answer that question.  He stated it is because fees don’t tip the scale.   
 
Council Member Oliver asked if this would represent roughly about an $80,000/$85,000 increase in revenue 
with those adjustments.  
 
Mr. Boyle responded affirmatively.  He stated that with that adjustment although he notes they are talking 
about a 75% cost recovery for their entitlements if they look at the bottom line, the department when it’s 
said and done has about a 50% cost recovery.  When they look at all their salaries and M&O versus the 
revenue generated by the department, they are almost spot on at 50%. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if it would behoove them, as Mr. Tooley suggested, to maybe look at 100% 
cost recovery with that 25% wiggle room on some incentive program or those representing a certain number 
of job creation or a million different markers. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that this evening they are making a defined recommendation to them on fee recovery.  
This thought process about maybe going to full fee recovery and develop some incentive programs, that’s 
an internal discussion that is taking place and in fact they are looking at best practices of other cities.  He 
stated they might anticipate a future discussion on that. 
 
Mr. Merchen stated there was one final clarification.  He stated the revenue estimates that are shown in the 
Planning Department’s budget do anticipate an update to the fee schedule but only nine months of that fee 
schedule so they are anticipating some time to prepare a formal schedule, circulate it among the 
development community and then have a discussion back in front of the Council.  So should they choose 
to incorporate a modified system or incentive based system, there’s time to do that. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked Mr. Boyle if any of those fee increases were projected in their outgoing 
years in his budget. 
 
Mr. Boyle asked if Council Member Rodriguez could re-frame his question.  
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked if any of the projected fees or potential fees that they can increase were 
projected in this budget. 
 
Mr. Boyle responded affirmatively and stated they are accounted for as the Community Development 
Director just noted.  Nine months of that fee schedule update is reflected in revenue. 
 
Building Department 
Steve Woodworth, Chief Building Official stated the status is basically unchanged for the years 16/17 and 
17/18.  He has a final 16/17 estimate of 830,000.  He has no additions to his personnel.  Salaries will remain 
the same for the upcoming year.  There are no substantive changes in Maintenance and Operations. 
 
Mr. Woodworth stated they’ve had a good year.  They’ve been fortunate to have a lot of solar.  The solar 
industry is big right now.  
 
Mr. Woodworth stated they hope to get some tentative maps in the future from local builders and hopefully 
that turns into more single family dwellings in the City which they hope will increase their revenue for next 
year. 
 
Mr. Woodworth stated that was the end of his presentation and he would answer any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Mr. Woodworth. 
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Council Member Oliver asked that he elaborate on the Contracted Services line item.  They budgeted for 
about 200,000. 
 
Mr. Woodworth stated that Contracted Services is for their outside Plans Examiner who is also the Interim 
Fire Marshal.  He does a lot of their plan checks.  He also does Business License inspections and fire 
hydrant, fire flow and that type of thing that CalFire doesn’t do for them.  They are more on the preventive 
side of Fire instead of the suppression side.  That is also for if he needs to consult with an outside structural 
engineer or any of those contracted services for large commercial projects that they don’t do in-house. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated that kind of piggy-backing off of Mayor Medellin’s question to Mr. Boyle with 
regard to their staffing levels.  Council Member Oliver asked when they look at the demand for, when they 
look at uptake and possible construction and new development, what is he foreseeing internally as far as 
having the staff resources to attend to those needs. 
 
Mr. Woodworth stated that currently they are holding their own.  He stated that when that time comes, they’ll 
talk to the Council about any changes in personnel levels. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any more questions for Mr. Woodworth.  No questions were asked. 
 
Engineering 
Keith Helmuth, City Engineer stated that overall, their expenditures for this year are increasing by about 
1.3%.  He thinks he corrected that in a later version of this, about 1.1%.   
 
Mr. Helmuth stated their revenues have a proposed increase of about 5.5% while salaries and benefits are 
reduced by 3.8%.  
 
Mr. Helmuth stated there is a proposed increase of 72,000 or about 54% in Maintenance and Operations.  
He stated he would go into more detail on those in a couple of slides later. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated that there are significant personnel cost changes.  They’ve removed one unfilled full-
time Engineering position and what they are doing to take up the slack is that they are bringing in a part-
time drafter.  What they’ve found is that a couple of the Engineers are spending a fair amount of time on 
drafting so what they do is give them that time back and bring in a part-time drafter.  That person is a 
temporary design drafter not being hired directly by the City and what that works out to is an overall budget 
savings of about $40,000-$50,000 in the next year. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated that for significant cuts, one of the things he noticed was that fuel costs went up fairly 
significantly in the last year.  It’s minor.  It’s like $1,500 to $2,000 but it kind of surprised him. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated they are paying for that temporary drafter through Contracted Services.  They are going 
from 28,000 in 16/17 to 75,000 in 17/18.  He also added a little bit more training time in there. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated one of the measures they are taking to increase revenues is the increased fees for cost 
recovery.  That’s increasing modestly.  He thinks it’s around $7,500 to $10,000.   
 
Mr. Helmuth stated they also have a COLA adjustment on any other sources that are out there. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated that as a department they really don’t have proposed Capital Outlays but they do a lot 
of the Capital Projects so what they see in the Capital Improvement Program is pretty much what they do 
in terms of Capital Outlays and those are usually on the order of millions of dollars per year. 
 
Mr. Helmuth stated that was his presentation and he would answer any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions about the Engineering Department budget.  No question 
were asked. 
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Public Works 
Dave Randall, Public Works Operations Director stated Public Works has seven working divisions.  There 
are about 20+ budgets within there. 
 
Public Works - Graffiti 
Mr. Randall stated that the Graffiti budget is the only budget that really kind of impacts the General Fund.  
Everything else is Enterprise or Inter-service funds or has its own revenue source. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there aren’t any changes in revenues.  Everything being transferred into this fund is the 
same as it was last year.  There are about $144,000 that they received from Gas Tax, Water, Sewer and 
Solid Waste. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there are no new positions being requested.  There is a minor decrease in Salary 
Expenses due to a small change in how personnel costs are allocated within their budgets. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is an increase in Maintenance and Operations due to the vehicle depreciation.  He 
stated they heard from other departments that it was deferred last year. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there are no Capital Expenditures or debt service in this budget. 
 
Public Works - Streets 
Mr. Randall stated that Streets, the other portion of Public Works that is in the General Fund, does not 
actually impact the General Fund balance because it has revenue that is brought in.  He stated that in the 
slide they may see a $2,000 actual increase.  They have to fix that part.  Basically, for every dollar they 
expend, they get it from another source so it will come out as zero in the end.  A big major portion of that 
comes from Gas Tax.  Measure T, Solid Waste, Water fund and Sewer fund also contribute for repairs to 
the roads that they cut up.   
 
Mr. Randall stated there no new positions being requested.  Salary expenses have slightly decreased again.  
There is no substantive change in the Maintenance and Operation.   
 
Mr. Randall stated there is a $682,000 allocation for a project.  Measure T has supplemental funds of about 
$340,000 that they receive every year.  They wait every other year to do a project to have a significant 
enough size to get better bid prices.  This is a year when they will be doing a project.  It will be for local 
street maintenance.  They haven’t selected the exact project yet but it will come back to Council for 
approval. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is a new proposal for a water truck for $65,000 in Capital Expenditures.  He stated 
they’ve been watching these costs and they found it will be more cost effective to purchase the water truck 
than the cost of leasing them as they do now. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is no debt service in this budget. 
 
Mr. Randall stated he would answer any questions. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked that as far as this budget forecast and in future budgets are they able to 
anticipate any additional monies made available by SB1 the Transportation Funding Bill.  He knows that 
there are some estimates provided when they did their preliminary calculations at around 2 million or 2.2 
million that could potentially be available to the City of Madera.  He knows there are very different revenue 
sources that would come from but asked if that was used at all in this calculation. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that they will have some money part of next year.  They won’t have the full amount.  He 
thinks they don’t start collecting monies until November.  They will be coming back to Council probably at 
mid-year to go over a list of projects that have to be approved by Council and made part of the project in 



 
   
 
 

 
City of Madera  City Council Minutes 
205 West Fourth Street  June 19, 2017 
Madera, CA  93637                                                                                                                     Page 19 of 51 

order to be eligible but the State hasn’t even drafted those rules yet so they are still learning what they have 
to do.  There is a significant amount of money that is involved in that additional new Gas Tax.  The MSMR 
dollars.  Where exactly they are going to spend that will sort of be a game.  Probably some of it will be 
changing what they call different projects and moving monies around but it is new money that will help them 
with some of the improvements on their streets. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated that he thinks in the future when there is more clarity there and more definition 
from the State, he would appreciate an update.  Not necessarily a workshop, but a department update as 
to how those monies will impact this department in the City for the better. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that he and Mr. Helmuth are watching that with bated breath.  They can’t wait. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that they approved M&O last year so he’ll have to remind him what that was but 
under Other Maintenance Supplies they were at about 40,000ish or so.  Last year they approved almost 
$670,000 and this year it’s almost $680,000 under Other Maintenance Supplies.  He asked Mr. Randall to 
be specific on that. 
 
Mr. Randall stated the aggregate fund includes things such as their patch material, all their materials, all 
their various supplies, contracting out for patches and things.  He stated it adds up quick.  It is a lot but that 
is the normal material cost of performing…. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated it is materials rather than itemize each and every little thing that it is and Mr. Randall 
responded affirmatively. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated it was sort of a catch all. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if it is cheaper right now to continue on with the Contracted Services and 
positions that they are incapable of fulfilling because of experience or what not.  He knows that earlier this 
year the Council had approved to contract out services for a position that they had yet to fulfill.  Noticing 
that they are no longer seeking that position, he asked if they were going to honor the freeze and maintain 
the contracted position or ……. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that in the General Fund, they don’t have any of those positions.  That’s in the Sewer 
fund which is an Enterprise fund so it wouldn’t be applicable.  There’s a pretty good work pool for 
maintenance workers.  Where they have a hard time is getting certified Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Operators and certified licensed Water workers. 
 
Council Member Rigby thanked him for the clarification. 
 
Parks and Community Services 
Mary Anne Seay, Parks and Community Services Director stated that they did it a little bit differently but 
are capturing basically the same information.  She stated she would dive into the details but this is kind of 
the overall position of the Parks and Community Services Department for 17/18. 
 
Ms. Seay stated the requested budget represents an 8.8% increase in General Fund support over 16/17 
levels. 
 
Ms. Seay stated revenues are slightly down and she will touch on that in a future slide.  She thinks they are 
going to have some good news there. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that because of the Cost of Living increases and step and column increase in salaries and 
benefits, the 2.7% increase actually represents a reduction in part-time staff hours.   
 
Ms. Seay stated that Maintenance and Operations is up 11.9%.  She stated she would touch on that soon.  
Same with Capital Outlay where they are requesting $20,000. 
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Ms. Seay stated they are not requesting any additional staff at this time and the 2.7 increase represents 
the Cost of Living raise expected in July in addition to any step and column increases or longevity pay that 
is expected in this upcoming fiscal year. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that the most significant increases to M&O and this is almost to the penny are $179,880.  
All from five major places.  One is Facility’s Maintenance increase of $45,000.  That’s an Interfund charge 
as is the charge for Vehicle Repairs which will be going up $9,600.  Ms. Seay stated that Council may recall 
they suspended the vehicle replacement schedule last year and they’ve put that back into place so that 
impacts Parks and Community Services by $56,721. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that Contracted Services – Janitorial was increased by $35,000 over last year and PG&E 
is expected to increase $33,500.  All of those things really fall outside of the boundaries of their control.  
What was internal to their control, they found about $18,000 worth of cost savings so they reduced that 
increase of $179,000 down to somewhere around the $162,000 mark. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that in regards to measures to increase revenues, they are in a perpetual hunt for outside 
resources including small grants from PG&E to larger grants from CDBG and other such grants.  They cost 
allocate their staff time to some in some cases and in others like the Senior grant, for example, they got 
mostly pays for the part-time temporary staff at Frank Bergon [Senior Center] and PAC as well as some 
full-time staff. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that in regards to Fee for Service Contracts, this is where she said they might have a little 
bit of good news.  They have a Fee for Service Contract with Madera Unified School District.  Presently, 
they pay them $147,000 annually to provide after school recreation programs.  That’s going to continue into 
the next year.  She stated Council may recall that in April they passed a contract with Madera Unified School 
District for Parks to provide recreation and enrichment programs to foster and homeless youth.  That 
program was a pilot program.  It was for $60,000.  It’s worked really well.  Both sides are interested in 
entering into an agreement for the upcoming year.  Those of them that were at the Realtors Association 
meeting last week saw 90+ kids in a camp.  That was paid for with these program dollars.  Moving forward, 
what they are telling them presently is that they should expect $80,000 for the upcoming year at the low 
end.  Obviously, that would mean an increase in M&O and more likely in part-time salaries.  They do also 
anticipate at least 50% of that would be relief to the General Fund.   
 
Ms. Seay stated this the second year they’ve used Gas Tax to pay for median island maintenance.  As she 
mentioned in her presentation last year, this is not a sustainable way to use Gas Tax.  It is helping relieve 
the burden to the General Fund in the current climate and they are electing to do that again this year.   
 
Ms. Seay stated there was an asterisks there that said, “Not reflected in the proposed budget” because she 
had it all detailed and then she realized she’d taken it out, so she apologized for that. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that she wanted to mention that their staff analyzed the Master Fee Schedule to figure out 
where they might be able to increase fees and unlike the Planning Department that has fees of $2,200, 
they are charging kids $1.50 to go swimming.  She stated she, Mr. Tooley, Mr. Przybyla, Business Manager 
Mark Etheridge and people in her department have had repeated discussions about full cost recovery in 
some programs and what they found when they compared themselves to eight different jurisdictions both 
small and big cities around that were right in that middle, they’re not charging less than other people and 
they’re not charging more than other folks in most instances so they are going to do analysis on whether or 
not they can increase some of their fee based programs.  This isn’t going to save the General Fund by any 
stretch but it’s a philosophy that they’ve always maintained that they have a balance of fee based programs 
and free programming and it may be that the climate is such that they have to increase their fee based 
programs and those things are yet to be determined. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they are requesting $20,000 in one-time Capital Expenditure for playground replacement 
equipment.  The only two playgrounds they have in the City that are currently under warranty, she’ll give 
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them two guesses, is the one at Centennial Park that just went in in November and the one at Knox Park 
that went in in October.  Other than that, all of their playgrounds are out of warranty and so when a slide 
breaks or is vandalized and they have to replace it, it’s been the practice of making it safe by boarding it up 
but then they don’t get the slide until they have resources to pay for it so they are requesting $20,000 this 
year to make some of those repairs throughout the City. 
 
Ms. Seay stated there are no changes to the debt service to the [John Wells] Youth Center.  They have this 
upcoming fiscal year and then the following year and then they will be finished with that.  That is $194,000 
that comes out of the Parks DIFF every June so they will be excited to get that paid off pretty soon. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that she and Mr. Tooley had a pretty lengthy conversation about strategies for moving 
forward with the budget and he asked that she include these slides that are not necessarily following the 
trend of what other people were discussing.  She asked what some of the things are that they could cut or 
scale back on because it is a difficult time moving forward and over the next five years.  She knows they 
know this.  She’s preaching to the choir a little bit.  She stated if they offer a program, a service or a 
maintenance activity it’s because they feel there is value to it so any recommended cut know that it comes 
at a lot of pain for people in their department because they feel there’s value in what they provide so if they 
hear her offer something up know that it’s not done so happily. 
 
Ms. Seay stated these are not recommendations in as much as it is information so that they can all be on 
the same page and move forward together.   
 
Ms. Seay stated that the 4th of July is an expensive day.  They can see from the expenditures it is $58,000 
for one day.  People often ask if they get the fireworks paid for and the answer has always been from her 
a qualified yes.  The fireworks cost $25,000 and they raise about $30,000.  That leaves about, give or take 
on the year in terms of how much they expense or how much resource they bring back in, $28,000 in hard 
General Fund costs every year to have a one day event.  Ms. Seay stated there is value in that one day 
event.  When they add into that the somewhere between 5 and 600 staff hours throughout the course of 
the year that could be spent on maybe revenue generating activities or something else it becomes an even 
more expensive day and they haven’t quantified that because there are so many different position levels 
from her and even the Purchasing Manager to the Business Manager, a Park Worker I and a part time 
Recreation Leader so it’s hard to really quantify and get Council an exact hard number on what the soft 
cost would be for that but it is an expensive day. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that additionally they have the Spring Eggstravaganza.  She knows it’s near and dear to 
people’s hearts.  It’s a half day program; basically an Easter egg hunt and after revenue and sponsorships, 
that’s a $9,000 morning so that is something for their consideration. 
 
Ms. Seay stated their support of Fiesta in the Park, again they recognize this is not fun, these are place 
making events but together the Fiesta in the Park, the Spring Eggstravaganza and the 4th of July could net 
about a $40,000 net positive to the General Fund. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked what those costs are associated to when she mentions Fiesta in the 
Park and that other Extravaganza.  He asked what they are alluded to.  He asked what they are attributed 
to. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that for Fiesta in the Park they would purchase some equipment and materials to take out 
to the event whether it be for little organized games, family fun games or whatever they are doing but the 
bulk of the resources are spent on staff time. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated staff time kind of like the 4th of July. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it gets really expensive because it’s a holiday and those full-time people are getting paid 
double and a half time. 
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Council Member Rodriguez stated contract those services out. 
 
Ms. Seay asked contract the services for the…. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he is asking if it is cheaper to contract services out for that day. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that she’s never considered that.  She doesn’t know if somebody… 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked that they have to pay holiday pay for that day and Ms. Seay responded 
affirmatively. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he was just throwing it out there.  He stated he wasn’t sure what those 
other fees were for.  He asked if that was mainly for her staff. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it’s the cost of doing business.  A lot of it is staff time. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated that has to be at least a 12 or 14 hour day when they consider the golf 
tournament and the fireworks show. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it’s 17.   
 
Ms. Seay stated the potential elimination of some programs or reduction of program hours would also be 
on the table. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they did reduce Senior Services time by an hour or two some time ago and they were able 
to increase that back.   
 
They have an Adult Day Care Program at 6th and I Street right now and when they back out the revenues 
and full-time staff, they could have a General Fund savings of $70,000.  Presently, they are serving 10 
clients at that program.  That’s about $7,000 per client.  She stated nobody in the City recognizes the value 
of that more than the team who work on that program.  She stated that for the 10 people that are there, it’s 
important.   
 
Ms. Seay stated balance that with eliminating drop-in after school recreation at Pan Am Community Center 
where the cost of more like half of that for the entire year where they are serving maybe 40, 50, 60 a day 
maybe 20, 30 depends on the day it balances out to just a significant difference in cost per program 
participant recognizing fully that the services are very different.   
 
Ms. Seay stated it’s just some things that Mr. Tooley asked her to have Council think about. 
 
Ms. Seay stated she would answer any questions. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he had to say that the amount of money that is spent for the 4th of July… 
He’s looking at those numbers and that’s pretty amazing on what an hour of fireworks can really cost.  As 
far as the other programs she mentioned, he knows that they have a lot of value in the community and not 
something that he can recommend today but at least consider that maybe they scale back on that show so 
that she doesn’t really cut other services that are more important that go more than just a day; possibly a 
year.  He stated those numbers are pretty high but he understands the value that it brings to the community.  
He doesn’t know how long it’s been going on.  He’s been going to it the last seven or eight years but he 
doesn’t know prior to that if this was a tradition that Madera continually has.  Council Member Rodriguez 
asked if Mr. Tooley could answer that for him.  He asked if that is something that they’ve always had in 
Madera. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it was a long standing tradition.  It used to be held at Lions Town and Country Park and it 
was suspended for some time.  She understands it was budget concerns.  It was brought back the year 
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before she came in 2007 so she thinks the July 4th 2007 was the first year they had it out at the golf course 
and it’s been there every year since. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that all staff aren’t there for 17 hours but some are and the golf tournament really is the 
largest funding mechanism to the evening so to cut one part without the other is really not…. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked how many attendees are present at this function.  He stated he’s not 
trying to throw the presentation off but he just brought a lot of interest. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they estimate, based on the amount of cars that are parked in the parking lot in the evening, 
around 5,000 people come out from all over the area.  A lot of neighboring communities have stopped with 
their fireworks show.  She stated ours has gotten a good name for the fireworks themselves quite excellent 
so they see a lot of people coming from out of town.  They like that. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked if the City has imposed a parking fee or something like that in the past.  
He asked if that is something that’s normal. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they’ve talked about that and they’ve landed on it being an extreme safety hazard because 
everybody doesn’t trickle out.  They wait until the sun goes down and they already work with CHP and PD 
to…..  Sometimes traffic is actually backed up onto the [Highway] 99 so if they were to take parking, they 
are concerned that they would back traffic up even further and for the $10,000 they may get they didn’t feel 
it was worth the liability.  They’ve talked about it recently and they can certainly revisit it again and they’d 
be happy to listen to people’s opinions.  Ms. Seay stated that she thinks the best way to do it if they were 
to go that route would be to hire a third party that has that experience of getting people in and out quickly 
and safely versus some of their part-time staff who don’t have that parking experience. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that is something they can revisit later.  He just wanted to ask a couple 
of questions in regards to those numbers she presented. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they’ve also considered charging a gate fee.  They spoke to the Chamber of Commerce 
in Kerman and they charge a gate fee.  The problem is the golf course is open and people can just come 
from the almond orchards.  They can come from all directions so it’s tough to charge a fee with that layout. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he agreed.  The 4th of July Spectacular is such a great opportunity to 
showcase the City and kind of the same level as the Pomegranate Festival and any time you bring 5,000 
to a venue or a facility maybe there’s some opportunities for additional exhibitors or rent booth space or 
something to that extent.  He likes the questions as far as future maybe community partnerships whether it 
be with service clubs or the Chamber [of Commerce] or others that have stepped into those community 
event roles because it certainly is eye opening to see that $17,000 cost figure. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if they were doing an analysis in regards to Facility Rental Fees, to see if 
they’re in line or if they should be looking to increase fees for building rentals or to utilize the fields. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they look at that on an annual basis and they do it in a number of ways.  They look at their 
trend lines and they look at neighboring cities to see what they’re doing.  There have been times when 
they’ve actually reduced rental rates at locations to try to drive more rentals because they were sort of 
outpricing themselves to rent the Pan Am Community Center so they dropped the rental rates and saw 
more people take advantage of that opportunity.  They analyze it on a pretty regular basis and they try to 
keep it on that borderline of being as high as they can go without driving people away. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if for the John Wells Youth Center they’re not anticipating any rental revenues 
of the facility during this upcoming year. 
 
Ms. Seay stated they don’t have very many.  One of the challenges to that is they have programs going on 
pretty much all the time.  It really is coming to fruition so it’s a difficult discussion but they have had some 
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in the past mainly by way of partnerships with the school district or [Valley] Children’s Hospital; those kind 
of things. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated school dances and things like that and Ms. Seay responded affirmatively. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked how far the $20,000 Capital expenditure would get them regarding the 
deferred maintenance required at the park’s facilities as far as those repairs.  He asked if that was going to 
benefit one or two playgrounds or is it really going to move the meter for those facilities. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it would move the meter for now but recognizing that is on-going.  The slides have been 
vandalized before.  Now, she thinks it pretty well gets them full slide replacement and there are a couple of 
other apparati that need to be replaced that aren’t slides but that would pretty well get all of their tot lots 
and play features back to their original condition so to speak. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he and Ms. Seay have had extensive conversations going back to when he got on 
the Council and coming from the retail side of it cost recovery for him was if it cost $1 and he sells it for 
$1.38 he breaks even so the budget at the City where they are well below cost was a big question.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated he’s had a lot of conversations about that but Ms. Seay had explained to him the 
community service in the title Parks and Community Service and so when she talks about the value he 
doesn’t think there’s anybody up there that would disagree that there’s not a program that they don’t have 
in place right now that does not carry so much value in their community from the seniors to the meeting 
they had about a week or so ago where the John Wells [Youth] Center was packed from kids indoors and 
kids swimming outdoors so there is a lot of value and they do understand completely that it comes with a 
cost.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated that at the same time Ms. Seay had stated that revenues are down and expenditures 
are up and it looks like an 888,000ish or so in revenue and for 4.89 million in expenditures or 12% of the 
budget.  That’s a large number when they are sitting there this evening to try to fill a million dollar hole.  
Mayor Medellin stated he agrees with his colleagues.  He thinks it’s a conversation to have and to really 
look at meticulously and find out where they can possibly raise revenue.  He thinks he would like to go there 
first.  It would be great to raise revenue before they make some cuts to the community and that value that 
they have.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated they had the conversation about the 4th of July golf tournament, The Spectacular.  
People come from miles around from neighboring cities to Madera and it’s hard to quantify what that value 
is.  There is no charge because it’s the community service and it’s a wonderful, wonderful day but as a 
Council they are put up there to make difficult decisions and he thinks this may be an avenue that they’re 
going to have to pursue in the short term.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated he’s not telling her anything she doesn’t already know.  She and her team do 
everything constantly to raise revenue but $1.50 to $1.65 or $1.75 is not going to get them where they need 
to be.  They will continue to work together.  They will continue to hear from her on some other ideas and 
suggestions to fill this deficit that they so desperately need to fill and quick. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that it was very heartwarming to go to the John Wells [Youth] Center in the summer 
and see so many kids enjoying the amenities they have as well as Knox Park and at Pan Am [Community] 
Center and things of that nature.  It’s great.  It really, really is. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions of Ms. Seay. 
 
Council Member Holley stated they talked about the Extravaganza for the 4th of July.  He’s been dealing 
with this 4th of July issue over 20 years.  He loves it.   
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Council Member Holley stated he’s been going every year for the last 20 years when it was at [Lions] Town 
and Country Park.  He was so fortunate to have a little trailer to where they called it a hayride.    
 
Council Member Holley stated sometimes they look at things that are for kids.  He knows they talk about 
cost efficient but when they try to inspire into their kids what can they do to make their community happy 
and the way they do that is make kids happy.  Council Member Holley stated as they moved from [Lions] 
Town and Country Park out to the golf course that doubled in value.   
 
Council Member Holley stated it brought on to safety as well.  They had kids all around neighborhoods 
shooting off fireworks all over town.  Fire hazards and fire things breaking out.  When they moved it out 
there they saved a lot of hazard things going on because everyone was there shooting off their fireworks.  
Police and farmers didn’t have to run all over town to put out major fires that were really occurring.  So they 
talk about safety and they talk about things that value.  Those are values.  If they didn’t do that, house 
caught on fire.  There’s money spent.  They don’t look at those little things but there’s money spent out of 
somebody’s pocket because of a fire hazard.   
 
Council Member Holley stated they’re looking at little pinching pennies and dollars of what they could save 
but they are already saving.  They are already saving a whole lot for kids coming out at a one….  He had 
family come from all out of town just to be out there that one particular day.   
 
Council Member Holley stated they bring a lot of value to the City plus they bring revenues for those who 
come to spend money.  It may not be on the top dollar but as their businesses, they’re still gaining.   
 
Council Member Holley stated sometimes they want to figure out how they can cut and save but they’re 
really not cutting and saving.  They’re really costing themselves when they do those kinds of things; when 
they take out certain programs or jack up the prices.  When they jack it up, you eliminate other people.   
 
Council Member Holley stated that as Mayor Medellin said they need to really look at it as a whole and see 
what the avenues are and what the value is for their community. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated she looked at the Parks and Community Services Swimming Pool 
budget under Maintenance and Operation Other New Equipment.  She knows their swimming pool is used 
by Madera Unified [School District], by swim lessons, open swim and they have party rentals there.  She 
stated she didn’t see it there and asked if a diving board is in the CDBG funds.  They haven’t had a diving 
board at that swimming pool in a few years if she’s not mistaken. 
 
Ms. Seay stated it is the second year they are absent a diving board and with the $430,000 awarded in last 
year’s CDBG appropriation they are going to replace the diving board. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he was thinking about revenues.  They go to different places and they 
highlight their gift stores.  They sell official City logos.  For senior citizens they might have item/products 
that seniors could use.  They might want to buy.  They have people coming from other cities, they might 
want to bring home a gift so that might be something they can think about; a gift center. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated to increase revenues and Council Member Robinson responded affirmatively. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated they talked about increasing revenue.  She asked if there were open 
office spaces on the bottom floor of the John Wells [Youth] Center that they could rent out and bring in 
some revenue. 
 
Ms. Seay stated there are.  They had co-locators in all four offices; Police Department being one and one 
by one they’ve all vacated.  With more and more programming that they have, the after school programming, 
they find themselves with a need for those offices but part of the reduction in revenue is about order of 
magnitude $8,000 from RSG for the year to rent the two offices that they vacated. 
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Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked if they only have two offices that they can rent. 
 
Ms. Seay stated that they have two offices that they could potentially rent. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Ms. Seay.  No questions were asked. 
 
Grants 
Ivette Iraheta, Grants Administrator stated that this section of the budget represents the CDBG funds.  
There aren’t major changes in CDBG.  As Mr. Przybyla mentioned earlier it is money, money out.  She 
stated they plan their budget consistent with their allocations on a yearly basis.  They are not making 
changes to personnel.  Ms. Iraheta stated that the only increases are the standard salary and fringe raises 
that have already been approved. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they will see some increases in Expenditures under 17/18 particularly in the Capital 
Outlay budget percentage and that has to do with carryover and Entitlement and Expenditures from 
previous years.  That is why they see significant expenditures in some of the line items. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated that CDBG allocations were out last week, had released their numbers and their overall 
increase was about $44,500 and as Council approved, that will be proportionately distributed across the 
activities.  An example of that is before them is about a 5 to 6% increase; sidewalks projects, pedestrian 
safety.  Hopefully that helps out different programs budgets a little bit this coming year.   
 
Ms. Iraheta stated that in Administration the increase is $8,000 so they will definitely make good use of that 
in this year’s budget. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated that was all she had for them under this section. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Ms. Iraheta.  No questions were asked. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they skipped over the Graffiti. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Mr. Randall covered that Graffiti budget.  He stated he is glad Mayor Medellin 
brought that up because they just talked about the CDBG budgets and as Mr. Randall indicated there’s 
really no change in the Graffiti budget from last year to this year but in the prior year they lost the CDBG 
funding so it’s just one of those things that is a step backward for them from the loss that they had of CDBG 
funds that helped to fund operational expenses including Graffiti. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that one of the trend lines that they all need to pay attention to is that increasingly it can 
be the restrictive nature of uses of Block Grant funds and their inability to use that to support the General 
Fund. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that in fact the next budget that they are going to hear, Neighborhood Revitalization, 
initially that department used to be paid for by 1/3 Redevelopment, 1/3 Block Grant and 1/3 General Fund.  
It is now 100% General Fund. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that just to be clear, the budget in Public Works is just for the graffiti removal.  
[Neighborhood] Revitalization does a lot of work in the public side of it, programs for the school, etc.  The 
cost that Council saw was just for the actual removal of the graffiti off the walls, etc. 
 
Neighborhood Revitalization 
Viola Rodriguez, Neighborhood Preservation Supervisor stated that the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Department is projected to see a slight increase in the overall budget. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that starting with the Revenue category, Code Enforcement as Mr. Tooley brought 
out, in the past was funded in part by 1/3 Redevelopment, CDBG and General Fund but since two of those 
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have gone away it’s now totally dependent on the General Fund.  She stated she’d like to point out at this 
time that in 2010 revenues from outside sources began reducing the level of General Funding and a major 
portion of the revenues were due to the foreclosure crisis. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that the next slide shows a significant amount of revenues that was received during 
the past seven years and of course a majority of this was from fines and penalties and also the foreclosure 
but because the foreclosure is slowing down they will see a decrease in revenues.  She stated they will 
continue to see revenues from the registration fees, fines and penalties, the weed abatement and of course 
their grant programs will still be the same for the vehicles and the waste tire. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated the next one is a hard one.  They will see a 22% increase.  That is because of 
personnel costs going up and also because they are asking Council to consider adding two full-time 
positions to the department.  They have been short-staffed since 2012 and this is due to resignations and 
retirements within the department and since then they have been running with a staff of five.  What that 
means is that they’ve divided the City into seven service areas among five staff members so that means 
that there are two staff members that are carrying a double load.   
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that looking at the anticipated Rental Housing Program if that is approved they will 
be looking at doing 1,000 inspections a year so that is going to add to the total caseload that they are 
currently carrying per staff member. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that Neighborhood Watch have continued with their meetings which has increased 
citizen engagement so that too has resulted in expectations that are relative to property maintenance 
standards so this is going to also increase the calls that they’ve had for service. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that in Maintenance and Operations, they see a decrease of 5%.  No substantial 
changes.  She stated they did go through a line by line item with Mr. Przybyla and his staff and they did 
make some changes to their budget.  $9,000 or 3% was attributed to the foreclosure reduction. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that in summary their department is going to continue to be vigilant in the foreclosure 
activity, Code Enforcement, neighborhood outreach activities and if it is approved the Rental Housing 
Inspections program. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated she would entertain any questions. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if one of the two full-time staff positions was going to be specifically for the 
new ordinance or was that something that they will continue to split that up amongst those that are already 
in the office and everybody is going to take a bite out of the pie. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that they are going to put one person to a service area and that will include whatever 
rental housing inspections that are in that area will be inspected by that person. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if the department would still operate in a five service area or does she feel it 
will go to seven. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated they will continue with their seven service areas with, if it’s approved, one member 
for each area. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that the ordinance stipulated that these were homes that were built prior 
to 1970 and asked if she would say that there are some service areas that probably don’t have that much 
case load and if so would that then help the other service areas.  He asked if they can use these individuals 
to go to different service areas. 
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Ms. Rodriguez replied affirmatively.  She stated their service areas are divided up according to the CDBG 
areas and there may be less inspections on the City’s west side so that person would be used to help out 
in other areas. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked if that in turn would alleviate the case load that they currently have or 
that they anticipate to have with that ordinance. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez replied affirmatively. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he was looking at their revenues and expenditures just like he had stated for their 
Parks [and Community Services] Department.  They have $1.5 million in expenditures and almost $900,000 
in revenue.  He stated that is a big deficit of $700,000 or so.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated one of the suggestions made that evening was a soft hiring freeze.  He stated that 
with the additional two employees and still trying to figure out cost recovery….  He stated he certainly 
supports the rental inspection but maybe like Council Member Rigby was alluding to he asked if these two 
new people would not be specifically doing the 20 inspections a week which is about what she had said.  
Mayor Medellin asked if they would continue to help out in Code Enforcement and if so where does that put 
them on increased revenue versus expenditures.  He asked if they were going to add more to their 
expenditures.  He asked if he is getting cost recovery with two new employees. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that as far as the inspections are concerned, that will be divided up among all seven 
equally. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated no one particular group, one or two people will be doing inspections.  He stated all 
seven would be doing weed abatement, mattresses in alleys and rental inspections.  They would all….. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez replied affirmatively.  She stated that everyone would be assigned a certain area and 
whether there is code enforcement for public nuisance or other issues that need to be addressed including 
the rental housing it will be performed by that staff. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he remembers the good ole days when they had foreclosures.  It was a double edged 
sword.  They had so many foreclosures that the department paid for itself at least the banks did.  He stated 
that foreclosures are almost nil and so they are not relying on that $3+ million and now they are adding 
personnel.  He is not saying one way or another.  He is just trying to be as fiscally responsible as possible 
and if they are going to consider a soft freeze this may fall under that particular definition.  Mayor Medellin 
stated that again, he is looking for revenue.  He is not looking for increased expenditures. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated that when they were looking at their budgets one of the things they looked at were 
the fines and penalties along with the Rental Inspection Program and they expect to see over $600,000 in 
their estimation of additional revenue. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that is what he was looking for.  He stated that was new territory, some uncharted 
waters for them but that was her estimation. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez responded affirmatively. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that was not including what the cost would be for two new employees.   
 
Ms. Rodriguez responded that was correct.  She stated that they are also looking at another avenue of 
income which would be the rental business license.  There are estimated over 8,000 rentals and they 
believe that there is under Revenues for many of those that do have rentals but have not registered their 
business. 
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Mayor Medellin asked if that would fall under the same umbrella with the new additions or would the RDA 
be in charge of having them file for the business license that they don’t have or…. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez responded affirmatively. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if that would fall under another operating cost for these new employees.  He 
asked if it would be another task that would be added. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez responded affirmatively.  She stated that they do have a line item on that in the budget. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if as a cost recovery. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they have included $100,000 of revenue within their budget for business licensing.  In 
reality that $100,000 will be generated through the Business Licensing Division under Finance but the City 
ordinance does call for the revenue generated for rental business licenses to be directed towards their 
department.  In reality they’ll be upping the work done in Business Licensing.  Mr. Przybyla stated a contract 
with Muni Services was recently approved.  They will be doing an audit so they are looking to increase 
those revenues.  That $100,000 figure was what Ms. Rodriguez and her department have estimated for 
increased business license revenues related to rentals but in reality that should not be requiring additional 
staff work from Code Enforcement. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they had talked about this years ago.  He thinks Ex-Mayor Brett Frazier was wanting 
to examine that same thing with the number of un-licensed businesses in town.  He believes there is a lot 
to be generated through that audit.  He’s not sure if it is $100,000 but they’ll see. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he wanted to know about these people going around doing business 
without a license, selling food, and pushing carts for ice creams.  He stated that is another revenue source.  
He stated that maybe they can inspect those people selling flowers on the block. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that Code Enforcement has their hands full with that as well. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated they do. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated that then they have to train for the inspecting of the housing; the 
personnel. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez stated there will be a lot of training going on. 
 
Council Member Robinson asked if that would be in-house training. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez responded affirmatively and stated they as well have a CASIO, which is a Code Enforcement 
training program.  It is an outside agency that trains. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions of Ms. Rodriguez.  No questions were asked. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that concluded the General Fund portion of tonight’s discussions.  He stated they would 
move on to the summary of Enterprise Fund expenses. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated if Council wanted to take a short break they could certainly do that.  
 
Mayor Medellin stated a five minute break was in order. 
 
Break commenced at 6:10 p.m. 
Meeting reconvened at 6:17 p.m. 
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Enterprise Funds 
Mr. Przybyla stated they are looking at a summary of the major Enterprise funds.  At the bottom right there 
is $4.8 million deficit.  They are not as much concerned about that in this case because most of that is 
related to Capital Outlay; major improvements that are being done primarily in the Sewer Fund which they 
will talk about in detail in just a minute.  That is the big deficit.  Sewer for all the Capital projects they have 
going on.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated Solid Waste has a $658,000 deficit.  That’s kind of a general plan that’s been taking 
place that former City Council agreed that they wouldn’t raise rates for a number of years and they are 
coming to the end of that period where they will be considering raising rates and they’ve been fortunate 
because they got a very good contract with Sunset [Waste Systems] which they were lucky to have Mid-
Valley [Disposal] buy out.  That has kept the rates down for the citizens and there is a fund balance there 
that this is drawing down from.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there’s a surplus in Water with less Capital Outlay in 17/18.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated Drainage is a much smaller budget and is actually projecting a surplus also which is a 
turnaround thanks to some changes that Public Works made related to costs for drainage facilities moving 
them to Water for regeneration of water to the earth. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated those are the major funds. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they have the non-major funds such as Airport, Golf Course, Dial-A-Ride and Fixed 
Route. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated Mr. Randall would present his portion of the Enterprise Fund budgets, then they would 
hear from Ms. Iraheta and he will provide a brief discussion of the Golf Course budget.  He stated he would 
get that out of the way at this time. 
 
Golf Course 
Mr. Przybyla stated they’re looking like a slight surplus in there but there are a lot of moving pieces in this 
budget and this is one of the pieces that got away from them.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there was about a $55,000 swing in that budget so that will turn into a deficit to General 
Fund.  The $55,000 swing is an additional impact to the General Fund but like he said there are a lot of 
moving pieces so also today they found $75,000 that was budgeted for something in Grants that they are 
not going to be expending so it’s amazing how much things balance out here.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated this Golf Course budget will change.  It will be shown as zeroing out but it will be 
because of a transfer in from the General Fund of roughly $55,000. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked Ms. Seay if there was a pump issue out there or what exactly was that. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the swing in the budget has to do with them switching from MAIS to Tyler Munis and 
from account numbers to account numbers.  There’s a duplication of about $70,000 in the revenue line 
items.  It was showing up twice.  They recognized that $70,000 today as Eric Battles, Administrative Analyst 
was going through looking at the budgets and Ms. Seay was working closely with Mr. Battles.  Mr. Przybyla 
stated that $70,000ish of revenue was a duplication that will go away. Take that and add it to the $16,000 
surplus and they have a $55,000 hit to the General Fund. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that it was just a duplication or a line item mistake that happened and Mr. Przybyla 
responded affirmatively. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they will cover the Golf Course budget in more detail at the Final Budget presentation 
if it so merits. 
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Enterprise Funds – Airport, Solid Waste, Storm Drainage, Water and Sewer 
Mr. Randall stated they have seven divisions.  Six of those seven divisions deal with Enterprise funds.  
There are five different Enterprise funds so they all work off different sources of revenues.  They are all 
outside of the General Fund. 
 
Enterprise Fund - Airport 
Mr. Randall stated the Airport is a significant Enterprise fund although it’s a small operation.  There are only 
two budgets; Operations and Capital Outlay.  The revenues for the most part are fairly normal.  They get 
revenue from leases, ag crops; they share in those profits, etc. so there’s only about a $20,000 minor 
adjustment which is based on better projections from previous years.  Mr. Randall stated there is an 
additional $496,000 in this year’s budget but that’s just a one-time increase from FFA and state grants and 
it offsets a $525,000 pavement crack seal project at the Airport.  It’s not a normal operating cost.  It’s just 
the things they do when they get those grants which is fairly frequently; almost every year. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is no change in debt service.  There are no new positions and there’s no 
substantive change to the salary expenses.  There are some minor changes in Operations due to increased 
cost in Contracted Services.  Some of their contracts have gone up, etc. but it’s not really that significant 
for them. 
 
Enterprise Fund – Solid Waste 
Mr. Randall stated that they have a fairly stable fund in Solid Waste budget because of the rates that they 
are able to keep consistent due to the savings.  There are a number of minor budgets within it.  There’s 
also the obvious Municipal Disposal, Used Oil Recycling Beverage Containers, Solid Waste Recycling 
which is a separate grant, Tire Clean Up, Hazardous Waste Disposal and Street Cleaning.  Mr. Randall 
stated that the street sweeper is actually in this budget.  It’s a provision under law that allows them to 
combine those funds. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that there are no substantive changes in revenues.  Rates are staying the same for their 
users.   
 
Mr. Randall stated there is one new part-time position requested in this budget.  It’s a half of a Maintenance 
Worker I position.  It’s being requested to assist in the replacement and repair of their trash cans.  He stated 
they have about 39,000 trash cans and as they are aging they need more and more care.  They are out 
there all the time putting new wheels on, putting new lids on and they are not keeping up so they just need 
to add some part-time people to try to keep up with that.  They have a great relationship with ARC who 
does some of that work for them but they can’t keep up.  They can only do so much. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there are also some increases in salary costs for existing positions.  These are just due 
to the normal Cost of Living increases, some merit cost increases and health benefits.  The normal things 
that are going on and they have some minor adjustments on how they allocated some of their costs. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is no substantive M&O issues, no capital and no debt service in this budget. 
 
Enterprise Fund – Storm Drainage 
Mr. Randall stated that this budget is divided between Operations and Capital Outlay.  Storm Drainage is 
fairly limited.  There are no new positions requested.  They are having some small adjustments on the 
salary cost based upon how they account for those things.  The revenues unfortunately remains stable.  
There is no way to increase it.  As they probably know, Storm Drainage fees can’t be increased without an 
election versus a protest hearing.  There is some legislation that might give them some relief but he wouldn’t 
hold his breath.  There are no capital projects in the fund and there is no debt service. 
 
Enterprise Fund – Water 
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Mr. Randall stated they have a number of different budgets there.  The Water Utility, Maintenance and 
Operations, Capital Outlay, Water Quality which also includes the Conservation Division and the debt 
service for the bonds. 
 
Mr. Randall stated the revenues are increasing by $1.7 million.  This is in line with the scheduled rate 
increases.   
 
Mr. Randall stated there is one new part-time position being requested for the Water Conservation unit.  
This is a half time Maintenance Worker I.  It is to help them with maintenance work on the water meters.  
They now have about 13,000 meters and it takes a lot of work to keep those things constantly repaired and 
unfortunately that need will probably grow but right now they just need about half a position to keep their 
heads above water where they are at. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there are no substantive changes in O&M.  
 
Mr. Randall stated that regarding Capital Expenditures, they have a number of things they are doing within 
the department itself.  These are sort of normal operational maintenance type of things but they are pretty 
expensive.  Pump bowl replacements, some cranes that have to be replaced because of some new 
legislation, a chlorinator at Well 15, water meter programmers, some test equipment and about $100,000 
to replace some of their larger water meters that wear out and are very expensive.  There is also about 
$2.2 million in other Capital Projects that the Engineering Department takes care of for them.  He stated he 
won’t go into those because Mr. Helmuth knows all that stuff. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is no change in debt service for the Water fund. 
 
Enterprise Fund - Sewer 
Mr. Randall stated this is one of their larger issues this year.  The Waste Water Treatment Plant as well as 
the Sewer Maintenance function in the Water Department which takes care of all the pipes the collection 
system for the sewer are both within the Sewer Fund.  Revenues have increased by about $900,000.  This 
is due to a 9% scheduled increase in the user fees.  There are some increases in Maintenance and 
Operation particularly at the Waste Water Treatment Plant.  There are just some expenses that have gone 
up. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that a number of years ago the City started taking a different approach.  They’ve moved 
away from a reactive wait till it breaks and then fix it to a proactive trying to manage their assets, be ahead 
of the game, know what their liabilities, plan for them and look to optimize their costs.   
 
Mr. Randall stated they started this in 2013 when the City funded Akel Engineering who did their 
infrastructure master plans.  They went through and looked at all the issues that are relative to what is going 
on, what was wrong with their existing system, did they have any capacity issues and importantly what did 
they need to do when they grow to coincide with their land use plan.  That gave them the basis of what they 
needed.   
 
Mr. Randall stated that in 2015 at the Waste Water Treatment Plant they did an assessment.  They hired a 
firm to go out and look at all the equipment, look at where it was and how likely it was to fail, etc.  It was 
startling but they started trying to figure out exactly where they were.   
 
Mr. Randall stated that in 2015 they also adopted new rates.  Luckily the public was fairly receptive and 
they had for the first time rates that included money for replacement of equipment and infrastructure and 
doing some of the things they knew they had to do.  Some of those numbers were soft because they didn’t 
have really good data.  They didn’t have a lot of the information on their infrastructure so they had to use 
industry standards to approximate them.  They are working towards that though. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that in 2016 Council approved and they began the Infrastructure Assessment Study.  It 
is a two year program that is looking at all the sewer and water distribution systems and collections system 
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and looking at what condition they are in.  They had just started this when they had the Schnoor [Avenue] 
failure and that highlighted the need for this; that they indeed need to know where things are.  This first 
year they’ve sort of begun that and next year is the end of it which will then give them a better idea of what 
they are looking at in terms of deferred maintenance and liabilities. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that also in 2016 they developed a list of essential repairs that need to be done at the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant.  It was based off what they did in 2015 and some operational issues that 
they are identifying and these are critical issues.  These aren’t just nice to have.  They aren’t painting the 
fire truck.  They are putting wheels on it.   
 
Mr. Randall stated they also put out bids to start the first project and they’ve hired an engineering firm to 
help them put out the rest of the items.  They are large capital projects.  It takes a lot of bid spec preparation 
and some good engineering knowledge to get it correctly so they are going to manage those projects for 
them and get this done.   
 
Mr. Randall stated they began this year and they actually have completed the very first part of it which was 
cleaning Digester 1 and in this next year they will complete these essential repairs.  Mr. Randall stated this 
was a bad one.  It is about $4 million.  They need a new well at the Waste Water Treatment Plant.  They 
normally have two wells; one for back-up.  One has completely failed.  The other one is on its last leg so 
they have to develop another well.  They have three digesters and as he mentioned they began the cleaning 
of one.  The other two still need to be done.  They have three primary clarifiers.  All three of those need to 
be rebuilt.  The centrate line has to be replaced.  It is necessary.  There are a lot cost involved for the design 
and some contingencies. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if it was fair to say that if they were reactive and waited for these things to fail they 
may save a little bit of money now in the short term but pay a whole lot more than this down the road. 
 
Mr. Randall responded affirmatively and stated they might be looking at another digit. 
 
Mr. Randall stated that in their collection systems they have more operational type of things being done by 
their staff and Engineering [Department].  That includes some manholes maintenance work, some rings 
and covers replacement, completion of that sewer system assessment and videoing of the sewer system.  
Videoing of the sewer system is very important to figure out where those things are so they don’t have 
those Schnoor Avenues.  They have a project to do some repairs at part of the line from the lift station down 
to where they had that failure.  They have an upgrade to the Fairground lift station.  They have some 
software they are trying to put into place which is a computerized maintenance management system as 
well as an asset management system that takes all the information at the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
that they’ve generated and puts it into something that makes it more effective for their people to make sure 
they do what they are supposed to do. 
 
Mr. Randall stated they discussed the $4 million previously. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there are currently nine people assigned to the Waste Water Treatment Plant.  They 
have two vacancies.  They are currently doing backgrounds on two candidates.  It took them three 
recruitments to get to those two candidates.  It is not easy to find people but they do have two potentials so 
they are hoping to be back to full staff however this has been an on-going problem of Waste Water 
Treatment Plants.  It’s a lot of work.  There’s a lot of equipment.  It’s a lot of operational things on a daily 
basis never mind the issues of maintaining equipment that is running 24/7. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there were studies done in 1972, 2007 and more recently this year that indicate they 
need more staff to get this done.  This year they used a program that’s sort of nationally recognized to 
quantify some of those numbers and basically what it told them was that the existing nine positions only 
gives them enough staff to do normal operations but no time left to do any maintenance or preventative 
maintenance which is not a good outcome.   
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Mr. Randall stated that brings them to the big ask.  They are asking for some new positions.  They are 
asking specifically for one new Lead Operator, two Operators and half a Maintenance Worker.  All these 
people are basically focused on maintenance activities and those types of things.  They are using half a 
Maintenance Worker to take some of the non-technical stuff and take it away from staff that they are paying 
a lot more money to do more advanced work.  They are also asking for two Operators in Training.  The 
market for Waste Water Treatment Plant Operators is very, very tight.  Even though they may be in the 
median in terms of what they pay their employees it is very hard to recruit unless they are in the very top 
percentiles of the market so one of the ways they are hoping to try to retain people is to recruit and build 
their own. 
 
Mr. Randall states it take 2,000 hours for someone to work at a plant before they can test and become a 
certified operator and so the idea is to bring in these positions, keep them for a year and hopefully they’ll 
be able to be there when they need them. 
 
Mr. Randall stated they have two planned retirements this upcoming year so they’ll be back to even if they 
can keep these people. 
 
Mr. Randall stated there is no substantive change in debt service and stated that was all he had to say on 
the Enterprise funds. 
 
Mr. Randall asked if they had any questions. 
 
Council Member Holley stated he liked what Mr. Randall was doing on that training.  He thinks that is looking 
ahead because they don’t know what will happen in the future with anybody but it’s good to have somebody 
back-up just in case.  He stated he’s always known these are key positions.  He’s been out there to look 
around and he wouldn’t want to do it so for those who put in for those kinds of jobs are a special people 
especially a 24/7 job.  To know he’s training folks to get ready for those who might be retiring he thinks the 
City is really doing a great job in that avenue. 
 
Mr. Randall thanked Council Member Holley. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Mr. Randall.  No questions were asked. 
 
Enterprise Fund – Grants 
Ms. Iraheta stated these grants represent mainly FDA grant funds and cover their service for Dial-a-Ride 
and their fixed route which is the MAX.  This year they anticipate an increase in revenue to pay for their 
new Transit Facility as well as increase operational costs.   
 
Ms. Iraheta stated Contracted Services will definitely see an increase given the anticipated route expansion 
to the Madera College [Madera Community College Center].  The Contracted Services is First Transit and 
they absorb about 50% of their budget. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated there are no changes in their Personnel Cost other than the standard salary fringe 
increases. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated that in Capital Outlay currently their Transit Facility’s estimated cost is at 5 million.  
Construction alone is approximately 4.2 million.  It seems like this keeps going up every quarter it seems 
like.  Unfortunately, they cover the increases in the budget with grants.  She is looking into increasing their 
revenues from FTA for the additional million that they haven’t budgeted. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they are in the process of purchasing four new buses.  The cost is approximately 155,000 
each.  These four buses are funded by FTA, Federal Transit Administration.  FTA increases for operations 
and for Transit Facility.  Typically on an annual basis their operations increase about 5 to 7%.  This year 
they are projecting a 10 to 12% because of the expanded route to the college. 
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Mr. Przybyla asked if they had any questions for Ms. Iraheta. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he is curious and asked how much of Ms. Iraheta and her team’s time was 
proactive in looking at prospective grant opportunities that aren’t currently being realized versus those that 
are already in the pipeline, that they are working on, that they know of.  He asked if she could attribute a 
percentage or…. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated it was low; probably 10% if that and the reason is because they’ve had some turnover in 
staff so they are mainly focusing on their current operations which Transit takes up 40% and then they are 
also overseeing other grants; housing and CDBG.  Ms. Iraheta stated typically what they try to do is respond 
to requests that are coming in directly from departments other than generating new however they’ve 
recently hired a new Grants Manager and she is hoping that it will stabilize the staffing in the department. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he thinks that is something to look at if there’s cost benefit there.  If they were 
to invest in that department in the future knowing that it may allow for some more proactive searching of 
lucrative grant opportunities that may exist.  He appreciates the information. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that was a good point. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that concluded their Enterprise fund budgets.   
 
Internal Service Budgets 
Mr. Przybyla stated the Internal Services budgets provide and charge for services to the other departments.  
They have three Internal Service funds.  There is Fleet, Facilities Maintenance, and [Information] 
Technology.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that within the Fleet and Technology budgets they schedule replacement of equipment; 
vehicles, computers, servers, so on and so forth.  What they’ve done since he got here is if a vehicle is to 
be replaced in 10 years they’ll set aside one-tenth of that projected cost over the 10 years so that the money 
is there to replace it.  It really levels out the cost that they realize but it makes sure that the funds are there 
when they need them as well, both for IT [Information Technology] and for Fleet. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the budgets fluctuate with replacement activities so as they are setting aside a level 
amount each year, some year you spend a lot more, some year you spend a lot less so they should expect 
to see surpluses or deficits in at least those two budgets.  Mr. Przybyla stated there is an $81,000 deficit 
projected for the 17/18 proposed budget but again it’s due primarily to the replacement of equipment.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Facilities Maintenance zeroes out.  There’s a slight surplus in Fleet so they’re 
apparently not replacing as many vehicles this year as they might be in other years.  There is a deficit in 
the [Information] Technology funds.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated Randy Collin, Fleet Manager would give his presentation, followed by Mr. Randall and 
then by Mark Souders, Information Services Manager. 
 
Internal Service Budget - Fleet 
Mr. Collin stated Fleet has two parts to it; Fleet Maintenance and Fleet Replacement.   
 
Mr. Collin stated there are not a whole lot of changes on the Maintenance side.  It is pretty much status 
quo.  He did put in a little bit more for some training which really helps them with increased efficiencies and 
stuff so they are replacing the right part the first time.  Those types of things where they don’t spend extra 
funds there.  Not a lot of changes there. 
 
Mr. Collin stated that on the Equipment Replacement, the first item there is the one that’s come up in a lot 
of these other discussions; the other departments.  They’ve reinstated the General Fund Department 
Replacement Fees.  That is what they charge them every year; their portion to replace those vehicles.  Last 
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year they didn’t charge that to help with the budget and so this year they’ve reinstated that.  He knows a lot 
of the General Funds have mentioned that in their presentations.  That is where that line is.  Those fees 
are going up a little bit.  Obviously with inflation, the prices of vehicles, and new technologies.  There are 
quite a few vehicles with expiring CNG tanks.  The other thing is Air Quality.  They are always mandating 
turning to new equipment also.  New cleaner burning engines so it’s kind of mandated there that kind of put 
them in a bind where they have to go ahead and replace equipment that they may or may not want to do 
but Air Quality is mandating that. 
 
Mr. Collin asked if there were any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any questions of Mr. Collin. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if the transfer-in from the General Fund was the 4355 first line item for 57,000. 
 
Mr. Collin stated it is going to be the Interfund charges. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if with all these changes because of environmental or that kind of issue, they 
have sought a grant from the San Joaquin Air Control Council [San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control 
District].  
 
Mr. Collin stated they did get the five CNG cars with grant money from San Joaquin Valley [Air Pollution 
Control District] and he has a grant application for five more pick-ups and they are waiting for the California 
Air Resources Boards to go ahead and certify those engines.  As soon as they certify the engines in the 
new trucks then they can go ahead and get that grant also. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if that would off-set any of these…. 
 
Mr. Collin stated it would off-set $20,000 a vehicle for up to five vehicles. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that was pretty significant. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated that was good to know. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he would like to take a moment to recognize that Mr. Collin and Mr. Przybyla have 
identified that they have some vehicles in their fleet that generate relatively low mileage from one year to 
the next.  One of the alternatives they are going to evaluate in the current year is eliminating vehicles from 
the fleet and going to a pool system.  They can’t present that to Council at this time because the analysis 
had not been done.  A lot of credit should go to these individuals who recognize that there are other 
opportunities for cost savings. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated great job. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked how many of their vehicles are CNG.  
 
Mr. Collin stated he hadn’t looked at that in a while. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated an estimate is good. 
 
Mr. Collin stated they had maybe 50; something like that. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked if they are starting to fuel at Madera Unified [School District] because 
those pumps are up and running and doing well.  They are looking to save some money and pinch some 
pennies.  That would be a great savings for their City. 
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Mr. Collin stated he would check on that.  He stated he didn’t know the answer to that but he could find that 
out for her. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions.  No questions were asked. 
 
Internal Service Budget – Building Maintenance & Facilities 
Mr. Randall stated this is an Internal Service fund which generally means that they take all the costs to 
provide these services and redistribute them out to the users who use those systems.  There are no 
substantive changes in the Maintenance and Operation in this budget.  There are no new positions.  There 
are some minor changes in salaries.  These are just the normal issues of merit increases, cost of living, 
insurance, etc.  There are no Capital expenses or debt service.  It’s really a pretty standard budget.  The 
only thing that changes from year to year is as the different departments change their needs they have to 
change how much is charged to them but the overall operation of the budget has stayed pretty much stable. 
 
Internal Service Budget - Technology 
Mr. Przybyla stated they are giving Mark Souders, Information Services Manager a pass this year because 
he came in so late in the game and Ted [Uyesaka former Information Services Manager] had a comfortable 
budget for Mr. Souders to inherit from last year so they left the budget pretty much the same so his 
presentation is going to be pretty much status quo but he’s already got a lot of good ideas that he’s very 
excited to hear. 
 
Mr. Souders stated the overall status of the budget is unchanged like Mr. Przybyla said.   
 
Mr. Souders stated that right now he is in the process of a thorough network evaluation.  He ran some 
software on the network, checking all the server switches and everything for utilization instead of just looking 
at replacing an item because it’s old.  He asked if it can be re-used, does it need to be replaced this year, 
can it go another couple of years, is it out of warranty, is it end of life of its life cycle so really he is looking 
at opportunities to increase performance and the same time consolidate equipment, repurpose hardware 
and eliminate unnecessary expenditures. 
 
Mr. Souders stated personnel costs have remained static. 
 
Mr. Souders asked if they had any questions. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they did not and he appreciated and liked where he is going with that; new and 
innovative ideas. 
 
Council Member Holley stated wait until next year. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated next year is guaranteed to be exciting in technology in IT. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Mr. Souders has a lot of good ideas.  They’ll be saving money in the future. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated one of the things they talked about was allocation of staff.  Since PD has hired a network 
administrator with Measure K funds they may want to look at shifting Kevin [Newsome, Computer 
Technician’s] time.  Mr. Newsome spent a lot of time working for PD in the past.  They still need to oversee 
that with Mr. Souders’ staff but there may be an opportunity to shift some dollars out of the General Fund 
because of the Measure K hire and if they repurpose Mr. Newsome and use him in other areas.  Mr. 
Przybyla stated that is just a side thought.  It’s just a point that they are always looking at ways to….. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he appreciated that. 
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Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated she doesn’t know if the question is for Mr. Przybyla or for Mr. 
Souders.  She stated that Code Enforcement is looking to change over their program on how they report.  
They are going to need new tablets or iPads.  She asked if that was included in the budget. 
 
Mr. Souders stated that from his understanding when somebody or the department purchases an iPad it is 
put in the fund to be replaced at certain set point and time so if it’s a new purchase the department would 
purchase it.  If it’s a replacement then Information Services would replace it when it gets aged. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that in other words the original purchase is on their dime after that they set aside funds 
to replace it and IT charges them for the maintenance of those items. 
 
Mr. Souders stated he can definitely look at what they are trying to do and replace those out. 
 
Special Revenue Budgets 
Mr. Przybyla stated the Special Revenue fund budgets are restricted for specific purposes as mandated by 
the funding sources.  In FY 17/18 they anticipate $15.4 million in revenue and $14.9 million in expenses 
with any left over revenues being reprogrammed for the next fiscal year.  These are mostly Capital projects 
that are funded by the special revenue sources.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they do have $2.6 million that is being transferred into Streets which is in the General 
Fund but as Mr. Randall mentioned Streets doesn’t really impact the General Fund because every dollar 
that is spent is transferred in from these special revenue sources. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that one of the interesting things coming up next year is that they’ve budgeted for a 
$1.3 million new ladder truck which will be coming from the Development Impact Fees which is grouped 
under Special Revenue funds. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated there is also a $1.3 million for housing programs which Ms. Iraheta will discuss briefly 
in just a minute.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated the last budget they see in all those pages of budgets will be all of the Landscape 
Maintenance Districts.  He thinks there are about 80 of them in there. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated this is the summary of the major Special Revenue funds.  They see that Transit Fixed 
Route is money in and out.  The General Development Impact Fees in total will be spending $272,000 more 
than they are bringing in in FY 17/18 per their projections. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated Special Gas Tax is coming close to having a balanced budget with $66,000 more of 
expenses than revenues. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Local Sales Taxes are related only to Measure T at this point because Measure A 
has gone away now but that is reflecting $425,000 more revenues than expenditures. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that in total the Special Revenue funds are projecting an $86,000 surplus. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated then they have a bunch of other Special Revenue funds.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that in total the Special Revenue funds are projecting a $483,000 surplus in FY 17/18.  
In other words more Development Impact Fees and other revenue sources are coming in than they will be 
spending on projects. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated he would have the Grants Administrator discuss her items related to Special Revenues.  
He thought it would be prudent rather than to go through all of the other budgets which are mostly Capital 
in nature.  They have covered those in the summary level and staff can answer any specific questions they 
may have about any of the numerous budgets that are included in the detail. 
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Special Revenue Funds - Grants  
Ms. Iraheta stated there are no significant changes as far as revenues and expenditures.  She stated that 
as they complete a project they draw from the awarded fund so this doesn’t impact General Fund.  It doesn’t 
change their budgets. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they do not have any changes in personnel for the coming year.  She stated she wanted 
to point out that the Grants Department has the potential to fund an additional part-time position if they so 
choose and it’s approved.  This would be funded under CalHome and HOME grants for the most part.  This 
grant basically funds their administrative costs and as they complete a project they can draw administration 
so the more projects they complete the more administration they receive. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they’ve applied for a HOME down payment assistant grant.  Currently they are 
completing one final project.  There will be no funds unless they receive the HOME grant this year.  
 
Ms. Iraheta stated there is no change to the CalHome Manufactured Rehab line item. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they do use that HOME Activity fund.  She stated that when people pay their previous 
loans that they’ve borrowed they pay because sometimes they are selling the homes.  They receive that 
amount and they can reuse it for both administration and new projects so it’s a revolving account that they 
like to tap into. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated this was just to point out that they haven’t included an additional 17,000 in administration 
for the HOME. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated she had already explained Transit Facility previously.  She stated they also have other 
grants other than FTA that help them cover the Transit Facility expenditures as well as the buses.  They 
have other revenues.  They are CMAQ [Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality] and PTMISEA [Public 
Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account] that also help them 
purchase these buses and construct their facility. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated that this year they are applying for Cal OES [California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services], LCTOP [Low Carbon Transit Operations Program], HOME [Investment Partnerships Program] 
and CalHome so they are looking for additional revenues particularly for the Transit Facility as well as to 
increase the amenities for their transit operations for bus shelters and for technology enhancements for the 
transit operations. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated she would answer any questions. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if the bus shelters were what they were building at Freedom [Industrial] Park 
or if these are bus stops. 
 
Ms. Iraheta replied add bus stops. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked if they were new or if they were refurbishing ones that they’ve already put in. 
 
Ms. Iraheta stated they are new.  They are receiving 21 new ones for this year. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Ms. Iraheta stated there is a possibility of maybe funding another position.  It’s one 
of the things that the City Administrator, Ms. Iraheta, he and others have discussed.  He stated that for 
some of the housing type grants they can earn $5,000 per loan that is made.  The loans are a good deal.  
They can get a 30 year loan.  They don’t have to pay back for 30 years and there’s no interest so when 
somebody sells this house before the 30 years is up then the money comes back into the system and they 
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loan it.  They’ll be looking for opportunities to improve the housing market in Madera through the use of 
such funds and they may be able to shift some staff from the General Fund into the Grants [Department] to 
help slightly with the General Fund. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he heard that when they get this money back they can reuse it for 
continued grants and administration and asked or if they are utilizing that money again for the same purpose 
of down payment assistance.  
 
Ms. Iraheta stated it has to be for the same purpose for rehab or down payment assistance but they can 
get a portion for administration. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he attended the League of California Cities and they had a person that 
was sponsoring an agency called California Housing Financing and they finance single family or multi-
family homes and they do first mortgages for first time homeowner low and moderate income and they can 
do tax credit project for multi-family and offer long term loans at low rates.  He stated he can get her that 
information. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that sounds similar to the programs that they have in place.  He asked that Council 
Member Robinson please get that to himself and Ms. Iraheta and they’ll make sure they are not missing 
out on some opportunities. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated he or staff would answer any questions they may on the remaining Special Revenue 
funds budgets.  As mentioned he thought it would be in their best interest to leave it at the summary level 
at this point rather than going page by page over those couple of hundreds of pages. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any additional questions.  No questions were asked. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they would go back to their discussion on how to balance the General Fund budget.   
 
Mr. Tooley asked that Mr. Przybyla take them back to the summary slide. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that virtually everything is on the table.  His sense is that the main event is the General 
Fund.  He asked if there were any other funds or activities of the City that Council would like to go back to 
first.  He stated maybe there is a question they’d wished they’d asked but didn’t get a chance.  He asked if 
there was anything else they wanted to return to. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated she had a question on overtime.  She looked at the overtime in all 
the departments and it came out to $519,000.  She knows they need it for emergency reasons in some 
areas but to her it is a lot of overtime when they are paying their employees to do their jobs and get the job 
done.  She knows that when they have a break like on Schnoor [Avenue] she understands they need the 
overtime for that and they have an emergency for that but to her that is a lot of money in overtime.  She 
looks at other professions where it has to be approved to have overtime because again just like their 
fireworks it’s a holiday.  They are paying a lot in overtime. 
 
Mayor Medellin addressed Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos and stated he was assuming that she meant in 
general and not any particular department; all departments combined. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos responded affirmatively.  She stated in general in all the departments. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that while they didn’t ask a question he thinks the intent of their observation is that it is 
something they should take a critical look at.  He stated that is a good catch and they will. 
 
Council Member Robinson asked if the CNG vehicles had propane tanks. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated it was Compressed Natural Gas, CNG. 
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Council Member Robinson asked if it was reasonable in mileage instead of gas. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that not only is it reasonable as far as mileage and the cost of fuel but with the [San 
Joaquin Valley] Air [Pollution] Control District paying them $20,000 it significantly cuts their costs.  It’s a 
little more expensive to convert the pick-up trucks which is what they are in the most need of at this point 
but it’s still a good savings when they can purchase them using the $20,000 towards each vehicle that they 
purchase. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he’s seen a lot of trucks going by checking to see who is violating the 
water usage in the yards.  He asked if they were regular trucks.  He stated he was wondering if instead of 
using those GM trucks they could use an electric vehicle.  He asked if that would save on….  He stated 
because they are going down all the streets in the City.  That’s miles upon miles. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated is something that he’ll definitely consider and discuss with Mr. Collin.  A lot of that will 
depend on the department’s needs and if they see they need to have a shovel in the back to dig up and fix 
something they may need a pick-up truck but….. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated Redevelopment [Madera Redevelopment Agency] drive around in 
vehicles also. 
 
Mr. Collin stated that a lot of the new vehicles they are buying for Water Patrol are hybrids as well as smaller 
vehicles.  He stated they are really working hard and making sure they are sizing vehicles properly so they 
don’t have big trucks running around with one shovel in the back.  If they don’t need a big truck they are 
trying to do that.  He stated that as the fleet is overturned they are trying to do those things.  They have to 
have structures, charging stations, and those kinds of things for electrification so that is something they 
would have to address as a whole package.  As far as individual vehicles they are trying to do the hybrids 
to do those things that he was talking about. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he is trying to look at little things that accumulate and add to the cost. 
 
Mr. Collin agreed that they all add up. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that at the beginning of the presentation he noticed that they were going 
over the General Fund expenditure history.  In looking at some of those earlier years he noticed that the 
budgeted expenditures and the actuals varied anywhere from 8 to 5% and now they are tightening it.  He 
asked what some of those variables or unknowns were that go in between the budgeted and the actual.  
He asked what some of those things were out there that they didn’t catch and then they finally come back 
to see that there’s probably a surplus or what have you.  He thinks that initially Mr. Tooley had mentioned 
that there is a $2.5 million and now they are down to 1.63 and asked what some of those unknowns are. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they are a service based organization so the majority of their costs are captured in terms 
of personnel expenses so during the course of the year they’re going to have a certain amount of turn-over 
so hypothetically if someone is at the top step of their salary range and they hire someone at the bottom 
step of that salary range there is obviously going to be a cost savings.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated when they prepare a new budget they also assume that everybody is going to take the 
most expensive healthcare alternatives that are available for a full family.  Often they find out that’s not 
necessarily the case and so there will be savings in that area as well. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated as they are aware they will pursue grant funds during the course of the year so during 
the course of the year and Ms. Seay identified one that is going to be a go it adds an additional $40,000 in 
terms of their ability to offset General Fund expenses so that’s an immediate capture as well. 
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Mr. Tooley stated they are also going to be pursuing COPS grant funds this year.  For each police officer 
they are awarded a grant for there is a $125,000 over a three year basis.  Hypothetically if they were 
successful and they got three positions under the COPS grant funds they would offset the Police 
Department budget by $125,000 a year. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated all of those are examples that push them above or below the expected expenditure 
revenue line.  He stated this is one of those lessons he shares with Council Members fairly often.  A 1% 
swing in a $40 million budget is $400,000 so if they come within 1% on revenues and 1% on expenditures 
they could be $800,000 below the line or $800,000 in a normal healthy budget.  He never got a 99 or 100 
in any of his tests but if he got a 99 he figured he was having a pretty good day.  He stated 99% on their 
test is close to a million dollars. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated Mr. Tooley brought up an interesting point as far as the contributions to 
the health benefits.  He asked how early on in the year did they project certain amounts.  He asked how 
late in the game did he know exactly that this is the amount that they need to actually budget for. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that if Council Member Rodriguez is talking about the rates that are charged to the City, 
those are adjusted on an annual basis and Ms. Silva would have to help him on the timeline. 
 
Ms. Silva stated that the budget that is before them has current approved contributions as approved by City 
Council this past month when those side letters went before them in the resolutions.  What Mr. Tooley is 
referring to is if a position is vacant they budget for the maximum exposure.  They may have a situation 
where when they finally do hire someone maybe they are at two party or maybe they waive insurance and 
so it’s a lesser amount.  There’s no specific timeline where they know they are going to capture those 
savings.  It’s the point of time when they hire someone and they enroll and then they find out.  They don’t 
get to screen for that in the application…..you know they’ll take everyone that waives as opposed to those 
with family enrollment, right. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that wouldn’t constitute a really big number then. 
 
Ms. Silva stated the difference between family and waivers is over $20,000 so depending on how many 
vacancies they had when they were budgeting it could be a significant number. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked how many vacancies on average the City has at any given point for the 
General Fund. 
 
Ms. Silva stated that specific to General Fund right now not too many. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he doesn’t know how many they have but he knows that within their prospective budget 
he thinks the only unfilled positions are either in Public Safety or Code Enforcement so there’s not a lot of 
room to make other kinds of adjustments.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that maybe he misunderstood the Council Member’s question.  He stated to Ms. Silva 
that they get rate quotes on an annual basis and asked her when those take place in relation to their 
collective bargaining process. 
 
Ms. Silva stated that rates come in in May.  Their collective bargaining agreements generally follow the 
fiscal year.  They don’t have to.  They do right now. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that was the answer he was searching for.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated the original question he thinks he answered the first time around.  That’s 
what he was referring to.  He thanked Mr. Tooley. 
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Mayor Medellin stated if there were no other questions, he would have Mr. Tooley continue with his 
presentation. 
 
Mr. Przybyla asked Mr. Tooley if he could point out something. 
 
Mr. Przybyla stated they asked how they are coming closer to budget.  They are actually looking at people 
that they know will be filling positions primarily Measure K employees and other people that PD is looking 
at to hire and they are dialing that down to the level of health benefits that they know those positions will 
require.  That is just one way they are trying to dial in closer to budget.   
 
Mr. Przybyla stated that Mr. Tooley is correct.  The big gaps in the past have been when they were unable 
to fill a lot of positions primarily PD at one point in time.  What they don’t want to do is say they saved 
$500,000 last year so let’s add two positions and all of sudden they have all those positions filled plus two 
more and they end up with a big deficit. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they would segue way to the next portion of their discussion. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they are in the process now particularly on Measure K where they know who they are 
going to hire so they are able to drill down pretty precisely on what those personnel costs are going to look 
like.  What that means is there is even less wiggle room in their expenditure plan than there has been in 
previous years.  They are able to be more precise on what they put in front of them.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated whereas in the past years they might be able to close a budget gap of a million to a million 
four he is going to tell them it is highly unlikely they are going to do that in the future.  If they give him an 
operating allowance of $500,000 there’s a reasonable expectation he can close that.  If they start going 
much above that they’re essentially assuring that they’re going to have another operating loss. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he thinks the discussion Council has this evening is how much risk they want to take in 
terms of the budget they see in front of them.  The 1.63 million they see on the screen is basically a structural 
deficit.  It’s not a miss.  It’s not a one-time thing.  It’s a structural deficit and they should expect that to get 
progressively worse unless they begin to address that.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated there are a number of alternatives in front of them.  He won’t go through them in detail.  
He will answer their questions.  He will say a soft hiring freeze is not a management plan.  It’s a coping 
strategy.  It’s management by chance. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated if Council Member Oliver retires, if it’s a critical position they are probably going to refill it 
anyway.  If it’s not he’s not making a decision based on the needs, he’s making a decision based on chance.  
Mr. Tooley stated that is not his favorite approach. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated nor is it his and that’s why he had questions about Code Enforcement.  It certainly 
wasn’t necessarily the need but the chance. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he thinks it behooves the Council to identify what their priorities are and then they build 
their service delivery plan around that. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he would make a few brief remarks about the bullet point about making use of 16/17 
Measure K funds.  They do not have a spending plan for the Measure K funds that are going to be generated 
in the current fiscal year.  That’s plus or minus $800,000.  He does not recommend that they use that as a 
one-time plug for their operating expenses because that’s kicking the can down the road.  That’s going to 
make the next year worse.  If they want to split it up into two years that’s probably a more responsible 
approach or in the alternative they can just reserve it all for their Capital program for their fire station.  There 
are some choices for them. 
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Mr. Tooley stated he thinks he should stop at this point.  He’ll respond to questions but he thinks now is the 
time that Council has the discussion. 
 
Mayor Medellin thanked everybody for their presentations, for answering their questions, for staying that 
long and getting this budget handled.  He thanked them for their input. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions, discussions or clarifications regarding the budget 
and Mr. Tooley’s suggestions.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated he is looking at the suggestions.  He stated he thinks the soft hiring freeze is prudent 
at this point.  He thinks the 3% M&O in every department across the board; $300,000 is $300,000.  He 
thinks it’s good management to do so.  His assumption is that 2% is $200,000 and 4% is $400,000 that it 
is a fair number and a fair assessment that they can use to reduce M&O and still maintain their service 
delivery. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that as long as they don’t take a vote from his direct reports in the audience, he believes 
that is a reasonable expectation. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated as far as cost reduction and again he does this at his business if they have to lower 
the heater and wear jackets or cut where they can cut be it paper clips and pencils it’s got to be cut slash, 
cut slash do what they can to reduce their costs in any way they can.  He thinks they do it with their home 
budgets.  He thinks they do it in business and he thinks that’s just where they are at this point. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that regardless what they decided tonight everybody in the room already knows he’s 
going to drop the hammer on the expenditure plan.  The answer begins with no. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that as far as cut backs on programs and reduce staff he is not a fan of reducing 
staff.  They talked a little bit of some programs in the Parks [and Community Services] Department.  He 
thinks they can revisit that discussion.  Personally he doesn’t think it’s anywhere he wants to go this evening.  
Possibly not with Parks [and Community Services Department] but they need to look in the mirror and do a 
financial assessment as to where they are going in the future and continue those discussions. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that as far as Measure K funds and he will open this up to his colleagues because 
they do have a couple of viable options that he thinks they can do.  He thinks splitting it is an option or using 
it as a reserve.  He’d like to get some input from his colleagues on how they feel they should proceed. 
 
Council Member Holley stated he concurs with Mayor Medellin.  He believes it should be split in the two 
years of the $400,000.  He doesn’t think it should all be used at one-time.  As far as cut backs he is not a 
fan of cutting or reducing programs because they’ve been cut enough and if they cut any more they are 
really going to have a bad year.  He concurs with what he sees in front of him. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated Mr. Tooley was talking about using Measure K funds and asked for 
what as she was not real clear on that. 
 
Mr. Tooley responded Public Safety.  He stated the promise they made to the public was Public Safety. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated it was what Chief Frazier put up for the lieutenants, police officers, 
dispatch and all that and asked if it was for that. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated those Measure K funds are coming in next year.  They are going to have some collections 
in the current year.  He stated this is a policy issue for the Council.  As long as they use it for Public Safety 
even current expenses.  A part of what’s happened is they’ve lost some COPS grant funding.  If they use it 
to backfill that or some portion of the fire contract he believes it to be consistent with the promise they made 
the public.  They said Public Safety. 
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Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated he talked about using it all for capital for the new fire station. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated an alternative is that they can reserve it for the new fire station or other capital that the 
Police and Fire [Departments] may need.  Their trade-off is if they use it for operations right now or do you 
save if for future capital. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they started collecting in April, the second quarter of the month which is the last 
quarter of their fiscal year so that is why it is going to be in the 16/17 budget but it will definitely be used for 
Public Safety it just falls in their last quarter. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated it’s actually one of those odd aha moments where they realized they hadn’t made a plan 
yet for that portion of the money. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that just to be clear it is still Public Safety money.  It’s just the when and where. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated that is what she needed to hear. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he thought that answered his primary question.  Just to confirm that is where 
it would be designated and of course they would see some level of expenditure plan to go with that money 
if they were to go half and half and he would be open to that $400,000 for Public Safety purposes. 
 
Council Member Oliver thanked staff for racking their heads and for the team working together to find any 
and all corners that can be cut to maximize as much savings as possible.  He realizes that this is a very 
difficult exercise.  It is one that is not easy every year particularly this year especially with the prospect of 
the elimination funds like COPS programs.   
 
Council Member Oliver stated that looking at the structural deficit he is in agreement of the recommendation 
of the 3% reduction in M&O costs and asked at what point they cross the bridge to look at other reductions.  
He asked if that was going to be done up there.  He asked if they were going to direct the team to come 
back to the table to say worse-case scenario if they have to come back with a 3% reduction which may 
yield $1 million in savings or so.  He asked at what point they cross that bridge.  He stated he is not sure 
how they bridge that gap in the meantime. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated he thinks the thorn in their side is CalPERS and health.  It’s going up 
percentage wise.  It’s the elephant in the room. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they had a discussion years ago about contracting services.  Again with Parks [and 
Community Services Department], they were contracting services for their Landscape Maintenance zones 
and things of that nature and the decision was to hire within, create jobs and bring it in-house but he got an 
overwhelming theme this evening on contracted services so that discussion may need to come to a head 
again and to who and what they continue to contract out and possibly more in the future.  
 
Mr. Tooley stated that just as a point of reference there is a fair body of case law now as well as an AG’s 
[Attorney General’s] opinion that it is not a management right that they can determine that they want to 
contract something out as opposed to do it in-house.  It is clearly a collective bargaining issue. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated understood. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other questions or comments. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated his comment was on the balance for 17/18.  He stated he is assuming 
that this is for this upcoming year.  He knows he talked about how they can increase revenues and they’ve 
had the discussion prior on what other sources of revenue they can bring in to off-set some of this.   
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Council Member Rodriguez stated they went to the taxpayers for that Measure K.  There are built in rate 
increases in their water bills and he’s sure that’s going to come up again for discussion there at the City 
Council so that will probably be another increase that they’ll have to address.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that a lot of the recommendations are very prudent and he thanked staff 
for doing a great job but he would also like to see in the future a discussion in regards to the other elephant 
in the room which is that ordinance for the cannabis that nobody really wants to …… He knows they are 
talking about but he’d like to see that implemented and see what those types of revenues can bring in so 
they can off-set a lot of these cut backs.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that one of the last things he’d want to do is definitely reduce staff and 
cut programs and services that are essential to their community.  A lot of these things are they being on the 
guard just defending.....they have to protect what they currently have to be able to continue to service their 
community but at some point or another he thinks they still have to see how they move forward.   
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated he knows they are anticipating the casino and the Love’s [Travel] Center.  
He doesn’t know when they can see those actual dollars maybe in the 19/20 budget but they have 
something that’s in front of them that potentially can increase a big tax base definitely assess values of 
properties that can be up in the millions of dollars and can definitely increase their revenues.  He knows 
there are conversations going on and he hopes that is something that they can hopefully discuss soon and 
they can put some type of plan in play to see if they can bring in more revenue. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he agrees with Council Member Rodriguez.  He thinks it is incumbent upon them to 
find any way they can to increase revenues.  He thinks they’re barely scratching the surface.  He believes 
Mr. Tooley has reached out to a couple of other communities that are also having that conversation or 
possibly implementing but he will agree if that is something that could generate revenue in their community 
he definitely thinks it would be incumbent upon them to at least do the research and start the discussion. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that there is an internal project team that is in the process of doing the research and will 
prepare a workshop for them.  They are going to send a representative to Colorado and talk to their law 
enforcement there so that they have the context of the Colorado experience.  They are going to visit local 
operations in California and they are going to look at best practices from other cities.  They will present that 
for Council consideration and at that point Council will be in a position to give them informed direction. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that he did say he would feed them through a hose and this pretty much 
was that so he appreciated every one of them for taking the time to address the questions and concerns 
they’ve had and also their presentations.  He stated it’s quite a bit to take in but at the end of the day these 
are some of the recommendations and with the exception of some of those cut backs he thinks it is a 
prudent way to go forward and definitely manage a business or in this case a City.  He thanked Mr. Tooley 
and his staff for the time they put into this. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked Mr. Tooley if there was one advantage one way or the other with the 16/17 Measure 
K funds to split it up into two equal parts or just kick that money down the road.  He asked what would be 
the best use of that money. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated there is no bright line answer.  He prefers to split it if they are going to spend it for 
operations because it imposes a little more fiscal discipline on them that they have to be prepared for the 
following year as well.  The alternative argument is that they spend all the most restrictive money first and 
preserve their flexible money.  If they spend it all this year whatever their hole is next year it’s that plus 
$800,000. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated he too wanted to thank staff for working diligently to see that they have as 
much information available to them to make the decisions that they have to make.  He thinks if anything it 
has opened his eyes to wanting to work harder at the job that he does to ensure that revenue streams are 
a little bit more accessible to the City, different revenue streams and thinking outside of the box. 
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Council Member Rigby stated that although he is not opposed to hearing suggestions of cannabis and what 
that looks like he also doesn’t want to be chasing the gold pot at the end of the rainbow.   
 
Council Member Rigby thinks that there are a lot of things that they have built within their city that they may 
not be utilizing to the fullness of its capacity. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated he is a proponent of actually pushing all funding from Measure K into next 
year rather than splitting it although listening to Mr. Tooley’s suggestions he thinks those are admirable.  
He is just kind of one to spend what they got while they have it and then have a little bit more in savings.  
He doesn’t want to split and use funding for operational funds this year that they might not have accessible 
to them later on down the road and then get in a tough spot because they are spending now and then they 
are stuck having to fund an operation that they might not have that funding for.  He asked if that made 
sense. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he was not following precisely.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated if they spend it to support their Public Safety operations this year it’s not available in any 
form next year and they are going to have to find new money. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated he had been misunderstanding. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that Measure K funds for Police are spoken for this year and largely spoken for the next 
year.   
 
Council Member Rigby stated he understood. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the only unknown right now is going to be the cost of Fire operations and Fire operations 
are largely related to the new facility which they also promised. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated with that being said he is still a proponent of taking that $800,000 and putting 
it towards Fire [Department] only because that’s what he said he would do.  He’ll leave it to further debate 
with his colleagues but that’s where he is sitting on that.   
 
Council Member Rigby stated he also supports the 3% M&O savings across the board but he too shares 
the same questions that his colleague Council Member Oliver brought up:  what’s going to happen later on 
down the road and to what extent do they allow themselves not to cross that line. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there were any other comments or questions.  No comments or questions were 
made. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that what he thinks they are clear on is the implementation of a soft hiring freeze and 
the 3% savings with M&O.  He stated that internally Mr. Tooley with everyone will implement a cost 
reduction plan.  They know where they sit with collective bargaining and he thinks they are all in agreement 
as well on no reduction in staff or any programs at this time.   
 
Mayor Medellin stated that last would be the 16/17 Measure K funds.  He stated that he agrees with Mr. 
Tooley in having it split.  He thinks that is the prudent thing to do. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he probably needs some straight up direction from the Council understanding that right 
now he thinks there is a division of opinion. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he believes that is the only bullet point they need to continue to discuss. 
 
Council Member Rigby asked Mr. Richardson if they are allowed to take an action item on this. 
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Mr. Tooley stated he thinks they can provide him direction.  He stated their action will be the approval of 
the budget itself. 
 
Council Member Oliver asked if they would have enough time by the next July budget meeting to have a 
proposed expenditure plan to look at.  He stated he’d imagine that staff would want to chew on this a little 
bit to look at maybe possible one-time expenses that could be utilized with this funding or……. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if that was for the July 5th meeting. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he knows it most likely will have to be buttoned up by then but if there’s….. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated pretty much so. 
 
Mr. Tooley asked if Council Member Oliver would provide him a little more clarification.  He stated he’s 
found every $400,000 pot he can.   
 
Council Member Oliver stated sure. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the only alternative at this point would be that he would reserve the whole $800,000 and 
they would provide him direction when they adopt the budget. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked as to how…. He stated it is Public Safety money so that’s not the question. 
 
Mr. Tooley agreed it’s not the question. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated it’s just what do they spend it on so to speak. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they have 175 that they’ve set aside for the new fire station.  He had a conversation with 
the Fire Chief.  The Fire Chief thinks they can move a fire station ahead more quickly.  They are just going 
to have to see.  But if it goes into 2019 as opposed to 2018 they are going to collect progressively more 
Measure K money for that asset as well.  He stated there are two areas of flexibility for Measure K.  The 
$800,000 they are talking about and the timing on the fire station. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked Chief Frazier if he had anything to add. 
 
Chief Frazier stated he just wanted to add that Council needs to be aware that they’ve cut M&O for the past 
five years and he just wants to make sure they are aware that the departments face a deficit each year like 
what they are seeing this year and really the only place they can cut is M&O.  He knows that 3% doesn’t 
seem like much but it’s more than they think and literally they are talking about pens and paper and things 
like that that will disappear and he knows he is not alone when he shudders at the thought of having to 
reduce 3% of his M&O budget. 
 
Chief Frazier stated that the City Administrator has pointed out on Public Safety if they use that half and 
half….if they put it towards Fire they are not using it to reduce their budget deficit.  That’s for cost to come 
down the road but they don’t impact that so the 3% is not going to go as far and then their 400,000 won’t 
be used to reduce that at all so then they are going to be looking for money to make that happen. 
 
Chief Frazier stated they asked for his opinion. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he appreciated his honesty and his candor.  He stated the 400,000 is not to fill a hole 
per se. 
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Chief Frazier stated it’s to reduce the impact of a $1.6 million deficit this year and a like kind number next 
year.  If they don’t use any of that then they have a bigger hole to fill than not using it.  If that makes any 
sense. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated this year’s hole or next year’s hole; pick one. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that at some point in time either money falls out of the sky, they get a lucky break or 
Council is going to engage in the difficult discussion about how they reduce their service delivery plan.  It’s 
really that simple. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated understood.  He stated he doesn’t rely on luck when it comes to tax payer money. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos asked Mr. Tooley for the timeframe of the Love’s [Travel] Center.  She 
asked if they had anything or were they just in a holding pattern. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated it was a little speculative but he heard the beginning of construction either November or 
January.  If that takes place, assume a nine month construction period which effectively puts them into the 
18/19 fiscal cycle before revenues begin flowing in.  At full build out they estimate that Love’s [Travel Center] 
represents maybe $300,000 to them.  He stated it’s a significant sum of money but it doesn’t fill a $1.6 
million...   
 
Mr. Tooley stated let them assume that they actually missed the mark by 50%.   It’s only an $800,000 hole.  
It’s going to get progressively larger because of their [Cal]PERS issue. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated that obviously it’s a difficult back and forth and certainly he wants to see that 
they are putting those Measure K dollars to work.  Sooner than later he wants to see also that they’re 
stewards and being prudent as well.  He thinks if it’s for Public Safety purposes he would be amenable to 
the 400,000 and reserving the remainder.  At the same time though he feels like they need to be going to 
the table so to speak and thinking in the future some of those worse-case scenarios.  He hates to say it.  
He understands Chief Frazier’s point about M&O budget and realize its significance and realize that there 
isn’t one magic bullet so to speak when it comes to this budget process and he thinks they have look out 
strategically over time as to where potential additions as well as reductions may be necessary.  He would 
be amenable to the 400,000 at the front end. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if he was saying not to split it. 
 
Council Member Oliver said to split it. 
 
Mayor Medellin reiterated to split it. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated he guesses he is just confused to where the allocation goes.  He asked if it 
just goes into Public Safety and it just sort of… 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they would assign cost to the specific Measure K fund so by way of example they might 
assign some police officers to the Measure K fund and pay for it out of that.  That is the most straight forward 
way to do it and it also demonstrates they are reserving the funds for Measure K for Public Safety activity. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated Measure K dollars being put to use sooner rather than later.   
 
Mr. Tooley responded affirmatively. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that was kind of his direction. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated to think of it from a larger policy issue too.  Over the course of time the cost for police 
officers is going to go up a lot because of the [Cal]PERS cost.  He asked if they were going to spend 
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Measure K dollars just on new stuff or are they going to spend them to maintain the workforce they have 
now.  He stated that realistically they are going spend some of that for existing police officers and their 
retirement cost in years two, three or four. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they got a taste of that in the presentation on what’s up and coming. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if they were ok with splitting that money.  He asked if there was any objection to that. 
 
Council Member Robinson stated as long as they are transparent.  
 
 
Mayor Medellin stated absolutely and that it was a good point.  He stated he thinks they have been and 
they will continue to be transparent. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if there was anything else. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez asked Mr. Tooley when he would have something for Council as far as what 
these recommendations will squeeze this down to.  He asked if they will have a number or something they 
can look forward to. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated that as he understood the direction right now Council is going to look for a 3% M&O 
savings out of the budget as currently presented and as Chief Frazier correctly points out this is a going to 
be a greater hardship on some departments than others.  They are going to have to work as a team to 
figure out what that looks like for Council.  Some departments have to carry more than 3% by way of an 
example.  Mr. Tooley stated that secondarily Council will see the allocation of cost to Measure K in the 
amount of $400,000 so between those two Council will see their budgeted deficit at $900,000 and change.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated that for a budget presentation standpoint they are going to include a figure to demonstrate 
that they are going to close that gap.  That may or may not happen.  Once they approve the budget a 
majority of the discussion at the staff level is going to be about continuing how they reduce cost. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated they will show Council a balanced budget but in the back of Council’s mind they need to 
know they are still going to have a $930,000 structural deficit but really they have a structural deficit bigger 
than that because the $400,000 is just to plug this next year and the year thereafter.  If their revenues don’t 
catch up they are still kicking the can down the road. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated they need to have that revenue discussion which they did tonight. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated that was not what he wanted to hear. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated that was not what any of them wanted to hear. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated he thought they wanted to hear an accurate description. 
 
Mayor Medellin thanked everybody for their reports and for their facts and figures.  He stated it is not easy 
for all of them but they certainly rely on what they bring before them and it was not just a one day thing.  It’s 
been all year.  He knows everybody has been working very hard on their budgets already.  He gave a 
special thank you to Mr. Przybyla for the past handful of months that he’s brought them in increments and 
great presentations.  Mayor Medellin thanked his colleagues for all of their input, direction and questions.  
He thinks it is a great dialogue and they had some great discussion this evening. 
 
Mayor Medellin asked if Mr. Tooley had direction.  He believes he does. 
 

2. Council Reports 
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Council Member Robinson stated he had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Foley Gallegos stated she had nothing to report. 
 
Council Member Rigby stated he had nothing to report. 
 
Council Member Holley stated he attended the extravaganza for the realtors out there.  It was a well-
organized group of people.  He saw a lot of realtors that he didn’t know they had in Madera.  It was well 
attended. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated there were also lenders in the extravaganza.  They didn’t know but there 
were probably more lenders than there were realtors.  It was a nice event.  It had a big turn out; a lot bigger 
than last year.  It’s growing.  He doesn’t know if the City generates anything out of that or not.  He knows it 
helps a lot of people especially the residents of Madera when they are shopping for services: homes or 
lending.  He did see Council Member Holley. 
 
Council Member Holley stated Council Member Rigby was there. 
 
Council Member Rodriguez stated they had a booth out there with some of the department heads and 
unfortunately, he didn’t know they had a booth out there so when he visited out there it was a little late and 
he thinks they had already cleaned up. 
 
Council Member Oliver stated he had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Medellin stated he had nothing to report.  He stated they would see them in a couple of days. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Medellin at 7:48 p.m. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN 
 
Approval of the minutes is not addressed in the vision or action plans; the requested action is also not in 
conflict with any of the actions or goals contained in that plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ________________________________ 
SONIA ALVAREZ, City Clerk   ANDREW J. MEDELLIN, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Prepared by:  
ZELDA LEÓN, Deputy City Clerk 
 



City of Madera

Council Meeting Of

Agenda ltem No.

byla

May 2nd, 2018

B-2

Memorandum To The Honorable Mayor,
City Council and City Administrator

From: Office of the Director of Finance

Subject: Listing of Warrants lssued

Date: os/02/2ot8

Attached, for your information, is the register of the warrants for the City of Madera
covering obligations paid during the period of:

April 10th, 20L8 to April 23rd, 2018

Each demand has been audited and I hereby certify to their accuracy and that there
were sufficient funds for their payment.

General Warrant 17256-1748L 810,435.92

Wire Transfer Union Bank Payroll and Taxes 613,058.93

Wire Transfer sDr 2,336.58

Wire Transfer Cal Pers

Respectfu lly su bm itted,

Tim

s

s

$

s

Financial Services Director

Return to Agenda



CITY OF MADERA
REGISTER OF AUDITED DEMANDS FOR BANK #1.UNION BANK GENERAL ACCOUNT

April 23rd,2018
DESCRIPTION AMOUNTCHECK PAY DATE ISSUED TO

04/ t3/20L8 ADMTNTSTRAT|VE SOLUTTONS lNC.

04/ L3/20r8 AMERTCAN MOBTLE SHREDDING

04/13/2018 AT&T

04/B/20r8 WORLD PASSAGES LLC

04 / 13 /2018 CEDERQUIST, BRENT

04/73/20L8 CITY OF MADERA

04/t3/20t8 crTY oF MADERA

04/t3/20r8 crw oF MADERA

04/L3120r8 C|TY OF MADERA

04/t3120L8 C|TY OF MADERA

04/!3/20t8 C|TY OF MADERA

04/ t3/2018 CORELOGTC TNFORMATTON SOLUTIONS tNC

04 / L3 /2018 CORNERSTON E ENVr RONMENTAL CONTRACTORS, r NC.

04 / L3 /20L8 CREATIVE COPY

04 / !3/20L8 DIAMOND COMM UNTCATTONS

04/ t3/20L8 DIAMOND COMMUNICATTONS

04/ t3/20!8 DTAMOND COMMUNTCAT|ONS

04/1312018 ENNTS TRAFFTC SAFETY SOLUTTONS

04 h3/2018 ENTEN MANN-ROVI N CO

04/t3/2018 ESPTNOZA SEWER SERVTCE

04/t3/2078 EUROFTNS EATON ANALYTCAL, rNC.

04/t3/20r8 EUROFTNS EATON ANALYTTCAL, rNC.

04/L3/2018 FORENSTC NURSE SPECtALrSTS, rNC.

04 h3 /20T8 KLEINFELDER, INC.

04/L3/20T8 LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY

04/ T3/20T8 MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

04/L3/20t8 MADERA RADrO DTSPATCH, tNC.

o4/t3/20t8 MADERA UNTFTED SCHOOL D|STRtCT

04/B/20L8 MADERA UNTFORM & ACCESSORTES

04/I3/20L8 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL INC.

04h3/20r8 MOORE TWTNTNG ASSOCTATES, tNC

04/t3/20r8 NUNEZ, MARK

04/!3/20!8 PAC|FtC GAS & ELECTRIC

04 h3 12078 Pt ERCE CONSTRUCTTON

04/B/20r8 POLYDYNE rNC.

04h3/2018 PUBLTC SAFETY CENTER, rNC,

04/L3lZ0r8 RONALD J. MANFREDT

04/L3/2078 ROSEL, JOHN

04/L3/20L8 SERVTCEMASTER BY J&C BROWN

04/ L3/20L8 SERVTCEMASTER BY J&C BROWN

04/L3/20L8 TERRAFORM POWER, LLC.

04/L3/20T8 TEMPLE CONSULTING GROUP, LTD

04IL3/20T8 TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE DATA SOL.

04/ B/20L8 ANZALDO ALTCtA

O4h3/20T8 ARENAS DE MORALES DOMINGA AND MORALES BERNARDO

04/13l20t8 AVTLES JENNESSA

04 / t3/20!8 BERMAN EDWARD

04 h3/20!8 BERRY CONSTRUCTTON

04 / !3 /2018 BOEH M CH RrSTr NA

04/B/20t8 CARDENAS OCHOA DANELIA

04/B/20t8 CHAVEZ MARTTNEZ MARrA

04/73/20L8 Ctry OF MADERA OR VTLLANUEVA JAMES

04 h3 /20].8 CLAVTJERO-MORA NOE

04 h3 /20]'8 DOMr NGUEZ ADRTANA

04/L3/20L8 OVP LP

04 / t3 /20t8 EVERHOM E MORTGAGE

04 / t3 /20L8 FELrU KORTNT

04 / L3 /20L8 GARY PRENTTSS

04/L3/20L8 GrLL AJtr S

04/L3/20L8 GONZALEZ MIGUEL AND LUPE

04 / L3 /20L8 HALGREN MICHELLE

04 / L3 /20!8 H UARTE STEVE

04/L3/20L8 TNGHAM VtCTOR|A AND DAV|D

04/t3/20T8 KAUR SUKHWINDER AND BALWINDER SINGH

04 h3 /2018 LOPEZ RUDOLFO

04/L3/2018 MAGANA MANUEL AND FRANCISCA

04/L3/20L8 MARCTAL GTRON YOLANDA OR CIW OF MADERA

04/L3/20L8 MCKAY CATHY

04/B/20r8 MEZA EDGAR

04/L3/20L8 I\4ILLAN MARTHA AND JESUS C/O IVIADERA MANAGEMENT COMP

FUNDS ON DEpOStT FOR MEDTCAL CLATMS 04/18
SHREDDING SERVICES

03/18 CALNET 3 SVS 9391026415

CANCELLED BUSINESS LICENSE #53743

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

HOSE BIB FAUCET LOCK APPLY TO ACCOUNT 9914178

DRIP IRRIGATION REBATE APPLYTO 9901510

MULCH REBATE APPLY TO ACCT 9905819

HOSE BIB TIMERSAPPLY TO ACCOUNT 9914178

DISHWASHER REBATE APPLY TO 9901,51.0

TOILET REBATE APPLY TO ACCOUNT 4460035

REALQUEST 03/18
YOUTH CENTER IRRIGATION PUMP REPAIRS

BUSINESS CARDS SETS PD

PAN AM FIRE ALARM MONITORING

SECURITY ALARM MONITORING MAY-JUL

YOUTH CENTER SECURIry ALARM MONITORING IVIAY.SEP

Waterborne Traffic Paint

BADGES

PORTABLE TOILET 5V5

WATER SAMPLES

WATER SAMPLES

FRESNO SART

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING

EVIDENCE SUPPLIES

cDBG-FUNDED 201712018 BRIDGE TO CAREERS AUG-SEP

TOWER RENT

CNG FUEL CHARGES FOR MARCH 2018

UNIFORMS FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT

WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICE FEBRUARY 201.8

PROFESSIONAL GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING INVESTIGATIO

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT WWTP 3/22118

03/18 SVs 522s647713-s

Remove and replace damaged asphalt

WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATING

JACKETS FOR PD

BITLING CONTRACT ITEMS 3

PER DIEM CHILD ABUSE/SEXUAL ASSAULT TRAINING

VCT CLEANING AT YOUTH CENTER

IANITORIAL SERVICE APRIL 2018

03/18 ELECTRTC UTrLrrES SVs

CUSTOMIZATION - UTILITY BILLING

DATABASE ACCESS MARCH 2018

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Bllling Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billlng Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

L7256

L7257

L7258

17259

t7260
L726t
17262

17263

!7264
77265

77266

17267

77268

77269

L7270
g27r
L7272

t7273
!7274
17275

Lt2tb
17277

17278

77279

t7280
1728!
17282

L7283

L7284

L7285

L7286

t7287
17288

t7289
r7290
1729L

17292

!7293
17294

17295

77296

17297

17298

17299

17300

17301

L7302

17303

L7304

17305

17306

!7307
17308

17309

173r0
173!L
r73!2
17313

r73!4
17315

17376

I73!7
17318

r73r9
17320

fi32r
17322

77323

17324

17325

40,000.00

280.00

1,783.96

s4.00

400.00

19.98

s0.00

100.00

100.00

200.00

348.00

175.00

1,359.33

151.55

32.00

255.00

560.00

47,930.4L

379.92

50,00

1,335,00

4,987.00

1,400.00

2,732.50

7\r7
7,945.00

310.24

240.7r
63.52

372,576.r4

3,02s.00

82.40

56.61

73,2L6.t8
4,48r..5s

28.02

2,s00.00

272.00

1,340.85

13,041,31

17,360.L0

450.00

118.66

2L0.44

732.52

80.07

L45,05

5s,87

110.57

L92.64

L57.06

104.29

98.40

101.68

13.85

249.29

L6L,72

L0.42

32.07

46.65

279.63

L47.4r
L54.69

275.03

131.09

174.97

750.77

57.59

34.92

82.7!
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L7326

17327

L7328

L7329

17330

L7331

L7332

17333

r7334
1733s

L7336

L7337

17338

17339

17340

fi34r
17342

17343

77344

17345

L7346

L7347

t7348
t7349
173s0

L735L

L7352

17353

L7354

1.7355

17356

17357

173s8

17359

17360

!7361
17362

17363

17364

17365

L7366

17367

17368

L7369

L7370

L737L

17372

17373

L7374

L7375

t7376
L7377

L7378

L7379

17380

17381

t7382
17383

t7384
17385

17386

t7387
17388

17389

17390

1739r

17392

17393

t7394
r7395
t7396
17397

17398

L7399

04/L3/20r8 MTLLER iEANTNE AND TrM

04/L3/20T8 MONTES ALMA

04 / L3 /2018 NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC

04 / 13 /20L8 NAVARRO NAOM r

04 / L3 /2018 NORTEGA MARY

04/L3/2018 PLEASANTON FITNESS, LLC DBA FITNESS EVOLUTION

04 / t3 /2018 RAMr REZ RtCH

04 h3 /2018 SANCH EZ rArM E

O4/T3/20t8 SCOTT KALIM AND RACHEL EADES OR CITY OF MADERA

04/B/20L8 SHETKH KHUBATB

04 / 73/2018 SORELLE KEN NETH

04/73/20L8 TARLTON PROPERTTES LLC

04/B/20L8 THE SALVATION ARMY

04 / 73 /20L8 WATERMAN DARRALD

04/r3/20L8 VrLLA GARDENTNG SERVICE rNC

04 / t3/20L8 WATERTALENT, LLC

04h3120L8 WEST COAST ARBORTSTS, rNC.

04/L3/20L8 ZEE MEDTCAL SERVTCE CO.

04 /20 /2018 ACRO SERVTCE CORPORATTON

04 /20 /2018 ACRO SERVTCE CORPORATTON

04/20/2018 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS

04/20/2078 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS

04/20/2078 ARAMARK UNTFORM SERVICES

04/20/20!8 Ar&T
04/20/20!8 JrMS A/C

04/20/20!8 JrMS A/C

04/20/2018 JrMs A/C

04/20/20t8 JrMS A/C

04120/20L8 JrMS A/C

04/20/20L8 JrMS A/C

04120/20L8 JrMS A/C

04/20/20L8 JrMS A/C

04/20/2018 THE BUSTNESS JOURNAL

04/20/20!8 CALTFORNTA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTTCE

04/20/20T8 CALIFORNIA SURVEYING AND DRAFTING SUPPLY

04/20/2018 ctTY oF TVTADERA

O4/20/20L8 CITY OF MADERA

04/20/2018 crrY oF MADERA

04/20/2018 CrrY OF MADERA

04/20/2018 crrY oF MADERA

04/20/20t8 ctrY oF MADERA

04/20/2018 crrY oF MADERA

04/20/20t8 crrY oF MADERA

04/20/20!8 CtrY OF MADERA

04/20/20!8 CtrY OF MADERA

04/20/2018 C|TY OF MADERA

04/20/2018 ctTY oF MADERA

04/20/2018 crTY oF MADERA

04/20/2078 C|TY OF MADERA

04/20/20L8 CrW OF MADERA

04/20/20L8 C|TY OF MADERA

04/20/2018 crrY oF MADERA

04/20/20L8 CtrY OF MADERA

04/20/20L8 C|TY OF MADERA

04 /2O/20t8 COLGAN CONSULTT NG CORPORATTON

04 /20 /2018 CONCENTRA MEDTCAL CENTERS

04 /20/2018 coRELOGtC TNFORMATTON SOLUTTONS rNC

04 /20/2018 cwEA-csJ sEcTroN

04 /20 /20L8 CWEA-CSJ SECTION

04 /20/2018 cwEA-csJ sEcTloN

O4/2O/20L8 DEMSEY, FILLIGER & ASSOCIATES, LLC

04/2O/20L8 DTAMOND COMMUNTCATTONS

04/20/20L8 ECN pOLYGRAPH AND TNVESTtGATTONS

04/20/2018 R MTTCH COVINGTON

04/20/2018 FIRE SAFETY SOLUTtONS, LLC

04/20/20t8 FIRST TRANSTT tNC.

04/2O/20t8 FRESNO BEE, THE

04 /2O/20L8 FRESNO REPROGRAPHTCS

04/20/20L8 GUARDTAN WESTERN SWEEPING tNC.

04 /20 /20L8 H ERC RENTALS

04/20/20L8 HOUSTNG AUTHORTTY OF THE Ctry OF MADERA

04/20/20t8 INTERNATIONALASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE

04 /20 /20L8 JORGENSEN COM PANY

04/20/20L8 KEy TRACER SYSTEMS tNC.

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Bllling Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utllity Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Bllling Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

MARCH GARDENING SVs

WWTP Temp Operator

PARK TREE MAINTENANCE O3/OL/ L9-c3/ T5I L8

MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Temporary Draftsman fr FY18/19

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

CITY PAID RETIREE MEDICAL BILL IVIAY 2018

ctTY PAtD RETTREE PRESCRTPTTON BrLL0s/L8 - SKEE6

03/18 UNTFORM SERVTCES

03/18 CALNET 3 SVS 9391026397

CANCELLED PERMIT fi20180720

CANCELLED PERMIT #20180718

CANCELLED PERMIT #20180710

CANCELLED PERMIT #20180716

CANCELLED PERMIT #20180708

CANCELLED PERMIT f 20].80706

CANCELLED PERMIT #20180704

CANCELTED PERMIT #20],80702

LEGAL DIRECTORY

FINGERPRINT APPS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

HOSE BIB FAUCET LOCK APPLY TO ACCOUNT 9901.51.0

MULCH REBATE APPLY TO ACCT 4614004

04/18 UTtLtTTES ACCT# 003040421-6

DRIP IRRIGATION REBATE APPLY TO 6725051

RAINWATER BARRELL. APPLY TO ACCT 9909743

04/18 UTTLTTTES ACCT# 003040431-8

04/1.8 UTr LTT|ES ACCT# 00304044r.-0

REFUND PERMIT FEES #20180722

MULCH REBATE APPLY TO ACCT 9897357

MISAPPLIED PAYMENT APPLY TO A/R ACCT #6049

MULCH REBATE APPLY TO ACCT 6725051

MULCH REBATE APPLY TO ACCT 9921687

TOILET REBATE APPLY TO ACCOUNT 5714002

TOILET REBATE APPLY TO ACCOUNT 91O9OO1

SMART IRRIGATION CONTROLER . APPLY TO ACCT 9901510

DISHWASHER REBATE APPLY TO 6831603

TOILET REBATE APPLY TO ACCOUNT 9405201

CLOTHES WASHER REBATE - APPLY TO ACCT 9923OOO

TOILET REBATE APPLY TO ACCOUNT 6831603

Professional Services Related

PRE EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL

METRO SCAN 03/18
FEE FOR CLASS FOR KEN LEE

FEE FOR CLASS FOR ANTHONY MUNOZ

FEE FOR CLASS FOR ALEX IVIACHADO

GASB 45 Actuarial Valuation

TELEPHONE ANSWERING SERVICE - APR

POLYGRAPH FOR PD RECRUITMENTS

RELEASE OF CASH BOND FOR UN-SET MONUMENTS

FrRE PROTECTTON ENG SVS 04/01/18-04/ts/r8
FIRST TRANSIT FEBRUARY 2018

RECRUITMENT ADS

PRINT IOB

Weekly Street Sweeping of Down

Misc equipment rental

REIMBURSE EXPENSES - POMONA RANCH HOMELESS SHELTER

MEMBER NO. 1888353 - LAWSON / 2018

FIRE EXT SERVICE

KEY CONTROL SYSTEM; VEHICLES,

99.87

237.3L

L66.62

159.99

67.30

1,960.97

102.85

L7.42

151.33

L1.96

69.58

40.!z
158,54

25.r1
275.00

4,000.00

10,800.00

133.53

2,272.32

2,720.00

L,730.64

169.80

4,338.43

567.49

85.10

85,10

85.10

85.10

85.10

85.10

85.10

85.10

20.00

2,499.00

478.98

28.50

31.50

53.47

60.25

75.64

77.27

84.38

85.10

100.00

t17.28
158.00

175.00

179.50

195.00

199.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

294.00

s,r.00.00

7L2.00

150.00

20.00

2s.00

25.00

3,500.00

LL5.00

2,700.00

10,800.00

2,962.50

70,605.44

719,80

468.56

s69.00

1,586.95

29,6n.r8
L50.00

31.!7
7,838.26
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L7400

]740r
t7402
t7403
17404

L7405

t7406
17407

r7408
t7409
t74r0
1741L

fi4r2
t7413
fi4r4
t7475
t74!6
17477

I74T8
77479

17420

!742r
t7422
!7423
77424

r7425
t7426
17427

t7428
17429

L7430

L7431

L7432

L7433

17434

L7435

L7436

L7437

L7438

L7439

r7440
17441

17442

L7443

t7444
L7445

t7446
t7447
t7448
t7449

1745r
17452

17453

!7454
17455

t7456
L7457

L7458

L7459

L7460

L746t
!7462
77463

77464

77465

17466

17467

L7468

L7469

L7470

L747L

17472

17473

04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/20!8
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/2O/2018

04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/2012018

04120/20L8

04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2078
04/20/2078
04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/20!8
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2018
04/20/20t8
04/20/2018
04/20/20!8
04/20/2018
04/20/20t8
04/20/2018
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/2O/20L8

04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/zo/20t8
04/20/20t8
04/20/20L8
04/20/2018
04/20/2018
04/20/2078
04/20/2078
04120/2018

04/20/20t8
04/2O/20L8

04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/20L8
04/20/2018

LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES, INC.

LARS ANDERSEN & ASSOCIATES, INC.

MADERA CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC.

MADERA TRIBUNE

MADERA UNIFORM & ACCESSORIES

NICHOLS CONSULTING ENGINEERS, CHTD.

FLORES, CHRIS

HANSEN, MICHAEL & ASHLEY

MEINZER, CRAIG

MEINZER, CRAIG

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

ARTEAGA, RUBEN

AVILA, ALANE

GUERRA, CASSANDRA

GUTKNECHT, IANE

JAUREGUI, AMELIA

JUAREZ, ALBERTO

LECHUGA, MARYANN

MEJIA, SANDI

MOUNT ZION MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH

TISCARENO, JOSUE

VEGA, ANGIE

WE CONNECT C/O MARTHA ZARATE

PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC.

PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP

RON'S TOWING & ROAD SERVICE

SEABURY, COPELAND & ANDERSON

SPARKLETTS

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROT BOARD

SUPERIOR VISION INC.

T.MOBILE USA, INC.

TAMARACK PEST CONTROL

TESEI PETROLEUM, INC.

TESEI PETROLEUM, INC.

TRANSIGN LLC

TUCKNESS, MATTHEW

BRAVO SIMON AND PETROLINA

CAPPELLUTI LOURDES

CEVASCO SANDRA AND WILLIAM OR THE CITY OF MADERA

CITY OF MADERA OR LOMELI ALVAREZ KARINA

CITY OF MADERA OR RAMIREZ KATHERINE

CORREA MELISSA

GONZALEZ SANDRA

HOULDING JERRY AND LOUISE

KEY CHARLES

LOMELI ALMA

LOPEZ MARIA CRUZ

MADERA MANAGEMENT COMPANY INC

MAGALLANES JOSE JR OR CITY OF MADERA

MAGGIORE JACOB

MANZANO JOSEFINA OR CITY OF MADERA

MARTINEZ SABINA OR THE CITY OF MADERA

MEDINA ERNESTO C

MOLINA MARIA C

NGUYEN NAOMI

OLIVA PEDRO JR AND LATIMER MONIQUE D

POPIEL WESLEY P AND DOLORES

Rros soNrA s

ROBLES-CASTRO CARLOS ALBERTO OR THE CIry OF MADERA

SPRAGUE RASHELL

STATON STACEY

STONERIDGE APARTMENTS H2 PROPERTIES

TORNERO MIGUEL ANTONIO OR CITY OF MADERA

TRUJILLO ELY SALVADOR

TUCK JEFF

VAZQUEZ BALDEMAR

VELAZQUEZ RICARDO OR CITY OF MADERA

VILLANUEVA JAMES

VON FLUE STEVEN D AND JERILYN

UNITED RENTALS, INC

WATERTALENT, LLC

WEST COAST ARBORISTS, INC,

HARRY D. WILSON INC,

YAMABE & HORN ENGINEERING

TRANSLATION SERVICES

ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATING

YOUTH CENTER MAT SERVICE

P.C, NOTICE APR.

UNIFORMS FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT

STATE MANDATED COST CONSULTING SERVICES

TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE - 1214 CRYSTAL WAY

TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE - 692 BLUEBERRY LN

TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE - 1331 MONTEREY

TURF REPTACEMENT REBATE - 1.259 SENECA

o3/18 SVS 857s479s83

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK OEPOSIT REFUND

FACILITY DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

FACILITY DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

FACILIry DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

PARK DEPOSIT REFUND

FACILITY DEPOSIT REFUND

OVERPAYMENT FOR NON-PROFIT . PAN AM PARK

CYLINDER DEMURRAGE RENTAL

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN

TOW sVS

AIRPORT LIABILITY - 3RD INSTALL

LAB & DRINKING WATER

ANNUAL PERMIT FEE

MARCH 2018 VISION INSURANCE

TOWER DUMP 02lr.9/18
APRIL 2018 PEST CONTROL SVS

FUEL

FUEL CHARGES 03/2t-03/3L/ 18

Replacement Roller Signs

ADVANCED DISABILITY PENSION PAYMENT - APRIL 2018

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Bllling Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility BillinC Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credlt Refund

Utility Billing Credlt Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Credit Refund

Utillty Billing Credit Refund

Utility Billing Deposit Refund

Utllity Billing Credit Refund

Misc. equipment rental
WWTP Temp Operator
PARK TREE MATNTENANCE 03 /t6/L8-03/3!$
2014 HONDA SERVICE

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICE

72.87

510.00

32.30

836.00

23.65

1,200.00

800.00

1,953.00

2,103.05

2,965.36

25,904.95

50.00

50.00

50.00

s0.00

s0.00

100.00

100,00

50,00

50.00

50.00

100.00

7.50
468.44

3,909.15

490.00

8,230.00

83.64

1,400.00

2,435.58

s0.00

s10.00

L,077.79

11,863.06

4,595.00

2,900.10

170.34

t63.r7
15r..34

150.91

198.19

58.78

44.8r
26.56

84.98

68.61

160.98

1r.5.30

r.51.45

17L54
150.91

ts'J-.47

52.00

t2.59
54.15

312,10

40.46

44.88

152.13

52.04

69,46

3,967.22

150.68

L24,73

149.06

t94.14
133.71

43.31

373.95

973.99

4,000.00

14,250,00

90.00

6,897.7L
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L7474

t7475
17476

t7477
L7478

L7479

17480

r748L

04/20120t8 YAMABE & HORN ENGTNEERTNG

04/ 2O/20L8 ALL VALLEY ADMTNTSTRATORS

04/20/20L8 CA DEPARTMENT OF CHTLD SUPPORT

a4/20/20t8 coLoNtAL LtFE & ACCTDENT TNSURANCE CO

04 /20/20L8 N.P.C.-ORCHABD TRUST COMPANY

04 /20 /20L8 N,P,C,-ORCHARD TRUST COMpANy

04/20/20L8 STATE OF CALTFORNTA

04/zo/20L8 VANTAGEPOTNT TRANSFER AGENTS-457

PROVIDE SURVEYING SERVICES

MEDICAL & CHILD CARE EXPENSE ACCT O4l20l18 PAYROLL

cHrLD SUPPORT DEDUCTTONS FOR 04/20/18 PAYROLL

E700482-3 FOR 04/20118 PAYROLL

PLAN #340227-02 FOR 04/20/18 PAYROLL

PLAN f340227-01 FOR 04/20118 PAYROLL

FRANCHTSE TAX DEDUCTTONS FOR 04/20/18 PAYROLL
pLAN S3023s1 CONTRTBS FOR 04/20/18 PAYROTI

Bank fl 1 - Union Bank General Account Total

1,687.50

984.19

2,07r,80
994,79

z,!4L.30
9,495.47

238.L2

24,r30.44

8r0,43s.92

40F 4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

MEETING DATE: May 2,20L8

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: B-]

Approved By:

INTERI Ltc RKS DIRECTOR

96,,L-'
ctrv drvilNsTRATon

SUBJECT: Water Conservation Report for March 26th through April 22"d

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council review the attached report of water conservation
activities and progress in reducing residential water consumption.

BACKGROUND: This report addresses the four different areas of focus: water conservation & education,
water patrol activity, water meter maintenance activities, and information on the overall capacity of the
water wells, the amount of production, and reserve production capacity.

WATER CONSERVATION: As illustrated in the chart, the City's average monthly water conservation rate
for March 2018 is increased at 375% from 22% in April 20L7. Below is the most current water
conservation data.

Monthly

Mar..-Apr.
26th _ 22nd

37.5%

Cumulative

June 1"t, 2015
Apr.22nd,20'18

23%

Return to Agenda



Madera City Council

3s.o%

30.o%

25.O%

20.0%

ts.0%

t0.o%

5.0%

0.o%

Staff Repoft - Water Conseruation Repoft May 2, 2018
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CONSERVATION OUTREACH: As part of our local outreach and education, water conservation
presentations were made at the following events.

WATER PATROI: The division is preparing for peak irrigation watering season and assuring that all staff
is trained and proficient in using the new electronic citation entry system. The water patrol staff made a

total of 104 individual public contacts. Below is the most current enforcement data.

WATER METERS: ln addition to the monthly reading of the manual read meters and the service
interruptions due to delinquency during this reporting period, the water meter staff performed various
repair and/or meter programming at 54 properties. Customer concern investigations were conducted
and the investigations resulted in discovery of leaks at 5 properties and need for irrigation timer
adjustment at one property. Notification of possible leak were sent out to 5 additional properties.

2

-Weeks 
% Saved

-Cumulative 
Savings

%

Gonservation Outreach

Pershing Elementary School (80 Students)

Earth Day Event - 4121118 (250 Contacts)

lndividual Gontacts

VerbalWarnings

Gorrection Notices

ENFORCEMENT

104 l"t offenses ($75)

5 2nd offenses ($200)

12 3'd or more offense ($500)

16

0

0



Madera City Council Staff Repoft - Water Conseruation Report May 2, 2018

REBATE PROGRAM: This reporting period, the division has received a total of 28 new applications for
various rebate opportunities. To date, a total of approximately 577,800 rebate dollars have been awarded
this fiscal year compared to 527,120 total rebate dollars awarded for fiscal year t6/I7.

SYSTEM CAPACITY: Attached is a table which shows the daily quantity of water pumped and performance
of the City's system of water wells and its ability to provide fire flow between March 26th and April 22nd
2018. The system has continued to produce adequate flows to meet our peak demand and maintain
reserve fire flow capacity.

FINANCIAI IMPACT: The expenses for implementing and administering these water conservation
activities occur within the Water Fund and do not impact the General Fund.

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PIAN: The report is consistent with the Madera Vision
Plan, specifically Strategy 434: Water Quality and Usage: ensure continued water supplies to meet the
demands of all Maderans through innovative reclamation, conservation and education on water use.

3



Madera City Council

* Goal is to keep system above 30 psi., below 20 caus legulatory isue.
** Elevated tank has a 1,000,000 gallon maximum capacilv.

Totll uralls
llyclls Not AEilable
#16 Being Retrofitted for Submersible Pump to Gain 500 gpm

#20 Air intr usion

#26 Pulled as of 1U212017

_#27 Redevelopment in proces

Staff Report - Water Conservation Repoft May 2, 2018

CITYOF MADERA

sTAruS REPORT March 25th APRlL 22nd,2018 OEPARTMENT OF PUBUC WORKS
WA1ER PRODUCNON AND RESERVE fIRE T|.()lfl CAPABITN'Y WATER DIVISION

Daily Production
lt a)ix-

l

o
6.00c]

!-!0,:

.,tr.$+$o'$ d +a gfgfo$glo,tr d ol! <9s3,os a$5d <9 6 cr' ef{tr {s$ol <o" +' .f of
DAY OF THE WEEK

18

4

Reserves Meets Fire flow for

Hospital

4,500 GPM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

lnd ust rial

3.500 GPM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Commercaa

2,500 GPM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Residentb I

1,500 GPM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Reserw

GPM at

Peak

14031

13121

L2L37

12131

13361

72L31

13121

12 131

72t11

12 131

12 131

74t52

12L31

L2L31

13721

L3L21

11121

Lat21
73942

13 121

13L71

14691

12131

12131

72731

13121

LL793

10593

Wells in Reserw
During Peak Hqurs

11

1C

9

9

10

9

10

9

9

9

11

9

9

10

10

10

10

10

9

9

10

9

I

1(

Wells on During

Peak Hours

3

A

4

4

3

4

4

4

4

4

5

4

5

5

5

4

5

5

wells
Available

1A

14

rA

LA

L4

74

\A

14

1,4

74

74

74

14

'J.4

14

14

L4

L4

L4

14

L4

74

14

74

14

14

14

IA

Lowest Tank

storage $*

820,000

780,000

780,000

780,000

7&),000

780,000

7&),000

780,000

780,000

780,000

780,000

780,00(

7fl),00t
/&],00(
780,00(

7m,00(
7s,ooc
780,00c

780,00(

7g).00t
820.00t

7$,00t
7a),00c

7&1.00c

780,00c

7&),00c

820,00c

680,000

Lowest

Pressure*

46

4t

44

4:
4t
4:
42

43

4:
u
41

44

44

46

4t
43

43

43

M
4l
4t
45

45

46

46

44

Peak Hour

5pm5pm
10pm-1lpm

8pm-9pm

8pm-9pm

lp m-2 pm

10pm-1lpm
10pm-1lpm
/pm-8pm

l0pm-1lpm

6pm-7pm

'pm€pm

10pm-11pm

Loam-Llpm

9pm-10pm

8pm-9pm

8pm-9pm

10Dm- 1lDm
8pm-9pm

10om-11Dm

10Dm-1lpm

lpm4pm
90m-100m

60m-7om

Bpm-9pm

lopm-1lpm
10pm-1lpm
9Dm-10Dm

MG

Pumped

4.15,1

5.O1:

5.361

5.m2

4,4
5.62t

5.57:

4.838

5-96!

5-m€

5.10'

4.379

5.451

5,594

4.448

5.653

5.517

4.935

4.908

6.421

6.7J3

4.53 5

5.657

5.813

5.213

5.()94

6.152

7.380

Peak

Temp

6i
6!

7:
8C

a2

8(

79

7:
79

8t
74

6€

7t
69

79

79

63

69

78

81

61

63

65

7A

83

86

Day

MOn

I ues

/l/e d

I'h uF
Fri

ial
run

Mon

fues

rved

I hurs
:ti
;at
;un

Vlo n

lue
,/Ved

lhu
-n

;at
Sun

lvlo n

Tue

wed
fhu
Fri

sal

Sun

Dates

ll tbl tuLa
3/2712018

3/2a/zola
3129/2078

3/30/2018

3l3L/207A
4tLlz0re
41212078

4t!1207A
4/41lor8
4/ SI ZOLa

4/6/2Ot8
4/7/20t8
4l8l20La

4191207A

4lLOlzOt8
4/tt/207a
41121207A

4/L3l20tA
4/14120!A

4175/20rA

4116lZOla

4lL7t20lt
4/t81201'

4l19l20M
4lzolzotl
4l2Ll20',
4122/2078

14 Numb€r of lttells Awil.bl€

Well Status 03.26-04.22 rlsbMW



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

Council Meeting of May 2,20L8

Agenda ltem Number B-4

Approved By:

Mary A eSe3Y,

Parks & mmunity Services Director

Affi E^^'
Steve Frazier, City Affiinistrator

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY

2OL7-2OL8 BUDGET APPROPRIATING 535,135.09 FROM THE FUNDS DESIGNATED

FOR GOLF COURSE EMERGENCY REPAIR ACCOUNT TO CAPITAL OUTLAY
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT IN THE GOLF COURSE FUND FOR REPAIRS TO THE

GOLF COURSE WATER WELL

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council approve the Resolution Authorizing Amendments to the FY 2OI7-2018
Budget Appropriating $35,t35.09 from the funds designated for Golf Course Emergency Repair
account to Capital Outlay Equipment Replacement in the Golf Course Fund for repairs to the golf
course water well.

SUMMARY:

The City of Madera and Sierra Golf Management (SGM) entered into an operation and
management Lease Agreement in October of 2009. One of the terms of the Agreement (Term 5.5
on Page 5) states the City shall retain a reserve account for emergency maintenance work at the
golf course and the funds therein are to be made available should the need arise. SGM found it
necessary to contract emergency well work to adequately maintain the course. The resolution
brought before you would reimburse SGM for their expenditures related to this work.

Parks & Community Services
701 East Sth Street * Madera, CA 93638. TEL (559)661-5495 * FAX (559)675-3827

vwvw.madera-ca.gov

Return to Agenda



SITUATION:
There are three wells located on the Madera Municipal Golf Course property: one that services
the clubhouse and banquet facilities with potable water and two that provide irrigation water to
the golf course. The well on the north side of the driving range (near Avenue L7) was not
functioning and SGM contracted Madera Pumps to assess the situation and make the repairs.

Madera Pumps inspected the site and found severe deterioration of the well casing using a video
survey. This deterioration is allowing sand to enter the column and severely limit the life of the
pump due to the pumping sand. After repairs totaling 535,135.09, the pump is currently
operational. lt is critical, however, to call out the complete findings from Madera Pumps.
Essentially, the system is old and has structural issues leading experts to assume that a new well
will be needed soon. There is no precision to predicting the remaining life of the system, experts
estimate a new well may be needed within the next L-3 years. The cost of a new well is
anticipated to be approximately S150,000 - S200,000.

While the life expectancy of the well is not immediately known, there is good news in that the
Madera lrrigation District has purchase water available this year. As such, SGM staff plan to use
the recently repaired well as little as possible to extend its usable life. The availability of purchase
water year over year is tenuous, at best and two working wells are required to protect the
infrastructure at the course.

Below is Term 5.5 of the Agreement between the City and SGM as it relates to the Capital
lmprovement Account:

Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing through the lnitial Term and Renewal
Term, the City shall hold in reserves 590,000 in the Golf Course Capital lmprovement
Account and shall make such funds available exclusively for capital improvement projects at
the Leased Premises os an emergency action in case of catastrophic faiture of systems at
the golf course not within the maintenence and improvement responsibilities of SGM as set
forth in this Lease Agreement, including such items os well ond pump stotions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement with SGM, the City is responsible to maintain a 590,000
balance in a Capital lmprovement Account to cover emergency and catastrophic failures. The
revenue for this account is generated by payments from SGM in the form of base and per round
revenue. Base rent is currently 540,000 per year and revenue from rounds played has escalated
from St.00 per round at the beginning of the contract to 52.00 per round now.

The total expenditures for this work were $35,135.09. The unspent portion of this appropriation
and golf course revenues will make up the balance of the S9O,0O0 account. Since golf course
revenues are typically used to make bond payments, additional General Fund resources may be
needed to make that payment, depending on the ultimate revenues paid by sGM.



CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PIAN

Strategy 333 - Ensure affordable, high-quality sports programs for people of all ages.

Strategy 4LL- Enhance and expand recreational opportunities available to Maderans.



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA, CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING
AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2OL7-2OL$ BUDGET APPROPRTATTNG 535,135.09 FROM THE
FUNDS DESIGNATED FOR GOLF COURSE EMERGENCY REPAIR ACCOUNT TO CAPITAL
OUTLAY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT IN THE GOLF COURSE FUND FOR REPAIRS TO THE
GOIF COURSE WATER WELL

WHEREAS, the City has a Lease Agreement with Sierra Golf Management (SGM) for the

operation and Management of the Madera Municipal Golf course (MMGC); and

WHEREAS, Term 5.5 of said Lease Agreement requires that the City maintain S90,OO0 in a

Capital lmprovement Account to be used in the event of emergency Capital Work; and

WHEREAS, the City of Madera has need to repair a City water production well at the MMGC

due to a failure; and

WHEREAS, City and SGM Staff determined that the existing well failure qualified as

emergency use as defined by the terms of the existing agreement; and

WHEREAS, Change of Appropriation transfers must be made within City Budget accountsto

make expenditures; and

WHEREAS, staff has prepared Exhibit AA which is incorporated by reference herein, to

reflect the appropriate accounts and amounts to be transferred within the budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA hereby finds, orders and

resolves as follows:

1,. The above recitals are true and correct.

2' The budget is hereby amended in accordance with Exhibit AA, attached to this resolution.
3' The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to forward a copy of this resolution to the

Director of Finance, who is authorized to take such action as necessary to implement the
terms of this resolution.

4. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

******



EXHIBIT AA

CITY OF MADERA

Appropriation Adiustment:

Emergency Repairs to Water Well at the Golf Gourse

FUND
ORG

CODE
OBJECT

CODE DESCRIPTION (+) (-)

Golf Gourse Operations (20601

2060 20606290

2060

7000

331 1

Vehicles and Equipment

Fund Balance Designated for Capital

35,135.09

(35,135.09)

35,135.09 (35,135.09)

Note: Funding for these emergency repairs will be coming from 2060-3311 - Designated for Capital (Green Fee Rounds), which
is a balance sheet account with funds set aside and designated for such projects.

1



Madera Pumps, lnc,
1 1884 Rd. 29

P.O. Box 1302

Madera, Ca. 93639
(559)674.0096

Bill To

Sierra Golf Management
P,O, Box 788
Chowchilla, CA 93610

lnvoice
Date lnvoice #

ul9rzal8 17257

P.O. ...

Make

Location

Meter #

Terms Net 30

Johnston Pump N... 40 flP

Madera Municipal Colf Course

t0102383t9

CT&S Setting SWL Depth WellSize Bowls

8x2xl l/4 na' 24s', 445' t2.25" 8 Stage 10"

Qty Description Amount

I

3

6
I

I
I

I
320

8"x20'ButtT&C
2" x I l/4" x20' Floway LH T & S

TopT&SAssy,
Spiders & Oil
8 Stage 10" Bowl Assy,
8" x 98' Suction Flow Control Device
ft, 3/8" Ailine & Bracket Assy.
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL NEEDED OUTSIDE OF ESTIMATE:
8" x 24" Nipple
BowlBLg, Adapter
Sq. Tubing Spacer
Taxable Sub Total

Labor to Pull Pump
Video Well
Shop/Welding Labor
Airlift & Brush Well
Labor to Re-lnstall Pump
ADD]TIONAL LABOR PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF

ESTIMATE:
Shop/Welding Labor
Crane Labor
Airlift Well
Labor to Inspect Panel, Set Lateral

1,757.14

6,742,86
632,00

240,00
8,974.95
3,851.77

21 5,1 0

135.71

428.51

23.14

23,001.24

1,622.50
650.00

1,170.00
3,245.00

1,917.50

1,003.75

405.00
295.00

42.50

Thank you [ot'yor.rr business.
Sales Tax {7.75%)

Due Date 5n9n0fi Total

Page 1



Madera Pumps, lnc.
11884 Rd.29
P.O. Box 1302
Madera, Ca. 93639
(55s)674.0096

Bill To

Sierra Golf Management
P.O, Box 788
Chowchilla, CA 93610

EGtrIIVtr
APR 2 I t0t0

lnvoice
D Date lnvoice #

4n9t20t8 l't257

P.O....

Make

Location

Meter #

Terms Net 30

Johnston PumP N.,, 40 HP

Madera Mtrnicipal Goll Course

r0102383r9

BowlsDepth WellSizeSetting SWLCT&S

12.25" 8 Stnge 10"24s'. 44S'.320'8x2xl l/4

AmountDescriptionQtv

Job #57349

Sales Tax 17.75%l s I,782.60
'l'lrank you lor your brrsiness.

5/r9/2018 Total $35,135.09Due Date

Page 2



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING OF M 2,2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER B-5

PREPARED BY: Ann , Director
Parks & Community Services Department

APPROVED BY: Steve er, City Administrator

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FACILITY USE AGREEMENT
wlrH FRESNO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATTON (FCOE) FOR USE OF SCOUT |STAND
OUTDOOR EDUCATION CENTER AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY

RECOMM NDATION:
Staff recommends Council adopt a resolution approving a Facility Use Agreement between the
City and the Fresno County Office of Education (FCOE)for use of Scout lsland Outdoor Education
Center. Staff further recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to execute the Agreement on
behalf of the City.

DISCUSSION:

Even though natural wonders such as Yosemite and Kings Canyon National parks are within close
proximity to Madera, surprisingly many of the youth who participate in the parks and Community
Services (PCS) after school recreation programs have little experience beyond their urban
environment. PCS has a programmatic offering that provides a day trip into a more natural
surrounding away from the confines of the city landscape. Apart from the recreational
opportunities, the day trips are designed to promote the practice of life and environmental
science which among others, offers the following benefits, which in turn are our program goals:

Parks & Community Services
701 East Sth Street * Madera, cA 93638 . TEL (559) 661-549s * FAX (5s9) 675-3822

www.madera-ca.gov
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L. Provides an opportunity for hands-on, interactive learning.
2. Provides a venue beyond the classroom with a direct connection to the learning material
3. Begins or continues a dialogue about how environmental issues affect the daily lives of

ordinary people.

4. Enhances the promotion of healthy lifestyle activities.
5. Helps students make connections between social, ecological, science, economic, cultural

and political issues.

ln addition to the benefits listed above, offering life and environmental science programming and
excursions has been an integral part of the PCS recreation curriculum for some time.
Programming at after school sites as well as local recreation centers includes Project Wild
curriculum. This specific outdoor daytrip program has been planned to ignite an enthusiasm
among the youth participants for outdoor recreation as well as life and environmental science.

Fresno County Office of Education (FCOE) operates field trips out of their Scout lsland Outdoor
Education Center on the San Joaquin River. The trips encompass both recreational and
educational elements. PCS has requested two days of field trips with the intention of taking after
school recreation program participants to canoeing, a birds of prey exhibition, nature walks and
other river based activities. FCOE requires Scout lsland user groups including the City to execute a

Facility Use Agreement in order to participate in their program. The Agreement defines insurance
requirements, transfer of liability and terms and charges for use.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
FCOE is charging a total of S1,475.00 for the two day use of the Education Center. Specific
funding for these excursions has been provided by Madera Unified School District as part of an

after school program agreement between the District and the City. The cost has been anticipated
in the Council approved FY 2OL7-I8 Recreation Budget (10206200).

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PIAN:
The recommended actions support the following Vision Madera 2025 strategies:

Strategy 332 Youth Services: Expand comprehensive services for Madera's youth,
including employment opportunities, community activities, sports
programs, performing arts and after-school programs.

Strategy 404 Promote increased com munity wellness.

Strategy 411: Enhance and expand recreational activities available to Maderans



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA APPROVING
A FACILITY USE AGREEMENT WITH FRESNO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
(FCOEI FOR USE OF SCOUT TSTAND OUTDOOR EDUCATTON CENTER AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF

THE CITY

WHEREAS, outdoor recreation and life and environmental science have demonstrated

benefits for the youth of a community; and

WHEREAS, the City through the Parks and Community Services Department offers a

program to the youth of Madera that encompasses elements of recreation and education in a

natural environment; and

WHEREAS, FCOE operates field trips out of Scout lsland Outdoor Education Center on the

San Joaquin River that align with the objectives of the recreation and education program provided

to Madera's youth; and

WHEREAS, the City's Parks and Community Services Department wishes to provide field

trips at the Scout lsland facility; and

WHEREAS, FCOE has prepared a Facility Use Agreement that specifies the responsibilities

of the FCOE and the City pertaining to the use of the Scout lsland Education Center; and

WHEREAS, the Facility Use Agreement is in the best interest of the City, FCOE and the

youth of Madera.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA, HEREBY, finds, orders and
resolves as follows:

1,. The above recitals are true and correct.

2. The Facility Use Agreement with Fresno County Office of Education, a copy of which is

on file in the office of the City Clerk and referred to for particulars, is hereby

approved.

3. The Mayor is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City.

4. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.

**t*.*



s(OUT IsLAND
OUTDOOR EDUCATION CENTER

Fn.esnc: coanty sarpen'latet:Oent o.g. scbools
APPLICATION & AGREEMENT FOR FACILITES USE

Organization/School: City of Madera Parks & Commun ity Services Department # Attendees. 60 Day 1(Dl) and a0 Day 2 (D2)

Event Date June 20 and 21.2018 Start-End Tirne D1-8:00am to 2:00 D2-8:00am to 2:00pm

Contact Person Jennifer Schneider Contact Phone (559) 662-4986

Contact Email jschneider@cityofmadera.com Contact Cell (s 87 1-1649

EVENT INFORMATION: D1 - Grades K-3 activities: Birds of Prey (if Falconer is Available), Draw the River, and I Spy

D2 - Grades 4-B activities: Canoeing, Birds of Prey, Service Learning, Suitcase for Survival (if time permits).

SPECIAL INSTRUCTI Your organization will need to submit a Certificate of Liability lnsurance that meets the requirements outlined in

paragraph 1 (lnsurance) of the facility use agreement. Please carpool.

RESERVATTON AREA(S); TBD

EVERYONE PARTICIPATING IN CANOEING AND THE SERVICE LEARNING PROJECT MUST HAVE A SIGNED LIABILITY WAIVER.

SCOUT ISLAND FEES

FacilityUse:$90 Teacher(s) s1 ,000.00 Canoeing:$ 175.00 Other: q 0.00 Total s 1,475.00

PLEASE BRING A CHECK MADE PAYABLE TO FCS.S-^SCOAT ISLAND ON THE DAY OF YOUR FIELD TRIP
oR SEND A COMPLETED PURCHASE ORDER TO 559-265-4063 OR MSTEWART@FCOE.ORG. IF yOU SEND
A COMPLETED PURCHASE ORDER AN INVOICE WILL BE MAILED TO YOUR FINANCE OFFICE.

TRANSPORTATION
Scout Island is accessed by a one lane road. Please drive careftllly, obserye the 25 mph speed liurit and watch out for
pedestrians, golf cafts, bicycles and children. Parking at Scout Island is limited. Carpooling, van and/or bus usage is requested
for all events. Please list the nunrber of vehicles that r,r,ill be used to tl'arlsport attendees to the site.

BUSSES: 1 VANS: O PRIVATE VEHICLES 5

OPERATING HOURS AND ACCESS
Operating Holtrs: Scottt Island operates Monday - Friday 8 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. Saturday events are lirnited and require special
permissiotr. Access to Scout Island is controlled by electric gates. Please coordinate your access with Scout Island Staff.

LIABILITY WAIVER
Liability waivers are required for all participants in Service-Learning projects, Canoeing, and the Ropes Course.

Please contact the coordinator for the proper form to be completed prior to youl'event.

Contact for questions and information:

Matt Stewart

(5 59) 265 -4062 / mstewart@fcoe.org



SCOL:T {SL;{}iD OCTDOOR tDirC.\T{O]\ CSHT{R
FA CII-iTY US$, r.1. GR.Eil}{E}iT

Crgan izationlSchoo { City oi rviadera Parks & Communjly Seryices i\itendees 60 Day 1 (D1 ) and 40 Day 2 iD2)
Event June 20 3nd 21 . 201 3 Time. D1-8:00am io 2:00 D2€:00am io 2:00pm

TerYns & Coodltions

{NSlRAli-CE: {Pkase check with Scout Islund Staff to determine if an Insurunce Certificate ls required). The Orgaiizarionl agrees to obrain at its sole
expexse and to pro'ride eriidence of liabllitv insurance providing lor minimum liabiliLl coverage of i ,000,000 for bodily inju,v..- or properry damage arising
r?cm the use ofthe tbciliqv. such policy must provide coverage on an occuffence basis. Excep-t as to those organizations exempt iiom such-a requirement. by
la'"v, such liability insurance polic-v or policies shall name the Fresno Count-v Office orEducation {FCOE). its olficers, agents, and employees, inCiviOuAtv anO
coilectivelv- as ADDITIOITIALLY INSURED with respect to all maders relaiing to or arising out olthis agreement. Such coverage foi ad.ditional nsured shall

shali be excess oni-v and n-oncontnbuting r,vith insurance provideC under Organization's policies. Orgalization's insurance shall not be canceled or chansed
witllout a minimum of thirt-v {30) days advance written notice given to FCOE,.

LIABiL{TY: The Organization will be liable tbr injwies resulting &om the neglieence of rhe Organization during the use of the flacilities or grounds and for
aii o&er resulting damagrs or injurl sxcept lhose fbrwhich FCOE is held ro be specitically iiable by a court olcompetent jurisdicrion. To thJextent pennitred
b'; la';v- tl-re Crganization hereby agrees io inCemni$ and irold harmiess FCOE, its agents and empioyees, frcm all claims. actions, demands. liabiliry,
responsibilitr'- damages. lcss. cost ancl expense cf an-v nature whatsoever arising lrom the Organization's use ofFCOE's facilities or grounds, including ihe
cost of delending FCOE, its ageEts and employees. against claims, actions or <lemands with respect to wiich the Organization is held to be solety liabte. This
section dxcludes any iiabili$ lor injuries arising or resulting liom the scle aegligence o{FCOE in the ownership and maintenance ofthe lacilities or grounds.
FCOE shail on.ly be liable ibr injuries arising or resulting fr'om the soie negligence of FCOE in the ownership and maintenance of those t'acilities or erounds
'.lsed b.v the Organization. The Organization wili also be liable fbr any destruction of FCOE Property and mali be charged an amount equal co all damages and
further use of i-acilities may be denied.

I-SE CAARGE: FCOE shail grant ihe use of any FCOE lacilities or grounds under its control -lvheil an a{ternative location is not available. Charges not to
exceed direct ccsts shall be urvoiced onl.v., in rhose organizat.ions that promote school and youth activities- The lbregoing does not apply if such organization is
using FCOE laciiities tbr fund-raising activities which are not beneficral ta youih olFresno Counry. tfFCOE authonzes the use ofFCOE t'acilities orgrounds
b;-. an1'' church or re.ligious organization r.vhich has no suitable meeting piace ior the conduct of rhe services, FCOE shall charge the church or religious
orgariizaiion an amount not tc exceed its direct costs. In the case cfentertainments or meeling rvhere admission ibes are charged or contributions are solicited
and ihe nei receipts are not expended lbr the weifare ofthe pupils ofFresno Counfi or ibr charitable purposes. a charge shall be ievied lor the uss ofschooi
taciliiies orgrounds i,vhich shall be equal to lair rental value. "Fair rental value" rs lhe direct costs to FCOE plus tbe amortized cosis cfthe school fbcilities or
srounds used tbr the duraticn of'the activrfv al.rthoized.

i}{FROPeRUSE.lnyusebyanindividual-societ}.group^ororganizaticniorthecommissicnoianyactintendedtofirrthelany-programormovementrhe
purpose clwhich is io accompllsh the oa/erthrolv of the govemment of th.e Uniteci States or oithe Stare b.v tbrce, violence, or other unlaivlirj means shall not
be per:nitted or suffered.

PR.OTC CfiON OF PROPERTY. FCOE propefi-v must be protected iiom riamage or mrstreatmert. and each ftird. parly user must be respansible tbr the
condition in rvhich it ieaves the FCOE t'acilities or grounds. [n the event FCOE properry- is damaged or must be cleaned irs a result of such use. the cost shall
be paid tbr or ieimbursetl by the Organization. The Organizatton agrees io accept ibes anel other charges as ooled abovs ibr i'aciliiy use according to the
FCOE Fee Schedule and other cosis incurrecl. inlbrmation on ibes is available at &e FCOE Facrlities Depamnent. This Agreemeni is not efflecti.ye until
appr-o':ed by Scout lsland staii.

F.{CIL{Tl'l'StiLEAYE }iO TR-\CE G{i1D0LI$gS: Orgarizaiionr'schooi agrees to abide bl the Scour lsland Facilitv Use and Leave No Trace
Guideirnes.

Dato Applicant's SignatureiTiile

Da.te Principal Signature/Phone

Datel 1.31t2018
Dlrect'Jr. .Scr:ut island Educairon Ccntcr

Sqrbmit Use ,{ppilieafiori by fax or eryi:ril with signaturei } no later ftiaan t",1/$ wort{irlg weeks prioi- to lfue everif,

Forr,vard To: fu[ati Stervatr-
7695 North var_r i.Jess Arie. Fresno. CA s3?l t I (559) 265_4062i Fax (559; zbs_4063 r msr;eu,a.r.tri4iio,:.org



srlril Gillnlt

Report to Gity Council

Council Meeting of May 2,2018

Agenda ltem Number g-6

Apprwed by:

L )t u,r,rl., 3,!.r, pz
OEEmnt oi(ctor

City Administrator

Consideration of a Minute Order Approving Settlement of a Claim with
Progressive Gasualty lnsurance Gompany for Property Damage.

ReconnueruDATIoN

Staff recommends Council provide authority to settle the City's claim against
Progressive Casualty lnsurance Company on behalf of their insured Bhinder
Paramijt Singh for $5,557.62.

HrsroRv

On September 5, 2017, Bhinder Paramijt Singh was involved in a motor vehicle
accident involving damage to City property. Mr. Singh was found at-fault in the
vehicle accident.

Srrulroru

Mr. Singh is insured by Progressive Casualty lnsurance Company. On September 5,

2017, he was traveling westbound on Kennedy Street towards Schnoor Avenue. Mr.
Singh made an unsafe right turn onto Schnoor Avenue causing his Freightliner to
collide into a City signal light.

The Madera Police Department (MPD) was called to the scene and determined Mr.
Singh was at-fault. Based on the MPD ReporI#17M-07351, he caused the collision
by violating CVC 22107, unsafe turning movement.

The City is in receipt of a damage report from the Public Works Department. The
following allocations determined the signal light's total cost: personnel hours worked
$1,346.59, City equipment used $611.72, and material used $3,599.31. These
allocations bring the total cost associated with replacing the signal light to $5,557.62
On April 4,2018, Progressive offered the City $$5,198.62 to resolve the claim. They

Return to Agenda



requested a 10% reduction on materials for depreciation. However, the City denied
the offer and demanded full payment since their insured was 1O0o/o at-fault.
Progressive has responded that they will make payment for the full amount.

It is recommended, Council provide authority to settle this claim with Progressive
Casualty Insurance Company in the amount of $5,557.62 to reimburse the City for
all costs associated with the replacement of the signal light.

Frscnl rupncr

Reimbursement for replacing the signal light will be designated to the Facilities
Division Refunds and Reimbursement account in the amount of $5,557.62.

Vrslor,r Mnoenn 2025 Pmru

Settlement of claims is not included in the Vision Madera 2025 Vision and Action
Plan, nor is the requested action in conflict with the plan.



REPORT TO
THE CITY COUNGIL

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:
B-7

Approved By:

DO,oG>-
Community DAvelopment Director

tJfr. Z?"- A
City Adminisvator A

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Madera Subbasin Groundwater
Sustainability Agencies Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee Charter

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council, acting as the Groundwater Sustainability Agency, adopt a
resolution approving the Madera Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies Madera Subbasin
Coordination Committee Charter.

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:

At its March 7th meeting, the City of Madera Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) appointed
Council members and staff to be its representatives on the Madera Subbasin GSA Coordination
Committee. The Council was also asked to review and provide comment on the recommended
draft of a Charter that outlines the function, structure, and operating characteristics of the
Coordination Committee. No comments or recommended changes to the Charter were requested.
Each GSA has now been asked to formally approve the Charter. The resolution under consideration
with this item would take that action.

The purpose of the Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee is to advise the Madera Subbasin
GSAs on groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) development, implementation, and public
engagement consistent with the respective policies of each GSA. The Committee is comprised of L2

seats, including 1 board member and 1 technical expert from each of the six GSAs working
collaboratively on the single GSA. Coordination Committee meetings is subject to the Brown Act
and, as noted above, will be based on developing consensus amongst its members on the issues

that are presented. The Committee does not have the ability to bind any member to any outcome
that his or her GSA does not agree with. Authority to act and implement will be retained with
individualGSAs.

COUNCIL MEETING OF:

Mav 2, 2018

G r oundw ater S ustainob ility Agency

Return to Agenda



CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN:

Strategy 434 - Ensure continued water supplies to meet the demands of all Maderans through
innovative reclamation, conservation and education on water-use.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

No direct or substantive financial impact has been identified with regard to the proposed
Coordination Committee Charter. Staff time dedicated to SGMA compliance has grown since its
adoption and will likely continue to grow through the GSP development process.



GSA Resolution No.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA AS THE CITY OF MADERA
GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY APPROVING THE MADERA SUBBASIN

G ROUN DWATER SUSTAI NABI LITY AG ENCI ES MADERA SU BBASI N COORDI NATION

COMMITTEE CHARTER

Whereas, in September of 2O14, the Governor signed into law the Sustainable Water
Management Act (SGMA), which imposes new requirements on local agencies focusing on
sustainable groundwater management at the groundwater basin level; and

Whereas, the City of Madera adopted a resolution to establish the City of Madera
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) on August L7, 2OL6 and became the exclusive GSA

within its boundaries on February 16,2017; and

Whereas, the City of Madera GSA adopted a resolution on October 18,20L7 approving a

Memorandum of Understanding formalizing its intent to work collaboratively with five other
GSAs within the Madera Groundwater Subbasin to prepare a single GSP in order to comply with
the requirements of SGMA; and

Whereas, the six GSAs within the Madera Groundwater Subbasin working together to
prepare a single GSP have established a Coordination Committee to facilitate their
collaboration on the preparation of the GSP; and

Whereas, a Charter for the Coordination Committee has been prepared and reviewed
by each of the six GSAs that will sit on the Committee, including the City of Madera GSA which
reviewed the recommend charter at its March 7,2018 meeting.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA HEREBY finds, orders
and resolves as follows:

L. The above recitals are true and correct.

2. The Madera Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies Madera Subbasin
Coordination Committee Charter, a copy of which is on file with the office of the City
Clerk, is hereby adopted.

3. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.

*rl.:lc*i.**



Madera Su bbasin G rou ndwater Sustai na bility Agencies

Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee Charter
Draft 2.76.20L8

Coordination Committee Charge
The purpose of the Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee ("Coordination Committee") is to advise
the Madera Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies' ('GSAs" or "Agencies") Boards of Directors
and decision-makers (collectively "Boards") on groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) development,
implementation, and public engagement consistent with the Agencies' respective policies. The intent of
the Coordination Committee is to provide a forum for GSAs to share perspectives and participate in
review and discussion of elements for GSP development. The Coordination Committee will identify areas
of agreement, issues requiring more in-depth GSA discussion or consideration, and make
recommendations that the GSA Boards will consider in their decision-making.

The Coordination Committee may review or provide recommendations to the Boards on the following
groundwater-related issues:

o Development, adoption, or amendment of the groundwater sustainability plan (GSP)

o Sustainability goals and objectives
r Technical and reporting standards, including best management practices, data management

and reporting
o Monitoring programs
r Annual work plans and reports (including mandatory 5-year milestone reports)
r Modeling scenarios
o lnter-basin coordination activities
. Project and management actions to achieve sustainability
o Grant funding proposals
r Community outreach and engagement
o Local regulations to implement SGMA
r Fee proposals
o General Coordination in response to GSA inquiries

The Coordination Committee will not make recommendations to individual Agencies' about their
budgets or day-to-day operations, such as personnel staffing or contracting.

Open Process and Conflicts of lnterest
All meetings of the Coordination Committee shall be open to the public. The Coordination Committee
will announce meetings on the respective Agencies' websites and through regular communication
channels.

The Coordination Committee shall adopt a schedule and location for regular meetings, and meeting
agendas shall be posted consistent with SGMA and Brown Act requirements.
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All Coordination Committee meetings shall provide for public comment consistent with the Brown Act,

including non-agenda public comment and public comment on individual agenda items. Public
comment will generally be limited to 3 minutes, but the time may be adjusted based upon meeting
circumstances. Special and emergency meetings need not provide for non-agenda public comment, but
such comment may be allowed in the Coordination Committee's discretion.

Members of the Coordination Committee are subject to all applicable conflict of interest laws including
Government Code section 1090 and the California Political Reform Act.

Ad Hoc Workgroups

The Coordination Committ'ee may form ad hoc or temporary workgroups as needed for limited
purposes. Workgroups shall consist of less than a quorum of the GSA Board members or legislative
bodies, or they shall fall under the advisory group guidelines. A workgroup is intended as an ad hoc
group. lt is not a standing group with designated participants. The workgroup shall be formed for
limited purposes (e.g. reviewing specifically technical components of the GSP development) on an as

needed basis.

The Coordination Committee will review and assess any recommendations made by workgroups along
with stakeholder input prior to sharing any recommendations with the GSA Boards for consideration in
their decision-making. This does not forestall recommendations or stakeholder input being shared
directly with GSAs

Term
This Coordination Committee is intended to serve as the coordinating body for the Madera Subbasin

GSAs through development of the Madera Subbasin GSP(s). On or before October 2019, the
Coordination Committee will evaluate the effectiveness of the Coordination Committee for coordination
purposes and determine whether to form an alternate group. Unless the GSAs chose otherwise, the
Coordination Committee shall remain active throughout the coordination of Madera Subbasin GSAs for
GSP development and implementation.

Coordination, Committee :Representation
The Coordination Committee shall consist of two (2) members to represent each of the six coordinating
GSA member agencies in the Madera Subbasin: Madera County Subbasin GSA, City of Madera GSA,

Madera lrrigation District GSA, Root Creek Water District GSA, Madera Water District GSA, and Gravelly
Ford Water District GSA. New Stone GSA shall attend meetings for information sharing only for a total
of twelve (12) seats. Each Coordinating GSA Board shall designate two Committee representatives as

follows:

purposes. A GSA board member, CAO, City Manager, Executive Director, or General Manager is

recommended to serve in this capacity to ensure better coordination between the committee
and individual GSA Boards. Finaldetermination of the committee member is at the discretion
of the individual GSA Boards.
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Coordination Committee members must live or work within or represent an organization with a

presence in the Madera Subbasin, identified by the Department of Water Resources current Bulletin
118. The GSA Boards will determine if alternates are necessary, and if so, the appointment process.

Coordination Committee members serve without compensation.

Member Roles and Responsibilities
GSA Board of Directors
GSA Board members commit to the value of the Coordination Committee and will consider Coordination
Committee recommendations when making policy decisions for their GSA. lt is recommended that each

GSA shall designate one Board member, CAO, City Manager, Executive Director, or General Manager to
sit on the Coordinate Committee for these purposes. GSA Board members may also designate an

alternate member, with equal authority, to sit on the Coordination Committee.

Coordination Committee Membership
The purpose of the Coordination Committee is to develop and refine recommendations for GSA

consideration. Likewise, the Coordination Committee offers an opportunity to incorporate community
and stakeholder interests into recommendations on SGMA implementation in the Madera Groundwater
Basin for the GSA Boards to consider in their decision-making process

Coordination Committee members represent the diverse interests of the GSAs and groundwater users.
The criteria for Coordination Committee members are to:

r Serve as a strong effective advocate for GSAs and their beneficial users
o Work collaboratively with others
r Commit time needed for ongoing discussions
o Attend every meeting or appoint an alternate
o Collectively reflect diversity of interests
r Have the requisite content knowledge and/or capacity to contribute to discussions on behalf of

GSAs.

a Reflect and present Coordination Committee discussions and recommendations to GSA Boards

Coordination Committee Chair '

The Coordination Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair. The Chair for the Coordination
Committee agrees to:

r Work with the Agencies' administrators to develop the agenda for all meetings.
r Assist in framing issues so members are able to have a productive conversation and develop

recommendations.
r Develop a summary of meeting agreements and discussions.

As resources-are available and until such time as a Coordination Committee Chair is designated, the
Madera Subbasin SGMA Facilitator shall perform the duties of the Chair and Vice-Chair.

Coordi nation Committee Secretary
The Coordination Committee will appoint a secretary either from membership or from individual GSA

staffto record meeting minutes, capturing agreements, areas of requiring additional discussion and
matters for individual GSA review and discussion.
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Technical Experts (TE)

Among the Coordination Committee members are the Technical Experts ("TE").GSAs may appoint
Technical Experts from GSA Staff to participate in Coordination Committee and Ad Hoc Workgroup
meetings as needed. These TE shall facilitate discussion among the GSAs on technical aspects or
elements during the GSP development process, during implementation of the GSP, as well as on
Agencies' policies related to groundwater management and monitoring data. The TE shall assist the GSP

technical consultant retained by the Madera Subbasin GSAs for GSP development (hereinafter referred
to as GSP Technical Consultant) and facilitate incorporation of community input on technical
components of GSP development. The TE may form ad hoc working groups to facilitate inter-GSA review
and discussion of technical elements for the GSP during plan development as needed, as well as during
implementation of management practices. The ad hoc TE workgroups may discuss GSP Technical
Consultant recommendations and report out discussions to the full Coordination Committee.

The TE members represent the technical interests of the GSAs. The criteria for TE members are to:
r Serve as a technical and subject matter experts and advisors related to groundwater data and GSP

development
o Understand SGMA and GSP requirements
o Work collaboratively with others
o Commit time needed for ongoing discussions

Member Terms

The initial Coordination Committee will include L2 seats with three -year terms ending in January 31,
2020. Following initial Committee terms, all terms will be two years and end in December. lf a vacancy
occurs the GSAs will appoint a new individual to complete the term. GSAs may remove Committee
members in their own discretion at any time.

Madera Subbasin Roundtable Meet!ng Participation
The Madera Subbasin Public Engagement and Outreach Plan anticipates the incorporation of Public
Round Tables or similar sessions for public discussion. These sessions shall be scheduled to coincide with
Coordination Committee meetings and GSP planning meetings with the GSP Technical Consultant, as

appropriate. One or more members of the Coordination Committee shall participate in every
stakeholder roundtable meeting and report back to the Coordination Committee regarding perspectives
shared and discussed during those roundtable meetings. This will facilitate incorporating Stakeholder
input into recommendations put forth by the Coordination Committee to the GSA Boards.

Decision-Making
To inform GSA Boards' decision-making, the Coordination Committee Secretary will provide written
recommendations in reports that reflect the outcome of Committee discussions, including input
received during roundtable meetings. Coordination Committee members shall prepare individual
board reports, confirming areas of agreements and discussion through meeting notes and highlights.
These individual board reports shall be consistent with the Committee written recommendation. The
recommendation reports will identify areas of agreement and disagreement. The Committee may
request that one or more Committee and TE members present its recommendations to the GSA

Boards, including areas of agreement and disagreement, consistent with Committee deliberations.
The GSA Boards will consider Coordination Committee recommendations when making decisions. lf
any GSA Board does not agree with the recommendations of the Coordination Committee, that Board
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shallstate the reasons for its final decision(s)to facilitate discussion and revisions of
recommendations by the Coordination Committee or through the GSA Dispute Resolution process

determined among the GSAs under separate agreement.

The Coordination Committee will strive for consensus in all of its deliberations. Working toward
consensus is a fundamental principle. Consensus means that all Committee members either fully
support or can live with the recommendation or overall plans and believe that their GSAs and its
constituents can as well. Committee minutes shall reflect variations in consensus. The consensus must
be feasible to receive GSA approval. ln reaching consensus, some Committee members may strongly
endorse a particular proposal while others may accept it as "workable." Others may be only able to
"live with it." Still others may choose to "stand aside" by verbally noting a disagreement, yet allowing
the group to reach a consensus without them if the decision does not.affect them or compromise their
interests. Any of these actions still constitutes consensus. When unable to reach consensus on
recommendations, the Committee will outline the areas in which it does not agree, providing some
explanation to inform GSA Boards' decision-making.

The Coordination Committee relationship to Madera GSAs and the overarching Madera Subbasin
decision-making structure is demonstrated in Diagram 1.

Consensus Process

ln seeking consensus on an interim or final recommendation, Coordination Committee members will
voice their opinions with specific proposals along the way, rather than waiting until a final
recommendation has been developed. At all times, Committee members will ensure that they are
providing input commensurate to their prescribed role and GSA. The basic consensus-seeking process

is as follows:
a Straw Polls: Committee members will use straw polls tb assess the degree of preliminary

support for an idea before the group submits it as a formal proposal for final consideration.
Representatives may indicate only tentative approval for a preliminary proposal without fully
committing to its support.
Draft and finil Recommendations: A group will use the following three levels to indicate
member's degree of approval and support for any proposal being considered and to determine
the degree of consensus.

n "Thumbs Down:" ldo not agree with the proposal. lfeelthe need to block its adoption
and propose an alternative. Examples; a representative believes they cannot get a

consensus of his/her: GSA decision-makers as proposed

n "Thumbs Sideways:" I am not enthusiastic about it, but I can accept the proposal.
n "Thumbs Up:" I think this proposal is the best choice of the options available to us.

! "Abstention:" At times, a pending recommendation may be infeasible for a

representative to weigh in on. For example, this could include but is not limited to: a

topic that has policy implications that GSA representative cannot be on record
conflicting with, and therefore cannot offer a proposal or opinion; and other similar
conditions.

a

The goal is for Committee members to be in the 'Thumbs Up' level of agreement. This agreement must
be consistent with what the Committee members feel can be approved by their GSA boards. lf any
Coordination Committee member is at a 'Thumbs Down' level, that member is encouraged to provide a
counter proposal that legitimately attempts to achieve their interest and the interests of the other
Committee members. The Coordination Committee will then evaluate how best to proceed. Committee

5



members that abstain from particular proposals are encouraged to explain why abstention is in their
GSAs best interest as well as in the interest of achieving the Madera Subbasin goal to comply with SGMA
within the requisite timeframes.

Process Agreements
To conduct a successful process, the parties agree to the procedures that the Coordination Committee
will use as well as define individual behaviors or ground rules.

'/ Everyone agrees to negotiate in good faith. All participants agree to participate in decision
making, to act in good faith in all aspects of this effort and to communicate their interests during
meetings. Good faith also requires that parties not make commitments they do not intend to
follow through with, and that parties act consistently in the meetings and in other forums where
the issues under discussion in these meetings are also being discussed.

/ Everyone agrees to address the issues and concerns of the participants. Everyone who is

joining in the Coordination Committee is doing so because s/he has a stake in the issue at hand
For the process to be successful, all the parties agree to validate the issues and concerns ofthe
other parties and strive to reach an agreement that takes all the issues under consideration.
Disagreements will be viewed as problems to be solved, rather than battles to be won.

,/ Everyone agrees to inform and seek input from their constituents about the outcome of the
facilitated discussions. To the extent possible, scheduling will allow for participants to inform
and seek input from their constituents, scientific advisors, and others about discussions.

./ Everyone agrees that parties can meet with other organizational or interest group members.
Coordination Committee members may find it helpful to meet with other organizations or
interest group members and to consult with constituents outside of the meeting so the member
is better able to communicate community concerns on the issues at hand.

'/ Everyone agrees to attend allthe meetings to the extent possible or to appoint an alternate.
Continuity of the conversations and building trust are critical to the success of the Coordination
Committee. Participants are encouraged to turn off cell phones and focus on the issue at hand.
Agency staff or the facilitator will coordinate the meeting schedule. Alternates are encouraged
to attend Coordination Committee meetings.

,/ Everyone agrees that decisions made at prior meetings will not be revisited due to the
absence of a Committee member or appointed alternate. lt is critical to the success of the
Coordination Committee as well as to the GSP process and timeline that recommendations are
made in a timely manner. Therefore, decisions on recommendations will not be postponed or
revisited due to absences during regularly scheduled Committee meetings.

Participation Agreements
The facilitator and participants, including the Committee members and the public shall be asked to
follow these agreements.

Use Common Conversational Courtesy

6



All ldeas and Points of View Have Value
All ideas have value in this setting. We are looking for innovative ideas. The goal is to achieve
understanding. Simply listen, you do not have to agree. lf you hear something you do not agree

with or you think is "silly" or "wrong," please remember that the purpose of the forum is to
share ideas and perspectives.

Be Honest, Fair, and as Candid as Possible
Help others understand you and work to understand others

Avoid Editorials
It will be tempting to analyze the motives of others or offer editorial comments. Please talk
about your own ideas and thoughts. Avoid commenting on why you believe another participant
thinks something.

Honor Time and Be Concise

Think lnnovatively and Welcome New ldeas
Creative thinking and problem solving are essential to success. "Climb out of the box" and attempt
to think about the problem in a new way.

lnvite Humor and Good Will

Be Comfortable
Please feel help yourself to refreshments or take personal breaks. lf you have other needs
please inform the facilitator.

Communication

Media

Members are asked to speak only for their organization or themselves when asked by external parties,
including the media, about the Coordination Committee's progress, unless there has been a formal
adoption of a statement, concepts, or recommendations by the Coordination Committee. Members will
refer media inquiries to the GSA listserv and website administrators and reserve freedom to express
their own opinions to media representatives. Members should be careful to present only their own
views and not those of other Committee members. The temptation to discuss someone else's
statements or position should be avoided.

Amendments
The Coordination Committee can recommend future changes to the charge. The GSA Boards may
amend the charge when needed using its decision-making procedures.

7
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REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

Council Meeting of Mry 2 12018

Agenda ltem Number B-B

City

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF MINUTE ORDER REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR
PROJECT NO. R.74: RECLAMITE APPLICATION ON VARIOUS CITY
STREETS

RECO MMENDATION:

That the City Council:

1. Reject all bids for Project No. R-74: Reclamlte Application on Various City Streets and
readvertise project.

SUMMARY:

The Engineering Department received bids for a Project R-74: to provide the application of
Reclamite to various City streets on March 20,2018. Staff has determined that the bids must be
rejected and the project be readvertised.

DISCUSSION/BAGKG ROU ND:

The Reclamite Application on Various City Streets project was prepared by the Engineering
Department. Plans and specification utilizing contract documents from similar projects
successfully completed in past years were used as the application of Reclamite is typically done
in different areas of the City every several years.

Reclamite application on various streets consist of furnishing all labor, material, and equipment
necessary to perform all operations for the application of an asphalt rejuvenating agent to existing
asphalt paved surfaces. The rejuvenation of the street surface shall be by spray application of

Englneerlng
205 w. Fourth street. Madera, cA 93637. TEL (559) 661-5418. FAX (559) 625-6605

wwc lQlofrnadera. ca. gov

Return to Agenda



cationic rejuvenating agent composed of petroleum oils and resin emulsified with water.
Reclamite is a rejuvenating agent that extends the useful life of the street and delays the need for
future street resurfacing.

SITUATION:

The "Notice lnviting Bids" was duly noticed. Plans and Specifications were distributed to local
building exchanges and made available to contractors and sub-contractors. The Plans and
Specifications were also posted on EBidBoard.com, a projects listing service for contractors. On
March 20,2018, the City received bids.

All bids were checked for accuracy with the bidding requirements of the specifications, and for
validity of licenses and bid security. Staff has determined that all bids should be rejected and
readvertised, in accordance with Government Code 20166.

GONSISTENGY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN:

Action 126.0 - The Reclamite Application project will provide for safe, clean and attractive
streets consistent with the Madera Vision 2025 Plan.

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Funds for this project have been budgeted for FY 2017118 and are available in the Public Works
Streets Account No. 1 020301 0-7050.



Report to Gity Council

Gouncil
Agenda I

Meeting of May 2,2018
tem Number B-9

Approved by:

Depa Director

'effi f,@^z>,.I
€tty Administrator

lnformational Report on Personnel Activity

ReouesreD AcnoN
This report is provided at the request of the City Council and is for informational
purposes only.

Suutrlrnnv or PeRsouruel Aclvtrv
The Civil Service Commission held a regular meeting on April 3,2018, certifying
eligibility lists for the following job classifications:

. Recruitment 18-02: Water & Sewer Operations Manager

. Recruitment 18-04: WastewaterTreatment Plant Operator lll

The followin individuals an em nt with the since our last re rt:
Name Position Department Effective

Date
John Coronado Part Time

Maintenance Worker
Public Works - Water
Division

3127t2018

Peter Gallegos Wastewater
Treatment Plant
Lead Operator

Public Works - WWTP 312812018

John Luthey, Jr Wastewater
Treatment Plant
Lead Operator

Public Works - WWTP 41212018

Gustavo Ramirez-
Valdez

Park Aide Parks & Community
Services

41312018

Ulysses Gonzalez Park Aide Parks & Community
Services

41412018

Jose Medina, Jr Park Aide Parks & Community
Services

41412018

Return to Agenda



The fol motions occurred

The following employees separated from employment with the City since our last

Name Position Department Effective
Date

Eric Brooks Water & Sewer
Operations Manager
(prior position: Water
System Supervisor)

Public Works 411612018

Name Position Department Effective
Date

Rosanna Garcia Program Leader I Parks & Community
Services

311212018

Leonel Barajas Program Leader ll Parks & Community
Services

3119t2018

James Oliveri Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Airport
Division

3121t2018

Oscar Vargas Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Water
Division

312112018

Alec Martinez Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Water
Division

312112018

Valentin
Hernandez

Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Water
Division

312112018

Pedro Torres Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - WWTP 312112018

Rory Hutchings Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Airport
Division

3121t2018

Lavida Nash Part Time
Maintenance Worker

Public Works - Water
Division

41412018

Shawndee Dix Paralegal Office
Administrator

City Attorney's Office 411212018
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Report to Gity Council

Gouncil Meeting of May 2,2018
Agenda ltem Number B- IO

Approved by:

Department Director

Administrator

Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Rate of Compensation for the Legal
Assistant Glassification

Recovtueruoeo Acrtorrt
It is recommended Council adopt the resolution setting the rate of compensation for
the Legal Assistant classification.

BncrcRoutrto
Prior to 2013, the City Attorney's office was staffed with three positions

1. City Attorney
2. Deputy City Attorney
3. LegalAssistant

ln 2013, the Deputy City Attorney position was vacant and City Attorney Brent
Richardson recommended elimination of the position and reclassification of the
Legal Assistant to recognize additional duties that would be taken on by this position
due to the reduction from three staff members to two. At that time, the Human
Resources Department conducted a job analysis and recommended the position be
reclassified to Paralegal Office Administrator. The assigned salary range was
increased at that time to reflect the additional duties.

Srunrroru
The Paralegal Office Administrator has resigned her position to move out of state.
After evaluating the local candidate pool and office needs, the City Attomey is
recommending the position be filled with the less-experienced Legal Assistant
classification at this time. The LegalAssistant classification does not currently have
an assigned salary range as the classification has not been used; in order to recruit
and fill the position, a salary range will need to be assigned.

Prior to the reclassification in2013, the Legal Assistant position was compensated
similady to the classification of Executive Secretary. The Human Resources
Department used the current Executive Secretary assigned salary range and looked

Return to Agenda



at similar Legal Assistant-type positions in surrounding agencies that have internal
legal departments. The review indicated that if the Legal Assistant classification is
placed on the City's salary schedule at the same range as Executive Secretary, the
base salary will likely be slightly low however total compensation when considering
benefits was comparable. This position is represented by the City's Mid
Management bargaining unit and benefits are defined in the Memorandum of
Understanding for that unit; the City cannot modify the benefits for an individual
position.

The recommended salary range for the position is City of Madera Salary Schedule
M, Range 330, which is as follows:

Ranqe
Bi-Weeklv Pav Rate

A B c D E F

330 $1.703.48 $1.788.68 $1.877.79 $1.971.81 $2.070.22 $2,174,03

Staff presented the proposed salary range to be assigned to the affected bargaining
unit for review and comment. The bargaining unit had no objections to the proposal.

Frscnl hupncr
The current position of Paralegal Office Administrator is set at Range 372 and is
23o/o tTlor€ than the proposed range for Legal Assistant. Filling the position as a
Legal Assistant may provide a savings to the City in salary, but actual savings will be
dependent on the new employee's CaIPERS formula (whether they are considered
Classic or are under the Public Employee's Pension Reform Act) and what level of
health benefits are selected at hire.

Gorlsrsrerucy wrrn rne Vrstoru Maoenn 2025 Pmrrr
Assignment of salary ranges is not addressed in the Vision or Action plan; the
requested action is also not in conflict with any of the actions or goals contained in
that plan.



Resolutroru No.

A ResoluroN oF rue Crv Coutrtcn- oF THE Crrv or MnoeRa
Serrrruc rnr Rnre or CouperusATroN FoRTHE Lecal AsssrRrur Ctnssrncnttotrt

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Madera hereby resolves,
finds, and orders as follows:

Secnoru 1. The assigned salary range for the Legal Assistant classification is
hereby set on City of Madera Salary Schedule M to Range 330:

Secnoru 2. This resolution is etfective immediately upon adoption.

Bi-Weeklv Pav Rate

Ranqe A B c D E F
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REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING OF M 2.2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER C_l

Approved By:

PREPARE Mary Anne Seay, Director
Parks & Community Services Department

APPROVED BY: Steve zier, City Administrator

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING A RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH
THE 21-A DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION FOR THE COLLABORATIVE USE
OF THE MADERA FAIRGROUNDS AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES FOR THREE ONE-
WEEK SUMMER DAY CAMP PROGRAMS AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHATF OF THE CITY

RECOMMEN DATION:

Staff recommends Council adopt a resolution approving a Rental Agreement between the City and
the 21-A District Agricultural Association (referred to as the Madera District Fair for the remainder
of this report)for the collaborative use of the Madera Fairgrounds and associated facilities for
three one-week summer day camp programs. Staff further recommends that Council authorize
the Mayor to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City.

DISCUSSION:

There is an African proverb that says "lf you want to go fast, go alone. lf you want to go far, go
together." The item before the Council this evening is one that formalizes an Agreement with a
key community partner so that we can go further together than either the City or the Madera
District Fair (MDF) could go alone.

701 East 5rh street. rv"o","l#'$.u?#1tlt.??ft??..e5 * Fnx (sse) 675-3827
www.madera-ca.gov
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A partnership with staff from the City and MDF has been building for several years. After the
Pomegranate Festival in the fall of 2017, staff from the MDF asked to meet with the parks &
Community Services (PCS) team to discuss the potential for introducing a"fair camp" to Madera's
youth. At an initial meeting in the late winter of 201.8, staff from both agencies met to discuss
how this new idea might work.

The result has been a generous sharing of resources to achieve several goals that benefit the
community. ln addition to checking the boxes for innovation, cross-marketing and leveraging
resources, the partnership provides for the use of indoor and outdoor space for the City's day
camp program in the month of June. This will help staff mitigate the challenge of overcrowding at
the John W. Wells Youth Center in the early part of the summer. ln addition to swimming
programs, heavy use of the new accessible playground, and drop-in recreation programming, pCS

hosts Science Camp at the facility during this time. Science Camp is the result of an Agreement
between the City and the Madera Unified School District to provide Science, Technology,
Engineering, Arts and Mathematics (STEAM) programming to Families in Transition (FlT) and
Foster Youth.

The City will also benefit from the interesting features on the MDF property as well as the Fair
team's connections and ideas. Camp activities may include (but are not limited to) livestock,
floriculture, crafts, cooking, a tour of the race track, etc.

Both parties will realize benefits from this partnership. The MDF has a goal to engage younger
Maderans in the rich and deep traditions of local fairs, particularly the Madera Fair. They also
hope to innovate ways to get and keep families coming to and participating in the fair. By way of
one example, art projects created by day-campers will be exhibited during the run of the fair this
fall encouraging participants to return with their families to share what they have done and
learned. The attached Rental Agreement formalizes the roles of the partnership, including
insurance details.

FINANCIAT IMPACT:
The City has budgeted for day camp programming throughout the summer. Moving to the
Madera District Fairgrounds will not result in additional program expenses. The City already
maintains insurance that meets the State's requirements for events at MDF, so there will be no
additional expense in that respect.

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN:
The recommended actions support the following Vision Madera 2025 strategies:

Strategy 332: Youth Services: Expand comprehensive services for Madera's youth,
includ i ng em ployment opportu n ities, com m u n ity activities, sports
programs, performing arts and after-school programs.

Strategy 404 Promote increased community wellness.

Strategy 411: Enhance and expand recreational activities available to Maderans.



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA APPROVING
A RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE zt-A DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL
ASSOCIATION FOR THE COLLABORATIVE USE OF THE MADERA
FAIRGROUNDS AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES FOR THREE ONE.WEEK
SUMMER DAY CAMP PROGRAMS AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY

WHEREAS, summer recreation programs have demonstrated benefits for the youth and

the community as a whole; and

WHEREAS, the City through the Parks and Community Services Department offers a

summer day camp program to the youth of Madera that encompasses elements of recreation and

education; and

WHEREAS, the 21-A District Agricultural Association (Association) has indoor and outdoor

facilities to accommodate the City's summer day camp program; and

WHEREAS, Madera's PCS Department and the Association wish to collaborate to provide

summer programming that connects residents to the rich tradition of the Madera Fair; and

WHEREAS, the Association has prepared a Rental Agreement that specifies the

responsibilities of the Fair and the city regarding use of the facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Rental Agreement is in the best interest of the City, the Association, the

Madera District Fair and the youth of Madera.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA, HEREBY, finds, orders and
resolves as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct.

2. The RentalAgreement with 21-A District Agricultural Association, a copy of which is

on file in the office of the City Clerk and is referred to for more particulars, is hereby

approved.

3. The Mayor is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City.

4. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.

*****
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RENTAL AGREEMENT

o Fairtime I lnterim

THIS AGREEMENT by and between the 21-A District Agricultural Associntion, hereinafter
called the Association, and City of Madera hereirufter called the Renter,

IIIITNESSETH:
l. TIIAT WHEREAS, the Renter desires to secure frorn the Association certain rights and privileges ancl to obtain

permission from the Association prcmises beginning on June 11,2018 and ending o*Iunu Zg,ZyLg,

2. NOW' THEREFORE, Association hereby grants to the rcnter the right to occupy the space(s) described below for the
purposes hereinafter set forlh, subject to the tet'ms and conditions of this agieement See Exhibit ((8,, Terms anrl
Conditions. Set up and tear down days are included when pairl for or approved by Fair manager.

Bounce Houses Are Not Allorved At Any Event, Unless Reouireel Insurance Is provided

3' The purposes of occnpancy shall be limited to: Kids Camp and shall be for no other pgrposes rvhatsoever.

4. Renter agrces to pay to Association for the rights and privileges hereby gmnted, the amoults and in the manner set forth
belorv:

o Staff and programing provided in lieu of rental fees.
I General Liability Certilicate (seeExhibit'rA') and $etup are due in the office on or before

Renter agrees to pay fees reqtrired by Association for: See Exhibit'(E" Ternrs and Conditions and to guamntee the
paynent of:
(a) Any money which may be payable to Association under this ag€ement;
(b) Any damage to Association properly; and utility charges, if any;
(c) Removal of all property and the leaving of the premises in a condition satisfactory to Association.

6. Association shall have the right to audit and monitor any and all sales as rvell as access to the premises.

7. Renter further aglees to indemni0 and save harmless Association and the State of California their officers, agents,
selants and employees ftnm any and all clairns, causes of action and suits accruing or resulting from any Aaiage,
injury or loss to any person ol' persons, including all persons to rvhom the rcnter tniy Ur liable"under anj ouo.k"i',
compensation larv and renter him/helself and from any loss, damage, cause of action, claims or suits for damages,
including but not lirnited to loss of propelty, goods, wales or merchandise, caused by, arising out of or in any rvay
connected rvith the exercise by rcnter of the privileges herein gmnted,

8. Renter fufther agrces that he/she rvill not sell, exchange or bafter, or pennit his/her ernployees to sell, exchange or
bafter, any permits issued to renter or his/her employees hereunder.

9. It is rnutually agreed that this contmct ol the privileges granted herein, or any part thereof cannot be assigned or
otherwise disposed of rvithout the written consent of Associition.

10, It is rnuttrally understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms of this contract shall be valicl, untess
rnade in rvriting and signed by the pafties heteto, and that no oml understanclings or agreements not incorporated herei'



and no altetations or variations of the terms hereof, unless made in wliting and signed by the parlies hereto, shalt be
binding upon any of the parties hercto.

ll. The "Rules and Regulations" printed on page 2 of this document are incorporated herein and ntade a part of this
agreement' Renter agrees that he/she has read this agreement and the said "Rules and Regulations" agd undei.stands that
they shall apply, unless amended by mutual consent in rvriting of the parties hereto.

12. In the event renter fails to comply in any respect with the tenns of this agreernent and the "Rules and Regulations,'
refeued to hercin, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by Associ"ation and
Association shall have the right to occupy the space in any rnanner deemed for the best interest of Association.

13. Special Provisions: The CFSA Insurance Statement (if applicable) is attached ancl incorporated into this agreernent.o Exhibit('At'fnsuranceStatement
r Exhibit ('8" Rental Policy
o Exhibit "C" Standard Contract Terms and Conditions
o Exhibit "D" Terms and Conditions
Actual costs may vary due to additional equipment, labor, damages, security, andlor other unanticipated costs.

14. Tltis agreement is not binding upon association until it has been duly acceptecl and signed its authorized reprcsentative,
and approved (if required) by the Depafitnent of Food and Agriculhrrg Division of p'air.s & Expositions, and the
Depafiment of General Services.

15. FORCE MAJEURE. If either Conttactor or the 2l-A DAA will be <lelayed or preverrted fi.orn the performance of any
act requirtd hercundq by reason of acts of God, governmental restrictions, regulations or controls (except thosl
reasonably foreseeable in contrection rvith the uses contemplated by this Agreement) or other cause without fault and
beyond the control of the party obligated (except financial inability), performance oi such act shall be excused for the
period ofthe delay and the period for the perfortnance ofany such act shall be extended for a per.iod equivalent to the
period of such delay' Nothing in this Paragraph shall excuse Contractor fiorn prcmpt payment of any rent, taxes,
insurance or any other chatge requircd of Contractor, except as may be expressly provictictin this Agreement.

IN I(ITNESS WHEEEOF, this agreement has been executed, by and on behalf of the parties heretq the day ald year fir.st
above rvlitten.

2l-A District Agricultural Association
Address 1850 W. Cleveland Ave., Madem,CA}3G37

Titte Tom Mitchell, CEO Date

City of Madera, Renter
Addrcss 701 E.5'h St., Madera, CA 9363g

Title Andrew J. Medellin, City Mayor Date

By By



RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE

l. No rcntor will bc allowd to open until all lhe pieliminary rc{uiremEnts hercin sor forth have becn complicd with.

2, Renlerwillconducthi/herbusinessinaquietandorderlymanneqWilldcpositallrubbish,slop,garbsge,tincsns,paper,etc.,inrcccptaclesprovidedbytheAssosiation
wjthin said concession plot for suoh purposc, and will keep the arco wilhin and sunouoding said concessionr frec frorn sll rubbish and debris.

eoting conJossions not reslrictrd to spccific itcms will submit menus Bnd prices to Assoeiation for opproval at lerst hrolve ( l2) hours in cdvance ofcacfi day's opcration,

4. Uponrcquest"rent€rwill fumishAssociationwilhalistofall salesprieesandotherchargesofanykindwhatsoovcrtobcchargedbytheRenterinsaidspace(s).

5. Upon rcquest, renter m0st fumish receipts for license fees, lar deposlts, insurance, ctc., prior to evcnL

'uthoriries, 
and without infrinBamen( upon thc right and priviloges of-gthcrs;gill not handle or scll any commoditios or hansact ony business r'/hatsoovcr for wtrich on

exclusivc irivilcgc is sold by Asrociation, nor ongege ln Eny other busincss whaFoovct upon or within soid promises orfairgrounds, oxccpt lhat which.h herein exprcssly

not includc the crmival and [re srmival arca.

?. Renterwill r,gu$slobcposredinaconspicuousmanncratthcfrontentiancctotheconcessions,asignshowingtircpricestobechargedforall articlcsofferedforsaletothe

public under the,.Rentrl Agreement'; the size ofsaid sign, mannar and place ofposling to be approved by AssociaLion.

. ond adjrccnt areas proprli ananged and ctean. All concessions murt bc clcaq all coverings rqmoved, and tha conccssions rcady for business cach day tt least onc hour

bcfore thc Associaiionis open to thc publie. Reccptaclcs will bc provided at soveral locations to receive rente/s trash, and such ttash must not be swcpt ino thc aisles or

. 
strcrls or Bny public space.

9. All sound,producingdcviccsusedbyrentcrwithinoroutsidehis/hcrspaccmustbcofsuchansturenndmustbcsooperatcdasnottocauseannoyanccorinconvcnienceto
his/herpatrorfor toothtrr concessionaires or exhibitors and lhcdeoision ofAssociation Es to thcdesirabllity ofany suoh sound-produoing duvice shall bs final and

oonclusivc. Sound-omplification equipmeni may be installed within or outside any spacc only by {irst obtaining writt€n permisslon thereof from Associrtion.

10. Rcnteragcesthalharcwill be.nogamcs,gamblingoranyotheractivitieswithinthcmnfineofhisihorspacoinwhichmoneyisusedasrprizcorpromium.cndthathc/she
will not buy andlor pcrmit "buy back" for cash, any prizcs orprcmiums given away to pshoru in connection with the rse of the space. Only sbaight mcrchandising metho s

shall bc used and ali methods ofopcrations, dcmonstration and salc, shall bc suhject to thc approval ofthc Assooiation rnd the local lsw enforDcmcnt offioials,

I [. Renrer is entircly rcsponsiblc for the space allotted to renfer and agrees to reirnburse Association for any damage to lhe rcal propcrty. eguiPmsnt, or grounds uscd in

cdnne*ion with the space allotted to renter, ressonablc wcar and tcarand ilamage ion causes beyond rentels control excepted.

12, Associationmayprovidewatchmanseryice,whichwill provideforrcisonableprotectionofthepropertyofrenters,butAssociationsball notberesponsiblef.grlossor

damagc to tha property of renter.

13. Each and overy articlc of the spacc and all boxes, cratcs, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in conneclion u,i0r the space and owned-by renlcr must be

removed frorn the buildings and grounds by renter. at hislher own expens6, not llter than a date spocified by Association. It is understood in the ovsnt ofrsntot's fuilure to

vacsta said pramises as heiein provided, unless permission in writing is first obhined, Association may and is hereby authorizEd and madc the agent oflenter t0 trmovc and

store thc coneession and all other material ofany nature whttsoevu, at thc rcntcls risk and expense,'Efld renter shall reimburse Association for expsnscs thus incuned.

14. Norenterwill bapermittedtosell ordisposeofanywherconthehirgroundsalcoholicbeveragesasdefinedinthEAlcoholicBevcrageConhol ArlExcapiin.thssoncession

space. Even such linitcd sales arc not to be made unless Assosiation authorizes reuter in witing and unless he/shc holds a lawfi,rl liconse authorizing such-sales on said

premises.

15. All saf*y orders of theDivision of Indushial Sa&g, Departmentof Induskisl.relBtions mustbe shictly observed.

subsequenl breach ofao;r gush rules rnd regulations..

l?, This,'Rcntal Agreement"shall besubjecttoterminltionbyeithurpartyatrnytimeduringthetermhereofbygivingthcolherpartYnotieinwitingqtleast!fuhlrnext
prior to thc date uhen such terminatiJn shall becone effectivc. Such tsrminstion shrll rciievc thc Association of any firrther perfornsnccs of lhc terms of this egreemenl

taxes levisd on such intetesL

19. TheAssociationshull havetheprivilegeofinspectingthcpremiscscovcredbythisBgreementEtanytimeoralltimes.

20, The parties hereto agrec that rcnbar, and any agcnts rnd employces of renter, in the performancc of this agreement, shall Bct in an independent capacity and not as offiwrs or

crnployces or agents of Association.

21. Timrisoftheesscnccofeachsndall theprovisionsofthisrgreemont,andtheprovisionsofthisagrecmcntshall extcndtoandbebindinguponandinutetothebcnefitof
thc hcirs, executors, adminishators, successors, end assigns ofthc rcspactive partics hereto.

Page 2 of2



Exhibit "A"
Cnlifornia Fair. Services Authorify

INSURANCE REQUIRDMENTS

L Eviderrce of Covernge

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence ofcoverage form fol the tenn ofthe contract or agreemeut
(hcrcinaftcr "contract") pmtecting the legal liabilily olthe State of California, Dishict Agliculhrral Associations, County
Fain, Counties in rvhich County Fain ar€ located, L.essor/Sublessor if fair site is leasedlsubleased, Citrus Irnrit Fain,
Cnlihnria Exposition and Statc Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,
thcir dircctom, officem, agents, sel'vants, and employees, from occunrnccs related to operations under the contract. Tlr is rnay
be provided by:

A. Jttsutance Certitjcate -'lle contractor/renter provides the fair wilh a signed original certificatc of insurance (the
ACORD form is acceptable), larvfully transactcd, rvhich sets forth the follorving:

l. List as the Additional Insured: "That lhe State of Califomia, the District Agricultural Association, County
Fair, the County in rvhich lhe County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fairsite is leased/subleased, Citnrs
I:ruit Fair, Califomia Exposition and State Falr, or Entities (public or norprofit) operating California
dcsigpated agriculhual thirs, their directors, ofiicers, agcnts, servants, and emplolees are rnade additionat
insrtred, but only insofar Rs the operations undsr this contmct ars concemed,"

2. Datcs: 'l}e dates of inception and expiration of thc insurance. For irrdividual events, thc specific event
dafes must bc listctl, nlortg rvith nll set-up and tenr dorvn tlntes.

3. Corerages:

a. Gencral Liabiliry - Comnrercial Ceneral Liability coverage, on an occurencc basis, at least as bmad as

lhe cunent lnsurancc Service Otlice (lSO) policy fonn #CGL 001 . Limits shall be not less tlun: $5,000,000
pcr occtlrrence for Fairtime Carnival l{ides; $5,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Drents all
types; $3,000,000 per occurrcnce for Roclco Errnts all types rvlth a pald gatc and any Rough S(ock events;
$2,000,000 per occun$nce lor Rodco Dvcnts All Types wlthout n paid gate and u.ith any Rough Stock
cvents; Swap Meets/Flea Markcts; $1,000,000 per occunencc for Rodeo Events AII Tlpes rvithout any
Rough Stock Erents; $2,000,000 per occuntnce hr Interirn Canr ival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides
of up to 6 rides; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Concefls rvith orer 5,000 attendees, Ravc Tlpe Events All
'llpcs, Cannabis FestivalVTrade Shorvs, Mcchanical Bulls, Extrerne Attractions All 'lypes that requirc a

DOSII pernrit to operate, and Simulators; $1,000,000 per occurrcnce for all other contracts for lvhich liabilify
insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is rcquired.

b. Autonrobile Liability - Cornnrcrcinl Autonobile Liability covcrage, on a per accident basis, at least as
broad as the cutrent ISO policy tbrm # CA 0001, Synbol #l (Any Auto) rvith limits of not less than
$1,000,000 conrbirted shrgle limits per accidcnt for contracts inr.olvhrg uscof contractol vehicles (autos,
h'ucks olother licensed vehiclcs) on fairgrounds.

c, Workers'Courpensation - Workers' Cornpensalion coveragc shall be nrainlained covering
conlractor/rrnter's cnrploytes, as required by larv,

d. Medical Malpractice - Medical Malpracticc coverage with limits of not les than $1,000,000 pcr
occunence shatl be rnaintained forcontmcts involvhrg nredical serviccs.

e. Liguor Liabjlitv- Liquor Liabilitycoverage rvith linris of not less lharr $1,000,000 peroccurrence shall
be nraintaincd for conhacts invr lving lhe sale of alcoholic beverages.

4, Cancellation Notice: Notice of cancellation of thc listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Cerlificate
Holder in accordancc rvith policy provisions.

5. Certificate Holtler:
. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along rvith fhir=s address, is listed as the certificate holder.
. For Master lnsumnce Ccrtificates Only - Califomia Fair Services Authority Attn: l(isk Management,

1 776 Tlibute Road, Suitc 100, Sacranrento, CA 958 1 5 is listed as the certificate holder.

Revised Decemb er 7, 20L7
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6. fttstrrance Conrpanl': 'flte oompany provid ing insurance covcrage rnust bc acceptflble to the California
Deparlnrent ol Insurance,

hrsured: The contractor/renter must be specitical ly listed as the lnsured.

B
B. CFSA Special Events Proeranr - The contractorienter oblains liability protection through thc California Fair

Slvices Authority (CFSA) Special Events Progmnr, rvhen applicable.

OR

C. Mastcr Cerlificates - A curmrt nraster ccrtificate of insurance for thc contractor/rrnter has been approved by and
is on fils rviilr Califorrria Fair Serv ices Authority (CFSA).

OR

D. Self-lnsurance - '[he contmctor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of selFinsurancc has bccn appmved
byCalifomia Fair Services Authority (CFSA).

Il. Gcncrnl Pr'ovisions

Mnitttenance of Corelage - The contractortcnter agrees that lhe commercial gencral liability (and automobile
liability, rvorkers' conrpcnsation, nrcdical malpractice and/or liquor liabilitS if applicable) insurance coveragc hucin
povidcd for shall bc in eftbct at all tinres durirrg the tenn ofthis contract, In the event said insurancc covenage

cxpircs or is cancelled at any tinre or tinres prior to or during lhe term of lhis contract, contmctor/renter agrees to
provide the fair', priol to said cxpiration date, a nerv certifrcate of insumncc cvidencing insurance sovemge as
pmvidcd for herein for not less than the rcnrainder of thc tcml of the contract, or for a pcriod of not less than one
(l) year. Nerv cedificates of irrsurance arc subject to the approval of Califomia Fair Services Authority, and
contractor/rcntel agrees that no rvork or services shallbc performed prior to the giving ofsuch appro'ral. In the event

lhe contractor/rentcrfails to keep ineffectat alltimes insurancecoverageas hercinprovided,the fairmaS in addilion to
anyolhorcuredies it utayhave, takeanyofthe followingactions:(l ) declarea materinl breach byconhactor/renter and
temrinate this contract; (2) rvithhold all palmcnts duc to conhactorrenter until noticc is received that such insumnce

cor.erage is in efl'ect; and(3)obtainsuch insumncccoverageanddeductpremiunrs forsarnc fronranysunl$ dueor rvhich
becorne dtre lo conlractorlrcnter uurler the tenns of this contracl.

2. Primarv Coverage - 'lhc contractor/renter's insurance covexagc shall tle prirnary and any separate coverage or
protection available to the fair or any other additional insurcd shall be secondary.

3. Conlmctor's Responsibilitv - Nothing herein shall be constnred as limiting in any rvay lhe extent to rvhich

conllaclor/r€ntcr rnaybc held responsible hr darnages resulting fiomcontmctor/renter'sopcratiorrs, acts,onrissions or
negligence, Irrsumnce cor.emge obtained in lhe nrinirnum anlounls specificd above shall not relieve
contraclor/renter of liability fur excess of such minimuur covcrage, nor shall it precludc the fair fiom takirrg other
actions available to it under contract docurnents or by law, including, but not lirnited to, actions pusuant lo
conlractor/rcnter's indenrnity obligations. Tfte contractory'rrnter indcnrnify obligntion shnll survlve the

cxpiration, terrrrination or assiqlment of this contract

4. Cefiified Copics of Policies - Upon request by ftrh contractor/renter shall inrnrediatcly fi.urrish a complete copy of
any policy required hereunder, rvith snid copycertified bythe underuriter to be a true and conect copyofthe original
policy. Fairtinre Canriral Ridc contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policics, certified by an

undenvriter, to Calilbnria Fair Selvices Authority (CFSA).

Ill, Palticinant\Yaivers

Fol hazardous participant events, the contracto/rcnter agrees to obtain a propcrly executed release and rvaivcr of liability
agrccnlent (Ponn requirrd by con{ractor/rcnter's irrsumnce conrpany or CFSARelease and WaivelForm) fronr each participnnt
plior to hiVher participation irr thc evcnts sponsored bycontractor/rcnter. Hazardou$ participant events include but arc not
lirnitcd to any event within thc follorving broad categpl'ics: Athlctic Team Evenls; Equestrian-related Events; Extrcme
Attlactions; Mechanical Bulls; Sirnulators; lvlotorizrd Events; Ilodeo Events; and Wheeled Evcnts, includingbiclcle,
skales, skateboard, orscooter, Contact Califomia Fair Services Authority at (916)921-2213 for futher in htmation.

Revlsed December 7, 20L7

Z:\Risk\lnsurance Requirements December 7, 2017

7

I



MADERA DISTRICT FAIR IIENTAL POLICYSUMMARY
EXHIBIT ..B''

DATBS AND DEPOSITS: Dates rvill be assigrted up to orre yeal in advance. Assignruent rvill be orr a first-corne, first-
served basis, except annttal evellts rvhich rvill be allorved trvo week after the close of their event to I'eserve, rvith deposit,
their sarne date for the follorving ycar, If the cleposit is not received, the Association rvill release the dates rvithout notice.

TO RBSIRVD A DATB: 50% of the rental fee is non rcfundable. This deposit rvill be forfeited if event date is canceled
ol changed.

PAYMENT: Additional rental fees such as ntaintenance, clearring/breakage deposit, insurance, seculity contract and all
other fees alttl documettts ale due arrd payable 2 rveeks prior to the event. If not, the event nraybe subject to cancellation
or a $50.00 lafe fee.

DDPOSIT: The Madera District Fair requires a cleaning/breakage deposit, the anrount rvill be indicated on contracts and
rvill be deterrnined on the size of tlte event. The deposit is refundable rvithin 5 business days after the event, less any fees
fol labor, cleanup, overtirne, darnages, etc.

SICURITY: Security is lequired flor all functions. Renter is reconrmended to contmct rvith Security Cornpany fionr
Ivladera Fait''s pre-approved list. Security to begirr at start of event till event concludes. I securify for every 50 people is
required and I extra guard for the parking lot. Hired Security Comparry has the autlrority to encl an event if any of the
lollorvirrg reasons ociur: nutnbel of people excceds the nulnber of people on security agreernent and or lental agreement,
if minors are consunting alcohol, ancl if thc public's safery is at risk. The Fair has the ultinrate authoriry to cleterruine the
nurnher of guarcls for each event,

RENTAL HOURS: Access to buildings for decorating arrd cleanup arc fi'onr 8:00 AM to t:00 AM (unless rlotecl
otherrvise ilt contmct), "Event" hours cannot exceed 8 houls. The building must be clearr arrd completely ernpty arrd leady
to lock at I :00 AM. tf the "Event" hours exceed the 8 houls, Lenter rvill be subject fo an oveftilne charge of $ 100.00 per
hour.

INSURANCE: Allrcrtters will be requircd to provide evidence of insurance protecting the legal liability of thc State of
California and the 2l-A District Agricultural Association fiom occun'ences as to bodily injury and property darnage.
Insurance may be purchased through the Fair. (See Exhibit "A" hrsurance Requircments) **RENTER TO PROVIDE
SILF.INSURBD LETTER**

ALC_OHOL: Anyone planning to charge an adrnission flee, (either direct or donation) or sell alcoholic beverages (direct
sales, script, or inclucled in adnrission fee) MUST obtain a valid liquor license fiorn the Departnrent of Alcoholic
Bevemge Contlol (ABC), 3640 E. Ashlau, Fresno 93726, (209 225-6334). Alcoholic beverages in bottles must be

served into cups fi'onr belrind bar. Cans are pernritted, but must be opened at the bar'. Limit 2 open dlinks per person.
Renter must tuake reasonable effort to encourage responsible drinking and to prevent nlinorq frorn drinkirrg.

SET UP: Renter must submit a floor plan (layout) along rvith specifications for the event 2 weeks prior to the day of tlre
event. [f set-up is not tulned in on tirne renter rvill receive a standald set-up. All set-ups are lirnited to the ability of the
F'air to provide the equipmerrl requested. Any altelations requiring stafl to nrodify floor plan or to change the set up once
lhe set-up has been approved rvill be charged at tlre current hourly rate per nraintenancc person (a $25 minimurn rvill
apply). Day before set up is for decorating only.

DAY EBFOIIDFEES & SCHEDULE:
Hatfield l-lall: $250.00 l0:00am - 8:00prn

$50,00 l2:00pm - 4:00pnr *if available 2 rveeks pt'iol to event

Home Arts Hall:$I50,00
$50.00

l0:00arn - 8:00pnr
l2:00pnr - 4:00prn *if available 2 rveeks pliol to event

DAY AFTEIf FDES 4 SCHEDULE: Renter nray colne in the day after to cleanup in the halls betrveen the hours of
l0:00am - 4:00pm, A $75.00 fee rvill be applied, Rentel understands that the day after cannot be gualanteed until 2 rveeks
prior to the event.

DICORATIONS: Renter nray NOT irse any glitter', nails, tack pins, staples, or tal e that cart damage tlte surface of rvalls.



HALLS: Honre Afis Hall is equipped rvitlr Evaporated Coolers ONLY! By signing the rental agreernent, renter agrees to
rerrt hall in an as is corrdition,

FIRE HAZARD INFO:

+All fabric oL pliable canopy covers, side/back drops and decorative nraterial urust be inherently fire resistivc or treated
*Electrical extensiott corrls shall be of the hcavy-duty three rvire (grounded), hard-usage type.
*Electrical equiprnent ancl installation slrall be inspectecl and approvecl by a qualified pelson.
*Fire hoses, firc extingLrislters or other fire equipnrent shall not be blocked or obstructed at any time,
*NO blocking or obstruction of exit (s),
*Doors shall not be losked ol chninecl.
*Decorative Materials slrall be inherently flame resistive or treated.

CLEAN-UP: Buildings or grounds must be in same conditions as it rvas inunediately prior to the event. If clean up is
requircd by the Fnir, the rcnter rvill be charged at the current hourly rate per mainterralrce person (see labor charges
belorv). Total charges rvill be deducted frorn the deposir, but not limited to the deposit. I'he rcnter is rcsponsible for all
charges and expenses resulting fiom clarnages to the buildings and/ol grounds.

LABOR CHARGES: $25.00 pel hour for t'egular ernployee and $35.00 per hour for a supervisor employee.

AUTHORIZATIONT Fair pemonnel may enter event or facility at any time. Fair personnel also have the authority to
end att event if it is irr tlrc besf intcrest of The Madera Dish'ict Fair'. Such actions that rvarrant the ending of an event,
include but not linritecl to minors consunriug alcohol, destruction of property, overcrorvding, fighting, public safety etc.
ltenter is responsible for the action of the people at their elent.

ADDITIONAL EOUIPMENT FEBS & CHARGES:

220 porver plug- Hatfield Hall $100.00
220 porver plug Not Available for Home Arts Hall

Ruviscd 02/17/17
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State of California Division of Fairs & Expositions
Exhibit "C"

STANDARD CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDTTTONS (F-31, RENTAL AGREEMENT)

1. NationalLabor Relations Board (PCC Section 10296)
Contractor, by signing this contract, does swear under penalty of perjury that no more than one final
unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal Court has been issued against contractor within the
immediately preceding two-year period because of the contractofs failure to comply with an order of a Federal
Court which orders the contractor to comply with an order of National Labor Relations Board (Public Contract
Code Section 10296).

2. Resolution of Contract Disputes {PGC {0240.5. 103811
lf, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises between contractor and Fair Management, which
cannot be settled by discussion, the contractor shall submit a written statement regarding the dispute to Fair
Management, A decision by Fair Management shall be made to the Gontractor in writing, and shall be final and
conclusive. Contractor shall continue to perform contract requirements without interruption during the dispute
period.

3. Non-Discrimination Clause/Statement of Gomnliance (GG 12990/CGR 8103-81201
During the performance of this contract, contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate harass
or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry,
religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medicalcondition
(cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractors and subcontractors shall
ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free of such
discrimination and harassment, Contractors and subcontractors shall comply with the provision of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code Section 12900, et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated
there under (CA Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285.0, et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair
Employment and Housing Commission implementing Gov. Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Ch, 5 of Div. 4
of Title 2 of the CA Code of Regulations are incorporated into this contract by reference and made part hereof as
if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under lhis clause
to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. This contractor shall
include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under
this contract.

Contractor by signing this contract hereby certifies, unless specifically exempted, compliance with Gov, Code
12990 (a-f) and CA Code of Regulations, Title 2, Div. 4, Ch. 5 in matters relating to reporting requirements and
the development, implementation and maintenance of a Nondiscrimination Program. Prospective contractor
agrees not to unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for
employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including
HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family
care leave.

4. Amendment (GC 11010.5)
Contract modification, when allowable, may be made by formal amendment only

5. Assiqnment
This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in
the form of a formalwritten amendment.

6, Termination
The fair reserves the right to terminate any contract, at any time, upon order of the Board of Directors by giving
the contractor notice in writing at least 30 days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.
Such termination shall relieve the fair of any further payments, obligations, and/or performances required in the
terms of the contract.

SCTC, F-3 1 (revised l0/01) Page I of2



7. Governinq Law
This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

B. Gonfllct of lnterest (PCC {04{0, 10411. 10420)
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees. lf
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.

Cufrent State Emplov-ees (PCC 10410):

1) No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state
employment.

2l No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state
agency to provide goods or services.

Fo!'merState Employees (PGC 1 Q41 1 ):

1) For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee
may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning,
arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any
capacity by any state agency.

2) For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or
employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency
in a policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the '12-month
period prior to his or her leaving state service.

lf Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement
void. (PCC 10420).

L Contractor Name Chanqe
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment. Payment of invoices presented with a
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.

10. Air or Water Pollutign Viglation (WC {330{l
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law
relating to air or water pollution.

SCTC, F-31 (revised l0/01) Page? of2



Tenns and Conditions, Exhibit "D"
c#18-103

1. The Fair asrees to Drovide the followins:

Madera facility use including but not limited to; Home Arts, Hatfield Hall, Van Alen Hall,
picnic tables, trash receptacles, bleachers, maintenance personnel, and all outdoor areas
based on availability and potential conflicts with previously existing events.

Supply Fair related curriculum and activities for (L) week of camp, termed "Fair Camp"
June Li.th-lsth 2018.

Supply Fair related curriculum and activities that may be used at the City's discretion for
remaining camp events.

a

o

a

a Supply certain equipment and materials related to camp programing as agreed to by
both parties.

2. The Citv agrees to the followine:

Provide staff to provided adequate staffing and supervision to market to and register
participants; facilitate all camp activities and communication to participants and parents.

Collect and retain all fees incurred by participants in camps.

Provide all equipment and materials related to camp programming unless mutually
agreed to by both parties

Provision of General Liability lnsurance as detailed

a

a

o



REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
COUNCIL MEETING OF May 02,2018

AGENDA ITEM NIJMBER C-2

BY

T DIRECTOR

)'# E^a^- etrv noMNtffiAToR

SUBJEGT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MADERA, CALIFORNIA, SUPPORTING THE REDUGING CRIME
AND KEEPING CALIFORNIA SAFE ACT OF 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Council adopt the Resolution supporting the
Reducing Crime and Keeping California Safe Act of 2018.

BACKGROUND:

On November 4,2014 Proposition 47 Criminal Sentences, Misdemeanor
Penalties lnitiative Statute was voted in to law. This law is better known as the
Safe Neighborhoods and Schools Act. Supporters qualified the initiative for the
ballot after acquiring the required amount of signatures. Proposition 47, reduced
the classification of most non-serious and non-violent property and drug crimes
from a felony to a misdemeanor. The summary of Proposition 47 reads as
follows:

Mandates misdemeanors instead of felonies for "non-serious, nonviolent
crimes," unless the defendant haS prior convictions for murder, rape, certain
sex offenses or certain gun crimes.
Permit re-sentencing for anyone currently serving a prison sentence for any
of the offenses that the initiative reduces to misdemeanors. Require a
"thorough review" of criminal history and risk assessment of any individuals
before re-sentencing to ensure that they do not pose a risk to the public.

Create a Safe Neighborhood and Schools Fund.

Return to Agenda



Requires misdemeanor sentence instead of felony for the following crimes
when amount involved is $950 or less: petty theft, receiving stolen property,

forging/writing bad checks and theft of a firearm.

Shoplifting, where the value of property stolen does not exceed $950,

Grand theft, where the value of the stolen property does not
exceed $950,

Receiving stolen property, where the value of the property does not
exceed $950,

Forgery, where the value of forged check, bond or bill does not exceed

$950,

Writing a bad check, where the value of the check does not exceed
$e50,

Personal use of most illegal drugs

Allows felony sentence for these offenses if person has previous conviction
for crimes such as rape, murder or child molestation or is a registered sex
offender.

I nitiative I ntrod uction :

This initiative will help address some of the damage done by Proposition 47. The
initiative will crack down on repeat offenders and protect our most vulnerable victims
from dangerous individuals who take advantage of our laws, our businesses, and
our communities. Changes meant to help keep someone who steals a magazine out
of jail, are now allowing individuals to steal up to $950 repeatedly from stores and
businesses. Additionally, reform intended to lower penalties on personal drug use

and theft have diminished the amount of evidence law enforcement can collect to
help solve cold case murders, rapes, and robberies. Modifications to our parole

system designed to apply to non-violent offenders are set to potentially provide early
release to serious domestic abusers.

Violent Crime:
This lnitiative will expand the list of violent crimes for which early release is not an

option. Under current law, rape of an unconscious person, trafficking a child for sex,

Assault of a peace officer, felony domestic violence and other similar crimes are

not classified as "violent felonies" - making criminals convicted of these crimes
eligible for early release.



DNA Collection:
Reinstates DNA collection for certain crimes that were reduced to misdemeanors
as part of Proposition 47.
Multiple studies have shown that DNA collected from theft and drug crimes has
Helped solve other violent crimes, including robbery, rape and murder. Since
passage of Prop. 47, cold case hits have dropped over 2,000, with more than
450 of those hits connected to violent crimes.

Serial Theft:
Revises the theft threshold by adding a felony for serial theft - when a person is

caught for the 3rd time stealing with a value of $250. Prop. 47 changed the dollar
threshold for theft to be considered a felony - from $450 to $950. As a result,
there has been an explosion of serial theft and an inability
of law enforcement to prosecute these crimes effectively. Theft has increased by
12% to 25o/o, with losses of a billion dollars since the law was passed.

Parole Violations:
Requires the Board of Parole. Hearings to consider an inmate's entire criminal
history when deciding parole, not just his most recent commitment offense; and
requires a mandatory hearing to determine whether parole should be revoked for
any parolee who violates the terms of his parole for the third time.

AB 109 bases parole solely on an offender's commitment offense, resulting in

the release of inmates with serious and violent criminal histories. Moreover,
parolees who repeatedly violate the terms of their parole currently face few
consequences, allowing them to remain on the street.

The California Police Chiefs Association represents more than 330 active police

chiefs, who are directly responsible for the safety of roughly 26 million Californians.
Over the last several legislative sessions and election cycles, our Association and
law enforcement partners have tried our best to integrate a series of major reforms
into our criminaljustice system. However, the cumulative effect has created impacts

to our communities that we cannot ignore. But it's important to note that in
addressing these consequences, we are not proposing to do away with all of the
recent changes, and in no way are we advocating for a system of mass
incarceration. ln general, the overall intent of the prior measures has been to
increase opportunities for rehabilitation while lowering recidivism and incarceration
rates. We agree those are worthy goals. But these major policy changes have
resulted in a series of unintended consequences that have negatively impacted
public safety in communities throughout the California.
The California Police Chiefs Association is requesting our support in the form of a
Resolution supporting their lnitiative.



GONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN

Strategy 406- Community Safety; reduce the incidence of domestic violence within the
community including: child abuse; spousal abuse; crimes against youth and the elderly; and
crimes committed by youth.

Strategy 421- Ensure the safety and protection of Madera and its community members.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact associated with adoption of this Resolution



RES. NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MADERA, CALIFORNIA, SUPPORTING THE REDUCING CRIME AND

KEEPING CALIFORNIA SAFE ACT OF 2018

WHEREAS, protecting every person in our state, including our most vulnerable
children, from violent crime is of the utmost importance. Murderers, rapists, child
molesters and other violent criminals should not be released early from prison;
and

WHEREAS, since 2014, California has had a larger increase in violent crime
than the rest of the United States. Since 2013, violent crime in Los Angeles has
increased 69.5%. Violent crime in Sacramento rose faster during the first six
months of 2015 than in any of the 25 largest U.S. cities tracked by the FBI; and

WHEREAS, The FBI Preliminary Semiannual Uniform Crime Report for 2017,
which tracks crimes committed during the first six months of the past year in U.S
cities with populations over 100,000, indicates that last year violent crime
increased again in most of California's largest cities.

WHEREAS, recent changes to parole laws allowed the early release of
dangerous criminals by the law's failure to define certain crimes as "violent."
These changes allowed individuals convicted of sex trafficking of children, rape
of an unconscious person, felony assault with a deadly weapon, battery on a
police officer or firefighter, and felony domestic violence to be considered
"nonviolent offenders"; and

WHEREAS, as a result, these so-called "non-violent" offenders are eligible for
early release from prison after serving only a fraction of the sentence ordered by
a judge; and

WHEREAS, violent offenders are also being allowed to remain free in our
communities even when they commit new crimes and violate the terms of their
post release community supervision, like the gang member charged with the
murder of Whittier Police Officer, Keith Boyer; and

WHEREAS, this measure reforms the law so felons who violate the terms of their
release can be brought back to court and held accountable for such violations;
and

WHEREAS, nothing in this act is intended to create additional "strike" offenses
which would increase the state prison population, nor is it intended to affect the
ability of the California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation to award
educational and merit credits; and



WHEREAS, recent changes to California law allow individuals who steal
repeatedly to face few consequences, regardless of their criminal record or how
many times they steal; and

WHEREAS, as a result, between 2014 and 2016, California had the 2nd highest
increase in theft and property crimes in the United States, while most states have
seen a steady decline. According to the California Department of Justice, the
value of property stolen in 2015 was $2.5 billion with an increase of 13 percent
since 2014, the largest single-year increase in at least ten years; and

WHEREAS, grocery store operators around the state have seen unprecedented
increases in the amount of losses associated with shoplifting in their stores, with
some reporting up to 150% increases in these losses from 2012 to present, with
the largest jumps occurring since 2014; and

WHEREAS, shoplifting incidents have started to escalate in such a manner that
have endangered innocent customers and employees; and

WHEREAS, individuals who repeatedly steal often do so to support their drug
habit. Recent changes to California law have reduced judges' ability to order
individuals convicted of repeated theft crimes into effective drug treatment
programs; and

WHEREAS, California needs stronger laws for those who are repeatedly
convicted of theft related crimes, which will encourage those who repeatedly
steal to support their drug problem to enter into existing drug treatment
programs. This measure enacts such reforms; and

WHEREAS, collecting DNA from criminals is essentialto solving violent crimes.
Over 450 violent crimes including murder, rape and robbery have gone unsolved
because DNA is being collected from fewer criminals; and

WHEREAS, DNA collected in 2015 from a convicted child molester solved the
rape-murders of two six-year-old boys that occurred three decades ago in Los
Angeles County. DNA collected in 2016 from an individual caught driving a
stolen car solved the 2012 San Francisco Bay Area rape/murder of an 83-year-
old woman; and

WHEREAS, recent changes to California law unintentionally eliminated DNA
collection for theft and drug crimes. This measure restores DNA collection from
persons convicted for such offenses; and

WHEREAS, permitting collection of more DNA samples will help identify
suspects, clear the innocent and free the wrongly convicted, and



WHEREAS, this measure does not affect existing legal safeguards that protect
the privacy of individuals by allowing for the removal of their DNA profile if they
are not charged with a crime, are acquitted or are found innocent.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MADERA
HEREBY

Finds, orders and resolves as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct.

2. The City Council of the City of Madera hereby supports the Reducing Crime
and Keeping California Safe Act of 2018.

3. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.

*********



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 

Council Meeting of: May 2, 2018 

Agenda Number: _E-_l __ 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Audited Financial Statements and Single Audit Report (Federal 
Grants) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017 

RECOMMENDATION: Acceptance of Audited Financial Statements and Single Audit Report 
for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017. 

SUMMARY: The City of Madera's (City's) Financial Statements for Fiscal Year ended June 
30, 2017 have been audited by an independent accounting firm and an Unmodified Opinion (a 
clean opinion) has been issued. 

DISCUSSION: In accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the provisions of the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, the City is required to have an 
independent firm audit their Financial Statements whenever $750,000 in Federal grants are 
received for any Fiscal Year. The audit must follow Generally Accepted Auditing Standards as 
set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and comply with the 
standards for financial audits set forth in the U.S. General Accounting Office's Governments 
Auditing Standards (1994). The audit completed for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017 complies 
with all the provisions and standards previously stated and the City's Financial Statements have 
been found to be in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

Copies of the most recent Audited Financial Statements and Single Audit Reports will be posted 
on the City's website. Fausto Hinojosa, Managing Partner of Price Paige & Company will 
present the Financial Statements and Single Audit Report and discuss their results with the City 
Council, this evening. This has been a challenging audit, due to the change in accounting 
software system. However, both City staff and the auditors are happy with the final results of this 
audit. The City remains in strong fiscal condition after adding approximately $1 million to the 
General Fund's fund balance during Fiscal Year 2016/2017. 

For the upcoming audit of the City's 2017/2018 financial statements, staff has established the 
goal of issuing a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), which includes more 
components than the audited financial statements, takes more staff and auditors' time to prepare 
and when done right can result in CAFR awards from the California Society of Municipal 
Finance Officers (CSMFO) and/or the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The 

Return to Agenda



differences between the two types of financial statements or reports will be discussed in slightly 
more detail during this presentation. We originally had this goal for the 2016/2017 financial 
statements. However, with this being our first audit under our new ERP system, Tyler Munis, 
and with turnover in both the City and the auditor's staff, the auditors recommended against a 
CAFR for the 2016/2017 audit. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial impact to the City. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN: Acceptance of the audited 
Financial Statements and Single Audit Report is not addressed in the vision or action plans; the 
submitted item is also not in conflict with any of the actions or goals contained in that plan. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the 
City of Madera 
Madera, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Madera, California (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Madera, California, as of June 30, 2017, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis on pages 3-18, budgetary comparison information on pages 88-90, the schedules of changes in net 
pension liability and related ratios on page 92, schedule of contributions on pages 93 and 95, schedule of the City’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 94, and schedule of funding progress – other postemployment 
benefits plan on page 96 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 23, 2018, on our 
consideration of the City of Madera, California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
Clovis, California 
April 23, 2018 
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This discussion and analysis of the City of Madera's financial performance provides an overview of the City's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
accompanying basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

 The City's government-wide total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $277.3 million.  Of this amount, $4.4 
million is in unrestricted net position and available to meet the City's ongoing commitments to citizens 
and creditors.  In addition, the City’s restricted net position totals $35.9 million and is dedicated to 
specific purposes.  Lastly, net position of $237 million is the City’s net investment in capital assets. 

 The City’s total net position increased by $0.8 million or 0.3% during 2016-2017 to $277.3 million from 
$276.4 million.  

 At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$49.3 million, an increase of $2.5 million or 5.3% in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 28% 
of this amount ($14 million) is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

 The City's General Fund, including Code Enforcement, Insurance Reserve, Payroll Clearing, Community 
Development and LEA Tire Grants, ended the year with a fund balance of $15.4 million, which 
represents a net increase of approximately $0.8 million from the previous year.  The unassigned balance 
of $14.0 million is available for carryover to fund future general fund expenditures. 

 Net Pension Liability increased by $7.0 million or 19% during 2016-2017 to $39.0 million from $32.0 
million.  Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions increased by $6.2 million or 120% and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased by $1.6 million or 53%.  The changes to net 
pension liability were mainly due to an overall increase in the net pension liability of the CalPERS safety 
risk pool, of which the City’s proportionate share increased, and the service cost and interest 
accumulated on the City’s total pension liability in its miscellaneous risk pool agent plan exceeded 
contributions and investment income in the City’s fiduciary net position.  The changes to the City’s 
deferred outflows were mainly due to an increase in contributions to the Plan made by the City in 2016-
2017 and actual earnings on the plan exceeding the projected earnings, which will be applied as a 
reduction to net pension liability over the next five years.  Finally, the changes to deferred inflows of 
resources were mainly the result of the amortization of prior year deferred inflows resulting from previous 
changes in actuarial assumptions and differences in between expected and actual experience that did 
not meet the previous actuarial expectations. 

 During the year, 30% and 9% rate increases were implemented for water and sewer services, 
respectively.  Incremental rate increases over the subsequent five years were approved by Council 
during the second quarter of calendar year 2015.  Those rate increases took effect in fiscal year 2016 
and were projected to increase water revenues by 30% and sewer revenues by 9% in fiscal year 2017.  
The water rate increases are projected to further increase water revenues by 20% in 2018, 10% in 2019, 
and 3% in fiscal year 2020.  Sewer rate increases are projected to further increase sewer revenues by 
9% in 2019, and 10% in fiscal year 2020. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  These statements include all activities of the 
City of Madera, using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34.  The Statement of 
Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the City's finances.  Fund financial statements tell how these services are 
financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.  Fund financial statements also report 
the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the 
City's most significant funds.  The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for 
which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the Government. 
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Reporting the City as a Whole 

Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances.  These statements include all assets and 
liabilities of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting method used by 
most private sector companies.  All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is received or paid out. 

The statement of net position presents information on all the City's assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows of 
resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as one indicator of whether the City's financial position is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed in the most 
recent fiscal year.  All changes of net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported on 
this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused 
vacation leave). 

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided as follows: 

Governmental Activities:  Most of the City's basic services are included here such as public safety, 
transportation (street and roads), community development, culture and recreation and general government.  
These services are primarily financed by property and sales taxes and federal and state grants. 

Business-type Activities:  The City charges fees to customers to cover the costs of services provided.  The 
City's utilities, water, sewer, community sanitation (refuse and street cleaning), golf course, and airport, as 
well as public transit services are included here. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21-23 of this report. 

Fund financial statements.  The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the 
City's most significant funds, not the City as a whole.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Some funds 
are required to be established by State Law or by bond covenants.  Management establishes other funds to 
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show the City is meeting legal responsibilities for 
using certain taxes, grants, and other money.  All the funds of the City can be classified into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and 
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the 
fiscal year.  These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.  Such information is 
useful in evaluating a governments near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions.  
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations between governmental funds and governmental 
activities.  This reconciliation explains the relationship (or differences) between the fund statements and the 
government-wide statements. 
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The City of Madera maintains nineteen individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in 
the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, General Development Impact Fee Fund, and Special 
Gas Tax Fund all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other sixteen funds are 
combined into a single aggregated presentation. 

Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining 
statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund.  A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance to this budget.  

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-27 of this report. 

Proprietary funds.  The City has two different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and internal 
service funds.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities 
in the government-wide financial statements.  The City utilizes enterprise funds to account for those activities 
that are supported primarily by user charges to external users, and includes community sanitation, sewer 
disposal, water and transit.  Internal service funds are used to account for activities that are supported by 
user charges primarily to the City's other programs and activities and include fleet management, facility 
maintenance, and computer replacement.  Because all of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for Water, Sewer, Solid 
Waste, and Drainage Operations funds since they are all major funds.  Individual fund data for each of these 
non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.  All of 
the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the fund financial 
statements.  Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining 
statements elsewhere in this report.  

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-35 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefits of parties outside 
the City.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the City 
cannot use these funds to finance its operations.  

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-37 of this report. 

Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund statements.  The notes to the basic 
financial statements can be found on pages 38-85 of this report. 

Required Supplementary Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in 
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits and other post-employment benefits to its employees, and 
budgetary comparison schedules.  Required supplementary information can be found on pages 88-96 of this 
report. 

Individual Fund Statements.  Individual fund statements in connection with non-major governmental and 
enterprise funds are presented immediately the required supplementary information, which can be found on 
pages 98-107 of this report.  
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Below is a table showing the City's net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, with comparative 
data for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 

City of Madera’s Net Position 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Assets:
Current and other assets 55,225,939$      53,601,138$      27,996,610$   28,242,979$   83,222,549$      81,844,117$      
Capital assets 180,604,855      184,266,904      104,801,222   105,558,379   285,406,077      289,825,283      

Total assets 235,830,794      237,868,042      132,797,832   133,801,358   368,628,626      371,669,400      

Deferred outflows of resources:
Contributions to pension plan in 

current fiscal year 558,025             3,695,181          1,786,638       498,955          2,344,663          4,194,136          
Pension deferrals 9,087,664          992,871             -                      -                      9,087,664          992,871             

Total deferred outflows of resources 9,645,689          4,688,052          1,786,638       498,955          11,432,327        5,187,007          

Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 2,596,215          3,550,737          3,615,189       3,266,981       6,211,404          6,817,718          
Long-term liabilities 38,155,451        34,638,701        56,538,918     55,386,782     94,694,369        90,025,483        

Total liabilities 40,751,666        38,189,438        60,154,107     58,653,763     100,905,773      96,843,201        

Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension deferrals 1,302,673          2,726,958          117,648          316,780          1,420,321          3,043,738          
Deferred service concession 

agreement receipts -                        -                        90,000            130,000          90,000               130,000             
Gain on refunding of debt -                        -                        386,772          407,678          386,772             407,678             

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,302,673          2,726,958          594,420          854,458          1,897,093          3,581,416          

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 178,119,000      181,166,736      58,792,617     57,639,498     236,911,617      238,806,234      
Restricted 34,863,951        32,193,071        1,076,451       -                  35,940,402        32,193,071        
Unrestricted (9,560,807)        (11,720,109)      13,966,875     17,152,594     4,406,068          5,432,485          

Total net position 203,422,144$    201,639,698$    73,835,943$   74,792,092$   277,258,087$    276,431,790$    

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 

As of June 30, 2017, the City's government-wide total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $277.3 million.  Governmental activities finished the year with 
a positive net position balance of $203.4 million, an increase of $1.8 million, or 1% compared to 2016.  
Business-type activities finished the year with a positive balance of $73.8 million, a decrease of $1 million or 
1% compared to 2016.  Net position, as noted earlier, may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's 
financial position.  Of the total net position, $238.8 million or 85% is the City's net investment in capital 
assets (e.g. land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and the road network) less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. 

The City's net investment in capital assets decreased by $1.9 million, restricted net position increased by 
$3.7 million and unrestricted net position decreased by $1 million, accounting for the increase in total net 
position of $0.8 million.  The decrease in net investment in capital assets is primarily due to the depreciation 
expense of $12.2 million, offset by additions to capital assets of $7.7 million.  The increase to restricted net 
position represents the change in resource that are subject to external restrictions on their use.  Net position 
restricted for public works and transportation decreased by $0.6 million compared to prior year.  The 
decrease to unrestricted net position is due to a change in resources available to fund City programs for 
citizens and debt obligations to creditors. 
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All of the City's long-term liabilities relate to the acquisition of capital assets.  Some of those assets include 
the City's Youth Center, police facility, and sewer and water infrastructure including the water and 
wastewater treatment plant, a sewer truck and a municipal golf course facility.  These capital assets are 
utilized to provide services to citizens and are not available for future spending.  The repayment of the debt 
on these assets must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

Restricted net position represents $36 million or 13% of the total.  Restricted net position represents those 
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  These restrictions are 
established by bond covenants or restrictions on the use of funds are set forth by state or federal regulations.  

Unrestricted net position represents those resources which may be used to meet the City's ongoing 
commitments to citizens and creditors.  Government-wide unrestricted net position represents $4.4 million or 
2% of the total net position, which is a decrease of $1 million or 19% from the previous year.  Governmental 
activities account for a negative $9.6 million of the total unrestricted net position and increased by $2.2 
million or 18% compared to last year.  Business-type activities account for $14.0 million of the total 
unrestricted net position and decreased by $3.2 million or 19% compared to last year. 
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Governmental activities.  Governmental activities account for $203.4 million or 73% of the total 
government-wide net position.  This is an increase of $0.8 million or 0.3% compared to June 30, 2016. 

The following table indicates the changes in net position for governmental and business-type activities: 

 
City of Madera's Changes in Net Position 

 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services 4,926,083$        4,939,456$        24,311,797$   21,723,941$   29,237,880$      26,663,397$      
Operating grants and contributions 11,378,323        15,439,777        1,546,651       1,334,299       12,924,974        16,774,076        
Capital grants and contributions 1,649,843          1,330,746          2,281,202       1,833,671       3,931,045          3,164,417          

General revenues:
Property taxes 4,040,067          3,571,669          171,878          58,333            4,211,945          3,630,002          
Sales and use taxes 9,112,909          6,506,004          -                      -                      9,112,909          6,506,004          
Franchise taxes 649,415             678,438             -                      -                      649,415             678,438             
Other taxes 1,694,786          2,172,574          -                      -                      1,694,786          2,172,574          
Investment earnings 203,973             603,795             120,594          210,257          324,567             814,052             
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 31,374               16,304               39,821            4,250              71,195               20,554               
Miscellaneous 343,287             580,398             26,004            34,976            369,291             615,374             

Total revenues 34,030,060        35,839,161        28,497,947     25,199,727     62,528,007        61,038,888        

Expenses
General government 7,692,256          8,890,092          -                      -                      7,692,256          8,890,092          
Public safety 12,903,321        14,722,091        -                      -                      12,903,321        14,722,091        
Public ways and facilities 4,607,237          6,852,731          -                      -                      4,607,237          6,852,731          
Social services 303,015             182,286             -                      -                      303,015             182,286             
Culture and recreation 4,421,827          4,451,155          -                      -                      4,421,827          4,451,155          
Community development 3,029,515          5,249,438          -                      -                      3,029,515          5,249,438          
Interest on long-term debt 110,856             280,037             -                      -                      110,856             280,037             
Local transit -                        -                        2,184,533       2,051,814       2,184,533          2,051,814          
Water -                        -                        10,066,546     5,590,810       10,066,546        5,590,810          
Sewer -                        -                        8,758,885       8,476,744       8,758,885          8,476,744          
Golf course -                        -                        115,882          74,596            115,882             74,596               
Airport -                        -                        893,106          852,560          893,106             852,560             
Solid waste -                        -                        6,305,944       4,936,291       6,305,944          4,936,291          
Drainage operations -                        -                        956,287          1,024,498       956,287             1,024,498          

Total expenses 33,068,027        40,627,830        29,281,183     23,007,313     62,349,210        63,635,143        

Increase (decrease) in net position
 before transfers 962,033             (4,788,669)        (783,236)         2,192,414       178,797             (2,596,255)        

Transfers 172,913             1,718,751          (172,913)         (1,718,751)      -                        -                        

Increase (decrease) in net position 1,134,946          (3,069,918)        (956,149)         473,663          178,797             (2,596,255)        
Net position - beginning, as restated 202,287,198      204,709,616      74,792,092     74,318,429     277,079,290      279,028,045      

Net position - ending 203,422,144$    201,639,698$    73,835,943$   74,792,092$   277,258,087$    276,431,790$    

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
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Total governmental revenues for the year were $34 million, which is $1.8 million or 5% less than in 2016.  

 Operating grants and contributions decreased by $4.1 million or 26% from the previous year.  This is 
primarily due to the final installment of $1.7 million of Property Tax In-Lieu of Sales Tax in 2016 and 
a $1.1 million decrease in operating grants for Public Ways and Facilities.  

 Capital grants and contributions increased by $0.3 million or 24% from the previous year. 

 Taxes, including property, sales, franchise, and other taxes account for approximately $15.5 million 
or 46% of the City's governmental activities revenue.  Total tax revenue increased $2.6 million or 
20% from the previous year primarily due to increases in sales and use taxes. 

 Investment earnings decreased by $0.4 million or 66% from the previous year due primarily to a 
roughly $400,000 gain on sale of investments in 2016 compared to a slight loss on sale of 
investments in 2017. 

Total governmental expenses for the year were $33.1 million, which is $7.6 million or 19% less than in 2016.  

 General government expenses decreased by $1.2 million or 13% from the previous fiscal year due to 
the move of utility billing operations to its proper place within the enterprise funds. 

 Public safety decreased by $1.8 million or 12% from the previous year due primarily to a current year 
pension expense adjustment of $2.1 million. 

 Public ways and facilities decreased by $2.2 million or 33% from the previous year due, in part, to a 
decrease in developer reimbursements. 

 Culture and recreation decreased by $0.03 million or less than 1% from the previous year. 

 Community development expenses decreased by $2.2 million or 42% due to decreases in home 
rehabilitation loans and settlement expenses from the previous year. 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
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Governmental program revenues that include charges for services and grants specific to certain programs 
account for $18.0 million or 53% of the total governmental activity revenue.  The amounts necessary to fully 
fund the governmental activity programs are made up of "general" revenues such as taxes, interest, and 
grants and contributions. 

Business-type Activities.  Business-type activities account for $73.8 million or 27% of the total government-
wide net position.  This is a decrease of $1.0 million from the prior year.  Net investment in capital assets 
accounts for $58.8 million or 80% of the total net position and is an increase of $1.2 million from 2016.  
Restricted net position accounts for $1.1 million, or 1% of total net position, represents an increase of $1.1 
million from 2016.  Unrestricted net position of $15.0 million, or 20% of total net position, represents an 
increase of $2.1 million from 2016. 

Total business-type revenue for the year was $28.5 million, which is $3.3 million or 13% more than in 2016.  

Charges for services increased by $2.6 million or 12% from the prior year primarily due to a rate increase 
that took effect July 1, 2016.  Additional water meters were installed where there were previously no meters.  
This change resulted in moving some customers from flat rates to metered rates, which typically increases 
charges for services. 

Operating grants and contributions increased by $0.2 million or 16% from the prior year primarily due to each 
grant award increases.  

Capital grants and contributions increased by $0.4 million or 24% from the prior year primarily due to the City 
receiving a new airport grant. 

Expenses and Program Revenues-Business-Type Activities 
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Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities 
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Included in charges for services are user fees relating to the water, sewer, solid waste, drainage, transit, golf 
course, and airport operations. 

Total business-type expenses for the year were $29.3 million, which is $6.3 million or 27% more than in 
2016.  

Water expenses increased by $4.5 million or 80% primarily due to the shifting of the Utility Billing Division 
into the Water, Sewer and Solid Waste Funds, along with increased maintenance and repair costs and water 
meter installations. The shifting of Utility Billing triggered a roughly $1 million GASB 68 adjustment and 
increased salary and benefit costs to the Water Fund by another $1 million.   

Solid Waste increased by $1.4 million or 28% primarily due to the shifting of Utility Billing to the enterprise 
funds and a related $600,000 GASB 68 adjustment. The combined increases in Water and Solid Waste 
expenses made up 93% of the total increases in business-type expenses in Fiscal Year 2017. 
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental funds.  Fund balance is defined in five categories: non-spendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned and unassigned.  Non-spendable fund balances cannot be spent because they are not in 
spendable form.  Restricted fund balances have limitations imposed externally by creditors, granters, 
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments.  Committed fund balances have self-imposed 
limitations set in place prior to the end of the period.  Assigned fund balances are constrained by the City’s 
intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  Unassigned fund balances 
are the amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned to a specific 
purpose. 

All of the City's Governmental Funds ended the year with positive fund balances.  The ending fund balance 
for all funds amounted to $49.3 million, $2.6 million more than the previous year.  The increase is primarily 
due to a $950,000 increase in Developmental Impact Fees, $842,000 increase in general fund special 
revenue and a $578,000 increase in special gas tax.  There was an increase in unassigned fund balances of 
$1.3 million, with included a $1.1 million increase in the General Fund and a $0.2 million increase in non-
major governmental funds. 

Of the total fund balance, $14 million or 28% is unassigned which, within the limitations of the fund's 
purpose, is available for spending at the City's discretion.  The remainder of the fund balance is either non-
spendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is not in spendable form, legally required to 
be maintained intact, restricted for particular purposes, committed for particular purposes, or assigned for 
particular purposes.  The details of the remainder are as follows: 
 
 

Nonspendable:
Inventory 66,661$            
Prepaid items 46,319              
Long-term interfund advances 159,122            

Restricted:
Community development 10,600,388       
Park development 79,643              
Parking improvements 277,420            
Public works and transportation 9,650,080         
Special assessment project 751,094            
Law enforcement 125,450            
Capital projects and improvements 12,373,525       

Assigned:
Golf course capital 20,000              
OPEB liability 97,339              
Insurance 1,082,179         

Unassigned 13,968,482        
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General Fund 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  As of June 30, 2017, the total fund balance 
(including all categories) of the general fund was $15.4 million, up $1 million from June 30, 2016.  The total 
fund balance of $15.4 million includes non-spendable balances of $0.3 million, assigned balances of $1.2 
million, and an unassigned balance of $14.0 million. 

The assigned fund balance remained unchanged from 2016. 

The unassigned fund balance increased $1.1 million when compared to June 30, 2016.  The $14.0 million 
unassigned portion represents the amount carried over to offset the impact of any revenue shortfall that may 
occur in the next year due to economic uncertainty.  As a measurement of the General Fund’s liquidity, it 
may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total General Fund 
expenditures.  Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 51% of total General Fund expenditures, 
while total fund balance represents approximately 56% of total General Fund expenditures. 

Other Major Funds 

The General Development Impact Fee Special Revenue Fund, a major fund, had a $1 million increase in 
fund balance during Fiscal Year 2017.  This increase in fund balance is primarily due to a prior year 
adjustment and the completion of some projects.  The ending fund balance of $12.4 million is restricted for 
capital projects and improvements. 

The Special Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund, a major fund, had a $0.6 million increase in fund balance 
during the current Fiscal Year 2017.  This increase in fund balance is due to a decrease in expenditures 
related to Capital Outlay.  The ending fund balance of $9.5 million is restricted for public works and 
transportation. 

Proprietary Funds.  As indicated in the description of proprietary funds, there are two types of funds, 
enterprise and internal service funds.  The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

The City's enterprise funds and internal service funds ended the year with unrestricted net position as 
follows: 

Water Fund  $ 5,661,276 
Sewer Fund     6,229,212 
Solid Waste Fund     2,441,579 
Drainage Operations Fund        (47,831)
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds        391,353 
Internal Service Fund      (801,433)  
 

As noted earlier in the discussion of business-type activities and revenues for water and sewer services 
increased by 12% in the current year.  Incremental rate increases over the subsequent five years were 
approved by the City Council during the second quarter of calendar year 2015. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The general fund ended fiscal year 2017 with $2.3 million better than budget.  This variance was primarily 
the result of $1.1 million more revenues than anticipated and $1.9 million of savings on expenditures, offset 
by $0.7 million less transfers in than anticipated.  Although they are reflected as savings to the current year 
budget, they may be reserved for expenditures in the subsequent fiscal year. 

 Actual expenditures for General Government came in $0.6 million under budget due to savings in 
personnel costs, property/liability/fidelity insurance, contracted services, intergovernmental charges, 
and inter-fund charges - software cost. 

 Actual expenditures for Public Protection came in at $0.7 million under budget due to savings in 
contracted services and personnel costs. 

 Public Ways and Facilities were $0.7 million under budget due to savings in supplies and materials, 
contracted services, and personnel costs.  

 Actual expenditures for Community Development came in at $0.2 million under budget due to 
savings in contracted services and personnel costs. 

 Actual expenditures for Culture and Recreation came in at $65,000 under budget due to savings in 
contracted services and conference/training. 

 Actual expenditures for Capital Outlay were $74,000 over budget due to the carrying-forward of 
capital project budgets from prior fiscal year appropriations. 

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets.  The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of June 30, 2017, amount to $285.4 million (net of depreciation), a decrease of $4.4 million compared to 
2016.  This decrease is primarily due the depreciation expense of $12.2 million offset by additions to capital 
assets of $7.7 million.  

Major capital asset additions this year include the following:  

 Road network improvements - $2.8 million  
o Developer Donations (sidewalk, pavement, pipelines, and others) - $1 million 
o Various other street improvement projects - $1.2 million 
o Various parks improvement projections - $131,000 
o Various traffic signal improvement projects - $467,000 

 Transit and Public Works Facility - $411,000 
 Equipment and software purchases (pumper fire truck, software and vehicles) - $1.5 million 
 Airport Apron Reconstruction - $1.3 million 
 Trunk Sewer System Improvement - $1.2 million 
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During the year the City made improvements to various streets, parks, sewer mains, and received developer-
donated infrastructure.  Capital projects constructed by the City include:  

 Bike lanes improvement: Laurel Street to the Fresno River Trail 
 Landscaping improvement: 4th Street, Pine Street & Pecan Avenue 
 Parks improvements: Centennial Park Playground 
 Sewer mains replacement: various locations 
 Street improvements: Ave 17 & Sharon Blvd, Olive & Gateway Ave, Thomas Jefferson & John 

Adams, Pine Street & Pecan Avenue 
 Trunk sewer system rehabilitation: Schnoor Avenue 

Developer constructed infrastructure was constructed in conjunction with the partial list of projects shown 
below:  

 California Custom Processing – Schnoor Avenue 
 Capistrano 16 Subdivision– Westberry Blvd. Street 
 Cleveland Avenue Ave & Aspen Ln NE Corner – 2401 W Cleveland Avenue 
 Virginia Lee Rose Elementary School – 1001 Lilly Street 

 
City of Madera's Capital Assets 

 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land 7,573,520$        7,573,520$        9,027,017$        9,026,517$        16,600,537$      16,600,037$      
Construction in progress 9,479,137          7,777,065          4,479,749          1,350,095          13,958,886        9,127,160          
Buildings and improvements 14,738,550        15,153,811        28,631,182        30,370,674        43,369,732        45,524,485        
Equipment 3,724,765          3,381,125          1,224,329          1,612,431          4,949,094          4,993,556          
Infrastructure 145,088,883      150,381,383      61,438,945        63,198,662        206,527,828      213,580,045      

180,604,855$    184,266,904$    104,801,222$    105,558,379$    285,406,077$    289,825,283$    

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
 

Long-term Debt.  The City's long-term debt as of June 30, 2017 was $51.5 million with governmental 
activities accounting for $2.5 million or 5%, and business-type activities accounting for $49.0 million or 95%. 
The total debt decreased by $2.5 million or 5% during the current fiscal year.  The reason for the decrease 
was due to principal payment made in current fiscal year. 
 

City of Madera's Outstanding Debt 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Capital Leases 2,425,767$        3,002,145$        -$                       -$                       2,425,767$        3,002,145$        
Loans Payable 60,088               98,022               7,781,755          8,097,151          7,841,843          8,195,173          
Bonds Payable -                         -                         41,256,130        42,850,707        41,256,130        42,850,707        

2,485,855$        3,100,167$        49,037,885$      50,947,858$      51,523,740$      54,048,025$      

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
 

General obligation debts are direct obligations of the City and are backed by the full faith and credit of the 
City requiring voter approval, and may have a tax rate set to cover repayment.  State statutes limit the 
amount of general obligation debt to 15% of the City's total assessed valuation.  The City of Madera's debt 
limit is $1.1 billion.  Detailed information on the City's long-term debt activity can be found in Note 7 on pages 
56-63. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The new administration in Washington brought about, and will continue to bring surprising policy changes 
affecting the legal, regulatory and financial landscape. The recent tax reform bill has allowed corporations to 
expand, hire new employees, and provide raises for existing ones. The announcement by the president 
regarding trade tariffs and China’s rebuttal have raised some uncertainty, but the full effects of these policies 
are unknown at this time. At the local level, some benefits of tax reform include increased consumer 
spending on goods, which lead to sales tax income for local and state governments. The demand for housing 
is picking up as well, but not at the level of the housing boom in the early 2000s. While this is the general 
story nationwide, the Central Valley is experiencing more modest growth.  

The region as a whole lost 17,200 jobs from 2007 until 2009.  Those jobs have been replaced and an 
additional 5,000 jobs added. In the last year alone, county-wide, Madera has added approximately 1,000 
jobs. In February 2018, the unemployment rate in Madera County was 8.3% and remains unchanged from 
the prior month, and was below the unemployment rate of 10% one year ago. The City of Madera had a 
slightly higher unemployment rate in February 2018, when compared to the county, at 9.5%. The statewide 
unemployment rate is 4.5% and the national rate is 4.4%. The US Federal Reserve considers full 
employment to be 5.2%. While the country as a whole is at near maximum employment, there is still room for 
growth in Madera County, and the Central San Joaquin Valley in general. The City has seen continued 
growth in consumer spending. This trend is reflected in a 5.5% increase in local sales tax over the previous 
12-month period.  The greatest increases are taking place in electronic equipment sales and electronic 
equipment. About 4% to 5% of the sales tax generated in the office equipment sector came from just one 
business for two consecutive quarters. 

Economic development activity continues to increase and is seen through the addition of commercial, 
industrial and residential buildings.  In FY 09/10, the industrial vacancy rate reached a high of 14%, but since 
2014 it continues to remain under 1%.  In response, the City began a joint venture with a local company to 
develop Freedom Industrial Park, a 100-acre industrial site.  The first tenant of the complex has moved in 
and employs about 100 individuals. The City is actively reaching out to the business community to fill a 
future, second building that has already been approved for the site.  The grounds will be “plug and play” 
ready, with full infrastructure and rail access. The intersection at Avenue 17 and Highway 99 remains a 
primary focus of the City’s economic development efforts.  Love’s Travel Center will be a major business at 
this location, which will also include a hotel and a covered RV and boat storage facility, among others. The 
project, when complete, will bring approximately 75 to 100 new jobs to the City. 

The number of residential homes completed over the previous fiscal year remained relatively consistent from 
FY 15/16 to FY 16/17. About 150 homes were granted occupancy, producing an approximate added 
valuation of $23.3 million per year. FY 17/18 projects similar new residential permit activity including a 100+ 
lot subdivision in the southeast quadrant of the City and another 100+ lot subdivision in the southwest 
quadrant. Without many existing lots available for builders, the City is looking to the northwest quadrant for 
future growth. The slated project is under review, but is still about 18 months from breaking ground. Once 
complete, the neighborhood will encompass approximately 1,200 acres with 5,200 new homes, retail and 
commercial use, two elementary schools and expanses of open space and park amenities. 

Water is and will remain a key element in regional economy. The City is taking an active role in regional 
groundwater management efforts and is planning the next stages of improvements to address long-term 
water service for current residents and future development. Five years of incremental rate increases were 
approved by Council during the second quarter of calendar year 2015. Engineering costs for capital 
improvements are anticipated to be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Anticipated projects include the 
replacement of manual water meters, installation of new water meters, recoating of the water tower and the 
design of water main upgrades throughout the City. These projects have planned funding from revenue in 
the Water Utility Fund. 
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In November 2016, Measure K, a local half-cent sales tax measure, was approved by City of Madera voters. 
The overwhelming passage of the measure will provide more than $3.5 million per year to the City for 
enhancing the safety of Maderans. Specifically, Measure K has allowed for the hiring of several new police 
officers, vehicles and equipment, as well as the purchase of land for a new fire station. Future plans of the 
funds include the construction of a third fire station in the City, a new fire apparatus and staffing for this 
station, among others. 

While economic development, residential growth and governmental activities have all made progress this 
past fiscal year, the City will, in all respects, continue with a prudent, conservative financial planning model 
as it prepares the budget for FY 18/19. The economy has been expanding for several years, and the City is 
experiencing some of these benefits, however, history indicates that a correction or downturn is likely not too 
far away. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the City of Madera's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money 
it receives.  If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Financial Services Director, City of Madera, 205 W. 4th Street, Madera, CA 93637. 
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 

Component Unit
Housing

Governmental Business-Type Authority of the
Activities Activities Total City of Madera

ASSETS
Cash and investments 39,106,180$        23,457,586$        62,563,766$        4,465,149$          
Receivables:

Accounts, net 5,377,803            1,601,084            6,978,887            222,819               
Interest -                           -                           -                           145,882               

Prepaid items 46,844                 2,300                   49,144                 10,132                 
Inventories 66,661                 -                           66,661                 93,926                 
Internal balances 1,484,810            (1,484,810)           -                           -                           
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                           4,420,450            4,420,450            2,083,336            
Notes receivable 8,083,641            -                           8,083,641            4,421,746            
Land held for resale 1,060,000            -                           1,060,000            -                           
Capital assets, not being depreciated 17,052,657          13,506,766          30,559,423          785,827               
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 163,552,198        91,294,456          254,846,654        7,537,542            

Total assets 235,830,794        132,797,832        368,628,626        19,766,359          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 558,025               1,786,638            2,344,663            -                           
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 9,087,664            -                           9,087,664            758,613               

Total deferred outflows of resources 9,645,689            1,786,638            11,432,327          758,613               

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 978,505               1,325,892            2,304,397            134,636               
Salaries payable 501,635               125,051               626,686               34,059                 
Accrued interest payable 11,175                 618,479               629,654               -                           
Unearned revenue 183,126               72,017                 255,143               9,680                   
Deposits payable 921,774               1,473,750            2,395,524            194,765               
Other liabilities -                           -                           -                           2,541                   
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 1,973,661            2,237,921            4,211,582            3,115,657            
Due in more than one year 36,181,790        54,300,997        90,482,787        3,267,732           

Total liabilities 40,751,666          60,154,107          100,905,773        6,759,070            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 1,302,673            117,648               1,420,321            87,196                 
Deferred service concession agreement receipts -                           90,000                 90,000                 -                           
Gain on refunding of debt -                           386,772               386,772               -                           

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,302,673            594,420               1,897,093            87,196                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 178,119,000        58,792,617          236,911,617        4,965,665            
Restricted for:

Community development 10,600,388          -                           10,600,388          -                           
Park development 133,957               -                           133,957               -                           
Parking improvements 600,930               -                           600,930               -                           
Public works and transportation 10,278,607          -                           10,278,607          -                           
Special assessment project 751,094               -                           751,094               -                           
Law enforcement 125,450               -                           125,450               -                           
Social services -                           -                           -                           -                           
Capital maintenance -                           -                           -                           -                           
Capital projects and improvements 12,373,525          -                           12,373,525          -                           
Housing services -                           -                           -                           1,532,084            
Debt service -                           1,076,451            1,076,451            -                           

Unrestricted (9,560,807)           13,966,875          4,406,068            7,180,957            

Total net position 203,422,144$      73,835,943$        277,258,087$      13,678,706$         
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs:
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government 7,692,256$       139,997$            5,386,631$        -$                      
Public safety 12,903,321       680,391              479,790             -                        
Public ways and facilities 4,607,237         1,416,230           4,098,803          1,649,843         
Social services 303,015            434                     82,203               -                        
Culture and recreation 4,421,827         586,785              347,388             -                        
Community development 3,029,515         2,102,246           983,508             -                        
Interest on long-term debt 110,856            -                         -                         -                        

Total governmental activities 33,068,027       4,926,083           11,378,323        1,649,843         

Business-type activities:
Local transit 2,184,533         107,015              1,381,206          809,179            
Water 10,066,546       9,139,387           -                         93,002              
Sewer 8,758,885         8,042,174           -                         66,803              
Golf course 115,882            93,797                -                         -                        
Airport 893,106            529,481              -                         1,281,138         
Solid waste 6,305,944         5,724,230           165,445             -                        
Drainage operations 956,287            675,713              -                         31,080              

Total business-type activities 29,281,183       24,311,797         1,546,651          2,281,202         

Total primary government 62,349,210$     29,237,880$       12,924,974$      3,931,045$       

Component unit:
Housing Authority of the City of Madera 8,549,440$       1,639,824$         6,224,798$        178,814$          

Total component unit 8,549,440$       1,639,824$         6,224,798$        178,814$          

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Franchise taxes
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning (restated)

Net position - ending

Program Revenues
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
(Continued) 

 
 

Component Unit
Housing

Governmental Business-Type Authority of the
Activities Activities Total City of Madera

(2,165,628)$       -$                       (2,165,628)$       -$                        
(11,743,140)       -                         (11,743,140)       -                          

2,557,639           -                         2,557,639           -                          
(220,378)            -                         (220,378)            -                          

(3,487,654)         -                         (3,487,654)         -                          
56,239                -                         56,239                -                          

(110,856)            -                         (110,856)            -                          

(15,113,778)       -                         (15,113,778)       -                          

-                         112,867              112,867              -                          
-                         (834,157)            (834,157)            -                          
-                         (649,908)            (649,908)            -                          
-                         (22,085)              (22,085)              -                          
-                         917,513              917,513              -                          
-                         (416,269)            (416,269)            -                          
-                         (249,494)            (249,494)            -                          

-                         (1,141,533)         (1,141,533)         -                          

(15,113,778)       (1,141,533)         (16,255,311)       -                          

(506,004)             

(506,004)             

4,040,067           171,878              4,211,945           -                          
9,112,909           -                         9,112,909           -                          

649,415              -                         649,415              -                          
1,694,786           -                         1,694,786           -                          

203,973              120,594              324,567              39,497                
31,374                39,821                71,195                -                          

343,287              26,004                369,291              497,059              
172,913              (172,913)            -                         -                          

16,248,724         185,384              16,434,108         536,556              

1,134,946           (956,149)            178,797              30,552                

202,287,198       74,792,092         277,079,290       13,648,154         

203,422,144$     73,835,943$       277,258,087$     13,678,706$       

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
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CITY OF MADERA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

General
Development Total Total

Impact Special Gas Nonmajor Governmental
General Fee Fund Tax Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 12,227,157$        13,354,108$        9,124,821$          3,229,559$          37,935,645$        
Receivables:

Accounts, net 3,939,455            -                           857,799               578,787               5,376,041            
Notes -                           -                           -                           8,083,641            8,083,641            

Prepaid items 46,319                 -                           -                           525                      46,844                 
Inventories 66,661                 -                           -                           -                           66,661                 
Due from other funds 635,860               -                           -                           205                      636,065               
Advances to other funds 159,122               -                           -                           -                           159,122               
Land held for resale -                           -                           -                           1,060,000            1,060,000            

Total assets 17,074,574$        13,354,108$        9,982,620$          12,952,717$        53,364,019$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 571,151$             58,882$               15,375$               224,875$             870,283$             
Salaries payable 464,357               -                           -                           2,366                   466,723               
Due to other funds -                           -                           -                           19,095                 19,095                 
Unearned revenue -                           -                           -                           183,126               183,126               
Deposit payable -                           921,701               -                           74                        921,775               

Total liabilities 1,035,508            980,583               15,375                 429,536               2,461,002            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 598,964               -                           504,443               501,908               1,605,315            

Total deferred inflows of resources 598,964               -                           504,443               501,908               1,605,315            

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Inventory 66,661                 -                           -                           -                           66,661                 
Prepaid items 46,319                 -                           -                           -                           46,319                 
Long-term interfund advances 159,122               -                           -                           -                           159,122               

Restricted:
Community development -                           -                           -                           10,600,388          10,600,388          
Park development -                           -                           -                           79,643                 79,643                 
Parking improvements -                           -                           -                           277,420               277,420               
Public works and transportation -                           -                           9,462,802            187,278               9,650,080            
Special assessment project -                           -                           -                           751,094               751,094               
Law enforcement -                           -                           -                           125,450               125,450               
Capital projects and improvements -                           12,373,525          -                           -                           12,373,525          

Assigned:
Golf course capital 20,000                 -                           -                           -                           20,000                 
OPEB liability 97,339                 -                           -                           -                           97,339                 
Insurance 1,082,179            -                           -                           -                           1,082,179            

Unassigned 13,968,482          -                           -                           -                           13,968,482          

Total fund balances 15,440,102          12,373,525          9,462,802            12,021,273          49,297,702          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 resources, and fund balances 17,074,574$        13,354,108$        9,982,620$          12,952,717$        53,364,019$        

Special Revenue
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CITY OF MADERA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 49,297,702$         

Land 7,573,520          
Construction in progress 9,479,137          
Buildings and improvements 21,345,585        
Equipment 7,088,629          
Infrastructure 291,254,666      
Accumulated depreciation (158,683,421)     

Total capital assets 178,058,116         

1,605,315             

(11,175)                 

Deferred outflow of resources 9,087,664          
Deferred inflows of resources (1,255,450)         

Total pension related deferrals 7,832,214             

Capital leases (2,425,767)         
Compensated absences (1,261,746)         
Net other postemployment benefit obligation (2,093,343)         
Net pension liability (29,973,112)       

Total long-term liabilities (35,753,968)          

2,393,940             

Net position of governmental activities 203,422,144$       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.  These assets 
consist of:

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Long-term
liabilities at year-end consist of:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of
net position.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the
funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, interest payable is generally not
accrued as a liability in the balance sheet of governmental funds.

Pension related deferrals:
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

General
Development Total Total

Impact Special Nonmajor Governmental
General Fee Fund Gas Tax Funds Funds

REVENUES:
Property taxes 3,696,995$        -$                       -$                       357,508$           4,054,503$         
Sales and use taxes 8,741,373          -                         -                         -                         8,741,373           
Other taxes 1,321,157          -                         -                         377,330             1,698,487           
Use of money and property 205,668             58,082               58,075               36,910               358,735              
Franchise taxes 649,415             -                         -                         -                         649,415              
Licenses and permits 701,825             -                         -                         -                         701,825              
Fines 734,193             -                         -                         16,195               750,388              
Intergovernmental 6,892,226          -                         3,217,005          2,545,429          12,654,660         
Charges for current services 1,360,859          1,839,370          -                         297,359             3,497,588           
Miscellaneous 604,836             -                         -                         27,724               632,560              

Total revenues 24,908,547        1,897,452          3,275,080          3,658,455          33,739,534         

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 1,659,616          -                         -                         136,439             1,796,055           
Public protection 14,833,735        -                         -                         100,934             14,934,669         
Social services 405,251             -                         -                         -                         405,251              
Public ways and facilities 2,687,550          -                         -                         413,520             3,101,070           
Community development 2,709,786          -                         -                         397,152             3,106,938           
Culture and recreation 3,831,163          -                         -                         -                         3,831,163           

Capital outlay 829,037             447,333             641,865             1,225,122          3,143,357           
Debt service:

Principal 400,658             -                         -                         167,806             568,464              
Interest 87,410               -                         -                         26,450               113,860              

Total expenditures 27,444,206        447,333             641,865             2,467,423          31,000,827         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (2,535,659)         1,450,119          2,633,215          1,191,032          2,738,707           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 4,194,996          65,241               -                         243,993             4,504,230           
Transfers out (854,610)            (564,754)            (2,055,447)         (1,338,034)         (4,812,845)          
Sales of capital assets 37,027               -                         -                         -                         37,027                

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,377,413          (499,513)            (2,055,447)         (1,094,041)         (271,588)             

Net change in fund balances 841,754             950,606             577,768             96,991               2,467,119           

Fund balances - beginning (restated) 14,598,348        11,422,919        8,885,034          11,924,282        46,830,583         

Fund balances - ending 15,440,102$      12,373,525$      9,462,802$        12,021,273$      49,297,702$       

Special Revenue
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CITY OF MADERA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 2,467,119$         

Capital outlay 3,637,557          
Depreciation expense (7,715,622)         

Excess of depreciation expense over capital outlay (4,078,065)          

(809,285)             

(6,937)                 

576,378              

Decrease in accrued interest 3,004                 
Decrease in compensated absences 10,269               
Decrease in net other postemployment benefit obligation (107,015)           
Increase to pension expense 2,527,603          

Total additional expenditures 2,433,861           

551,875              

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,134,946$        

The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities.

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.  These activities consist of:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the costs of these assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense.  In the current period, these amounts are:

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount
is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e.,
sales and donations) is to increase net position.

Prior year unavailable revenues previously recognized in the statement of activities
were recognized in the governmental funds in the current fiscal year when made
available. 
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Solid Drainage
Water Sewer Waste Operations
Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS
  Current assets:

Cash and investments 9,414,024$          8,934,332$          3,698,244$          421,135$             
Accounts receivable, net 608,736               138,596               127,444               8,596                   
Prepaid expenses 1,467                   833                      -                           -                           

Total current assets 10,024,227          9,073,761            3,825,688            429,731               

  Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments 4,106,271            7,616                   -                           -                           
Capital assets, not depreciated 347,994               3,033,749            -                           3,645,601            
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 22,362,982          43,020,841          13,959                 15,568,757          

Total noncurrent assets 26,817,247          46,062,206          13,959                 19,214,358          

Total assets 36,841,474          55,135,967          3,839,647            19,644,089          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 705,544               495,352               304,850               140,573               

Total deferred outflows of resources 705,544               495,352               304,850               140,573               

LIABILITIES
  Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 387,554               342,312               324,890               5,142                   
Salaries payable 46,253                 35,464                 22,304                 10,273                 
Accrued interest payable 179,888               429,757               -                           -                           
Due to other funds -                           -                           -                           -                           
Advances from other funds -                           -                           -                           -                           
Deposits payable 1,473,550            -                           -                           200                      
Unearned revenue -                           -                           72,017                 -                           
Compensated absences, due within one year 84,588                 86,040                 30,648                 22,150                 
Long-term debt, due within one year 385,000               1,308,735            -                           -                           

Total current liabilities 2,556,833            2,202,308            449,859               37,765                 
  Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences, due in more than one year -                           -                           -                           -                           
Other postemployment benefits obligation 115,818               136,712               55,302                 26,391                 
Net pension liability 2,718,922            1,908,915            1,174,788            541,724               
Long-term debt, due in more than one year 11,616,130          33,407,455          -                           -                           

Total noncurrent liabilities 14,450,870          35,453,082          1,230,090            568,115               

Total liabilities 17,007,703          37,655,390          1,679,949            605,880               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 36,518                 47,489                 9,010                   12,255                 
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts -                           -                           -                           -                           
Gain on refunding of debt 25,944                 360,828               -                           -                           

Total deferred inflows of resources 62,462                 408,317               9,010                   12,255                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 13,739,126          11,338,400          13,959                 19,214,358          
Restricted 1,076,451            -                           -                           -                           
Unrestricted 5,661,276            6,229,212            2,441,579            (47,831)                

Total net position 20,476,853$        17,567,612$        2,455,538$          19,166,527$        

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of the activity
 between the internal service funds and the enterprise funds over time.

Net position of business-type activities

Business-Type Activities
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 
 

Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service

Funds Funds Fund

989,851$              23,457,586$        1,170,533$           
717,714                1,601,086            1,761                    

-                            2,300                   -                            
1,707,565             25,060,972          1,172,294             

306,563                4,420,450            -                            
6,479,422             13,506,766          -                            

10,327,917           91,294,456          2,546,739             
17,113,902           109,221,672        2,546,739             

18,821,467           134,282,644        3,719,033             

140,319                1,786,638            558,025                
140,319                1,786,638            558,025                

265,999                1,325,897            109,651                
10,757                  125,051               33,482                  

8,835                    618,480               -                            
616,970                616,970               -                            
159,122                159,122               -                            

-                            1,473,750            -                            
-                            72,017                 -                            

24,242                  247,668               75,681                  
296,518                1,990,253            37,934                  

1,382,443             6,629,208            256,748                

4,964                    4,964                   -                            
29,089                  363,312               115,281                

540,739                6,885,088            2,150,434             
2,024,047             47,047,632          22,154                  
2,598,839             54,300,996          2,287,869             

3,981,282             60,930,204          2,544,617             

12,377                  117,649               47,223                  
90,000                  90,000                 -                            

-                            386,772               -                            
102,377                594,421               47,223                  

14,486,774           58,792,617          2,486,651             
-                            1,076,451            -                            

391,353                14,675,589          (801,433)               

14,878,127$         74,544,657          1,685,218$           

(708,714)              

73,835,943$        

Business-Type Activities
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CITY OF MADERA 
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Solid Drainage
Water Sewer Waste Operations
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 9,139,387$     8,042,174$     5,724,230$      675,713$        

Other -                      -                      -                       -                      

Total operating revenues 9,139,387       8,042,174       5,724,230        675,713          

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 3,173,979       1,805,451       1,598,961        428,602          
General and administrative 1,047,432       1,116,700       4,068,734        72,449            
Supplies and miscellaneous 1,181,403       1,248,652       468,870           21,276            
Parts and supplies 1,854,164       306,138          117,416           -                      
Utilities 1,355,674       708,116          15,554             50,329            
Depreciation 828,721          2,244,109       5,458               348,087          

Total operating expenses 9,441,373       7,429,166       6,274,993        920,743          

Operating income (loss) (301,986)         613,008          (550,763)          (245,030)         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 56,100            38,154            18,062             1,504              
Property taxes -                      81,721            -                       -                      
Operating grants -                      -                      165,445           -                      
Capital grants -                      -                      -                       -                      
Other nonoperating revenue 5,884              1,608              -                       -                      
Gain (loss) on disposal of property 6,187              16,034            17,600             -                      
Interest expense (562,057)         (1,236,972)      -                       -                      
Other nonoperating expense -                      -                      -                       -                      

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (493,886)         (1,099,455)      201,107           1,504              

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (795,872)         (486,447)         (349,656)          (243,526)         

Capital contributions 93,002            66,803            -                       31,080            
Transfers in -                      225,000          67,396             -                      
Transfers out (66,318)           (7,438)             (484,009)          (47,318)           

Change in net position (769,188)         (202,082)         (766,269)          (259,764)         

Net position - beginning 21,246,041     17,769,694     3,221,807        19,426,291     

Net position - ending 20,476,853$   17,567,612$   2,455,538$      19,166,527$   

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity between the internal service funds and the enterprise funds.

Change in net position of business-type activities

Business-Type Activities
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(Continued) 
 

Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service

Funds Funds Fund

730,293$             24,311,797$        3,280,235$          
75                        75                        -                           

730,368               24,311,872          3,280,235            

492,458               7,499,451            1,908,954            
1,329,036            7,634,351            687,725               

602,622               3,522,823            60,737                 
44,158                 2,321,876            111,066               
23,773                 2,153,446            349,805               

626,666               4,053,041            393,209               

3,118,713            27,184,988          3,511,496            

(2,388,345)           (2,873,116)           (231,261)              

6,775                   120,595               1,500                   
90,157                 171,878               -                           

1,381,206            1,546,651            -                           
1,902,294            1,902,294            -                           

18,436                 25,928                 33,985                 
-                           39,821                 1,284                   

(24,965)                (1,823,994)           -                           
(7,369)                  (7,369)                  -                           

3,366,534            1,975,804            36,769                 

978,189               (897,312)              (194,492)              

188,023               378,908               -                           
191,583               483,979               489,000               
(51,809)                (656,892)              (7,472)                  

1,305,986            (691,317)              287,036               

13,572,141          1,398,182            

14,878,127$        1,685,218$          

(264,832)              

(956,149)$            

Business-Type Activities
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Solid Drainage
Water Sewer Waste Operations
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 9,242,713$       8,060,253$      5,714,813$       671,819$          
Payments to suppliers (5,488,623)       (3,152,834)       (4,658,586)       (143,063)          
Payments to employees (2,225,702)       (1,814,039)       (990,179)          (395,002)          
Payments (to) from other funds -                       -                       -                       (19,000)            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,528,388         3,093,380        66,048              114,754            

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from (to) other funds (66,318)            217,562           (416,613)          (47,318)            
Other nonoperating revenues 5,884                83,329             -                       -                       
Property taxes -                       -                       -                       -                       
Operating grants -                       -                       199,372            -                       

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
 financing activities (60,434)            300,891           (217,241)          (47,318)            

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (83,562)            (1,210,137)       (4,853)              -                       
Proceeds from the sale of assets 6,187                16,034             17,600              -                       
Capital grants -                       -                       -                       -                       
Principal paid on notes -                       (294,860)          -                       -                       
Principal paid on bonds (370,000)          (970,000)          -                       -                       
Interest paid (562,900)          (1,272,138)       -                       -                       

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
 financing activities (1,010,275)       (3,731,101)       12,747              -                       

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 57,819              38,154             18,062              1,504                

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 57,819              38,154             18,062              1,504                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 515,498            (298,676)          (120,384)          68,940              

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 13,004,797       9,240,624        3,818,628         352,195            

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 13,520,295$     8,941,948$      3,698,244$       421,135$          

Business-Type Activities
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Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service

Funds Funds Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users 534,042$           24,223,640$      3,283,312$        
Payments to suppliers (1,923,736)         (15,366,842)       (1,307,489)         
Payments to employees (459,406)            (5,884,328)         (1,726,509)         
Payments to other funds 170,767             151,767             -                         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,678,333)         3,124,237          249,314             

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from (to) other funds 139,774             (172,913)            481,528             
Other nonoperating revenues 18,436               107,649             33,985               
Property taxes 90,157               90,157               -                         
Operating grants 1,381,206          1,580,578          -                         

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
 financing activities 1,629,573          1,605,471          515,513             

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,618,425)         (2,916,977)         (816,162)            
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                         39,821               1,284                 
Capital grants 1,902,294          1,902,294          -                         
Principal paid on notes (20,536)              (315,396)            (37,934)              
Principal paid on bonds (260,000)            (1,600,000)         -                         
Interest paid (30,119)              (1,865,157)         -                         

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
 financing activities (26,786)              (4,755,415)         (852,812)            

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 7,193                 122,732             1,500                 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 7,193                 122,732             1,500                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (68,353)              97,025               (86,485)              

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,364,767          27,781,011        1,257,018          

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 1,296,414$        27,878,036$      1,170,533$        

Business-Type Activities
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(Continued) 
 

Solid Drainage
Water Sewer Waste Operations
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to cash
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (301,986)$        613,008$         (550,763)$        (245,030)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 828,721            2,244,109        5,458                348,089            
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
  and deferred inflows of resources:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 41,594              18,079             (9,417)              (3,896)              
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 8,790                7,973               4,702                2,737                
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
  from pensions (550,666)          (293,947)          (266,641)          (88,601)            
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (58,741)            218,799           7,286                (1,746)              
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 19,311              10,914             6,110                1,754                
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -                       -                       -                       (19,000)            
Increase (decrease) in advances from other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable 61,732              -                       -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
  from pensions (61,812)            (80,380)            (15,250)            (20,741)            
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 1,520,731         350,772           879,186            139,652            
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 13,029              (4,069)              488                   230                   
Increase (decrease) in other postemployment
  benefit obligations 7,685                8,122               4,889                1,306                

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,528,388$       3,093,380$      66,048$            114,754$          

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments - unrestricted 9,414,024$       8,934,332$      3,698,244$       421,135$          
Cash and investments - restricted 4,106,271         7,616               -                       -                       

Total cash and investments 13,520,295$     8,941,948$      3,698,244$       421,135$          

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Developer and other capital contributions 93,002$            66,803$           -$                     31,080$            

Business-Type Activities
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(Continued) 
 

Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service

Funds Funds Fund
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to cash
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (2,388,345)$       (2,873,116)$       (231,261)$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 626,666             4,053,043          393,209             
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resource, liabilities
  and deferred inflows of resources:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (156,326)            (109,966)            3,077                 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 10,417               34,619               10,724               
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
  from pensions (87,828)              (1,287,683)         (357,748)            
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 65,436               231,034             (108,880)            
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 1,742                 39,831               2,449                 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 195,247             176,247             -                         
Increase (decrease) in advances from other funds (24,480)              (24,480)              -                         
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable -                         61,732               -                         
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
  from pensions (60,949)              (239,132)            (79,931)              
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 134,650             3,024,991          601,018             
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 3,868                 13,546               10,727               
Increase (decrease) in other postemployment
  benefit obligations 1,569                 23,571               5,930                 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,678,333)$       3,124,237$        249,314$           

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Investments - unrestricted 989,851$           23,457,586$      1,170,533$        
Cash and Investments - restricted 306,563             4,420,450          -                         

Total cash and investments 1,296,414$        27,878,036$      1,170,533$        

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Developer and other capital contributions 188,023$           378,908$           -$                       

Business-Type Activities
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Successor Agency
Private Purpose

Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments 6,218,748$             1,472,928$           
Receivables:

Accounts, net 103,306                  1,714                    
Prepaid items 180                         -                            
Land held for resale 390,707                  -                            
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 3,100,292               261,744                
Capital assets, not depreciated 389,566                  -                            
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 3,797,317               -                            

Total assets 14,000,116             1,736,386             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 288,266                  32,800                  
Accrued liabilities -                              294,920                
Salaries and accrued liabilities 7,769                      -                            
Accrued interest 768,500                  -                            
Deposit payable -                              12,048                  
Due to other governments -                              824,682                
Due to other bondholders -                              571,936                
Long-term debt, due within one year 1,305,022               -                            
Long-term debt, due in more than one year 43,734,336             -                            

Total liabilities 46,103,893             1,736,386$           

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for redevelopment 
  dissolution and other purposes (32,103,778)$           
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Successor Agency
Private Purpose

Trust Fund
ADDITIONS

Property taxes 3,879,515$             
Interest income 46,136                    
Other payment received 26,726                    

Total additions 3,952,377               

DEDUCTIONS
General and administrative 367,144                  
Project expenses 584,551                  
Depreciation 199,337                  
Loss on sale of land 20,991                    
Interest on debts 2,345,563               

Total deductions 3,517,586               

Change in net position 434,791                  

Net position - beginning (restated) (32,538,569)            

Net position - ending (32,103,778)$           
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Madera, California (the “City”) was incorporated in 1907 under the general laws of the State of 
California.  The City operates under an elected Council/City Manager form of government. 
 
The City has defined its reporting entity in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in 
the United States of America, which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, 
organizations, and functions should be included in the reporting entity.  In evaluating how to define the City for 
financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units.  The primary criterions 
for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity are the governing body’s financial 
accountability and a financial benefit or burden relationship and whether it is misleading to exclude.  A primary 
government is financially accountable and shares a financial benefit or burden relationship if it appoints a voting 
majority of an organization’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on the organization, or if there is a 
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the 
primary government.  A primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally 
dependent on the primary government regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected 
governing board, a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board, and 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial 
burdens on the primary government.  Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief 
description of each component unit included within the City’s reporting entity.  All such component units have 
been “blended” as though they are part of the primary government because the component unit’s governing 
body is substantially the same as the City’s primary government and there is a financial benefit or burden 
relationship between the City and the component unit.  Management of the City has operational responsibilities 
for the component unit, and/or the component units provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the City or 
otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the City, even though it does not provide services directly 
to it. 
 
Blended component unit.  The Madera Public Financing Authority (Financing Authority) was created in 1989.  
The Financing Authority is a joint exercise of joint powers.  The City Council serves as directors of the Financing 
Authority.  The purpose of the Financing Authority is to act as a financing/lending type of entity only.  No 
separate annual financial statements are prepared for the Financing Authority. 
 
Since the City Council previously served as the government board for this component unit, the City’s component 
unit was considered to be a blended component unit.  Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities, are in substance, part of the City’s operations and so data from this unit was reported with the data of 
the primary government. 
 
Discretely presented component unit.  The Housing Authority of the City of Madera (Housing Authority) is a 
governmental entity authorized in accordance with state law to engage in the development, acquisition, leasing, 
and administration of low-rent housing programs.  The Housing Authority is governed by a Board of 
Commissioners, which is comprised of members of the City Council.  Management of the Housing Authority is 
appointed and held accountable to the Governing Board.  The annual financial statements for the Housing 
Authority can be obtained at the Housing Authority’s administrative office. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental audits.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board is the accepted standard setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
B. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein the operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that records resources, related liabilities, obligations, reserves and equities segregated for the purpose 
of carrying out specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, 
restrictions or limitations. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function 
or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 
 
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.  The 
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while 
business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds.  Separate financial statements 
are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded 
from the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary funds 
and blended component units.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary – are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise 
funds, each displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated 
and reported as nonmajor funds.  Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The General Fund accounts for all the general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for by 
other City funds and for expenditures related to the rendering of general services by the City. 
 
The General Development Impact Fee Fund accounts for and reports the proceeds of the AB1600 
development impact fee monies that are restricted or committed to expenditures for the intended purposes. 
 
The Special Gas Tax Fund accounts for and reports the proceeds of the City’s share of state gasoline taxes, 
which are restricted or committed to expenditures for the street construction and street maintenance 
projects. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

The Water Fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the operations of the City’s water utility.  All 
activities necessary to provide this service are accounted for in this fund, including administration, 
operations, maintenance, billing and collection and depreciation. 

The Sewer Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses for the maintenance, repair and depreciation of 
the sewers within the City. 

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the solid waste removal and street cleaning 
activities. 

The Drainage Operations Fund accounts for the activities related to drainage. 
 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
 
Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one department of the 
City to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.  The City has Internal Service Funds for Fleet 
Management and Replacement, Facility Maintenance, and Computer Replacement. 

The Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the former 
Redevelopment Agency and its allocated revenue to pay estimated installment payments of the 
enforceable obligations until the obligations of the former Redevelopment Agency are paid in full and 
assets have been liquidated. 

The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals or private 
organizations and other governmental units.  These include developer deposits, collections from the State 
of California, Federal, and Madera police department for assets forfeited, conduit debt, utility deposits, 
collections of payroll and related taxes and various restricted donations.  Agency funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equals liabilities) and do not involve the measurement or results of operations.  The City’s 
Agency Fund accounts for assets held for other governments and various deposits held for individuals or 
private organizations. 
 

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes.  Any residual 
balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.  
While these balances are reported in the fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the 
preparation of the government-wide financial statements.  Balances between the funds included in 
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net 
amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.  Similarly, balances between the 
funds included in business-type activities (i.e., enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is 
included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. 
 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds.  In fund financial 
statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out.  While reported in fund financial 
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.  
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is 
included as transfers in the governmental activities column.  Similarly, balances between the funds included in 
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type 
activities column. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis 
of accounting.  Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial 
resources or economic resources.  The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for 
recognition in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified basis of accounting.  Revenues, except for grants, are recognized as soon as they are 
both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as under accrual accounting.  However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when 
payment is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  
Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal year.  
Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirement, 
and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue resource (within 60 
days of year-end).  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have 
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met.  All other revenues items are considered to 
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations 
as well as the following private sector standards issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  Governments have the option of following 
subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same 
limitation.  The City has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance. 
 
The proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis 
of accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds 
are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.   
 
E. Cash and Investments 
 
The City pools cash and investments of all funds, except for assets held by fiscal agents.  Each fund’s share in 
this pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statements as cash and investments.  Investment income 
earned by the pooled investments is allocated to the various funds based on each fund’s average cash and 
investment balance. 
 
F. Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and consist of expendable supplies and 
vehicle repair parts.  The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenditure/expenses when consumed rather 
than when purchased. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.  The costs of prepaid items are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
G. Land Held for Resale 
 
Land held for resale is recorded as an asset at the lower of historical cost or estimated net realizable value. 
 
H. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include public domain (infrastructure) capital assets consisting of certain improvements, 
including streets (pavements, medians, curbs/gutters, sidewalks, traffic signals, monument signs and bridges), 
storm drains and water/sewer systems and improvements, are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements.   
 
Generally, capital asset acquisitions in excess of $5,000 (general capital assets) and $25,000 (infrastructure) 
are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of one year or more.  Acquisitions of capital assets (including 
infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost at the time of purchase.  Donated capital assets are recorded at 
their fair value at the date of donation. 
 
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated.  The other property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure 
of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:  
 

Buildings 25-30 years 
Improvements 5-50 years 
Equipment 4-15 years 
Infrastructure 10-50 years 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
The City’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits, which are eligible for 
payment upon separation from government service.  The liability for such leave is reported as incurred in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for those amounts is recorded in the 
governmental funds only if the liability has matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements.  The 
liability for compensated absences includes salary-related benefits, where applicable. 
 
J. Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue is that for which recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria 
have not been met.  The City typically records intergovernmental revenues (primary grants and subventions) 
received but not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred). 
 
K. Unavailable Revenue 
 
In the fund financial statements, unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the 
revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The City records unavailable 
revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available to meet 
current financial obligations. 
 
L. Pension 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, 
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Madera’s California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
M. Net Position 
 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.  Net position 
is classified in the following categories: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into 
one component of net position.  Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this category. 

 Restricted net position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 Unrestricted net position – This category represents net amounts that do not meet the criteria for 
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted first, 
and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
N. Fund Balances 
 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific 
purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications used in 
governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 
 

 Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.   

 Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of 
the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council.  These amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the 
same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially 
committed.  This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing 
resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  

 Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for 
a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  This intent can be expressed by the City 
Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the Finance Director through the 
budgetary process.  This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all 
governmental funds except for the General Fund. 

 Unassigned – This classification includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or 
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the City.  

 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 
assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to first apply restricted fund 
balance.  When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund 
balances are available, the City’s policy is to first apply committed fund balance, then assigned fund 
balance, and finally unassigned fund balance. 
 
This policy delegates to the Finance Director the authority to assign unassigned fund balance amounts 
where the City’s intent is for those amounts to be used for specific purposes.  This delegation of authority is 
for the sole purpose of reporting these amounts in the annual financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
O. Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are assessed, collected and allocated by County of Madera throughout the fiscal year according 
to the following property tax calendar: 
 

Secured Unsecured

Levy Dates July 1 July 1
Lien Dates January 1 January 1
Due Dates November 1 and February 1 August 1
Delinquent After December 10 and April 10 August 31  

 
P. Use of Estimates 
 
A number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities were used to prepare these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Fiduciary Funds Total

Cash and investments 39,106,180$        23,457,586$        7,691,676$          70,255,442$        
Restricted cash and investments
  with fiscal agents -                           4,420,450            3,362,036            7,782,486            

Total 39,106,180$        27,878,036$        11,053,712$        78,037,928$        

Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position

 
 
Cash and investments consist of the following as of June 30, 2017: 
 
Cash and investments:

Petty cash 7,744$                 
Deposits with financial institutions 10,832,008          
Investments 67,198,176          

Total cash and investments 78,037,928$         
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government 
Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held 
by bond trustees that are governed by the provision of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. 
 

Maximum Maximum Maximum
Remaining Percentage of Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None  
 
Investments Authorized by the Debt Agreements 
 
Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreements rather than 
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.  The table below 
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee.  The table also identifies 
certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit 
risk. 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so 
that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the 
cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.  
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by bond 
trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the 
City’s investments by maturity: 
 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More Than
Amounts or Less Months Months  60 Months

Pooled Investments in the City:
Local Agency Investment Fund 8,836,957$          8,836,957$        -$                      -$                      -$                      
Certificates of Deposit 4,233,000            499,000             1,246,000          2,488,000          -                        
U.S. Treasury Notes 3,991,200            3,991,200          -                        -                        -                        
U.S. Government Securities:

Federal Home Loan Banks 4,476,250            999,300             -                        3,476,950          -                        
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3,297,048            905,088             157,291             2,234,669          -                        
Federal National Mortgage Association 4,328,727            414,577             -                        3,914,150          -                        
Federal Farm Credit Bank Loan 1,496,050            -                        1,000,000          496,050             -                        

U.S. Corporate Bonds 7,984,450            1,001,700          1,995,900          4,986,850          -                        
Investments held by bond trustee:

Money Market Funds 4,820,493            4,820,493          -                        -                        -                        
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 14,611,824          3,727,446          4,918,132          5,966,246          -                        

Total pooled investments in the City 58,075,999          25,195,761        9,317,323          23,562,915        -                        

Investments in Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund:
Local Agency Investment Fund 6,032,844            6,032,844          -                        -                        -                        
Investments held by bond trustee:

Money Market Funds 71,561                 71,561               -                        -                        -                        
Federal Home Loan Banks 187,669               -                        -                        187,669             -                        
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1,452,424            154,995             99,551               1,197,878          -                        
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,377,679            442,482             -                        935,197             -                        

Total Investments in Successor Agency Private
 Purpose Trust Fund 9,122,177            6,701,882          99,551               2,320,744          -                        

Total Investments 67,198,176$        31,897,643$      9,416,874$        25,883,659$      -$                      

Remaining Maturity (in months)

Investment Type

 



CITY OF MADERA 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

48 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
 
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s 
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 
 

Exempt
From Not

Investment Type Amounts Disclosure Aaa Aa1 Aa2 Aa3 P-1 Rated

Pooled Investments in the City:
Local Agency Investment Fund 8,836,957$      -$                  -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  8,836,957$     
Certificates of Deposit 4,233,000        -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    4,233,000       
U.S. Treasury Notes 3,991,200        3,991,200     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
U.S. Government Securities: -                       -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      

Federal Home Loan Banks 4,476,250        -                    4,476,250       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3,297,048        -                    3,297,048       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
Federal National Mortgage Association 4,328,727        -                    4,328,727       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
Federal Farm Credit Bank Loan 1,496,050        1,496,050       

U.S. Corporate Bonds 7,984,450        -                    978,400          2,997,600     1,004,600     2,003,550     1,000,300     -                      
Investments held by bond trustee: -                       

Money Market Funds 4,820,493        -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    4,820,493       
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 14,611,824      -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    14,611,824     

Total pooled investments in the City 58,075,999      3,991,200     14,576,475     2,997,600     1,004,600     2,003,550     1,000,300     32,502,274     

Investments in Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund:
Local Agency Investment Fund 6,032,844        -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    6,032,844       
Investments held by bond trustee:

Money Market Funds 71,561             -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    71,561            
Federal Home Loan Banks 187,669           187,669          
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1,452,424        -                    1,452,424       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,377,679        -                    1,377,679       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      

Total Investments in Successor Agency 
  Private Purpose Trust Fund 9,122,177        -                    3,017,772       -                    -                    -                    -                    6,104,405       

Total Investments 67,198,176$    3,991,200$   17,594,247$   2,997,600$   1,004,600$   2,003,550$   1,000,300$   38,606,679$   

Rating as of Year-End

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer 
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total investments across the 
City’s funds are as follows: 
 

Reported 
Issuer Amount

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA 7,984,450$          

Investment Type

U.S. Corporate Bonds  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California 
Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under 
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law 
also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a 
value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 
 
The City had no uncollateralized cash at June 30, 2017.  As of June 30, 2017, $10,833,437 of the City’s 
deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in accounts 
collateralized in accordance with State law as described above.  As of June 30, 2017, in accordance with the 
City’s investment policy, none of the City’s investments were held with a counterparty.  All of the City’s 
investments were held with an independent third party custodial bank. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight to the Treasurer of the State of California.  LAIF is 
overseen by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with 
State statute.  The State Treasurer’s Office audits the fund annually.  The City’s investments with LAIF at June 
30, 2017 included a portion of the pool funds invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities.  These 
investments included the following: 
 
Structured Notes are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics 
(coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have 
embedded forwards or options.  
 
Asset-Backed Securities, the bulk of which are mortgaged-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to receive 
a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of 
mortgages (such as Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables. 
 
At June 30, 2017, the City’s investments in LAIF were $8,836,957 and the Successor Agency’s investments in 
LAIF were $6,032,844, which was reported at fair value. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investment Valuation 
 
Investments, including derivative instruments that are not hedging derivatives, are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis.  Recurring fair value measurements are those that Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting period.  Fair 
value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  Investments’ fair value measurements are as follows 
at June 30, 2017: 
 

Investment by Fair Value Level Fair Value

Quoted Price
Active Markets
For Identical

Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

(Level 3)

Pooled Investments in the City:
  Certificates of Deposit 4,233,000$            -$                           4,233,000$            -$                        
  U.S. Treasury Notes 3,991,200              3,991,200              -                             -                          
  U.S. Government Securities:
    Federal Home Loan Banks 4,476,250              -                             4,476,250              -                          
    Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3,297,048              -                             3,297,048              -                          
    Federal National Mortgage Association 4,328,727              -                             4,328,727              -                          
    Federal Farm Credit Bank Loan 1,496,050              -                             1,496,050              -                          
  U.S. Corporate Bonds 7,984,450              -                             7,984,450              -                          
  Investments Held by Bond Trustee:
    Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 14,611,824            -                             14,611,824            -                          

44,418,549            3,991,200              40,427,349            -                          

  Investments held by bond trustee:
  U.S. Government Securities:
    Federal Home Loan Banks 187,669                 -                             187,669                 -                          
    Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1,452,424              -                             1,452,424              -                          
    Federal National Mortgage Association 1,377,679              -                             1,377,679              -                          

3,017,772              -                             3,017,772              -                          

47,436,321            3,991,200              43,445,121            -                          

Unclassified Investments
Pooled Investments in the City:
  Local Agency Investment Fund 8,836,957              
  Investments Held by Bond Trustee:
    Money Market Funds 4,820,493              

Investments in Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund:
  Local Agency Investment Fund 6,032,844              
  Investments held by bond trustee:
    Money Market Funds 71,561                   

Total Investments 67,198,176$          

Fair Value Measurements Using

Investments in Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund:

 
Securities categorized as Level 1 are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for those securities.  
Certificates of deposit categorized as Level 2 are valued based on the rates currently offered for deposits of 
similar remaining maturities.  Government agency securities, corporate bonds, and non-US securities 
categorized as Level 2 are valued using a matrix pricing technique that values securities based on their 
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. 
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
At June 30, 2017, accounts receivable of the City's major individual funds and nonmajor funds including the 
applicable allowance for uncollectible accounts are as follows: 
 

Total Total
Special Gas Nonmajor Governmental

Governmental Activities General Tax Fund Funds Funds

Accounts receivable 3,954,404$    857,799$       578,997$       5,391,200$    
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (14,949)          -                     (210)               (15,159)          

Total accounts receivable, net 3,939,455$    857,799$       578,787$       5,376,041$    

Solid Drainage Nonmajor Total Internal
Water Sewer Waste Operations Enterprise Enterprise Service

Business-Type Activities Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund

Accounts receivable 664,447$       185,968$       241,716$       20,210$         717,714$         1,830,055$    1,761$           
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (55,711)          (47,372)          (114,272)        (11,614)          -                       (228,969)        -                     

Total accounts receivable, net 608,736$       138,596$       127,444$       8,596$           717,714$         1,601,086$    1,761$           

 
The amount of the allowance for each fund is a management determination made by reviewing past collections 
received on each account.  This analysis includes reviewing the aging of the receivable balance, past account write-
offs and other known variables.  The allowance is evaluated at the end of the year for adequacy.  
 
Notes Receivable 
 
Residential Rehab Special Revenue Fund 
 
The City was awarded a $3 million dollar federal grant from the HOME Investment Program (HOME) administered 
through the State of California.  The proceeds of this grant were used to provide a $3 million loan to Madera Pacific 
Associates (MPS) for multi-family rental housing projects serving low and very low-income individuals through 
subordinate loans with terms up to 55 years.  MPS is required to repay the loan through the net cash flow payments 
it receives from project operations.  The loan balance at June 30, 2017 is $2,962,234, which is recorded as a note 
receivable in the Residential Rehab special revenue fund. 
 
The City was awarded a $5 million dollar federal grant from the HOME Investment Program (HOME) administered 
through the State of California.  The proceeds of this grant were used to provide a $5 million loan to 100 Stadium 
Rd., L.P. for multi-family rental housing projects serving low and very low-income individuals through subordinate 
loans with terms up to 55 years.  100 Stadium Rd., L.P. is required to repay the loan through the net cash flow 
payments it receives from project operations.  The loan balance at June 30, 2017 is $5,034,343, which is recorded 
as a note receivable in the Residential Rehab special revenue fund. 
 
Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund 
 
The Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset special revenue fund reports $87,064 of notes receivable.  These 
were loans funded from the former Redevelopment Agency to developers for construction of affordable housing or 
rehabilitation within the boundaries of the Redevelopment Project Area.  These low interest-bearing loans are 
secured by deeds of trust.  Maturities vary according to terms and disposition of property. 
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES (Continued) 
 
Notes Receivable (Continued) 
 
Forgivable Loans 
 
The City administers the first time homebuyer, housing rehabilitation, and small business loan programs funded 
with various grants (i.e. CDBG, HOME, CalHome, NSP, etc.).  Under these programs, individuals with incomes 
below certain levels are eligible to receive low interest loans.  These loans are secured by deeds of trust on the 
properties.  Deferred payment loans receivable under these forgivable loans are not required to be paid back 
unless the participating homeowner sells, transfers title to the property, or discontinues residence in the dwelling 
at which time the full amount of the deferred loan is due.  These deferred payment loans are “nonperforming 
loans” and are not recorded as loans receivable in the financial statements.  Loans and related items as of June 
30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

Outstanding
Loan

Loan Type Balance Due

First-time homebuyer 5,549,007$           30 years
Housing rehabilitation 1,069,299             30 years
Small business 552,278                10 years

Total 7,170,584$            
 
 
NOTE 4 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
 
Current Interfund Receivables/Payables 
 
Current interfund balances that arise in the normal course of business are expected to be repaid shortly after the 
end of the fiscal year.  Due to other funds represents short-term borrowing resulting from a fund’s temporary 
need for additional cash.  Primarily, these amounts have been recorded when funds overdraw their share of 
pooled cash.  The following is a summary of current interfund balances as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Due From
Other Funds 

 Due To
Other Funds 

Major funds:
General fund 635,860$         -$                     

Nonmajor funds:
Rehab residential special revenue fund 205                  19,095             
Local transit enterprise fund -                     305,222           
Golf course enterprise fund -                       311,748           

Total 636,065$         636,065$          
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NOTE 4 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY (Continued) 
 
Long-term Interfund Receivables/Payables 
 
As of June 30, 2017, balances for interfund loans were as follows: 
 

Advances 
To

Other Funds 

 Advances 
From

Other Funds 

Major funds:
General fund 159,122$         -$                     

Nonmajor funds:
Golf course enterprise fund -                       159,122           

Total 159,122$         159,122$          
 
The advance of $159,122 from the General Fund to the Golf Course Enterprise Fund was made for funding 
facility construction. 
 
Transfers Between Funds 
 
With City council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another.  The purpose of the 
majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund. 
 

In Out

Major funds:
General fund 4,194,996$      854,610$         
General impact fee special revenue fund 65,241             564,754           
Special gas tax special revenue fund -                       2,055,447        
Water enterprise fund -                       66,318             
Sewer enterprise fund 225,000           7,438               
Solid waste enterprise fund 67,396             484,009           
Drainage operations enterprise fund -                       47,318             
Internal service fund 489,000           7,472               

Nonmajor funds:
Parking district special revenue fund -                       7,755               
Street construction special revenue fund -                       465,000           
Senior citizens services special revenue fund 49,736             -                       
Intermodal building special revenue fund -                       38                    
Park facilities special revenue fund 194,257           65,241             
Community facilities district special revenue fund -                       800,000           
Local transit enterprise fund -                       51,028             
Golf course enterprise fund 191,583           -                       
Airport enterprise fund -                       781                  

Total 5,477,209$      5,477,209$      

Transfers
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions Reclassifications Transfers June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities
  Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 7,573,520$        -$                    -$                    -$                          -$                     7,573,520$        
Construction in progress 7,777,065          2,610,661       -                      (718,388)               (190,201)          9,479,137          

Total capital assets not being depreciated 15,350,585        2,610,661       -                      (718,388)               (190,201)          17,052,657        

  Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 21,345,585        -                      -                      -                            -                       21,345,585        
Equipment 11,745,174        810,109          (482,624)         190,201                (71,443)            12,191,417        
Infrastructure 289,547,145      1,032,949       (43,816)           718,388                -                       291,254,666      

Total capital assets being depreciated 322,637,904      1,843,058       (526,440)         908,589                (71,443)            324,791,668      

  Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 6,191,774          415,261          -                      -                            -                       6,607,035          
Equipment 8,364,049          651,817          (482,624)         (66,590)            8,466,652          
Infrastructure 139,165,762      7,041,753       (41,732)           -                            -                       146,165,783      

Total accumulated depreciation 153,721,585      8,108,831       (524,356)         -                            (66,590)            161,239,470      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 184,266,904$    (3,655,112)$    (2,084)$           190,201$              (195,054)$        180,604,855$    

 
Capital assets activity of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions Reclassifications Transfers June 30, 2017

Business-Type Activities
  Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 9,026,517$        500$               -$                    -$                          -$                     9,027,017$        
Construction in progress 1,350,095          3,129,654       -                      -                            -                       4,479,749          

Total capital assets not being depreciated 10,376,612        3,130,154       -                      -                            -                       13,506,766        

  Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 57,513,810        -                      -                      -                            -                       57,513,810        
Equipment 4,973,304          -                      (175,032)         -                            71,443             4,869,715          
Infrastructure 95,517,487        160,880          -                      -                            -                       95,678,367        

Total capital assets being depreciated 158,004,601      160,880          (175,032)         -                            71,443             158,061,892      

  Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 27,143,136        1,739,492       -                      -                            -                       28,882,628        
Equipment 3,360,873          392,952          (175,032)         -                            66,593             3,645,386          
Infrastructure 32,318,825        1,920,597       -                      -                            -                       34,239,422        

Total accumulated depreciation 62,822,834        4,053,041       (175,032)         -                            66,593             66,767,436        

Business-type activities capital assets, net 105,558,379$    (762,007)$       -$                    -$                          4,850$             104,801,222$    
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities and business-type 
activities of the primary government as follows: 
 
Governmental activities:

General government 6,158,141$     
Public protection 122,935          
Social services 11,981            
Public ways and facilities 734,934          
Community development 15,452            
Culture and recreation 672,179          
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are 

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 393,209          

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 8,108,831$     

Business-type activities:
Water 828,721$        
Sewer 2,244,109       
Solid waste 5,458              
Drainage operations 348,087          
Local transit 348,256          
Airport 278,410          

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 4,053,041$      
 
 
NOTE 6 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City has pension related items that qualify to be 
reported in deferred outflows of resources.  The pension related deferred outflows of resources are described in 
detail in Note 8. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City has four types of items that qualify for reporting in this 
category and they are unavailable revenue, deferred service concession agreement receipts and pension 
deferrals. 
 
 Unavailable revenue arises only under modified accrual basis of accounting and is reported only in the 

governmental funds balance sheet.  Unavailable revenue is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources 
in the period that the amounts become available.  Deferred inflows of resources reported in the governmental 
funds for unavailable revenues are as follows: 

 
General Special Gas Park Federal Aid Street Intermodal

Fund Tax Fund Development Urban Construction Building Total
Other taxes 372,263$     -$                  -$                   -$                -$                  -$                  372,263$     
Intergovernmental 226,701       504,443        54,314           105,558       323,510        18,526          1,233,052    

Total 598,964$     504,443$      54,314$         105,558$     323,510$      18,526$        1,605,315$   
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NOTE 6 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Continued) 
 
 On October 7, 2009, the City entered into an operation and management lease agreement (Agreement) with 

the Sierra Golf Management, Inc. (SGM), under which SMG will operate and collect user fees from the 
Madera Municipal Golf Course for the five years with an additional five years extension of the Agreement.  
SGM will pay the City installment payment over the course of the Agreement; the present value of these 
installment payments is $130,000.  SGM will also pay a “per round” rate that establishes an initial rate of 
$1.00 per round but increases in later years.  SGM is required to operate and maintain the golf course in 
accordance with the Agreement.  The City reports the golf course and related equipment as capital assets 
with a carrying amount of $2,028,861 at year-end, and reported a receivable and deferred inflow of resources 
in the amount of $90,000 at year-end pursuant to the service concession arrangement. 
 

 The City has a gain on refunding of debt reported in the government-wide statement of net position and the 
proprietary fund statement of net position.  A gain on refunding of debt results from the difference in the 
carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  The amount is amortized over the shorter of 
the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  Deferred outflows of resources for gain on refunding of debt 
reported in the business-type activities of the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary 
fund statement of net position are $386,772. 
 

 The City has pension related items that qualify to be reported in deferred inflows of resources.  The pension 
related deferred inflows of resources are described in detail in Note 8. 
 
 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Changes in the City’s long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017 One Year

Governmental Activities
Capital Leases:

Police Facility 972,073$         -$                   (81,760)$          890,313$           86,000$         
Madera Youth Center 528,893           -                     (167,806)          361,087             176,197         
Police In-car Camera lease 105,961           -                     (31,202)            74,759               32,428           
ERP System and Fire Truck 1,395,218        -                     (295,610)          1,099,608          303,675         

Total capital leases 3,002,145        -                     (576,378)          2,425,767          598,300         
Loans Payable:

PG&E Energy Efficiency Retrofit loan 98,022             -                     (37,934)            60,088               37,934           
Total loans payable 98,022             -                     (37,934)            60,088               37,934           

Compensated absences 1,336,969        458                -                       1,337,427          1,337,427      
Net other postemployment benefit obligation 2,095,679        112,944         -                       2,208,623          -                     
Net pension liability 28,105,886      4,017,660      -                       32,123,546        -                     

Total 34,638,701$    4,131,062$    (614,312)$        38,155,451$      1,973,661$    
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017 One Year

Business-Type Activities
Loans payable:

CIEDB loan 7,931,050$      -$                   (294,860)$        7,636,190$        303,735$       
Airport Hanger loan 166,101           -                     (20,536)            145,565             21,518           

Total loans payable 8,097,151        -                     (315,396)          7,781,755          325,253         
Bonds payable:

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 10,465,000      -                     (300,000)          10,165,000        315,000         
Less: unamortized bond discounts (119,293)          -                     5,423               (113,870)            -                     

1993 Variable Rate Demand Bonds (Madera
Municipal Golf Course Refinancing Project) 2,435,000        -                     (260,000)          2,175,000          275,000         

Water and Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 30,070,000      -                     (1,040,000)       29,030,000        1,075,000      

Total bonds payable 42,850,707      -                     (1,594,577)       41,256,130        1,665,000      
Compensated absences 239,086           13,546           -                       252,632             247,668         
Net other postemployment benefit obligation 339,741           23,572           -                       363,313             -                     
Net pension liability 3,860,097        3,024,991      -                       6,885,088          -                     

Total 55,386,782$    3,062,109$    (1,909,973)$     56,538,918$      2,237,921$    

 
Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt 
 
Capital Leases 
 
Police Facility 
 
In December 2005, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with La Salle Bank to lease a portion of the 
construction cost for the police facility.  The entire purchase price of the police station was $5,200,000.  The 
leased portion of the police station was $1,500,000 and is payable over a period of twenty years.  Semi-annual 
payments on the contract are $65,249.  The effective interest rate on the contract is 5.120% per annum.  At 
June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the police station capital lease was $890,313. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 86,000$            44,497$            130,497$          
2019 90,459              40,038              130,497            
2020 95,150              35,347              130,497            
2021 100,084            30,413              130,497            
2022 105,274            25,223              130,497            

2023-2026 413,346            43,396              456,742            
Total 890,313$          218,914$          1,109,227$        
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Capital Leases (Continued) 
 
Madera Youth Center 
 
In May 2010, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Municipal Finance Corporation to lease a 
portion of the construction of the Youth Center.  The lease portion of the Youth Center was $1,500,000 and is 
payable over a period of ten years.  Semi-annual payments on the contract are $194,257.  The effective interest 
rate on the contract is 5% per annum.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the Youth Center capital 
lease was $361,087. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 176,197$          18,060$            194,257$          
2019 184,890            9,250                194,140            

Total 361,087$          27,310$            388,397$           
 
Police In-Car Camera 
 
In August 2014, the City has entered into a capital lease agreement for the police department in-car camera 
system under which the related equipment will become the property of the City when all terms of the lease 
agreements are met.  The purchase price of the equipment was $157,755 and is payable over a period of five 
years.  Quarterly payments on the contract are $8,713.  The effective interest rate on the contract is 3.87%.  At 
June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the capital lease was $74,759. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 32,428$            2,426$              34,854$            
2019 33,701              1,153                34,854              
2020 8,630                83                     8,713                
Total 74,759$            3,662$              78,421$             

 
ERP and Fire Truck 
 
In August 2015, the City has entered into a five-year equipment lease-purchase agreement for the purchase of 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to be installed at the City Hall and a fire truck with Holman Capital 
Corporation.  Holman Capital Corporation deposited $1,540,065 into the Escrow Fund, which the Community 
Business Bank is the escrow agent, for the acquisition of the equipment and for the payment of issuance costs.  
The related equipment will become the property of the City when all terms of the lease agreements are met.  
The purchase price of the equipment was $1,540,065 and is payable over a period of five years.  Semi-monthly 
payments on the agreement are $165,715.  The effective interest rate on the contract is 2.71%.  At June 30, 
2017, the outstanding balance of the capital lease was $1,099,608.  The cash balance in the Escrow Fund held 
at the Community Business Bank as of June 30, 2017 is $327,888.  This remaining fund in the Escrow Fund 
account will be used to fund the acquisition of the equipment in the following fiscal year. 
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Capital Leases (Continued) 
 
ERP and Fire Truck (continued) 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 303,675$          27,756$            331,431$          
2019 311,960            19,470              331,430            
2020 320,472            10,959              331,431            
2021 163,501            2,215                165,716            

Total 1,099,608$       60,400$            1,160,008$        
 
Loans Payable 
 
PG&E Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan 
 
In June 2012, the City entered into a loan agreement with PG&E to convert old high pressure sodium lights with 
new energy efficient LED streetlights.  The loan amount is $249,731 and is payable over a period of 6.7 years 
with zero percent interest.  Monthly payments on the loan are $3,161.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding 
balance of the PG&E Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan was $60,088. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 37,934$            -$                      37,934$            
2019 22,154              -                        22,154              

Total 60,088$            -$                      60,088$             
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt 
 
Loans Payable 
 
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB) Loan 
 
Loan payable to California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank for the regional wastewater 
treatment plant upgrade and expansion project; semi-annual installments of $383,084 to $525,788, including 
interest at 3.01% per annum.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the California Infrastructure and 
Economic Development Bank loan was $7,636,190. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 303,735$         225,278$         529,013$         
2019 312,877           215,998           528,875           
2020 322,295           206,439           528,734           
2021 331,996           196,592           528,588           
2022 341,989           186,448           528,437           

2023-2027 1,870,691        769,075           2,639,766        
2028-2032 2,169,697        465,570           2,635,267        
2033-2036 1,982,910        121,583           2,104,493        

Total 7,636,190$      2,386,983$      10,023,173$     
 
Airport Hanger Loan 
 
Loan payable to the Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics for the purchase of fourteen airplane 
hangars; annual installments of $14,131 to $27,180, including interest at 4.7829%.  At June 30, 2017, the 
outstanding balance of the Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics loan was $145,565. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 21,518$           6,962$             28,480$           
2019 22,547             5,933               28,480             
2020 23,625             4,855               28,480             
2021 24,755             3,725               28,480             
2022 25,939             2,541               28,480             
2023 27,181             1,000               28,181             
Total 145,565$         25,016$           170,581$          
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Bonds Payable  
 
Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 
 
Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 were issued by the Financing Authority in March 2006 for 
$35,995,000.  Proceeds from the bonds were used to refund $2,225,000 of its 1996 Sewer Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series A, and for Water and Sewer System Capital Facilities.  The bonds are due in annual installments 
of $50,000 to $2,055,000 through March 1, 2036, with interest payable semiannually on September 1 and March 
1 of each year at 3.5% to 4.75%.  The City has issued the Water and Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 in December 2015 to refund the Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2006. 
 
Water and Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
 
Water and Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 were issued by the Financing Authority in 
December 2015 for $30,140,000.  Proceeds from the bonds were used to refund $30,440,000 of its Water and 
Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015.  The bonds are due in annual installments of $70,000 to 
$2,080,000 through March 1, 2036, with interest payable semiannually on September 1 and March 1 of each 
year at 3.700%.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds was 
$29,030,000. 
 
The Financing Authority has pledged a portion of future water and wastewater revenue to repay the 2015 Water 
and Wastewater Revenue Bonds.  Total principal and interest remaining on the agreement is $40,939,190 
payable through 2036. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2018 70,000$           72,150$           142,150$         1,005,000$        1,001,960$        2,006,960$        1,075,000$     1,074,110$     2,149,110$     
2019 75,000             69,560             144,560           1,045,000          964,775             2,009,775          1,120,000       1,034,335       2,154,335       
2020 75,000             66,785             141,785           1,080,000          926,110             2,006,110          1,155,000       992,895          2,147,895       
2021 80,000             64,010             144,010           1,120,000          886,150             2,006,150          1,200,000       950,160          2,150,160       
2022 85,000             61,050             146,050           1,165,000          844,710             2,009,710          1,250,000       905,760          2,155,760       

2023-2027 475,000           256,225           731,225           6,510,000          3,544,045          10,054,045        6,985,000       3,800,270       10,785,270     
2028-2032 555,000           162,060           717,060           7,805,000          2,247,195          10,052,195        8,360,000       2,409,255       10,769,255     
2033-2036 535,000           50,135             585,135           7,350,000          692,270             8,042,270          7,885,000       742,405          8,627,405       

Total 1,950,000$      801,975$         2,751,975$      27,080,000$      11,107,215$      38,187,215$      29,030,000$   11,909,190$   40,939,190$   

Water Sewer Total
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 were issued by the Financing Authority in November 2010 for $11,215,000.  
The City will use the proceeds from the Bonds along with the changing of water and sewer rates to bring the 
City into compliance with State Law to have the entire City on water meters by the year 2025.  The bonds are 
due in annual installments of $65,000 to $745,000 through March 1, 2038, with interest payable semi-annually 
on September 1 and March 1 of each year at 4.5%.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance was 
$10,165,000. 
 
The Financing Authority has pledged a portion of future wastewater revenue to repay the 2010 Water Revenue 
Bonds.  Total principal and interest remaining on the agreement is $16,386,653, payable through 2038. 
 
The Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 were issued at a discount which is being amortized over the life of the 
bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $5,423.  At June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the discount 
on the bonds was $113,870.  
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 315,000$         467,513$         782,513$         
2019 320,000           458,063           778,063           
2020 335,000           448,463           783,463           
2021 345,000           441,763           786,763           
2022 355,000           435,063           790,063           

2023-2027 2,030,000        1,881,363        3,911,363        
2028-2032 2,520,000        1,369,175        3,889,175        
2033-2037 3,200,000        683,000           3,883,000        

2038 745,000           37,250             782,250           
Total 10,165,000$    6,221,653$      16,386,653$     
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 
1993 Variable Rate Demand Bonds 
 
In May 1993, the Financing Authority issued Variable Rate Demand Bonds in the aggregate principal of 
$5,280,000.  The proceeds were used to redeem $4,835,000 of its December 8, 1989 Lease Revenue Bonds, 
Series A, and $262,450 for additional Golf Course construction.  The bonds are due in annual installments of 
$140,000 to $350,000 beginning November 2001 with interest at a variable rate not to exceed 10.0% per annum 
payable semi-annually.  Payments of principal and interest on the bonds are supported by an irrevocable direct 
draw letter of credit.  At June 30, 2017, the variable interest rate was 0.92% and the outstanding balance of the 
Variable Rate Demand Bonds was $2,175,000.  Total principal and interest remaining on the agreement is 
payable through 2024. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 275,000$         20,010$           295,010$         
2019 285,000           17,480             302,480           
2020 295,000           14,858             309,858           
2021 310,000           12,144             322,144           
2022 325,000           9,292               334,292           

2023-2024 685,000           9,522               694,522           
Total 2,175,000$      83,306$           2,258,306$       

 
Compensated Absences 
 
The City’s policy relating to compensated absences is described in Note 1.  At June 30, 2017, the City’s liability 
for vested and unpaid compensated absences (accrued vacation and sick pay) balance is $1,337,427 for 
governmental activities and $252,632 for business-type activities.  All compensated absence amounts above 
are generally liquidated by the fund incurring the expense. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS 
 
AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLANS 
 
A. General Information 
 
Plan Descriptions – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s 
Miscellaneous Plan, agent multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its 
participating member employers.  Benefit provisions under the Plan is established by State statute and City resolution.  
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit 
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to 
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 
years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the 
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for Miscellaneous Plan is applied as specified 
by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) requires new benefits and member contributions for 
new members as defined by PEPRA, that are hired after January 1, 2013.  Pursuant to PEPRA, the Miscellaneous 
Plan is closed to new entrants as of January 1, 2013. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

1st Tier 2nd Tier PEPRA
Prior to January 1, 2011 thru On or after

Hire Date January 1, 2011 December 31, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.000% to 2.500% 1.092% to 2.418% 1.000% to 2.500%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 7.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 21.604% 21.604% 21.604%

Miscellaneous

 
 
Employees Covered – At June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Plan: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 188            
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 204            
Active employees 200            

Total 592            
 

 
Contributions – Section 20814c of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on 
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an 
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
accrued liability.  The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rate of employees. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLANS (Continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability 
 
The City’s net pension liability for its Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position.  The net pension liability of the Miscellaneous Plan is measured as of June 30 2016, using an annual 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016, using standard update procedures.  A 
summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown below. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations were determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3% - 14.2%(1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%(2)

Mortality Derived from CalPERS Membership 
Data for all Funds(3)

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) The Mortality Table was developed based on CalPERS specific   
    data.  The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements 
    using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were 
based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011.  Further details of the 
Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan.  To determine whether the 
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that 
would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.  Based 
on the testing of the plans, the test revealed the assets would not run out.  Therefore, the current 7.65 percent 
discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary.  The long-
term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be 
obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.  
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLANS (Continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate (Continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows.  Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset 
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-
term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating 
the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the 
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  The target 
allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2014. 
 

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return 
Years 1-10(a)

Real Return 
Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% (0.55% (1.05%)

Total 100.00%
(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period  
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLANS (Continued) 
 
C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the Plan follows: 
 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Liability

Net Pension 
Liability/(Asset)

Balance at 6/30/2014 $70,618,527 $52,661,666 $17,956,861
Changes in the year:

Service cost 1,556,770              -                        1,556,770              
Interest on total pension liability 5,352,560              -                        5,352,560              
Changes in benefit terms -                        -                        -                        
Changes of assumptions -                        -                        -                        
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 337,609                 -                        337,609                 
Plan to plan resource movement -                        394                        (394)                      
Contributions - employer -                        1,948,033              (1,948,033)            
Contributions - employees -                        775,135                 (775,135)               
Net investment income -                        282,173                 (282,173)               
Benefit payment, including refunds of employee 
contributions (3,532,833)            (3,532,833)            -                        
Administrative expenses (32,095)                 32,095                   

Net changes 3,714,106 (559,193) 4,273,299
Balance at 6/30/2015 $74,332,633 $52,102,473 $22,230,160

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the net position 
liability of the City for the Miscellaneous Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Miscellaneous Plan, as well as 
what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate -1% 
6.65%

Current Discount Rate 
7.65%

Discount Rate +1% 
8.65%

31,649,861$               22,230,160$                    14,398,335$                 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.  
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN (Continued) 
 
D. Pension Expenses Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
The City recognized pension expense, deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources included a 
portion attributable to superior court employees.  These employees are not employees of the City of Madera, 
however, disaggregated information was not available from CalPERS.  The effect of this liability was deemed 
immaterial to the overall Net Pension Liability by City management. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $2,603,867.  At June 30, 2017, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,704,411$           -$                          
Changes of assumptions -                            446,058                
Differences between actual and expected experience 228,702                101,227                
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan 
   investments 2,835,478             -                            

Total 5,768,591$           547,285$              
 

 
$2,704,411 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.  Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension 
expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended
June 30

2017 49,424$         
2018 414,282         
2019 1,312,719      
2020 740,470         
2021 -                    

Therafter -                     
 
E. Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
The City did not have and outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public 
Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS).  The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) 
and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other.)  Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the 
safety and miscellaneous pools.  Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate 
plans under GASB Statement No. 68.  Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the 
miscellaneous or safety risk pools.  The City of Madera (City) sponsors three safety rate plans (three police) Benefit 
provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and City resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available 
reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to 
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 
years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the 
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

1st Tier 2nd Tier PEPRA
Prior to January 1, 2011 thru On or after

Hire date January 1, 2011 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3% @ 50 3% @ 55 2.7% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50 - 55 50 - 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 3.000% 2.400% to 3.000% 2.000% to 2.700%
Required employee contribution rates 9.000% 9.000% 11.500%
Required employer contribution rates 19.536% 16.656% 12.082%

Safety

 
 
Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of payroll for the 
normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions toward the unfunded liability 
and side fund, if applicable.  The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis.  The City’s required contribution for the 
unfunded liability was $1,001,595 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on 
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an 
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
accrued liability.  The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rate of employees. 
 
The City’s contributions to the Plan recognized as a part of pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 were 
$1,806,992. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN (Continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of 
the Plan of $16,778,473. 
 
The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net 
pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, rolled forward to June 
30, 2016, using standard update procedures.  The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on 
a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined.  The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the 
Plan as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was as follows: 
 

Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.3400%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.3240%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.0160%  

 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $1,294,400.  At June 30, 2017, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,019,944$           -$                          
Changes of assumptions -                            565,848                
Differences between actual and expected experience -                            129,779                
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan 
   investments 2,779,984             -                            
Change in employer's proportion 488,923                177,409                
Differences between the employer's actual contributions and the 
   employer's proportionate share of contributions 374,885                -                            

Total 5,663,736$           873,036$              
 

 
$2,019,944 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.  Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension 
expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended
June 30

2017 374,570$       
2018 369,653         
2019 1,302,823      
2020 723,710         
2021 -                    

Therafter -                     
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN (Continued) 
 
C. Actuarial Assumptions  
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3% - 14.2%(1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%(2)

Mortality Derived from CalPERS Membership 
Data for all Funds(3)

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) The Mortality Table was developed based on CalPERS specific   
    data.  The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements 
    using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were 
based on the results of January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011.  Further details of the 
Experiences Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
D. Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan.  To determine whether the 
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that 
would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.  Based 
on the testing of the plans, the test revealed the assets would not run out.  Therefore, the current 7.65 percent 
discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary.  The long-
term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be 
obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN (Continued) 
 
D. Discount Rate (Continued) 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows.  Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset 
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-
term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating 
the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the 
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. The target allocation 
shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2014 
 

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return 
Years 1-10(a)

Real Return 
Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% (0.55% (1.05%)

Total 100.00%
(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period  
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The 
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the discount 
rate for the Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate -1% 
6.65%

Current Discount Rate 
7.65%

Discount Rate +1% 
8.65%

24,156,479$               16,778,473$                    10,721,887$                 
 
E. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial 
reports.   
 
F.  Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
The City did not have and outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OBLIGATIONS 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City of Madera Retiree Healthcare Plan (Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan 
administered by the City.  The Plan provides healthcare benefits to eligible retirees.  Benefit provisions are 
negotiated and may be amended through agreements and memorandums of understanding between the City, 
its management employees, and union representing City employees.  Membership in the Plan at the most 
recent valuation date July 1, 2016 consisted of the following: Eligible active employees were 216; enrolled 
eligible retirees were 18. 
 
Eligibility 
 
Membership of the Plan at the most recent valuation date July 1, 2016 consisted of the following: 
 

Management* All Other Bargaining Group**
Eligibility Retire directly from City at age 50

and 20 years City service, including
3 years with Management***

Retire directly from City at age 50 and
5 years CalPERS service (or

disability retirement)
Medical Retiree - City pays single premium 

including supplemental to Medicare and 
prescription drug premium when 

Medicare eligible.  Must be enrolled at 
retirement; cannot re-elect coverage; 

spouse/family - retiree-paid

Retiree pays premium (until age 65 or 
Medicare eligible).  Spouse/family-

retiree-paid (until age 65 or Medicare 
eligible; cannot re-elect coverage)

 
 
*Benefits consistent with individual executive contracts 
**Excludes City Council 
***Management with 5 years City service can participate with payment of premium 
 
Funding Policy 
 
There is no statutory requirement for the City to pre-fund its OPEB obligation.  The City has currently chosen to 
pay Plan benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  There are no employee contributions.  For fiscal year 2016-17, the 
City contributed approximately $41,167 on a pay-as-you-go-basis for cash subsidy benefit payments and 
approximately $70,466 for implied subsidy benefit payments. 
 
Annual Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Cost and Net OPEB Obligations 
 
The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.  The 
following table shows the City’s annual required contribution (OPEB costs), for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2015, 2016, and 2017, the amount actually contributed to the plan, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation: 
 

Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Actual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2015 258,428$        127,806$        49% 2,309,496$       
June 30, 2016 256,100$        130,176$        51% 2,435,420$       
June 30, 2017 248,149$        111,633$        45% 2,571,936$        
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NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
 
The following table shows the components of City’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for the year. 
 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 247,518$          
Interest on net OPEB obligation 97,417              
Adjustment to annual required contribution (96,786)            
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 248,149            
Contributions made (111,633)          
Change in net OPEB obligation 136,516            
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 2,435,420         
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year 2,571,936$        
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
The funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation, July 1, 2016, was as follows: 
 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 4,171,341$       
Actuarial value of plan assets -                       

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 4,171,341$       
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 15,209,198$     
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 27%  
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the basic financial statements, presents 
multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to 
that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 
 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, 2012 -$                4,717,369$     4,717,369$         0% 12,328,640$   38%
July 1, 2014 -$                4,817,463$     4,817,463$         0% 12,466,331$   39%
July 1, 2016 -$                4,171,341$     4,171,341$         0% 15,209,198$   27%

 
 
NOTE 10 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
457.  The plan was amended so that the assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the 
participants and their beneficiaries.  Since the plan assets are administered by an outside party and not subject 
to the claims of the City’s general creditors, their assets and related liabilities are not on the City’s financial 
statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 32, 
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.” 
 
 
NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is a member of the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA), a public entity 
risk pool for workers’ compensation and general liability insurance.  The CSJVRMA is a consortium of fifty-five 
cities located in California’s San Joaquin Valley.  It was established under the provisions of California 
Government Code Section 6500 et. seq.  CSJVRMA is governed by a Board of Directors, consisting of one 
member appointed by each member city.  The day-to-day business operations are handled by a management 
group employed by CSJVRMA.  The relationship between the City and CSJVRMA is such that the CSJVRMA is 
not considered a component unit of the City for financial reporting purposes. 
 
General Liability Insurance coverage is addressed via retention maintained by the City and participation in 
CSJVRMA.  The City maintains a self-insured retention level of $100,000 and participates in the CSJVRMA risk 
pool for coverage up to $1,000,000.  CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool, which provides coverage from 
$1,000,000 to $29,000,000. 
 
Workers’ Compensation coverage is also addressed via a retention maintained by the City and participation in 
CSJVRMA.  The City maintains a self-insured retention level of $100,000 and participates in the CSJVRMA risk 
pool for additional coverage up to $250,000.  CSJVRMA also participates in an excess pool which provides 
workers’ compensation coverage from $250,000 to $500,000 and purchases excess insurance of approximately 
$500,000 to the statutory limit. 
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NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
The summary financial position and results of operations for CSJVRMA, as of June 30, 2017, is presented as 
follows: 
 

Current assets 28,521,106$        
Noncurrent assets 72,463,113          

Total assets 100,984,219        

Current liabilities 19,400,064          
Noncurrent liabilities 63,609,584          

Total liabilities 83,009,648          

Total net position 17,974,571$        

Operating revenues 44,722,848$        
Operating expenses 42,218,070          

Operating income (loss) 2,504,778            

Nonoperating income (loss) 34,961                 

Increase (decrease) in net position 2,539,739            

Net position - beginning of year 15,434,832          

Net position - end of year 17,974,571$        

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

 
 
 
NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
Litigation 
 
The City is currently a party to various claims and legal proceedings.  In management’s opinion, the ultimate 
liabilities, if any, resulting from such claims and proceedings will not materially affect the financial position of the 
City. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
On March 1, 1993, the City issued Certificates of Participation in the aggregate of $10,250,000 for the benefit of 
Madera Community Hospital (Hospital), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation.  The Hospital is not 
included in the City’s reporting entity.  The City is obligated to make the purchase payments only from and to the 
extent that it receives revenue from the Hospital.  They are not secured by any pledge of taxes or other 
revenues of the City.  In addition, the purchase payments are insured by the Office of Statewide Health Planning 
and Development of the State of California.  As of June 30, 2017, the City has not recorded revenues from the 
Hospital. 
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NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 
Federal Awards and Grants 
 
The City participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance 
audits pursuant to the Single Audit act as amended.  Accordingly, the City’s compliance with applicable grant 
requirements will be established at a future date.  The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City anticipates such amounts, if any, will be 
immaterial. 
 
Contractual Commitments 
 
The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2017.  At year-end, the City’s major contractual 
commitments are as follows: 
 

Contract Remaining
Project Amount Spent-to-Date Commitment

Water System Condition Assessment/Rehab 295,000$          46,690$             248,310$         
Sewer System Assement/Rehab 320,320            34,392               285,928           
Transit Facility 415,000            269,072             145,928           
Sewer Main Video Inspection

536,000            54,158               481,842           

Total 1,566,320$       404,312$           1,162,008$       
 
In addition, the City has various contracts with developers for the cost of public improvements made through 
construction of new developments within the City.  The agreements are for the reimbursement of reasonable 
costs for the construction of public improvements within the planned developments.  The City agrees to 
reimburse developers for the City’s proportionate share of the costs of improvements as determined by the City 
Engineer.  The City will not reimburse any expenses beyond the actual and reasonable costs of installing the 
improvements.  
 
Encumbrances 
 
At year-end the amount of encumbrances expected to be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next 
year were as follows: 
 
General fund 57,992$         
General development impact fund 16,007           
Special gas tax fund 77,887           
Nonmajor governmental funds 342,544         

Total 494,430$        
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NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 
Operating Leases 
 
In June 2014, the City entered into an operating lease agreement for computers for the City.  The term of the 
agreement ends June 2017.  Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $62,215. 
 
In June 2013, the City entered into an operating lease agreement for copiers for the City.  The term of the 
agreement ends June 2018.  Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $33,322. 
 
The future minimum payments anticipated under these commitments as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Computers Copiers Total

2018 62,215$           33,322$           95,537$           
62,215$           33,322$           95,537$            

 
 
NOTE 13 – DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 
 
Deficit Fund Balance 
 
The City has accumulated fund deficits in the following individual funds: 
 
Nonmajor enterprise funds 
 
The Golf Course Fund has a net fund deficit of $306,549.  The deficit is due primarily to the $2,435,000 
outstanding bonds for the Madera Municipal Golf Course Refinancing Project.  It is anticipated that the deficit in 
this fund will be eliminated through future revenues or transfers from other funds.   
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NOTE 14 – RESTATEMENTS OF BEGINNING NET POSITIONS 
 
Prior Period Adjustments 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The beginning net position of the Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities in the Government-Wide 
Statement of Activities have been restated to record prior period adjustments to correct the errors in the prior 
year.   
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The City has determined that certain transactions were recorded incorrectly in the prior year.  The beginning 
fund balance of the funds has been restated on the fund basis financial statements to correct prior year errors. 
 
Reclassification of Community Facilities District Agency Fund 
 
During the current fiscal year, management determined that a portion of the Community Facilities District Fund was 
previously incorrectly classified as a special revenue fund.  Rather, due to the nature of the activity of this fund and 
the City’s role in only maintaining its financial records, it would more appropriately be classified as a fiduciary fund.  
Accordingly, all assets in this fund are now being reported in the City’s Agency Fund.  The result of this new 
classification was an increase of the opening net position of the governmental activities of $2,167,151 and a 
decrease in the opening fund balance of the Community Facilities District Special Revenue Fund of $557,993. 
 
A reconciliation of the prior period ending net position to the current year beginning net positions for the 
Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities are as 
follows: 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Beginning net position 199,469,649$    74,792,092$     274,261,741$  
Prior period adjustments:

Overstatement of accounts payable 139,858             -                        139,858           
Understatement of accounts receivable 510,540             -                        510,540           
Reclassification of Community Facilities District 2,167,151          -                        2,167,151        

Total prior period adjustments 2,817,549          -                        2,817,549        

Beginning net position, as restated 202,287,198$    74,792,092$     277,079,290$   
 
Reconciliation of the prior period ending to the current year beginning fund balances/net positions in the fund 
financial statements are as follows: 
 

Major
Governmental Fiduciary 

Fund Fund
Community Successor Agency

General Residential Facilities Private Purpose
Description Fund Rehab District Trust Fund Total

Beginning fund balance/net position 14,447,950$    7,423,839$      1,280,113$          (33,627,218)$      (10,475,316)$   

Prior period adjustments:
Overstatement of accounts payable 139,858           -                       -                           2,006                  141,864           
(Overstatement) understatement of accounts receivable 10,540             500,000           -                           28,204                538,744           
Understatement of capital assets -                       -                       -                           1,062,509           1,062,509        
Reclassification of Community Facilities District -                       -                       (557,993)              (4,070)                 (562,063)          

Total prior period adjustments 150,398           500,000           (557,993)              1,088,649           1,181,054        

Beginning fund balance/net position, as restated 14,598,348$    7,923,839$      722,120$             (32,538,569)$      (9,294,262)$     

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
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NOTE 15 – SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
Segment information for the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Golf Course Fund was as follows: 
 

Golf Course
Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Assets:

Current assets 14,130,498$     9,081,377$       407,492$          
Capital assets 22,710,976       46,054,590       2,028,861         

 Total assets 36,841,474       55,135,967       2,436,353         

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 705,544            495,352            -                        

Total deferred outflows of resources 705,544            495,352            -                        

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 2,556,833         2,202,308         752,902            
Noncurrent liabilities 14,450,870       35,453,082       1,900,000         

 Total liabilities 17,007,703       37,655,390       2,652,902         

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 36,518              47,489              -                        
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts -                        -                        90,000              
Gain on refunding of debt 25,944              360,828            -                        

 Total deferred inflows of resources 62,462              408,317            90,000              

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 13,739,126       11,338,400       (146,139)           
Restricted 1,076,451         -                        -                        
Unrestricted 5,661,276         6,229,212         (160,410)           

 Total net position 20,476,853$     17,567,612$     (306,549)$         

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Operating revenues 9,139,387$       8,042,174$       93,797$            
Depreciation expense (828,721)           (2,244,109)        -                        
Other operating expenses (8,612,652)        (5,185,057)        (90,675)             

Operating income (loss) (301,986)           613,008            3,122                
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Investment income 56,100              38,154              618                   
Interest expense (562,057)           (1,236,972)        (17,839)             
Other nonoperating revenue (expenses) 12,071              99,363              (7,369)               

Capital contributions 93,002              66,803              -                        
Transfers in -                        225,000            191,583            
Transfers out (66,318)             (7,438)               -                        

Change in net position (769,188)           (202,082)           170,115            
Beginning net position 21,246,041       17,769,694       (476,664)           
Ending net position 20,476,853$     17,567,612$     (306,549)$         

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 1,528,388$       3,093,380$       93,016$            
Noncapital financing activities (60,434)             300,891            191,583            
Capital and related financing activities (1,010,275)        (3,731,101)        (282,175)           
Investment activities 57,819              38,154              1,036                

Net increase (decrease) 515,498            (298,676)           3,460                
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 13,004,797       9,240,624         305,220            
Ending cash and cash equivalents 13,520,295$     8,941,948$       308,680$           
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND 
 
On January 11, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment 
agency in accordance with Assembly Bill 1X26 (the Bill”) which dissolved all redevelopment agencies in the 
State of California. 
 
Under the control of an oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in 
existence at the date of dissolution of the redevelopment agency (including the completion of any unfinished 
projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments). 
 
Successor agencies are only allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay estimated annual 
installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all enforceable 
obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. 
 
After the date of the dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in 
a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets activity of the Successor Agency Trust Fund as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017

  Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 389,566$           -$                    -$                    389,566$              

Total capital assets not being depreciated 389,566             -                      -                      389,566                

  Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,339,683          1,736,914       -                      5,076,597             
Equipment 378,169             -                      -                      378,169                

Total capital assets being depreciated 3,717,852          1,736,914       -                      5,454,766             

  Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 1,177,496          171,333          -                      1,348,829             
Equipment 280,619             28,001            -                      308,620                

Total accumulated depreciation 1,458,115          199,334          -                      1,657,449             

Capital assets, net 2,649,303$        1,537,580$     -$                    4,186,883$            
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
The following is a summary of long-term debt obligation transactions for the Successor Agency Trust Fund at 
June 30, 2017: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017 One Year

1998 Tax Allocation Bonds 5,695,000$      -$                   (140,000)$        5,555,000$        140,000$       
Less: unamortized bond discounts (64,213)            -                     5,351               (58,862)              -                     

2003 Tax Allocation Bonds 14,590,000      -                     (605,000)          13,985,000        635,000         
Add: unamortized bond premiums 7,809               -                     (460)                 7,349                 -                     

2008A Series Tax Allocation Bonds 23,070,000      -                     (395,000)          22,675,000        415,000         
2008B Series Tax Allocation Bonds 3,495,000        -                     (85,000)            3,410,000          90,000           

Less: unamortized bond discounts (585,775)          -                     26,624             (559,151)            -                     
Compensated absences 23,608             1,414             -                       25,022               25,022           

Total 46,231,429$    1,414$           (1,193,485)$     45,039,358$      1,305,022$    

 
1998 Tax Allocation Bonds 
 
On October 8, 1998, the Agency issued $7,440,000 of 1998 Tax Allocation Redevelopment Project Bonds.  The 
proceeds of the bonds were used to finance redevelopment activities within the Madera Redevelopment Project 
Area, to pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the bonds, and to fund the 
reserve account.   
 
Principal payments are due annually on September 1, commencing on September 1, 1999, with the final 
payment due in the year 2029.  Interest payments are due on September 1 and March 1 of each year until the 
bonds are paid off.  Interest rates range from 3.15% to 4.95%.  Principal and interest will be paid from tax 
increment revenues consisting of a portion of taxes levied upon all taxable property within the Project Area.  The 
outstanding balance of the bonds at June 30, 2017 was $5,555,000. 
 
The Agency has pledged a portion of future property tax increment revenue to repay the 1998 Tax Allocation 
Redevelopment Bonds.  The bonds required 10% of the RDA property tax increment revenue.  Total principal 
and interest remaining on the bonds is $7,763,516 payable through 2029. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 140,000$        260,098$        400,098$        
2019 150,000          253,500          403,500          
2020 155,000          246,406          401,406          
2021 165,000          238,806          403,806          
2022 170,000          230,850          400,850          

2023-2027 2,890,000       888,250          3,778,250       
2028-2029 1,885,000       90,606            1,975,606       

Total 5,555,000$     2,208,516$     7,763,516$      
 
The 1998 Tax Allocation Bonds were issued at a discount of $160,533, which is being amortized over the 
30-year life of the bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $5,351.  Unamortized bond discount as of June 
30, 20176 was $58,862. 
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Long-term Debt (Continued) 
 
2003 Tax Allocation Bonds 
 
On October 23, 2003, the Agency issued $19,495,000 of 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding and Redevelopment 
Project Bonds.  The proceeds of the bonds were used to advance refund the Agency’s 1993 Bond Anticipation 
Notes dated July 1, 1993, in an amount of $7,201,007, to fund the acquisition and construction of new 
improvements within the Madera Redevelopment Project Area, to pay Agency housing set-aside obligations, to 
pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the bonds, and to fund the reserve 
account. 
 
Principal payments are due annually on September 1, commencing on September 1, 2004, with the final 
payment due in the year 2034.  Interest payments are due on September 1 and March 1 of each year until the 
bonds are paid off.  Interest rates range from 2.00% to 5.00%.  Principal and interest will be paid from tax 
increment revenues consisting of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable property within the Project Area.  
The outstanding balance of the bonds at June 30, 2017 was $13,985,000. 
 
The Agency has pledged a portion of future property tax increment revenue to repay the 2003 Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds.  The bond required 34% of the RDA property tax increment revenues.  Total principal and 
interest remaining on the bond is $21,305,019 payable through 2033. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 635,000$        678,856$        1,313,856$     
2019 660,000          651,075          1,311,075       
2020 690,000          622,200          1,312,200       
2021 720,000          587,700          1,307,700       
2022 760,000          554,400          1,314,400       

2023-2027 2,455,000       2,284,650       4,739,650       
2028-2032 4,870,000       1,699,638       6,569,638       

2033 3,195,000       241,500          3,436,500       
Total 13,985,000$   7,320,019$     21,305,019$    

 
The 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds were issued at a premium of $13,799, which is being amortized over the 
30-year life of the bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $459.  Unamortized bond premium as of June 30, 
2017 was $7,349. 
 
2008A Series Tax Allocation Bonds 
 
On September 10, 2008, the Agency issued $25,455,000 of 2008A Series Tax Allocation Bonds.  The proceeds 
of the bonds were used to finance redevelopment activities within the Madera Redevelopment Project Area, to 
pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds, and to fund the reserve account. 
 
Principal payments are due annually on September 1, commencing on September 1, 2010, with the final 
payment due in the year 2039.  Interest payments are due on September 1 and March 1 of each year until the 
bonds are paid off.  Interest rates range from 3.50% to 5.38%.  Principal and interest will be paid from tax 
increment revenues consisting of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable property within the Project Area.  
The outstanding balance of the bonds at June 30, 2017 was $22,675,000. 
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Long-term Debt (Continued) 
 
2008A Series Tax Allocation Bonds (continued) 
 
The Agency has pledged a portion of future property tax increment revenue to repay the 2008A Series Tax 
Allocation Bonds.  The bond required 41% of the RDA property tax increment revenue.  Total principal and 
interest remaining on the bond is $40,368,451 payable through 2039. 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 415,000$        1,172,768$     1,587,768$     
2019 430,000          1,153,598       1,583,598       
2020 450,000          1,132,827       1,582,827       
2021 475,000          1,110,983       1,585,983       
2022 495,000          1,086,880       1,581,880       

2023-2027 2,890,000       5,006,354       7,896,354       
2028-2032 3,740,000       4,108,732       7,848,732       
2033-2037 8,600,000       2,653,289       11,253,289     
2038-2039 5,180,000       268,020          5,448,020       

Total 22,675,000$   17,693,451$   40,368,451$    
 
The 2008A Series Tax Allocation Bonds were issued at a discount of $692,753, which is being amortized over 
the 30-year life of the bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $23,092.  Unamortized bond discount as of 
June 30, 2017 was $484,928. 
 
2008B Series Tax Allocation Bonds 
 
On September 10, 2008, the Agency issued $4,000,000 of 2008B Housing Set-Aside Subordinate Tax 
Allocation Bonds.  The proceeds of the bonds were used to finance low and moderate-income housing within 
the Madera Redevelopment Project Area, to pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bond, and 
to fund the reserve account.   
 
Principal payments are due annually commencing on September 1, 2010, with the final payment due in the year 
2038.  Interest payments are due on September 1 and March 1 of each year until the bonds are paid off.  
Interest rates range from 3.50% to 5.38%.  Principal and interest will be paid from tax increment revenues 
consisting of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable property within the Project Area.  The outstanding 
balance of the bonds at June 30, 2017 was $3,410,000. 
 
The Agency has pledged a portion of future property tax increment revenue to repay the 2008B Housing Set-
Aside Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds.  The bond required 7% of the RDA property tax increment revenues.  
Total principal and interest remaining on the bond is $6,128,938 payable through 2039. 
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Long-term Debt (Continued) 
 
2008B Series Tax Allocation Bonds (continued) 
 
The annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 90,000$          180,179$        270,179$        
2019 90,000            177,233          267,233          
2020 95,000            174,042          269,042          
2021 100,000          170,686          270,686          
2022 105,000          166,983          271,983          

2023-2027 610,000          769,153          1,379,153       
2028-2032 790,000          631,246          1,421,246       
2033-2037 1,035,000       407,639          1,442,639       
2038-2039 495,000          41,777            536,777          

Total 3,410,000$     2,718,938$     6,128,938$      
 
The 2008B Series Tax Allocation Bonds were issued at a discount of $106,026, which is being amortized over 
the 30-year life of the bonds resulting in an annual amortization of $3,533.  Unamortized bond discount as of 
June 30, 2017 was $74,221. 
 
 
NOTE 17 – SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT WITH NO CITY COMMITMENT 
 
The City issued special tax and assessment bonds on behalf of property owners, pursuant to the Improvement 
Bond Act of 1915 and the Mellow-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, to finance the acquisition and 
construction of certain infrastructure improvements within the assessment districts and community facilities 
districts. 
 
The City acts solely as an agent for those paying special tax and assessments and remits the amounts collected 
to the bondholders of these fixed-rate Improvement Bond Act of 1915 and Mellow-Roos Community Facilities 
Act of 1982 issues.  The City is acting as an agent and is in no way liable for the special assessment debt. 
 
The bonds are not general obligation of the City but are limited obligations, payable solely from special tax and 
assessments.  The City has no obligation beyond the balances in the designated agency funds for any 
delinquent assessment district bond payments.  If delinquencies occur beyond the amounts held in the reserve 
funds created from bond proceeds, the City has no duty to pay the delinquency out of the available funds of the 
City.  Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, or the State of California, or any political 
subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of these bonds. 
 
Noncommittal debt amounts issued and outstanding at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 
 

Bonds Issued Bonds Outstanding
CFD 2006-1, Series Special Tax Bond 2,885,000$        2,650,000$                  
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property taxes 3,517,470$      3,517,470$      3,696,995$      179,525$         
Sales and use taxes 7,750,000        7,750,000        8,741,373        991,373           
Other taxes 1,131,500        1,131,500        1,321,157        189,657           
Use of money and property 532,467           532,467           205,668           (326,799)          
Franchises 685,000           685,000           649,415           (35,585)            
Licenses and permits 683,970           683,970           701,825           17,855             
Fines 949,500           949,500           734,193           (215,307)          
Aid from governmental agencies:

Federal 992,072           966,666           1,100,063        133,397           
State 5,563,000        5,563,000        5,614,095        51,095             
Other 223,987           223,987           178,068           (45,919)            

Charges for current services 1,167,559        1,227,559        1,360,859        133,300           
Miscellaneous 550,881           550,881           604,836           53,955             

Total revenues 23,747,406      23,782,000      24,908,547      1,126,547        

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 2,262,177        2,272,299        1,659,616        612,683           
Public protection 15,569,915      15,514,464      14,833,735      680,729           
Social services 412,224           412,224           405,251           6,973               
Public ways and facilities 3,402,937        3,402,937        2,687,550        715,387           
Community development 3,030,305        2,910,529        2,709,786        200,743           
Culture and recreation 3,836,520        3,896,020        3,831,163        64,857             

Capital outlay 650,406           755,644           829,037           (73,393)            
Debt service:

Principal 130,497           207,948           400,658           (192,710)          
Interest -                       -                       87,410             (87,410)            

Total expenditures 29,294,981      29,372,065      27,444,206      1,927,859        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (5,547,575)       (5,590,065)       (2,535,659)       3,054,406        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 4,935,407        4,935,407        4,194,996        (740,411)          
Transfers out (821,280)          (821,280)          (854,610)          (33,330)            
Sales of capital assets 5,000               5,000               37,027             32,027             

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,119,127        4,119,127        3,377,413        (741,714)          

Net change in fund balance (1,428,448)       (1,470,938)       841,754           2,312,692        

Fund balance - beginning (restated) 14,598,348      14,598,348      14,598,348      -                       

Fund balance - ending 13,169,900$    13,127,410$    15,440,102$    2,312,692$      

Budgeted  Amounts
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property 134,138$         134,138$         58,082$           (76,056)$          
Charges for current services 1,854,940        1,854,940        1,839,370        (15,570)            

Total revenues 1,989,078        1,989,078        1,897,452        (91,626)            

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 968,700           5,503,840        447,333           5,056,507        
Debt service:

Principal 125,000           125,000           -                       125,000           

Total expenditures 1,093,700        5,628,840        447,333           5,181,507        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures 895,378           (3,639,762)       1,450,119        5,089,881        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                       -                       65,241             65,241             
Transfers out (564,754)          (564,754)          (564,754)          -                       

Total other financing sources (uses) (564,754)          (564,754)          (499,513)          65,241             

Net change in fund balance 330,624           (4,204,516)       950,606           5,155,122        

Fund balance - beginning 11,422,919      11,422,919      11,422,919      -                       

Fund balance - ending 11,753,543$    7,218,403$      12,373,525$    5,155,122$      

Budgeted  Amounts
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SPECIAL GAS TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property -$                     -$                     58,075$           58,075$           
Aid from governmental agencies:

Federal 680,450           680,450           128,375           (552,075)          
State 1,312,368        1,312,368        1,424,242        111,874           
Other 2,905,799        2,905,799        1,664,388        (1,241,411)       

Total revenues 4,898,617        4,898,617        3,275,080        (1,623,537)       

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 2,309,760        8,865,472        641,865           8,223,607        

Total expenditures 2,309,760        8,865,472        641,865           8,223,607        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures 2,588,857        (3,966,855)       2,633,215        6,600,070        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out (2,779,452)       (2,779,452)       (2,055,447)       724,005           

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,779,452)       (2,779,452)       (2,055,447)       724,005           

Net change in fund balance (190,595)          (6,746,307)       577,768           7,324,075        

Fund balance - beginning 8,885,034        8,885,034        8,885,034        -                       

Fund balance - ending 8,694,439$      2,138,727$      9,462,802$      7,324,075$      

Budgeted  Amounts
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CITY OF MADERA 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

NOTE 1 – BUDGET CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING 
 
BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
The City adheres to the following general procedures in establishing its annual budget, which is reflected in the 
accompanying schedules: 
 

 Budgets are legally adopted and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control 
device during the year for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets presented 
in this report for comparison to actual amounts are presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  From the effective date of the budget, the 
amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various City 
departments. 
 

 Reported budget amounts represent the original legally adopted budget as amended.  Individual 
amendments were not material in relation to the original adopted budget amounts.  The City Council 
may amend the budget to increase appropriations only by a duly adopted minute resolution during a 
regular meeting, providing that sufficient monies are available and that expenditures of proceeds of 
taxes will not be increased beyond the constitutional appropriation limit as imposed by Article XIIIB of 
the State Constitution.  Management can transfer, without City Council approval, budgeted amounts 
provided they do not increase or decrease total fund appropriations adopted by the City Council. 
 

 Unexpended budgeted amounts lapse at the end of the budget year.  Spending control for the fund is 
established by the amount of expenditures budgeted for the fund, but management control is exercised 
at the budgetary line item levels. 
 

 Expenditures may not legally exceed overall budgeted appropriations. 
 

 The budgets of the City’s capital projects are primarily “long-term” budgets which emphasize major 
programs and capital outlay plans extending over a number of fiscal periods.  Therefore, no budget-to-
actual schedules are presented for Capital Projects Funds. 

 
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the following amounts for the year 
ended June 30, 2017: 
 
General Fund

Capital outlay 73,393$        
Debt service - principal 192,710        
Debt service - interest 87,410           

 
The excess expenditures were covered by available fund balance in the funds. 
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET POSITION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST 10 years* 
As of June 30, 2017 

 
 

2015 2016 2017
Total Pension Liability
Service cost 1,562,632$          1,515,655$          1,556,770$          
Interest on the total pension liability 4,865,000            5,085,808            5,352,560            
Differences between actual and expected experience -                           -                           -                           
Changes in assumptions -                           (1,189,492)           -                           
Changes in benefit terms -                           (269,941)              337,609               
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (3,247,986)           (3,412,481)           (3,532,833)           
Net change in total pension liability 3,179,646            1,729,549            3,714,106            
Total pension liability - beginning 65,709,332          68,888,978          70,618,527          
Total pension liability - ending (a) 68,888,978$        70,618,527$        74,332,633$        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan to plan resources -$                         -$                         394$                    
Contributions - employer 1,465,153            1,603,067            1,948,033            
Contributions - employee 787,068               705,875               775,135               
Net investment income 7,962,241            1,164,130            282,173               
Administrative expenses (55,556)                (59,277)                (32,095)                
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (3,247,986)           (3,412,481)           (3,532,833)           
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 6,910,920          1,314                  (559,193)             
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 45,749,432          52,660,352          52,661,666          
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 52,660,352$        52,661,666$        52,102,473$        

Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b) 16,228,626$        17,956,861$        22,230,160$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
  total pension liability 76.44% 74.57% 70.09%

Covered payroll 8,601,515$          8,841,088$          9,754,797$          

Net pension liability as percentage of covered payroll 188.67% 203.11% 227.89%

Notes to Schedule:

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed  as they become available.

Benefit changes - None 

Changes in assumptions - None  
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST 10 years* 
As of June 30, 2017 

 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially required contribution (actuarially determined) 1,397,058$    1,603,067$    1,948,033$    2,329,046$    
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions (1,397,058)     (1,603,067)     (1,948,033)     (2,329,046)     
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered payroll 8,601,515$    8,841,088$    9,754,797$    10,780,624$  

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.24% 18.13% 19.97% 21.60%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed  as they become available
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
LAST 10 years* 

As of June 30, 2017 
 
 

2015 2016 2017

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.33750% 0.34000% 0.32400%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 12,759,288$      14,009,122$      16,778,473$     

Covered payroll 3,916,737$        3,797,547$        4,211,168$       

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as percentage of 
   covered payroll 325.76% 368.90% 398.43%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
  liability 74.86% 72.97% 69.13%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms - None

Change in Assumptions. - None

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
 



 

95 

CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COST-SHARING EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST 10 years* 
As of June 30, 2017 

 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution 1,405,797$ 1,388,656$ 1,650,502$ 1,806,992$ 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (1,405,797)  (1,388,656)  (1,650,502)  (1,806,992)  
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                

Covered payroll 3,916,737$ 3,797,547$ 4,211,168$ 4,428,574$ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 35.89% 36.57% 39.19% 40.80%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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CITY OF MADERA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

 
 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, 2012 -$                4,717,369$     4,717,369$         0% 12,328,640$   38%
July 1, 2014 -$                4,817,463$     4,817,463$         0% 12,466,331$   39%
July 1, 2016 -$                4,171,341$     4,171,341$         0% 15,209,198$   27%
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Business
Improvement Park Parking Federal Aid Street

District Development District Urban Construction
ASSETS

Cash and investments 8,712$              95,786$            96,309$            118,442$          214,640$          
Receivables:

Accounts, net 1,368                54,314              2,350                167,913            323,510            
Notes -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Prepaid items -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due from other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Land held for resale -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total assets 10,080$            150,100$          98,659$            286,355$          538,150$          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 8,505$              16,143$            695$                 2,700$              35,113$            
Salaries payable -                        -                        71                     -                        -                        
Due to other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unearned revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Deposit payable -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total liabilities 8,505                16,143              766                   2,700                35,113              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -                        54,314              -                        105,558            323,510            

Total deferred inflows of resources -                        54,314              -                        105,558            323,510            

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted:

Community development 1,575                -                        -                        -                        -                        
Park development -                        79,643              -                        -                        -                        
Parking improvements -                        -                        97,893              -                        179,527            
Public works and transportation -                        -                        -                        178,097            -                        
Special assessment project -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Law enforcement -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Unassigned -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total fund balances (deficits) 1,575                79,643              97,893              178,097            179,527            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 resources, and fund balances (deficits) 10,080$            150,100$          98,659$            286,355$          538,150$           
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 
JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 

 
Senior Supplemental

Citizens Landscape Law Intermodal Economic
Services Assessment Enforcement Building Development

ASSETS
Cash and investments -$                   476,667$       129,712$         218,890$         461,600$        
Receivables:

Accounts, net -                     3,123             -                       24,417             -                      
Notes -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      

Prepaid items -                     -                     525                  -                       -                      
Due from other funds -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      
Land held for resale -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      

Total assets -$                   479,790$       130,237$         243,307$         461,600$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                   570$              4,787$             156,160$         -$                    
Salaries payable -                     -                     -                       178                  -                      
Due to other funds -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      
Unearned revenue -                     -                     -                       59,262             -                      
Deposit payable -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      

Total liabilities -                     570                4,787               215,600           -                      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -                     -                     -                       18,526             -                      

Total deferred inflows of resources -                     -                     -                       18,526             -                      

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted:

Community development -                     -                     -                       -                       461,600          
Park development -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      
Parking improvements -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      
Public works and transportation -                     -                     -                       9,181               -                      
Special assessment project -                     479,220         -                       -                       -                      
Law enforcement -                     -                     125,450           -                       -                      

Unassigned -                     -                     -                       -                       -                      

Total fund balances (deficits) -                     479,220         125,450           9,181               461,600          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 resources, and fund balances (deficits) -$                   479,790$       130,237$         243,307$         461,600$         
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 
JUNE 30, 2017 

(Continued) 

 
Low and Total
Moderate Nonmajor
Income Community Special

Park Residential Housing Facilities Revenue
Facilities Rehab Asset District Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments -$                      512,951$          501,799$      394,051$      3,229,559$     
Receivables:

Accounts, net -                        -                       -                    1,792            578,787          
Notes -                        7,996,577         87,064          -                    8,083,641       

Prepaid items -                        -                       -                    -                    525                 
Due from other funds -                        -                       205               -                    205                 
Land held for resale -                        -                       1,060,000     -                    1,060,000       

Total assets -$                      8,509,528$       1,649,068$   395,843$      12,952,717$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                      97$                   -$                  105$             224,875$        
Salaries payable -                        -                       2,117            -                    2,366              
Due to other funds -                        -                       19,095          -                    19,095            
Unearned revenue -                        -                       -                    123,864        183,126          
Deposit payable -                        -                       74                 -                    74                   

Total liabilities -                        97                     21,286          123,969        429,536          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -                        -                       -                    -                    501,908          

Total deferred inflows of resources -                        -                       -                    -                    501,908          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted:

Community development -                        8,509,431         1,627,782     -                    10,600,388     
Park development -                        -                       -                    -                    79,643            
Parking improvements -                        -                       -                    -                    277,420          
Public works and transportation -                        -                       -                    -                    187,278          
Special assessment project -                        -                       -                    271,874        751,094          
Law enforcement -                        -                       -                    -                    125,450          

Unassigned -                        -                       -                    -                    -                      

Total fund balances (deficits) -                        8,509,431         1,627,782     271,874        12,021,273     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 resources, and fund balances (deficits) -$                      8,509,528$       1,649,068$   395,843$      12,952,717$    
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Business
Improvement Park Parking Federal Aid Street

District Development District Urban Construction

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
Other taxes 23,061                -                         17,802                -                         -                         
Use of money and property 13                       -                         -                         -                         -                         
Fines 492                     -                         15,703                -                         -                         
Intergovernmental -                         147,493              -                         410,474              999,326              
Charges for current services 185                     -                         870                     -                         -                         
Miscellaneous -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total revenues 23,751                147,493              34,375                410,474              999,326              

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 25,888                -                         32,767                -                         -                         
Public protection -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Public ways and facilities -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Community development -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Capital outlay -                         135,199              -                         124,448              369,611              

Debt service:
Principal -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Interest -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total expenditures 25,888                135,199              32,767                124,448              369,611              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (2,137)                12,294                1,608                  286,026              629,715              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Transfers out -                         -                         (7,755)                -                         (465,000)            

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         -                         (7,755)                -                         (465,000)            

Net change in fund balances (2,137)                12,294                (6,147)                286,026              164,715              

Fund balances - beginning (restated) 3,712                  67,349                104,040              (107,929)            14,812                

Fund balances - ending 1,575$                79,643$              97,893$              178,097$            179,527$            
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
(Continued) 

 
Senior Supplemental

Citizens Landscape Law Intermodal Economic
Services Assessment Enforcement Building Development

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                      
Other taxes -                       336,467           -                       -                         -                        
Use of money and property -                       -                       508                   21,503                2,822                 
Fines -                       -                       -                       -                         -                        
Intergovernmental -                       -                       133,732            226,830              -                        
Charges for current services -                       -                       -                       10,747                -                        
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                         -                        

Total revenues -                       336,467           134,240            259,080              2,822                 

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                       -                       -                       69,852                -                        
Public protection -                       -                       100,934            -                         -                        
Public ways and facilities -                       374,047           -                       37,823                -                        
Community development -                       -                       -                       -                         -                        
Capital outlay -                       -                       21,771              169,651              156,500             

Debt service:
Principal -                       -                       -                       -                         -                        
Interest -                       -                       -                       -                         -                        

Total expenditures -                       374,047           122,705            277,326              156,500             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures -                       (37,580)            11,535              (18,246)              (153,678)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 49,736              -                       -                       -                         -                        
Transfers out -                       -                       -                       (38)                     -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) 49,736              -                       -                       (38)                     -                        

Net change in fund balances 49,736              (37,580)            11,535              (18,284)              (153,678)           

Fund balances - beginning (restated) (49,736)            516,800           113,915            27,465                615,278             

Fund balances - ending -$                     479,220$         125,450$          9,181$                461,600$            
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
(Continued) 

 
Low and Total
Moderate Nonmajor
Income Community Special

Park Residential Housing Facilities Revenue
Facilities Rehab Asset District Funds

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                        -$                        -$                  357,508$     357,508$        
Other taxes -                          -                          -                    -                   377,330          
Use of money and property -                          80                       10,156          1,828           36,910            
Fines -                          -                          -                    -                   16,195            
Intergovernmental -                          597,135              30,439          -                   2,545,429       
Charges for current services -                          285,557              -                    -                   297,359          
Miscellaneous -                          -                          27,724          -                   27,724            

Total revenues -                          882,772              68,319          359,336       3,658,455       

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                          -                          -                    7,932           136,439          
Public protection -                          -                          -                    -                   100,934          
Public ways and facilities -                          -                          -                    1,650           413,520          
Community development -                          297,180              99,972          -                   397,152          
Capital outlay -                          -                          247,942        -                   1,225,122       

Debt service:
Principal 167,806              -                          -                    -                   167,806          
Interest 26,450                -                          -                    -                   26,450            

Total expenditures 194,256              297,180              347,914        9,582           2,467,423       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (194,256)             585,592              (279,595)       349,754       1,191,032       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 194,257              -                          -                    -                   243,993          
Transfers out (65,241)               -                          -                    (800,000)      (1,338,034)      

Total other financing sources (uses) 129,016              -                          -                    (800,000)      (1,094,041)      

Net change in fund balances (65,240)               585,592              (279,595)       (450,246)      96,991            

Fund balances - beginning (restated) 65,240                7,923,839           1,907,377     722,120       11,924,282     

Fund balances - ending -$                        8,509,431$         1,627,782$   271,874$     12,021,273$    
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Total
Local Golf Nonmajor

Transit Course Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS
  Current assets:

Cash and investments 3,523$                 2,117$                 984,211$             989,851$             
Accounts receivable, net 534,924               98,812                 83,978                 717,714               

Total current assets 538,447               100,929               1,068,189            1,707,565            

  Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments -                           306,563               -                           306,563               
Capital assets, not depreciated 1,610,427            146,933               4,722,062            6,479,422            
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 949,587               1,881,928            7,496,402            10,327,917          

Total noncurrent assets 2,560,014            2,335,424            12,218,464          17,113,902          

Total assets 3,098,461            2,436,353            13,286,653          18,821,467          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 87,381                 -                           52,938                 140,319               

Total deferred outflows of resources 87,381                 -                           52,938                 140,319               

LIABILITIES
  Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 175,373               3,999                   86,627                 265,999               
Salaries payable 6,591                   -                           4,166                   10,757                 
Accrued interest payable -                           3,033                   5,802                   8,835                   
Due to other funds 305,222               311,748               -                           616,970               
Advances from other funds -                           159,122               -                           159,122               
Compensated absences, due within one year 15,654                 -                           8,588                   24,242                 
Long-term debt, due within one year -                           275,000               21,518                 296,518               

Total current liabilities 502,840               752,902               126,701               1,382,443            
  Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences, due in more than one year 4,964                   -                           -                           4,964                   
Other post employment benefits obligation 18,939                 -                           10,150                 29,089                 
Net pension liability 336,736               -                           204,003               540,739               
Long-term debt, due in more than one year -                           1,900,000            124,047               2,024,047            

Total noncurrent liabilities 360,639               1,900,000            338,200               2,598,839            

Total liabilities 863,479               2,652,902            464,901               3,981,282            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 8,323                   -                           4,054                   12,377                 
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts -                           90,000                 -                           90,000                 

Total deferred inflows of resources 8,323                   90,000                 4,054                   102,377               

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,560,014            (146,139)              12,072,899          14,486,774          
Unrestricted (245,974)              (160,410)              797,737               391,353               

Total net position 2,314,040$          (306,549)$            12,870,636$        14,878,127$        
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Total
Local Golf Nonmajor

Transit Course Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 107,015$            93,797$              529,481$            730,293$            

Other 75                       -                         -                         75                       

Total operating revenues 107,090              93,797                529,481              730,368              

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 269,744              -                         222,714              492,458              
General and administrative 1,086,410           64,083                178,543              1,329,036           
Supplies and miscellaneous 465,515              -                         137,107              602,622              
Parts and supplies -                         26,592                17,566                44,158                
Utilities -                         -                         23,773                23,773                
Depreciation 348,256              -                         278,410              626,666              

Total operating expenses 2,169,925           90,675                858,113              3,118,713           

Operating income (loss) (2,062,835)         3,122                  (328,632)            (2,388,345)         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 1,344                  618                     4,813                  6,775                  
Property taxes -                         -                         90,157                90,157                
Operating grants 1,381,206           -                         -                         1,381,206           
Capital grants 621,156              -                         1,281,138           1,902,294           
Other revenue -                         -                         18,436                18,436                
Interest expense -                         (17,839)              (7,126)                (24,965)              
Other nonoperating expense -                         (7,369)                -                         (7,369)                

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,003,706           (24,590)              1,387,418           3,366,534           

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (59,129)              (21,468)              1,058,786           978,189              

Capital contributions 188,023              -                         -                         188,023              
Transfers in -                         191,583              -                         191,583              
Transfers out (51,028)              -                         (781)                   (51,809)              

Change in net position 77,866                170,115              1,058,005           1,305,986           

Net position - beginning 2,236,174           (476,664)            11,812,631         13,572,141         

Net position - ending 2,314,040$         (306,549)$          12,870,636$       14,878,127$       
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Total
Local Golf Nonmajor

Transit Course Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users (73,178)$           95,634$          511,586$        534,042$         
Payments to suppliers (1,465,574)        (90,176)           (367,986)         (1,923,736)       
Payments to employees (269,151)           -                      (190,255)         (459,406)          
Payments to other funds 83,209              87,558            -                      170,767           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,724,694)        93,016            (46,655)           (1,678,333)       

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from (to) other funds (51,028)             191,583          (781)                139,774           
Other nonoperating revenues -                        -                      18,436            18,436             
Property taxes -                        -                      90,157            90,157             
Operating grants 1,381,206         -                      -                      1,381,206        

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 1,330,178         191,583          107,812          1,629,573        

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (224,461)           -                      (1,393,964)      (1,618,425)       
Capital grants 621,156            -                      1,281,138       1,902,294        
Principal paid on notes -                        -                      (20,536)           (20,536)            
Principal paid on bonds -                        (260,000)         -                      (260,000)          
Interest paid -                        (22,175)           (7,944)             (30,119)            

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
 financing activities 396,695            (282,175)         (141,306)         (26,786)            

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 1,344                1,036              4,813              7,193               

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,344                1,036              4,813              7,193               

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,523                3,460              (75,336)           (68,353)            

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1, 2016 -                        305,220          1,059,547       1,364,767        

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2017 3,523$              308,680$        984,211$        1,296,414$      

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
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CITY OF MADERA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Total
Local Golf Nonmajor

Transit Course Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to cash
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (2,062,835)$      3,122$            (328,632)$       (2,388,345)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 348,256            -                      278,410          626,666           
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
  and deferred inflows of resources:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (180,268)           41,837            (17,895)           (156,326)          
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 1,897                -                      8,520              10,417             
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources from pensions (52,084)             -                      (35,744)           (87,828)            
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 84,454              499                 (19,517)           65,436             
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 711                   -                      1,031              1,742               
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 83,209              112,038          -                      195,247           
Increase (decrease) in advances from other funds -                        (24,480)           -                      (24,480)            
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources from pensions (14,086)             (40,000)           (6,863)             (60,949)            
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 63,667              -                      70,983            134,650           
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 1,468                -                      2,400              3,868               
Increase (decrease) in other postemployment
 benefit obligations 917                   -                      652                 1,569               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,724,694)$      93,016$          (46,655)$         (1,678,333)$     

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments - unrestricted 3,523$              2,117$            984,211$        989,851$         
Cash and investments - restricted -                        306,563          -                      306,563           

Total cash and investments 3,523$              308,680$        984,211$        1,296,414$      

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Developer and other capital contributions 188,023$          -$                    -$                    188,023$         
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2016 Additions Deductions June 30, 2017

Payroll Tax/Withholding Trust

ASSETS
Cash and investments 297,804$         27,772,355$    27,723,351$    346,808$         
Accounts receivable, net 10,970             335                  11,279             26                    
Prepaid items 235,949           -                       235,949           -                       

Total assets 544,723$         27,772,690$    27,970,579$    346,834$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 20,579$           6,212,571$      6,181,236$      51,914$           
Accrued liabilities 524,144           28,196,709      28,425,933      294,920           

Total liabilities 544,723$         34,409,280$    34,607,169$    346,834$         

General Trust Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments 799,907$         400,950$         383,276$         817,581$         

Total assets 799,907$         400,950$         383,276$         817,581$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 9,861$             383,323$         412,333$         (19,149)$          
Accrued liabilities 813                  23,078             23,891             -                       
Deposit payable 31,913             26,785             46,650             12,048             
Due to other governments 757,320           364,271           296,909           824,682           

Total liabilities 799,907$         797,457$         779,783$         817,581$         

Madera Groundwater JPA Comm

ASSETS
Cash and investments 22,944$           228$                23,172$           -$                     

Total assets 22,944$           228$                23,172$           -$                     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 327$                22,845$           23,172$           -$                     
Due to other governments 22,617             -                       22,617             -                       

Total liabilities 22,944$           22,845$           45,789$           -$                      
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CITY OF MADERA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2016 Additions Deductions June 30, 2017

Community Facilities Districts

ASSETS
Cash and investments 301,354$         598,608$         591,423$         308,539$         
Accounts receivable, net 2,012               2,264               2,588               1,688               

254,627           183,498           176,381           261,744           

Total assets 557,993$         784,370$         770,392$         571,971$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 886$                9,478$             10,329$           35$                  
Due to bondholders 557,107           966,559           951,730           571,936           

Total liabilities 557,993$         976,037$         962,059$         571,971$         

Total - All Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,422,009$      28,772,141$    28,721,222$    1,472,928$      
Accounts receivable, net 12,982             2,599               13,867             1,714               
Prepaid items 235,949           -                       235,949           -                       

254,627           183,498           176,381           261,744           

Total assets 1,925,567$      28,958,238$    29,147,419$    1,736,386$      

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 31,653$           6,628,217$      6,627,070$      32,800$           
Accrued liabilities 524,957           28,219,787      28,449,824      294,920           
Deposit payable 31,913             26,785             46,650             12,048             
Due to other governments 779,937           364,271           319,526           824,682           
Due to bondholders 557,107           966,559           951,730           571,936           

Total liabilities 1,925,567$      36,205,619$    36,394,800$    1,736,386$      

Restricted cash and
  investments with fiscal agents

Restricted cash and
  investments with fiscal agents

 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

MEETING DATE: Mav 2,20L8

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: E_2

proved By:

INTERI tc DIRECTOR

CITY ISTRATOR

SUBJECT:

Discussion and Direction to Staff Regarding Consolidating and Outsourcing Solid Waste Activities under
the Existing Mid Valley Disposal Contract.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council review the information provided in this report and the attached
proposal by Mid-Valley Disposal and provide comment, feedback and direction to staff as it deems
appropriate. Based on the increase in efficiencies which are reasonably foreseeable under the proposal,
Staff recommends that the City proceed with developing an amendment to the existing agreement and
scope of work with Mid Valley Disposal consistent with terms and conditions outlined in their proposal
(Exhibit A), along with internal City staffing modifications as necessary.

SUMMARY:

Mid Valley Disposal, LLC (Mid Valley) presented City staff with a proposal to amend their existing
Agreement to provide full service solid waste management services to City of Madera (Exhibit A). This full
service management would include: answering all City customer service calls, responding to all repair and
cleaning requests from customers, overseeing cart orders and inventory, and assuming all public
education and outreach duties in regards to State compliance. By centralizing these services, the City can
eliminate the overlap and duplication that currently exists between City staff and its contractor and expect
a more consistent delivery of service to customers. Additionally, this transition of services would result
in minor annual cost savings.

DISCUSSION:

The City entered into an Agreement with Sunset Waste Systems for solid waste and recycling services
from January L,2Ot3, through December 31,,2022. ln20'J,4, Sunset Waste Systems sold allof its business
operations and hauling contracts to Mid Valley Disposal. Mid Valley has continued to provide services
since this transition in September 2OI4.

Return to Agenda



Madera City Council Staff Report - Mid Valley Proposal May 2, 2018

Since the inception of this contract, the City has been responsible for fielding most customer service calls
from City residents and solid waste customers. Calls received by Public Works staff are sent to ARC Fresno
Madera (for cart repairs and replacement), Mid Valley (for missed pickups), Utility Billing (for account
questions, new and cancel services), or responded to by Solid Waste staff. Some residents and business
operators also call Mid Valley Disposaldirectly, acting on the belief that Mid Valley is responsible forthe
program overall. ln addition to customer service calls, other elements of the solid waste program where
responsibilities are currently split between City staff and the contractor are as follows:

. Residential Cart & Commercial Bin Delivery
r New Business Sign-Ups (Organics/Recycling)
. Education and Outreach
. Site Visits & Compliance

While the shared responsibility for the overall delivery of the solid waste program has worked reasonably
well for the last 5 years, the overlap in functions occasionally results in unnecessary duplication and a lack
of clarity to customers as to how services are provided. Mid Valley believes it is possible that the overall
service delivery process could be streamlined and made more efficient by consolidating all program
activities under Mid Valley's contract. This full-service delivery model is the norm in the majority of Mid
Valley's contracts.

Mid Valley has proposed to add Customer Service Representatives to answer all City of Madera service
calls 7:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday through Friday. Mid Valley will resolve all repair and replacement
requests within 72 business hours. Specific billing, new and cancel service requests will continue to be
referred to the City's Utility Billing Department. Mid Valley has also proposed to continue the partnership
with ARC Fresno Madera. Mid Valley Customer Service staff will prepare a daily service order list with the
address and issues to be addressed each day by ARC staff, similar to what the Public Works front office is

currently preparing.

The Public Works Department currently employs one Solid Waste/Recycling Coordinator and one Part-
time Maintenance Worker l, with a current vacancy of another Part-time Maintenance Worker l.

Additionally, administrative support staff within Public Works assist the Solid Waste Division with
answering phone calls, emails and preparing service order lists. Both the Solid Waste Coordinator and the
Maintenance Worker I respond to service calls for cart repair and replacement. ln partnership with Mid
Valley, the Solid Waste team performs signups and educational outreach to local businesses and multi-
family residences for new State mandates related to organic waste and recycling (AB3a1 and A81826).

The Mid Valley proposal includes the addition of another Recycling Coordinator to their staff who will, in

cooperation with the existing Mid Valley Coordinator, take over all State compliance related duties for the
City of Madera. This includes implementing waste reduction and recycling programs to meet A8939 (50%

diversion requirement), 4834L Mandatory Commercial Recycling, 481826 Mandatory Commercial
Organics Recycling and 581016 (new goal measurement system for disposal compliance). All education
and public outreach functions would become the responsibility of the contractor.

The City's Program Manager in the Solid Waste Department (Ron Prestridge) retired at the end of 20L7
and the City has thus far elected to not re-fill the position. The Public Works Analyst that had been
assigned to provide support to Solid Waste left the City's employment for another job in January and the
City has similarly elected to not fill the position. lf the Council ultimately chooses to expand Mid Valley
Disposal's role per their proposal, Staff anticipates the elimination of one Part-time Maintenance Worker

2
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I position that's currently vacant and one Part-time Maintenance Worker position that's currently filled.
ln addition, City staff will evaluate the need to modify or adjust the duties of the remaining full-time
position of Solid Waste/Recycling Coordinator and will bring a recommendation back at a future Council
meeting. While Mid Valley Disposal would assume all Solid Waste operational duties under their proposal,
the City would need to retain the ability and capacity to administer the contract and monitor performance
of the contractor to ensure compliance with the contract terms and State requirements. The level of
internal City staffing necessary to perform these function is under review and would be addressed if the
Council decides to work towards implementing Mid Valley's proposal.

Should Council provide direction to proceed with the proposal, job descriptions may need to be revisited
and revised as duties evolve. Additionally, any change in assigned duties to full-time staff require the City
to participate in the collective bargaining process should the affected bargaining unit request to negotiate
any effects of the changes.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The proposal from Mid Valley includes labor costs for a new Recycling Coordinator, Customer Service
Representative, and additional FTEs for Bin/Cart Delivery and a Route Supervisor. These staff increases
will have additional direct expenses for vehicles and administrative overhead. This will total $200,968 and
can be seen in detail in their proposal. Additionally, Mid Valley has identified potential cost savings
associated with annual cart purchases, replacement lids and parts, and the ARC Fresno Madera contract
they feel can be decreased by their involvement and organization. This will decrease current City expenses
for these items by $33,272. Overall, the Mid Valley proposal will realize the following potential cost
savings:

Cost for New Mid Valley Services/Staff 5200,968
Less Proposed Savinss on Carts/ARC Contract S (33.272)

TOTAL Net Cost of Proposal 5 t67,696

By outsourcing services currently performed within the City, staff will be able to reduce the following
costs within the Solid Waste Fund:

Solid Waste Program Manager S&B 5105,87L
Solid Waste 2 PT Maint. Worker I S&B S 33,607
Solid Waste Admin Allocation S&B 5 34,552
Solid Waste Maint. and Operations S 19,876
Recycling Maint. and Operations S 8,750
Hazardous Waste Maint. and Operations S 2.500
TOTAL Potential Adjustment to Solid Waste Fund 5205,155

These reductions represent a total re-assignment of all operational duties performed by City staff and will
result in the elimination of the Solid Waste Program Manager, two Part-time Maintenance Worker I

positions, and the partial allocations of Public Works Administration Staff (Administrative Analyst and
Administrative Assistant). The figures do not include any changes to the existing Solid Waste/Recycling
Coordinator position, though as described above, it is possible that changes to that position could also
occur. The reductions in various maintenance and operations budgets reflect cuts to fleet/vehicle fuel
and maintenance, advertising, office and maintenance supplies, and othervarious overhead coststo the
Division.
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The total cost savings to the solid waste fund that could be realized through the Mid Valley Disposal
proposal are measured by subtracting the net cost of the proposal from the total cost adjustment:

TOTAL Potential Adjustment to Solid Waste Fund 5205,156
Net

TOTAL Potential Savings S 37,640

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN:

Strategyl26 Clean attractive streets: Expand or develop programs to create clean, safe and attractive
streets.

Strategy 437 Recycling programs: Promote recycling through multiple programs

4
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Section 1:CoverLetter

MIo VIUEY
DsposAL

RECYCIING & TRANSFER STATION
Locolly Owned ond Operated

February 2,2O18

City of Madera Public Works Department
1030 S Gateway Dr.

Madera, CA93637

Full Service Solid Waste Management

It is with considerable pride that Mid-Valley Disposal, LLC hereby submits its proposal to provide the
City of Madera full service solid waste management.

We respectfully request the opportunity to meet with the City to discuss an expansion of services of this
successful partnership. We believe that our current level of customer service and operational efficiency,
in addition to our outreach programs and technology enhancements, will assist the City in achieving its
diversion goals and collection needs.

ln the enclosed proposalyou willfind a detailed description of current and proposed new services.We
are confident in our ability to deliver the best service and provide the best value to Madera.

I personally thank you for your consideration of this proposal and look forward to expanding our
business partnership with the City of Madera.

Best Regards,

Joseph Kalpakoff,

Chief Executive Officer
Mid-Valley Disposal, LLC

PO Box I 2385 Fresno, CA o P 559.237.9425 o www.midvollevdisposol.com
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Secti on 2: Qualifications and Experience

1) Background and Experience
Founded in 1997, Mid Valley Disposal (MVD), the Company, is the leading locally owned and

operated recycling, organics, and solid waste service company in the Valley.The Kalpakofffamily
has four generations of experience in successfully operating solid waste management companies
in California. With over 350 employees, the Company operates a total of 28 local collection
contracts and is permitted to provide collection services in Fresno, Madera, Kings, and Tulare

Counties. By expanding services, winning competitive bids, and making strategic acquisitions,
MVD has grown from a one truck operation in 1997 to over 150 collection vehicles today.

Mid Valley Disposal is continually reinventing itself to match the needs of its customers. The

Company has expanded operations to include a state-of-the-art sorting line. The only one of its
kind in the Valley, the system uses the most up to date sorting technology, including optical sort-
ers, to achieve the best possible diversion in the industry.

MVD also expanded operations in2017 to include a state-of-the-art in-vessel composting facility
To ensure community acceptance through the reduction of odors and preservation of air quality,
MVD built a covered composting solution. This advanced technology will allow MVD to assist its

customers with achieving their zero waste goals.

MVD possesses the experience, financial resources, local infrastructure, and capital assets to
seamlessly implement additional services with the City of Madera.
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Our Values

Our Values reflect who we are and
what we stand for as a company.

Excellent Cuslomer Service
We develop relationships that make a

positive impact.

Hqrd Work qnd Dedicolion
We work together to meet the need of

our customers.

Sofefy for Ourselves ond Others
We are committed to the safety of

ourselves and others.

lntegrity qnd Respect
We value our people and reward their

performance.
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Full Service Solid Waste Management

2) Principals, Officers and Associates

Mid Valley Disposal is comprised of four principals who are also managers: Jay Kalpakoff,

Joseph Kalpakoff, Jonathan Kalpakoff, and Roy Mendrin. Together, these individuals possess

over 130 years of resource recovery and solid waste management experience. Joining them
is an extensive team of managers who have a proven track record for providing excellent
service and insight in their individual areas of expertise.

|ay Kalpakoff |oseph Kalpakoff fonathan Kalpakoff

6

President & Owner

"l love what ldo and l'm
honored to wake up every
day and go to work with

such great people. They are
truly like familyJ'

CEO & Owner

"We've worked hard to build
a company that can be a
leader in the promoting

sustainability in the Central
Valley. l'm proud to say that
it is the people at Mid Valley

Disposalwho keep us
moving forward to bigger

and better thingsJ'

Executive V.P. & Owner

"l'm a hands on kind of
person. I love being involved
in the day-to-day operations

of the company and I'm
proud ofthe

accomplishments our family
has made in the industry."
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it

Bryan Metzler
Operations Manager

"l really enjoy coming to work
every day, working with all of

our communities and providing
them with great service. l've

been in the industry for almost
9 years and looking forward to

many more years. "

Ivette Rodriguez
Director of Recycling Programs

"l truly enjoy working with a

passionate team of
professionals that work with
our communities to educate

customers on the importance
of recycling and taking care of

our environment. lt is
rewarding to see successfully
implemented programs that

make a difference."

)eremy Gorman
Route Supervisor

"l truly love working for a

company that values the hard
work of each and every

employee, in the pursuit of
achievable goals that not only
benefit the environment, but
improves the quality of life for

us and our future."

Annette Kwock
Recycling Coordinator

"l love my job because of the
variety-from presenting in
classrooms to attending City
Council meetings; every day

is different and interesting. ltt
a privilege to work towards
im proving my community!"
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Jay Kalpakoff

Presldent

Joseph Kalpakoff

c.E.o.

Jonathan Kalpakoff

Executive V.P.
Operations

Steve Wright

District Manager

Megan Smith

E.H.5. Compliance
Manager

Operations Manager

Joe Heisdorf

c.F.o.

Customer Service

lvette Rodriquez
Director of ReoTcling

Recycling
Coordinators

Route Supervisor
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3) Current Contracts
Mid Valley Disposal currently services 85,000 Residential Accounts and 27,000 Commercial
Accounts each of the contracts were obtained through dedication, vision and hard work. Most
recently, MVD implemented a contract with California State University, Fresno.
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Communities from which we implement recycling programs, collection of solid waste, recycling
and organics:

School District's and College campuses served by Mid Valley Disposal for solid waste, recycling
and organics services:

Dinuba orosi (i_$j

et
(!.!)

\

Armona CSD Avenal Biola

Coalinga Chowchilla City of Fresno

Firebaugh Exeter Farmersville

Huron Kerman Home Garden CSD

Kingsburg Laton Kettleman CSD

Madera Mendota Lindsay

Sanger Fresno County Parlier

Woodlake Stratford San Joaquin

Fresno County ESAP Riverdale Tulare County

Reef Sunset Unified Farmersville Unified

Coalinga/Huron Unified Woodlake Unified

Golden Plains Unified Exeter Unified

Central Unified Lindsay Unified

Mendota Unified Parlier Unified

Kerman Unified Madera Unified

Laton Unified Clovis Unified

Firebaugh-Las Deltas West Hills-Coalinga

West Hills-Firebaugh California State U niversity, Fresno
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Section 3: Brief Overview of Current Services

Task Mid Valley Disposal

Cart Storage & Delivery MVD only delivers commercial bins to customers.

Mail-Out
MVD provides the City with an educational flyer to insert inside the billing for
residents. Provides recycling education to each residential customer.

Newsletter-
Report to Council

MVD presents biannual update to City Council regarding Citywide
recycling programs, outreach and tonnage reports.

New Programs MVD implements new commercial recycling and multi-family programs.

C&D Reporting
MVD provides the City with the diversion reports for C&D projects using MVD
roll-off services.

Business Recycling
MVD Recycling Coordinator, Annette, conducts weekly site visits,
implementation, education and technical support daily.

Routine Recycling
Education

Recycling Coordinator provides education during events, City and business
employeg tenant and student presentations, site visits, delivers recycling
brochures and flyers to City Hall. Annette attends community events and sets up
m ulti-family presentations and delivers education door-to-door.

Roll-Off Services & Orders MVD sets up new accounts and services.

Rent-A-Bins MVD sets up new accounts.

Sharps Kiosk
MVD oversees the collection services with a 3rd party hauler Stericycle and
promotes program throughout the City.
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Section 4: Proposed Services

Customer Service
Mid Valley Disposal prides itself on delivering customer service of the highest quality and professionalism
MVD's Customer Service Representatives (CSRs) will handle all of City of Madera's service and customer
concerns and requests courteously and efficiently. MVD will permanently resolve all repair and cleaning
requests within seventy-two (72) business hours. For the convenience of Madera residents and
commercial businesses, the Company will have a dedicated CSR answering City of Madera's local
(1-800-706-5779) number; assisting with any type of customer service issue. MVD's Customer Service Call
Center will be staffed between 7:00 am - 5:00 pm Monday through Friday.

Specific billing, new and cancel service requests/questions will be referred to City of Madera's Finance
Department.

MVD will have a Recycling Office located in town where (2) Recycling Coordinator's will be available to
schedule an appointment to discuss any type of service questions or request. MVD's Recycling
Coordinator's will be readily available by cell phone for customers to request a visit or answer any service
questions.

City of Madera staff can call with any questions or concerns. The City will also have direct contact with
MVD's District Manager and Recycling Director.

lmplementation Plan/ Transition Guidelines
Mid Valley Disposal is aware of potential confusion that may arise with a transition of customer service
operations from the City of Madera's Solid Waste Department. Howevel MVD is confident its
lmplementation Plan will assist in making transition smooth. MVD principals will work with City staff,to
complete and execute the lmplementation Plan included in this section and will constantly monitor the
progress and performance of MVD's expert operations team to ensure all milestones are met on schedule.
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I mplementation Plan/ Transition Guidelines
Mid Valley Disposal is aware of potential confusion that may arise with a transition of customer service
operations from the City of Madera! Solid Waste Department. However, MVD is confident its
lmplementation Plan will assist in making transition smooth. MVD principals will work with City staffto
complete and execute the lmplementation Plan included in this section and will constantly monitor the
progress and performance of MVD's expert operations team to ensure all milestones are met on schedule

Tosk Description Purpose
Distribution/
Frequency

START.UP

1 Postcard
Announcement

lntroduces MVD's 1-800-706-5779 as the primary
customer service phone number for City of Madera
residents and commercial accounts. Phone number
will service as a method of contact for customer
concerns and service requests. lnforms customers of
the questions MVD Customer Service Department
can assist with. Additional CSR will be trained and
employed to handle increased phone call volumes.

All MVD customers;
approximately one month
prior to the operations
start date, for the first
year.

2 Full Billing Audit Mid Valley Disposal will complete a full commercial
account audit to all commercial accounts in the City
of Madera to assure accounts are being billed
accurately with services on-site.

All commercial accounts;
when new contract is
initiated, for the first year

ONGOING

3 Communication
Meetings

Quarterly progress meetings with City of Madera
staff and Mid Valley Disposal team. Meetings will
allow MVD to report advancement, comments and
concerns for a continued smooth transition.

City of Madera staff and
MVD staff; quarterly.

4 Work Log MVD team will create a work log for ACR employees.
Work log will consist of work orders created from CSR

team.

All ARC employees; daily.
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Collection
Cart Ordering
Mid Valley Disposal will oversee the cart ordering and inventory for the City of Madera. MVD will track and
order inventory as needed.

Cart Storage and Delivery
Residential and commercial carts will remain stored at the City of Madera Public Works yard. MVD will
provide all required services and personnel for delivery and pick up of trash, recycling and organics carts
and bins to residents and commercial businesses. MVD will continue to deliver carts to newly constructed
homes. All bin and cart delivery will be managed by a MVD Operations Manager and Supervisor who will
be 100Y0 responsible for ensuring timely and accurate deliveries.

Cleaning and Repair
MVD will continue the partnership with ARC of Madera with a (one) year contract for 2018 for the number
of hours currently contracted with the City of Madera. MVD drivers will call in all damage carts regardless of
severity and Route Supervisor will follow-up to document all findings. lf damage is more severe the con-
tainer will be exchanged immediately and the damaged container will be repaired by ARC of Madera team.
MVD will make sure that all carts remain looking new for the life of the contract. All repair and service
requests made from City staff will be resolved within seventy-two (72) business hours of notification.
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Public Education and Outreach Program

Mid Valley Disposalt Recycling Department consist of six Recycling Coordinators, a Communications
Director and a Recycling Director which work together as a team to improve recycling efforts by
implementing hands on recycling education programs and providing technical support to all customers.
MVD's Education and Outreach Program has worked in all of MVD's other jurisdictions to bring increased

awareness, regulatory compliance, and results. lt includes:

MVD's Recycling Coordinator will assist with implementation of new services.

Education Materials will be provided for residential, commercial, school, and other types of recycling,
organics, and additional special programs regarding proper and safe disposalof waste materials.

Attend Community Outreach events.

Presentations will be offered to non-profit groups, civic groups, employees, tenants, owners, and
students regarding recycling programs.

School outreach will be provided to Madera Unified School District and schools within the City. Mid
Valley Disposal's school educational program offers classroom presentations, assembly's and special
event participations to promote waste reduction and recycling.

MVD's Recycling Coordinator will continue to monitor and track education and outreach efforts
including City recycling, organics and solid waste tonnages.

Mid Valley Disposal's Recycling Coordinator will present bi-annual updates to City council regarding
City wide recycling and waste reduction programs.

Phone number education to City of Madera residents and commercial customers.

MVD's Education Program is successful in reaching out to specific and various target audiences resulting in

changed habits to improve the environment and reduce waste by recycling, reducing and reusing materials
that would have been sent to a landfill. Mid Valley Disposal's Education Program is also vital in assisting the
City meet State Recycling mandates such as AB341 and AB1826.
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Special Services

Clea n-U p Events
Mid Valley Disposal Supervisor and staff will plan and coordinate the collection of materials at the curb
during the 6-week event.

Roll-Off Services/ Requests and Orders
Mid Valley Disposal provides industrial size bin services ranging from 10 to 50 yards for residential,
industrial, commercial cleanup and construction or demolition projects. Mid Valley Disposal has

implemented a process to track waste generated during Construction and Demolition projects through our
roll-off services, producing a C&D diversion report for contractors to submit to the City's Planning
Department. Alltonnages collected by our roll-offservices will be tracked by materialtype.

Rent-A-Bin
MVD's Customer Service Department will set up new accounts and services

Sharps Kiosk
Mid Valley Disposal's Sharps Kiosk provides an environmentally responsible solution for City of Madera
residents to dispose of home-generated sharps. MVD will oversee the collection services with 3rd party
hauler, Stericycle. Promotion of the program will continue with outreach throughout the City. ln approved
containers customers can deposit:

, blffi.;::j'"osvrnses

Battery Collection
MVD'S Recycling Coordinator collects used batteries from City Hall and Public Works Yard for safe and
proper recycling.

Holiday Trees
MVD will collect unadorned holiday trees placed curbside by single- and multi-family customers at least
during the first week after New Year's Day. For all practical purposes, MVD will collect holiday trees during
the season whenever they appear. Holiday trees will be recycled into mulch or composted. No collected
holiday trees will be landfilled.



Proposal for the City of Madera

Full Service Solid Waste Management
16

State Compliance
Mid Valley Disposal is proposing to offer a comprehensive waste reduction and recycling programs for the
City of Madera. MVD is confident we can implement a program customized to the City's needs, in order to
meet mandatory state law requirements.

Mid Valley Disposalwill implement waste reduction and recycling programs to meet A8939-
(50o/o diversion requirement), A8341 Mandatory Commercial Recycling, AB1826 Mandatory Commercial
Organics Recycling and S81016-New Goal measurement system for disposal compliance.

MVD's Recycling Coordinator will provide ongoing technical support to assure programs are successful.

Commercial business site visits will be conducted weekly to monitor recycling efforts, implement new
recycling programs, and provide education to the employees.

Multi-family communities will be visited weekly to monitor recycling efforts and contamination,
implement new recycling program, and provide education and outreach to the tenants.

Mid Valley Disposal's Recycling Coordinator will contact the Madera Unified School District annually
to receive approval for MVD's school outreach program to be at each school site. The school recycling
program will include monitoring recycling services, implementing new programs, and providing
presentations in a classroom or assembly format.

Annual Reports will be completed by Mid Valley Disposal. The annual report is due each year by August
1st and requires program updates meeting state diversion programs.

Mid Valley Disposal will work with each of the schools sites to implement Mandatory Organics
Recycling Programs within each cafeteria.

MVD's Education Program is successful in reaching out to specific and various target audiences resulting in

changed habits to improve the environment and reduce waste by recycling, reducing and reusing materials
that would have been sent to a landfill. Mid Valley Disposal's Education Program is also vital in assisting the
City meet State Recycling mandates such as AB341 and A81826.
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Tech nology

3 rd Eye
Mid Valley Disposal's collection fleets are equipped with the latest technology. MVD has invested in 3rd Eye

Cams, a driver enhancement system with the capability to record drivers, monitor driving behavior and
provide live vehicle tracking during daily routes. Using geofencing with bread crumbs, it allows MVD's

Operation Manager know the exact location of a truck and provides a trail of day-to-day vehicle activity.
With a push of a button MVD Drivers are able to take pictures of overloaded and blocked bins; pictures
are then automatically uploaded to system. 3rd Eye Cam's also highlight risky behaviors that can lead to
accidents, personal injury, property damage, and endanger a driver's professional livelihood. By showing a

driver's unsafe actions, we can coach our team to be safer. This technology has helped us increase customer
satisfactio n wh i le im provi n g operational effi ciency.

Type and Description of Customer Management Software Used
MVD uses a sophisticated software application specifically designed for the waste services industry called
Encore, which is Microsoft certified. The Company selected Encore because of the dispatching and
customer service components. Route or service problems can be tracked easily at the route level, which
transfers into customer notes. Customer service note-taking and service orders can also be created and
tracked efficiently. Encore has user-friendly Crystal Reports built into it as well. All customer requests and
concerns regardless of how they are routed to MVD are logged into this system. MVD's work order system is

a closed-loop work order system; work orders remain open until they are complete. The system is

monitored by MVD's customer service leadership team to ensure all matters are resolved within one
business day.

Capabilities and features include:
. Customer Management
. lntegrated Email
. CustomerWebsite Portal
. Accounts Receivable Billing and Accounts Payable Accounting
. Brokerage Tracking with Shipping Reconciliation
. Onboard Truck Computer lntegration
. On-Call Services, Roll-Off, Recurring Route Mapping and Route Optimization
. Scale Management:Transfer Station, Landfill, MRF, and Recycling Facilities
. Link Pictures and Attachments to Scale Tickets and Work Orders
. SplitTicket Multiple Customer, Multiple Material Loads
. Recycling Management:AB AR, and MRF Management
. Process, Purchase Order, and Sales Order Management
. Fleet and Equipment Management and Maintenance
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Reporting
MVD prides itself in having developed systems and a culture of full accountability to avoid operational
missteps that generate customer concerns. MVD will provide customer service reporting to the City based
on City preference and the finalized Agreement. MVD will produce reports from the information gathered
through the customer management software described in the section above. MVD will work cooperatively
with the City to develop reporting due dates and templates that provide the City with the information it
needs to monitor MVD's activity and performance.
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Mid Valley performs 10,669 bin services per week & 167,948 cart services per week. As evidenced by the
chart above, MVD has phenomenal success in keeping missed services to less than a half a percent of the
total services performed each month.

C&D Reporting
Mid Valley Disposal has implemented a comprehensive program to assist the City meet Cal Green Code
and Cal Recycle Annual report requirements to divert Construction and Demolition (C&D) materials from
landfill. Mid Valley Disposal's transfer station in Kerman is used primarily to sort C&D materials from City
projects. Our drivers and transfer station employees are trained to separate C&D waste from materials that
can be salvaged or recycled. Our roll-off drivers complete a diversion report when materials are transported
in our roll-off and are off loaded onto the transfer floor.The Driver Diversion report and weight ticket are

then turned into the scale house where the process begins to track C&D material type and tonnage per City
and Project. Mid Valley Disposal has diversion report available for contractors to turn in to City Planning
Departments for tonnages hauled to landfill and diverted from each project monthly. Mid Valley Disposal
will continue working in partnership with the City's Planning Department to assist in meeting the 650lo

diversion requirement under Cal Green Code.
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Performance Measures
The chart, below, includes MVD's own internal performance measures and the Company's
recommendations for measures of successful performance associated with any performance review the
City might undertake.

The measures for successful performance could be as simple as adopting the thresholds listed below.The
City could measure compliance through its own monitoring-such as through observation or intentional
investigation of customer service, or through a City-procured audit using an objective consulting firm, or
through a reporting function that presents a periodic snapshot of MVD performance. lf the City found MVD
non-compliant, the City could adopt a system of fines for failure to perform to contract performance
standards. Liquidated damages for failure to perform are a common form of incentive. A more positive
approach is to offer both a carrot and stick to encourage excellent performance. For example, it could offer
an automatic contract extension if MVD meets all performance standards in the subject review year.

MVD can confidently recommend either system because performance excellence is the Company's driving
ethic; MVD takes its performance seriously, always striving to exceed customer expectations.

Item Meosure
CSR phone call initial
answer time

A live human voice within 3 rings.

Customer on-hold time No more than 1 minute on-hold.

Residential missed
collection rate

No more than 1 percent.

Commercial missed
collection rate

No more than 1 percent.

Customer service staffi n g Provide customer service staffing during office hours.

Customer complaints Customer complaints to City over 6 per month.

Customer complaints Failure to resolve any customer complaint within 48 hours.

Liter
Failure to clean up spillage or litter during the course of collection
operations.

Outreach Failure to provide program guidelines to new customers.

School Education Program
Failure to provide notice to schools of availability of educational
presentations and materials.

Reporting Failure to submit reports to City on time.

Diversion Failure to meet all State recycling diversion mandates.
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Section 5: Additional Submittals

Staffing Chart

MVD Sroff for City of Modero

Position Current New Difference

Recycling Coordinator 1 2 1

Customer Service
Representative

0 1 1

Bin Driver 0 1 1

Route Supervisor ('l)part-time 1 full-time 1

Management Oversight (1)part-time l full-time 1



Mid-Valley Disposal
Cost Proposal for admin services to City of Madera

Annual Operatinq Costs

Labor Costs

WagesiSalary
PTO and Holiday Pay
Payroll Taxes
Annual Workers Comp Premium Cost
Employee Health and 401k Plan

Total Employee Cost
Number FTE needed

Allocated Employee Costs

Subtotal - Labor Costs
Vehicle and related direct expenses

Total Direct Costs
Overhead burden (9.0%)

Total Operating Costs

Total Costs to provide service
Single Family Residences
Cost Per Month per Home

Residential Cart Replacement

Annual Carts Purchased

$ per Cart

Annual Cart Purchase Costs
Replacement Lids, Parts and Supplies
ARC contracted services

Total Cart Costs
Single Family Residences
Cost Per Month per Home

52,000 $
2,600
4,280
1,430
6,880

38,500 $
2,400
3,820
1,270
6,340

48,000 $
2,800
4,570
4,780
6,720

60,000
4,1 00
6,670
6,980
7,200

Recvcle
Cordinator

Customer
Service

BiniCart
Deliverv

Route
Supervisor

$

$ 67,190 $
1.00

52,330 $
1.00

66,870 $
0.20

84,950
0.40

$

$

67,190$ 52,330$ 13,374$ 33,980

166,874
17,500

184,374
16,594

200,968

$ 200,968

12,929
$ 1.30

2,208
59.00

$ 130,272
28,000
25,000

$ 150,000

12,929
$ 0.97

$

Grev Green Blue Total
Cart Totals (Provided by City)
Estimated Annual Reolacement Rate

12,486
5.OOo/o

12,362
4.50o/o

12,210
4.OOoh

37,058

Estimated Annual Replacement Carts
Estimated Annual New Starts

624
180

556
180

488
180

1,668
540

Totals 804 736 668 2208

Total Monthly Gost per Home $ 2.26
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REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

Council Meeting of: May 2,2018

Agenda Number F-1

There is no financial impact associated with approval of the letter of

Ddoartmen t Directo()

-s6-EJ
iity Administrat(

SUBJECT: Request for Letter in Support of AB 3218- Millerton Lake State Recreation Area
Expansion. Acquisition of Land

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council consider the information and presentation
by Council Member Oliver requesting a letter in support of AB 32L8, Millerton Lake State
Recreation Area: Expansion. Acquisition of Land.

SUMMARY: Council Member Oliver serves as the City of Madera's representative on the San

Joaquin River Conservancy. He has requested that the Counciljoin him in support of AB 3218 by
authorizing the Mayor to sign a letter of support on behalf of the City. The proposed legislation
would allow for the properties acquired by the San Joaquin River Conservancy, for the purposes

of the San Joaquin River Parkway, to be managed under the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area.

Supporting documents as well as the proposed letter of support are attached.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

support.

CONSISTENCY WITH THE VISION MADERA 2025 PLAN: Approval of the letter of support is not
addressed in the vision or action plans; however, it generally aligns with Strategy 4It -

Recreational Opportunities: Enhance and expand recreational activities available to Maderans.

Return to Agenda



Sonia Alvarez

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

William Oliver
Thursday, April 26, 2018 9:00 AM
Sonia Alvarez

Steve Frazier

AB 3218-- Letter of Support Request

HiSonia,

I would like the Mayor and City Council to consider providing a letter of support for AB 3218 which is
sponsored by Assemblymember Joaquin Arambula. AB 3218 would allow for the properties acquired by the
San Joaquin River Conservancy (SJRC) for the purposes of the San Joaquin River Parkway to be managed under
the Millerton State Recreational Area, thus providing needed operations and maintenance funding.

The San Joaquin River Conservancy is a regionally governed agency created to develop and manage the San

Joaquin River Parkway, a planned 22-mile natural and recreational area in the floodplain extending from Friant
Dam to Highway 99. The Conservancy's mission includes acquiring approximately 5,900 acres from willing
sellers; developing, operating, and managingthose lands for public access and recreation; and protecting,
enhancing, and restoring riparian and floodplain habitat.

I currently represent the City of Madera on the SJRC Board as Vice-Chairman with Councilmember Derek
Robinson serving as an Alternate. Since its inception, the lack of operations and maintenance funding has

been the achilles' heal in realizing the San Joaquin River Parkway Masterplan. AB 3218 would help bridge that
funding gap, allowing the SJRC to secure critical operations and maintenance dollars through the State's
Millerton Lake Recreation Area. This legislation is supported bythe County of Madera, City of Fresno and

County of Fresno.

Assemblvmember Arambula's Statement:
Author's Statement: For 26 years, there have been efforts to establish a river park way along the San Joaquin

River from Millerton Lake to Highway 99. Residents of the CentralValley have long been promised the ability
to enjoy the beautiful scenic area adjacent to the San Joaquin River. One issue in providing this recreational AB

3218 Page 2 opportunity is operation and maintenance. AB 3218 is a logical attempt to solve the problem of
operation and maintenance funding challenges that have plagued the current land available for public use.
Background and Purpose: According to the author, this bill extends the Millerton State Recreational Area to
include the areas of the San Joaquin River Parkway currently managed by the San Joaquin River Conservancy
in order to allow for operation and maintenance to be handled by the DPR through the Millerton State
Recreation Area. Despite legislation creating the San Joaquin River Conservancy (SJRC), discussed below, the
author argues that the "dream of having a continuous parkway is not a reality."

1



Madera Citv Council
Mayor Andrew J. Medellin
Mayor Pro Tem Jose Rodriguez, District 2
Council Member Cece Foley Gallegos, District 1

Council Member William Oliver, District 3
Council Member Derek O. Robinson Sr., District 4
Council Member Charles F. Rigby, District 5
Council Member Donald E. Holley, District 5

May2,2018

Assemblymember Eduardo Garcia
Chair, Water, Parks, and Wildlife Committee
1020 N Street, Room 160

Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: Support for AB 3218 Millerton Lake State Recreation Area: expansion. acquisition of land.

Dear Assemblymember Garcia,

On behalf of the City of Madera, I am pleased to extend our support of Assembly Bill 3218 (Arambula)
which aims to bring much needed operation and maintenance funding to the San Joaquin River Parkway.
By allowing the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area to operate and manage the current area, resources
can be used more efficiently to help make the San Joaquin River Parkway a recreational resource that
everyone could enjoy.

Since 1992, the San Joaquin River Conservancy's goal has been to create a continuous river parkway
from Friant Dam to Highway 99. This area of land will be used for pedestrian, biking, and equestrian
trails. The idea of having a stretch of park land along the river for communities to enjoy is not new and is
one enjoyed by many cities in California, such as the City of Madera.

Unfortunately, the San Joaquin Valley has historically suffered from a dearth of park space, compared to
the rest of the state and nation. As residents in the heart of the Valley, we have the dubious distinction of
living in some of the worst air quality in our State with areas most often classified as severely
disadvantaged under the Cal Enviro Screen.

AB 3218 will help expand recreational opportunities for the Valley and increase open-space by making
the San Joaquin River Parkway areality and providing our communities with safe and healthy
recreational and outdoor access areas.

For these reason, we support AB 3218 and respectfully urge the passage of AB 3218

Sincerely,

Andrew J. Medellin
Mayor, City of Madera

2O5 W. Fourth Street . Madera, GA 93637 . TEL (559) 66{-5400 . FAX (559) 674-2972
www.cityofmadera.ca.gov



ASSEMBLYMEMBER DR. JOAQUIN ARAMBULAO
31ST DISTRICT

AB 3218 -Millerton Lake State
Recreation Area: expansion. - As
Amended

Summary
In 1992, The San Joaquin Conservancy Act (AB
2452) created the San Joaquin River Conservancy
with a mission of "acquiring approximately 5,900
acres from willing sellers; developing, operating,
and managing those lands for public access and
recreation; and protecting, enhancing, and restoring
riparian and floodplain habitat." For 26 years, there
have been efforts to create a River Parkway from
Friant Dam to Highway 99 along the San Joaquin
River.

Background
The area along the San Joaquin River has long
been envisioned as a Parkway where residents of
the San Joaquin Valley can enjoy the natural
landscapes created by the San Joaquin River.

AB 2452, The San Joaquin River Conservancy Act,
by Jim Costa created the San Joaquin River
Conservancy to develop and manage the San
Joaquin River Parkway, a planned 22-mile natural
and recreational area in the floodplain extending
from Friant Dam to Highway 99.

The Conservancy is governed by a fifteen-person
board, four of whom are elected officials. The
chairperson of the board rotates every two years
among the mayor or designated council member of
the City of Fresno, the member of the Board of
Supervisors of Madera County, and the member of
the Board of Supervisors of Fresno County.

There are six members representing various state
agencies, including the California Parks
Department, and three citizen representatives on
the board.

The San Joaquin River Conservancy is funded from
three sources: the San Joaquin River Conservancy
Fund, the Environmental License Plate Fund, and
several bond funds approved by state voters.

These bonds are prioritized for acquiring lands for
conservation and recreation in the Parkway from
willing sellers.

This bill

This bill would give the Conservancy the ability to
enter into a management agreement with State
Parks in order for operation and maintenance to be
handled by the California Parks Department
through the Millerton State Recreation Area.

Support

California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley
California State Parks Foundation
City of Huron
Fresno County Board of Supervisors
The San Joaquin River Parkway & Conservancy
City of Fresno
County of Fresno
County of Madera

Related Legislation
San Joaquin River Conservancy. Chapter 1012 of
1992 (AB 2452, Costa)

Parks and nature education facilities: Central Valley
Vision. Chapter 546 of 2007 (AB 1426, Wolk)

For More Information Call

Arturo Barajas
9t6-3r9-2031
arturo.baraj as@asm. ca. gov
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AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 02, 2018

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE- 2OI7 --20 18 REGULAR SESS ION

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 3218

Introduced by Assembly Member Arambula

February 16, 2018

An act to add-Seetie+5ee5.* Sections 5005.2 and 32539 to the Public Resources Code, relating to state
parks.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 3218, as amended, Arambula. Millerton Lake State Recreation Area: acquisition of land.

Existing law designates all parks, public campgrounds, monument sites, landmark sites, and sites of historical
interest established or acquired by the state, or that are under its control, as the state park system, except as

specified. Under existing law, the Department of Parks and Recreation controls the state park system, which is
made up of units, one of which is the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area.

Existing law establishes the San loaquin River Conservancy and prescribes the membership of and functions and
duties of the conservancy with respect to the acquisition, conservationl and management of specified public
lands within the San Joaquin River Parkway, and lands adjacent to both sides of the river.

This bill would require the department to effectively manage lands currently within its jurisdiction in the Millerton
LakeStateRecreationAreaadjacenttotheSanJoaquinRiver,and

wouldauthorizethedepartmenttoenterintoanagreementwiththe
conservancy to manage lands acquired by the conservancy adjacent to the state recreation area, as specified.

The bill would require the conservancy to take action to acquire approximately 5,900 acres adjacent to both
sides of the river, as specified, if those lands, or any portion of those lands, are offered for sale, and to prioritize
the purchase of those lands, as prescribed.

https://teginfo.tegislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavCtient.xhtmt?bitUd=201 7201 80A8321 8 112
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This bill would make legislative findings and declarations as to the necessity of a special statute for purposes of
expanding the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS

SECTION 1. Section 5005.2 is added to the Public Resources Code, to read

5005.2. (alThe department shall effectively manage lands currently within its jurisdiction in the Millerton Lake

StateRecreationAreaadjacenttotheSanJoaquinRiVer,and

per+en--er+nese@mayenterintoanagreementwiththeSanJoaquinRiver
Conservancy to manage lands acquired by the conservancy adjacent to the state recreation area that are
acquired by the conservancy pursuant to Section 32539.

SEC. 2. Section 32539 is added to the Public Resources Code, to read

32539. (a) The conservancy shall take all necessary action to acquire approximately 5,900 acres adjacent to both
sides of the San Joaquin River between Friant Dam and Highway 99 if those lands, or any portion of those lands,
are offered for sale.

(b) The conservancy shall prioritize the purchase of lands described in subdivision (a) that are adjacent and
provide access to the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area.

(c) The conservancy shall not use the power of eminent domain to acquire any lands pursuant to this section.

S#!'SEC, 3. The Legislature finds and declares that a special statute is necessary and that a general statute
cannot be made applicable within the meaning of Section 16 of Article IV of the California Constitution because
of the unique need to expand the Millerton Lake State Recreation Area.

https://leginfo.[egistature.ca.gov/faces/billNavC]ient.xhtml?bitLid=201 7201 80AB3Z1 8 212
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